
CITY OF MENDOTA 
"Cantaloupe Center Of The World" 

ROBERT SILVA 
Mayor 

ROLANDO CASTRO 
Mayor Pro Tern 

VICTOR MARTINEZ 

JESSE MENDOZA 

OSCAR ROSALES 

AGENDA 
MENDOTA CITY COUNCIL 
Regular City Council Meeting 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

643 QUINCE STREET 
July 23, 2019 

6:00 PM 

CRISTIAN GONZALEZ 
City Manager 

JOHN KINSEY 
City Attorney 

The Mendota City Council welcomes you to its meetings, which are scheduled for the 2nd and 4th Tuesday of every 
month. Your interest and participation are encouraged and appreciated. Notice is hereby given that Council may 
discuss and/or take action on any or all of the items listed on this agenda. Please turn your cell phones on 
vibrate/off while in the council chambers. 

Any public writings distributed by the City of Mendota to at least a majority of the City Council regarding any item on 
this regular meeting agenda will be made available at the front counter at City Hall located at 643 Quince Street 
Mendota, CA 93640, during normal business hours, 8 AM - 5 PM. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, those requiring special assistance to participate at this 
meeting please contact the City Clerk at (559) 655-3291. Notification of at least forty-eight hours prior to the meeting 
will enable staff to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the meeting. 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

FLAG SALUTE 

FINALIZE THE AGENDA 

1. Adjustments to Agenda 

2. Adoption of final Agenda 

PRESENTATION 

1. Ivette Rodriguez from Mid Valley Disposal to present the 3rd and 4th quarter 
update. 

CITIZENS ORAL AND WRITTEN PRESENTATIONS 
At this time members of the public may address the City Council on any matter not listed on the agenda involving 
matters within the jurisdiction of the City Council. Please complete a "request to speak" form and limit your 
comments to THREE (3) MINUTES. Please give the completed form to City Clerk prior to the start of the meeting. All 
speakers shall observe proper decorum. The Mendota Municipal Code prohibits the use of boisterous, slanderous, or 
profane language. All speakers must step to the podium, state their names and addresses for the record. Please 
watch the time. 

City Council Agenda 1 7/23/2019 

643 Quince Street Mendota, California 93640 
Telephone: (559) 655-3291 Fresno Line: (559) 266-6456 Fax: (559) 655-4064 www.cityofmendota.com 
TDD/TTY 866-735-2919 (English) TDD/TTY 866-833-4703 (Spanish) The City of Mendota is an equal opportunity provider and employer 



APPROVAL OF MINUTES AND NOTICE OF WAIVING OF READING 

1. Minutes of the regular City Council meeting of July 9, 2019. 

2. Notice of waiving of the reading of all resolutions and/or ordinances introduced 
and/or adopted under this agenda. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
Matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion and one 
vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that item will be removed from the 
Consent Calendar and will be considered separately. 

1. JULY 2, 2019 THROUGH JULY 16, 2019 
WARRANT LIST CHECKS NO. 45443 THRU 45614 
TOTAL FOR COUNCIL APPROVAL = $472,343.53 

2. Proposed adoption of Resolution No. 19-49, concerning local transportation 
purpose funds (Measure "C" Extension Funds). 

3. Proposed adoption of Resolution No. 19-50, claiming Local Transportation 
Funds for Fiscal Year 2019-2020. 

4. Proposed adoption of Resolution No. 19-53, adopting the Mitigated Negative 
Declaration prepared for the Rojas-Pierce Park Expansion Project. 

5. Proposed approval of the issuance of a Certificate of Recognition for the 
Tradicion y Cultura Joaquin Murrieta Annual Horse Ride. 

BUSINESS 

1. Council discussion on implementing a policy to provide English-Spanish 
translation services at City meetings. 

a. Receive report from City Attorney Kinsey 
b. Inquiries from Council to staff 
c. Mayor opens floor to receive any comment from the public 
d. Council take action as appropriate 

City Council Agenda 2 7/23/2019 



2. Council discussion and consideration of Resolution No. 19-51, annexing the La 
Colonia subdivision to Community Facilities District 2006-1 and approving the 
amended boundary map of the District. 

a. Receive report from City Attorney Kinsey 
b. Inquiries from Council to staff 
c. Mayor opens floor to receive any comment from the public 
d. Council consider Resolution No. 19-51 for adoption 

3. Council discussion and consideration of Resolution No. 19-52, electing to 
become subject to the uniform public construction cost accounting procedures. 

a. Receive report from City Manager Gonzalez 
b. Inquiries from Council to staff 
c. Mayor opens floor to receive any comment from the public 
d. Council consider Resolution No. 19-52 for adoption 

4. Introduction and first reading of Ordinance No. 19-07, enacting informal bidding 
procedures for specified public works projects. 

a. Receive report from City Manager Gonzalez 
b. Inquiries from Council to staff 
c. Mayor opens floor to receive any comment from the public 
d. Council provide any input and waive the first reading of Ordinance No. 19-

07, and sets the public hearing for the August 13th City Council Meeting 

5. Council discussion and consideration of a letter received from the California 
Rural Legal Assistance, Inc. regarding City utility bill late fees. 

a. Receive report from City Attorney Kinsey 
b. Inquiries from Council to staff 
c. Mayor opens floor to receive any comment from the public 
d. Council provide direction to staff on how to proceed 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS AND INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

1. Administrative Services 
a) Monthly Report 

2. Finance Officer 
a) Grant Update 

3. City Attorney 
a) Update 

City Council Agenda 3 7/23/2019 



4. City Manager 

MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS AND INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

1. Council Member(s) 

2. Mayor 

CLOSED SESSION 

1. Conference regarding real property negotiations pursuant to Government Code 
§54956.8. 
a) Addresses: 

a. 195 Smoot Street, Mendota, CA 93640 
b. 415 Sorensen Avenue, Mendota, CA 93640 
c. 437 Sorensen Avenue, Mendota, CA 93640 

b) Negotiator: Cristian Gonzalez 
c) Negotiating Party: Mendota Unified School District 
d) Under Negotiation: Terms of payment 

ADJOURNMENT 

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING 

I, Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk of the City of Mendota, do hereby declare that the 
foregoing agenda for the Mendota City Council Regular Meeting of July 23, 2019, was 
posted on the outside bulletin board located at City Hall, 643 Quince Street Friday, July 
19, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. 

ity Clerk 

City Council Agenda 4 7/23/2019 



 

Minutes of City Council Meeting  1     7/9/2019 

  
MINUTES OF MENDOTA 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
 

Regular Meeting    July 9, 2019 
 

Meeting called to order by Mayor Silva at 6:01 p.m.  
 
Roll Call 
 
Council Members Present: Mayor Robert Silva, Mayor Pro Tem Rolando 

Castro, Councilors Victor Martinez, Jesse 
Mendoza, and Oscar Rosales 

 
Council Members Absent:    None 
 
Flag salute led by Councilor Rosales 
 
FINALIZE THE AGENDA 
 
1. Adjustments to Agenda. 

 
2. Adoption of final Agenda. 
 
A motion was made by Councilor Rosales to adopt the agenda, seconded by Councilor 
Mendoza; unanimously approved (5 ayes). 
 
PRESENTATION 
 
1. Recognition of the Mendota Police Department’s Explorers POST for their recent 

achievements at the Manteca, California Explorers Competition. 
 
Chief of Police Andreotti requested that the item be tabled until the members of the  
Explorers POST arrived. 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

Minutes of City Council Meeting  2     7/9/2019 

2. Benita Duran with the United States Census Bureau to provide information on the 
2020 Census. 

 
Benita Duran with the United States Census Bureau presented information on the 2020 
Census including the purpose of the census; the confidentiality of the census; various 
methods that will be available for individuals to complete the census questionnaire; the 
opening of the Central Valley census office, including the availability of census jobs; and 
the importance of acquiring adequate responses to the census questionnaire. 
 
Discussion was held on how the agency performs public outreach for the census; the 
duties of the U.S. Census Bureau to encourage individuals to complete the 
questionnaire and/or apply for job opportunities; the importance of ensuring that the 
public completes the census questionnaire in its entirety; the possibility of the City 
Council passing a resolution in support of the 2020 Census; and the City Council 
thanked Ms. Duran for her presentation. 
 
1. Recognition of the Mendota Police Department’s Explorers POST for their recent 

achievements at the Manteca, California Explorers Competition. 
 
Chief of Police Andreotti introduced the members of the Mendota Police Department's 
Explorers POST who attended the competition in Manteca, California. 
 
Explorer POST Advisor Officer Maldonado commented on the achievements of the 
Mendota Explorers POST at the competition; the amount of training and preparation 
that was done for the event; and the various fundraisers that were held and donations 
that were received in order for the Explorers to attend the event. 
 
Sergeant Rodriguez thanked the Explorers POST advisors for their work in preparing 
the Mendota Police Department Explorers for the event. 
 
The Council congratulated the members of the Explorers POST for their achievements.  
 
Discussion was held on the amount of community support that exists for the program, 
and the requirements that the members need to meet to participate in the program. 
 
CITIZENS ORAL AND WRITTEN PRESENTATIONS 
 
Kevin Romero (Tuft Street) - provided an update on the Mendota High School football 
team. 
 
Ofelia Ochoa (Jennings Street) - requested that English-Spanish translation services 
be provided for City Council meetings; requested that additional lighting be installed 
along Highway 33; requested additional public transportation services; thanked the 
Council for eliminating the admission fee for the  2019 Mendota Fireworks Show; and 
invited the Council to a meeting on July 16th at the Mendota Branch Library. 
 

x-apple-data-detectors://embedded-result/1537


 

Minutes of City Council Meeting  3     7/9/2019 

Billy Rodriguez (Riofrio Street) - introduced himself; stated that he provides home 
renovation services; and provided his contact information. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES AND NOTICE OF WAIVING OF READING 

 
1. Minutes of the special City Council meeting and regular City Council meeting of 

June 25, 2019. 
 
2. Notice of waiving of the reading of all resolutions and/or ordinances 
 introduced and/or adopted under this agenda. 
 
A motion was made by Councilor Rosales to approve items 1 and 2, seconded by 
Councilor Mendoza; unanimously approved (5 ayes). 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR  
 
1. JUNE 24, 2019 THROUGH JULY 1, 2019 

WARRANT LIST CHECKS NO. 45488 THRU 45542 
TOTAL FOR COUNCIL APPROVAL    =   $310,882.87 

 
2. Proposed adoption of Resolution No. 19-47, authorizing the City Manager to 

sign a letter of authorization allowing Fresno County to submit a regional 
application for the Oil Payment Program, Cycle 10 (OPP10). 

 
Discussion was held on warrant no. 45511. 
 
A motion was made by Councilor Rosales to adopt items 1 and 2 of the Consent 
Calendar, seconded by Councilor Mendoza; unanimously approved (5 ayes). 
 
At 6:46 p.m. Councilor Martinez left the Council Chambers and returned within the same  
minute. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
1. Public hearing to consider public input regarding the formation of Landscape and 

Lighting District No. 2019-01. 
 
Mayor Silva introduced the item and City Attorney Kinsey summarized the report 
including that the item relates to the La Colonia subdivision; the item is for the formation 
of a landscape and lighting district; the formation of the district being permitted under 
State law; the purpose of the district; and the actions that the Council must take to form 
the district. 
 
Discussion was held on the purpose of the district. 
 



 

Minutes of City Council Meeting  4     7/9/2019 

At 6:50 p.m. Mayor Silva opened the hearing to the public and, seeing no one present 
willing to comment, closed it in that same minute. 
 
A motion was made Councilor Rosales to hold the public hearing, seconded by 
Councilor Martinez; unanimously approved (5 ayes). 
 
City Clerk Cabrera-Garcia stated that no assessment ballots were received prior to the 
deadline. 
 
BUSINESS 
 
1. Council discussion and consideration of Resolution No. 19-48, confirming the 

Engineer’s Report in support of the formation of an assessment district for the La 
Colonia subdivision, forming an assessment district, and approving and levying 
the assessments. 

 
Mayor Silva introduced the item and City Attorney Kinsey explained the purpose of the  
resolution. 
 
A motion was made by Councilor Rosales to adopt Resolution No. 19-48, seconded by  
Councilor Martinez; unanimously approved (5 ayes). 
 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS AND INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
 
1. Animal Control, Code Enforcement, and Police Department 
 
 a) Monthly Report 
 
Chief of Police Andreotti provided his report for the Animal Control Department including 
the monthly log; and stated that there are currently three ongoing dog bite 
investigations. 
 
Discussion was held on the presence of roosters throughout the City. 
 
Chief Andreotti provided his report for the Code Enforcement Department including that 
the officers contacted the owners of the green donation bins located throughout the 
City; and provided an update on weed abatement activities. 
 
Discussion was held on semi-trucks entering residential areas; and amplified music 
violations. 
 
Chief Andreotti summarized the report for the Police Department including a personnel 
update; there were no stolen vehicles for the month of July; and that the month has had 
the lowest amount of calls for service. 
 



 

Minutes of City Council Meeting  5     7/9/2019 

Discussion was held on whether there is a police detective at the department; and the 
upcoming National Night Out event. 
 
2. City Attorney 
 a) Update 
 
Nothing to report. 
 
3. City Manager 
 
City Manager Gonzalez provided an update on the sewer main line replacement project; 
and a meeting that he had with Westlands Water District regarding potential funding for 
the Mendota Boys & Girls Club. 
 
Discussion was held on the status of the Rojas-Pierce Park Expansion Project; the 
status of the Black Street & Sorensen Avenue Bulb-out Modifications project; the status 
of the AMOR project; the specifications of the storm water drain system for the La 
Colonia subdivision; the dynamics of the relationships between the City Council and 
employees; and the Council requested a grant update for a future meeting. 
 
MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS AND INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
  
1. Council Member(s) 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Castro requested information on the Mendota Municipal Code section 
regarding the reorganization of the Council. 
 
Councilor Mendoza thanked the businesses that donated to the 2019 Mendota 
Fireworks Show; thanked the audience for their attendance, and encouraged them to 
continue to attend public meetings. 
 
Discussion was held on whether translation services would be provided for the audience 
for future meetings; the possibility of members of the audience utilizing family members 
to translate for them; the issues surrounding speaking about agenda items in Spanish 
during meetings; potential solutions for the request; the possibility of having a town hall 
meeting so that members of the public may share their concerns; staff looking the 
potential solutions and providing a report regarding translation services; classes that are 
available to learn English; and issues that some audience members face regarding 
transportation services. 
 
Benita Duran (United States Census Bureau) – stated that the City of Mendota is the 
only City that permitted Ms. Duran to provide her presentation in Spanish. 
 
City Attorney Kinsey stated that the Council could request that an agenda item be 
included on a future meeting agenda to discuss providing translation services. 
 



 

Minutes of City Council Meeting  6     7/9/2019 

The Council provided direction to staff to prepare an agenda item to be included on the 
July 23rd City Council meeting agenda. 
 
Councilor Rosales provided information on potential grant opportunities, and thanked 
the representatives of the U.S. Census Bureau for their presentation. 
 
2. Mayor 
 
Mayor Silva commented on the 2019 Mendota Fireworks Show. 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
1. Conference regarding real property negotiations pursuant to Government Code  
 §54956.8. 

a) Addresses:  
a. 195 Smoot Street, Mendota, CA 93640 
b. 415 Sorensen Avenue, Mendota, CA 93640 
c. 437 Sorensen Avenue, Mendota, CA 93640 

b) Negotiator: Cristian Gonzalez 
c) Negotiating Party: Mendota Unified School District 
d) Under Negotiation: Terms of payment 

 
At 7:45 p.m. the Council moved into closed session. 
 
At 8:02 p.m. the Council reconvened in open session and City Attorney Kinsey stated 
that in regards to item 1 of the closed session, there was no reportable action. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
With no more business to be brought before the Council, a motion for adjournment was 
made at 8:02 p.m. by Councilor Mendoza, seconded by Councilor Rosales; 
unanimously approved (5 ayes). 
 
 
_______________________________   
Robert Silva, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk 



CITY OF MENDOTA

CASH DISBURSEMENTS

 7/2/2019 - 7/16/2019

Check# 45443 - 45614

Date Check # Amount Vendor Department Description

July 2, 2019 45543 $3,500.00 CENTRAL VALLEY FLOOD PROTECTION BOARD WATER APPLICATION SUBMISSION MOWRY BRIDGE FLOOD BOARD FEE

July 5, 2019 45544 $1,100.00 ADMINISTRATIVE SOLITIONS, INC GENERAL MEDICAL CHECK RUN 7/2/2019

July 5, 2019 45545 $288.93 ADT SECURITY SERVICES GENERAL-WATER-SEWER SECURITY SERVICE - 7/13/19 - 8/12/19 CITY HALL, DMV, EDD 

July 5, 2019 45546 $1,393.46 FRESNO COUNTY AUDITOR GENERAL CITY'S PORTION OF FRESNO LOCAL AGENCY FORM COMMISIONS (LAFCO)

July 5, 2019 45547 $19.95 SEBASTIAN GENERAL SECURITY SERVICES 6/21/19 - 7/20/19 POLICE DEPARTMENT 

July 5, 2019 45548 $194.85 TCM INVESTMENTS GENERAL MPC3503 LEASE PAYMENT FOR COPIER (PD)

July 5, 2019 45549 $88.86 MANUEL JESUS AREVALO WATER MQ CUSTOMER REFUND FOR ARE0006

July 5, 2019 45550 $68.73 STEVEN K CHAN WATER MQ CUSTOMER REFUND FOR CHA0048

July 9, 2019 45551 $759.00 ALL VALLEY ADMINISTRATORS GENERAL-WATER-SEWER 2018 ANNUAL RETIREMENT PLAN PARTICIPANT CHARGE (23)

July 9, 2019 45552 $464.32 COLONIAL LIFE GENERAL LIFE INSURANCE FOR JUNE 2019

July 9, 2019 45553 $5,019.11 BANKCARD CENTER GENERAL-WATER-SEWER CREDIT CARD EXPENSES 5/29/2019 - 6/24/2019

July 9, 2019 45554 $105.00 ADMINISTRATIVE SOLITIONS, INC GENERAL (7) HRA ADMINISTRATION JULY 2019 (PD) 

July 9, 2019 45555 $350.00 ALL VALLEY ADMINISTRATORS GENERAL-WATER-SEWER 3RD QUARTER 2019 RETIREMENT PLAN ADMINISTRATION 

July 9, 2019 45556 $658.43 CORBIN WILLITS SYS INC GENERAL-WATER-SEWER ENHANCEMENT & SERVICES FEES FOR MOMS SYSTEM JULY 2019

July 9, 2019 45557 $540.52 DATAMATIC INC WATER MONTHLY SOFTWARE LICENSE & SERVICE MAINTENANCE FEE FOR JULY 2019 

& AUGUST 2019

July 9, 2019 45558 $520.00 KERWEST NEWSPAPER GENERAL (17.5) LANDSCAPE & LIGHTING DISTRICT NO 2019-01 & (8.5) PUBLIC 

HEARING NOTICE FOR PLANNING COMMISSION RETAIL CANNABIS 

July 9, 2019 45559 $275.00 MUNICIPAL CODE CORPORATION GENERAL-WATER-SEWER MUNICODE - ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT FEE 6/1/2019 - 5/31/2020

July 9, 2019 45560 $1,399.20 NORTHSTAR CHEMICAL WATER (685 GAL) SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 12.5 MILL A 

July 9, 2019 45561 $277.33 AT&T GENERAL-WATER-SEWER MONTHLY SERVICES 559-266-6456 6/26/19 - 7/25/19 

July 9, 2019 45562 $215.40 ERNEST PACKING SOLUTIONS GENERAL-WATER-SEWER JANITORIAL SUPPLIES - WASHROOM FIXTURE BOBRICK FRAME 

July 9, 2019 45563 $277.00 SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY AIR POLLUTION CONTROL 

DISTRICT

WATER 19/20 ANNUAL PERMIT - DIESEL FIRED GENERATOR (WTP)

July 9, 2019 45564 $326.72 UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD COMPANY STREETS PUBLIC ROADWAY ENCROACHMENT FOR JULY 2019

July 12, 2019 45565 $600.00 LEXIS NEXIS GENERAL-WATER-SEWER SUBSCRIPTION SERVICES FOR MAY & JUNE 2019

July 12, 2019 45566 $115,195.00 WESTAMERICA BANK GENERAL PAYROLL TRANSFER 6/24/2019 - 7/7/2019

July 16, 2019 45567 $188.56 AGRI VALLEY IRRIGATION INC GENERAL-SEWER (3) COUPLER MALE 3" (3) COUPLER FEMALE CAM LOCK 3:, (3) COUPLER HOSE 

(3) ADAPTER HOSE (60) SUCTION 3" (6) T-BOLT CLAMP

July 16, 2019 45568 $30.05 AIRGAS USA LLC WATER (1) RENT CYL IND SMALL CARBON DIOXIDE FOR JUNE 2019

1



CITY OF MENDOTA

CASH DISBURSEMENTS

 7/2/2019 - 7/16/2019

Check# 45443 - 45614

July 16, 2019 45569 $215.86 ALERT-O-LITE SEWER (8) 4X100 ORANGE SAFETY FENCE (MARIE STREET)

July 16, 2019 45570 $225.36 AT&T GENERAL POLICE DEPARTMENT DISPATCH PHONE SERVICES 5/27/19 - 6/26/19

July 16, 2019 45571 $450.00 CAL-VALLEY CONSTRUCTION INC SEWER RIP BOTTOM OF BASIN WWTF ON BASS AVE 

July 16, 2019 45572 $586.29 CHEMSEARCH SEWER (6) PIT BOSS 5 GAL FOR WWTP 

July 16, 2019 45573 $264.76 CORELOGIC INFORMATION GENERAL-WATER-SEWER REALQUEST SERVICES FOR JUNE 2019

July 16, 2019 45574 $840.00 D&D DISPOSAL INC GENERAL ANIMAL DISPOSAL FEE FOR JUNE 2019 (CSO)

July 16, 2019 45575 $268.00 DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE GENERAL (4) BLOOD ALCOHOL ANALYSIS (PD), (4) FINGERPRINTS JUNE 2019 (PD)

July 16, 2019 45576 $140.60 FRESNO COUNTY SHERIFF GENERAL RMS JMS ACCESS FEE FOR JUNE 2019 (PD)

July 16, 2019 45577 $434.00 FRESNO MOBILE RADIO INC GENERAL (31) POLICE RADIOS FOR JUNE 2019 

July 16, 2019 45578 $2,531.65 GONZALEZ TRANSPORT INC GENERAL-WATER-SEWER-

STREETS

(4) RIVERSAND LOADS TO CITY YARD, (6) DUMPING FEE DIRT (PARK) (3.5) 

HOURS TRANSPORTATION

July 16, 2019 45579 $58.31 GUTHRIE PETROLEUM INC GENERAL (16.98 GAL) GASOLINE FOR PD 

July 16, 2019 45580 $180.00 KHAMPHOU INSYARATH GENERAL MONTH OF JUNE CRIME STATISTICS FOR PD 

July 16, 2019 45581 $1,103.95 KOPPEL & GRUBER GENERAL CFD NO. 2006-1 (POLICE & FIRE SERVICE) APRIL - JUNE 2019 

July 16, 2019 45582 $858.40 METRO UNIFORM GENERAL RAZOR BODY ARMOR - EXPRESS (PD) 

July 16, 2019 45583 $55,360.42 MID VALLEY DISPOSAL INC REFUSE (3) ROLL OFF BIN EXCHANGE (4.72, 8.44, & 3.83) & SANITATION CONTRACT 

SERVICES FOR JUNE 

July 16, 2019 45584 $249.67 OFFICE DEPOT WATER MULTIPLE DEPARTMENT OFFICE SUPPLIES 

July 16, 2019 45585 $1,126.30 PAPE MACHINERY WATER-STREETS JD 310 SG DIAGNOSE - TEST TRANSMISSION PRESSURE, TECHNICIAN RERAN 

WIRES 

July 16, 2019 45586 $98,680.75 PROVOST & PRITCHARD GENERAL-WATER-SEWER CITY ENGINEERING SERVICES - RETAINER JUNE, PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

JUNE 2019- MOWRY BRIDGE, STORM DRAIN, WW, WATER, LANDSCAPE & 

LIGHTINGJuly 16, 2019 45587 $5,323.16 SEQUOIA BARK SALES GENERAL (2 LOADS) 85 CUBIC FEET OF PLAYGROUND FIBER (CERTIFIED PLAYGROUND 

CHIPS) 

July 16, 2019 45588 $116.62 SIGNMAX STREETS (100) DRIVE RIVET 3/8 JUMBO HEAD STE FOR SIGNS 

July 16, 2019 45589 $3,734.60 SORENSEN MACHINE WORKS GENERAL-WATER-SEWER-

STREETS

MULTIPLE DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES FOR JUNE 2019

July 16, 2019 45590 $99.64 STATE OF CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF 

TRANSPORTATION 

STREETS 3RD PARTY DAMAGE TO TRAFFIC SIGNAL ( HIT & RUN 50% COSTS) 

July 16, 2019 45591 $275.60 THOMASON TRACTOR COMPANY SEWER-STREETS JOHN DEERE - FARM TRACTOR REPAIR: PARK BRAKE LINK LOOSE

July 16, 2019 45592 $76.42 USA BLUEBOOK SEWER (1) FIBERGLASS EXT POLE 3/4 THIRD END 8' -24' 

July 16, 2019 45593 $1,029.97 VERIZON WIRELESS GENERAL-WATER-SEWER CITYWIDE CELL PHONE SERVICES 6/7/19 - 7/6/19

2



CITY OF MENDOTA

CASH DISBURSEMENTS

 7/2/2019 - 7/16/2019

Check# 45443 - 45614

July 16, 2019 45594 $9,633.08 WANGER JONES HELSLEY PC ATTORNEYS GENERAL-WATER-SEWER LEGAL SERVICES RE: GENERAL LEGAL SERVICES 6/15/19 & LEGAL SERVICES 

RE: SPECIAL LEGAL SERVICES 6/15/2019

July 16, 2019 45595 $802.92 AFLAC INSURANCE GENERAL AFLAC INSURANCE FOR JULY 2019

July 16, 2019 45596 $75.00 ALEX AUTO DIAGNOSTICS WATER-SEWER 2007 CHEVY SILVERADO - REPAIR COOLANT LEAK/BROKEN HEATER CORE 

July 16, 2019 45597 $4,791.56 AMERITAS GROUP GENERAL VISION & DENTAL INSURANCE FOR AUGUST 2019

July 16, 2019 45598 $4,255.00 AVIATION MARINE INSURANCE SERVICES, INC AVIATION 2019 AIRPORT LIABILITY POLICY 

July 16, 2019 45599 $740.00 BC LABORITORIES WATER DRINKING WATER - EDT 2019 3RD QUARTER DBP 

July 16, 2019 45600 $870.97 BSK ASSOCIATES WATER-SEWER (2) GENERAL EDT WEEKLY TREATMENT & (1) DISTRIBUTION & MONTHLY 

WASTEWATER WW MONTHLY ( WEEK 2-5) 

July 16, 2019 45601 $134,242.00 CSJVRMA GENERAL-WATER-SEWER 2019-2020 1ST QUARTER DEPOSITS 

July 16, 2019 45602 $1,331.34 COMCAST GENERAL-WATER-SEWER CITYWIDE XFINITY SERVICES 7/6/19 - 8/5/19

July 16, 2019 45603 $484.00 FRESNO COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS GENERAL-WATER-SEWER FRESNO COG - MEMBER DUES FOR 2019 - 2020

July 16, 2019 45604 $107.43 EINERSON'S PREPRESS GENERAL-WATER-SEWER (2) 250 CT BUSINESS CARDS, (1) 100 CT BUSINESS CARDS 

July 16, 2019 45605 $1,016.00 US COMPUTER & NETWORK SERVICES GENERAL-WATER-SEWER (2) TECHNICIAN SERVICES TO SET UP TWO LABTOPS AT WATER PLANT (2)F 

TECHNICIAN SERVOCES ON MOMS SYSTEMS, SET UP LABTOP, & PROJECTOR 

July 16, 2019 45606 $812.00 CITY OF FRESNO POLICE DEPARTMENT REGIONAL 

TRAINGING CENTER

GENERAL PERISHABLE SKILLS PROGRAM 7/23-25/2019 (2 PD OFFICERS) 

July 16, 2019 45607 $125.00 ALEJANDRO GAYTAN GENERAL REIMBURSEMENT FOR VEHICLE RELEASE FEES (PD) 

July 16, 2019 45608 $550.00 LG ELECTRIC GENERAL POLICE DEPARTMENT BUIDLING EXTERIOR LIGHTS REPAIRS - NEW FIXTURES 

& BULBS 

July 16, 2019 45609 $78.00 LOU'S GLOVES WATER-SEWER (10) NITRILE EXAM GRADE POWDER FREE BLACK MEDIUM GLOVES 

July 16, 2019 45610 $1,331.33 NORTHSTAR CHEMICAL WATER (300 GAL) SODIUM BISULFITE 25% 

July 16, 2019 45611 $522.97 OFFICE DEPOT GENERAL-WATER-SEWER MULTIPLE DEPARTMENT OFFICE SUPPLIES 

July 16, 2019 45612 $2,100.00 PRICE, PAIGE, & COMPANY GENERAL-WATER-SEWER--

REFUSE

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AUDIT CITY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR END 

JUNE 30, 2019 

July 16, 2019 45613 $290.38 TRIANGLE ROCK PRODUCTS LLC STREETS (4.05) ST 3/8 SC3000 AGG & ASPHALT STREET PATCHING 

July 16, 2019 45614 $98.80 VETERINARY MEDICAL CENTER GENERAL (3) ANIMAL EUTHANASIA (2) WASTE DISPOSAL FEE (CSO) 

$472,343.53

3



 

 

AGENDA IT EM – ST AFF REPORT  

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS 

FROM: NANCY M. DIAZ, FINANCE OFFICER 

VIA: CRISTIAN GONZALEZ, CITY MANAGER 

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION NO. 19-49, LOCAL TRANSPORTATION PURPOSE FUNDS (MEASURE 
“C” EXTENSION FUNDS) 

DATE: JULY 23, 2019 

 

ISSUE 
Should the City Council approve Resolution No. 19-49 concerning Local Transportation 
Purpose Funds (Measure “C” Extension Funds)? 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Transportation Development Act (TDA) of 1971 provides funding to be allocated to 
transit and non-transit related purposes that comply with regional transportation plans. 
This funding is allocated by the State Board of Equalization, which takes the amount of 
sales tax collected and returns the general sales tax revenue to the Council of Fresno 
County Governments. They in turn, allocate it to each City in the County based on 
population for the projects that were budgeted for the 2019-2020 fiscal year.  
 
ANALYSIS 
The attached resolution, certification and claim forms for each applicable funding 
program are routine and required by Fresno County Transportation Authority in order to 
receive the funding for Measure C Pass-Through Funds. With the funding provided by 
Fresno County Transportation Authority, the City is able to fund street projects approved 
during the budget for each fiscal year.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
$369,555.00 to the City of Mendota Measure “C” Fund. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Council approve Resolution No. 19-49, claiming Measure C Extension Local 
Transportation Pass-Through Revenues for Fiscal Year 2019-2020.  
 
 



Measure C Extension Strategic Implementation Plan - Appendix D 

MEASURE C EXTENSION 
LOCAL TRANSPORTATION PASS THROUGH REVENUES 

CERTIFICATION AND CLAIM FOR FY2019-20 
 
TO:  Fresno County Transportation Authority  
 
FROM:  City of Mendota 
                 Local Agency Name 
Address:643 Quince Street, Mendota, CA 93640   Contact:  Rudy Marquez, Finance Director_    

Telephone: (559) 655-3291 x107 _   FAX: (559) 655-4064_   Email Address: rmarquez@cityofmendota.com_ 
 

1. Applicable Funding Program: (Check One)   
Regional Public Transit Program 

   Fresno Area Express 
  Clovis Transit 
   FCRTA 
  PTIS/Transit Consolidation 
  ADA/Seniors/Paratransit 
  Farmworker Van Pools 
  Car/Van Pools 
  New Technology Reserve 

 

Local Transportation Program 
    Street Maintenance 
     ADA Compliance 
     Flexible Funding 
     Pedestrian/Trails Urban 
     Pedestrian/Trails Rural 
     Bicycle Facilities 

Regional Transportation Program 
     Fresno Airports 

 

 
Alternative Transportation Program 

    Rail Consolidation Subprogram 
Environmental Enhancement Program 

    School Bus Replacement  
     Transit Oriented Infrastructure for 

In-Fill 
Administrative/Planning Program 

    Fresno COG

2. The  City of Mendota ("claimant") is an eligible claimant of funds for local transportation purposes pursuant to 
         Local Agency Name 
 California Public Utilities Code Section 142257. 
 
3. The Fresno County Transportation Authority has adopted a Resolution of Apportionment for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 

setting 1.34% of $432,978 (or $5,817) for the Subprogram or Category of funds checked above and available to the 
claimant.  On behalf of claimant, I hereby request release of the funds to claimant in accordance with: 
(a) Monthly payments consistent with adopted percentage, based on actual receipts 
(b)  Compliance with Steps A and B of the Strategic Implementation Plan (SIP) – Local Agency Pass-Through 

Funding programs and Other Revenue Program Funding  
 
4. On behalf of claimant, I hereby certify as follows: 

(a)  That the Subprogram or Category of funds checked above are not being used to substitute for property tax 
funds which claimant had previously used for local transportation purposes.  Such substitution of property tax 
funds is prohibited by California Public Utilities Code Section 142257. 

(b) That claimant has segregated property tax revenues from claimant's other general fund revenues used to 
support the Subprogram or Category of funds checked above so that verification of non-substitution can be 
proved through audit or that the non-substitution of funds shall apply to claimant's entire general fund. 

(c) That claimant shall account for Subprogram or Category of funds checked above and received pursuant to 
Public Utilities Code Section 142257.  Claimant shall maintain current records in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles and shall separately record expenditures for each type of eligible purpose.  
Claimant shall make such records available to the Authority for inspection or audit at any time. 

 
5. Claimant understands that should financial or compliance audit exceptions be found, the Fresno County 

Transportation Authority will take immediate steps to resolve the exceptions in accordance with its adopted 
procedures. 

 
    Authorized Signature: _______________________________________________________ 
 Title:   City Manager_________________ 
 Date:        __________________________ 

ATTACHMENT:   Evidence of Formal Action for Approval and Submittal Approved by:   
 

Fresno County Transportation Authority Board Date: ____________________________ 



Measure C Extension Strategic Implementation Plan - Appendix D 

MEASURE C EXTENSION 
LOCAL TRANSPORTATION PASS THROUGH REVENUES 

CERTIFICATION AND CLAIM FOR FY2019-20 
 
TO:  Fresno County Transportation Authority  
 
FROM:  City of Mendota 
                 Local Agency Name 
Address:643 Quince Street, Mendota, CA 93640   Contact:  Rudy Marquez, Finance Director_    

Telephone: (559) 655-3291 x107 _   FAX: (559) 655-4064_   Email Address: rmarquez@cityofmendota.com_ 
 

1. Applicable Funding Program: (Check One)   
Regional Public Transit Program 

   Fresno Area Express 
  Clovis Transit 
   FCRTA 
  PTIS/Transit Consolidation 
  ADA/Seniors/Paratransit 
  Farmworker Van Pools 
  Car/Van Pools 
  New Technology Reserve 

 

Local Transportation Program 
    Street Maintenance 
     ADA Compliance 
     Flexible Funding 
     Pedestrian/Trails Urban 
     Pedestrian/Trails Rural 
     Bicycle Facilities 

Regional Transportation Program 
     Fresno Airports 

 

 
Alternative Transportation Program 

    Rail Consolidation Subprogram 
Environmental Enhancement Program 

    School Bus Replacement  
     Transit Oriented Infrastructure for 

In-Fill 
Administrative/Planning Program 

    Fresno COG

2. The  City of Mendota ("claimant") is an eligible claimant of funds for local transportation purposes pursuant to 
         Local Agency Name 
 California Public Utilities Code Section 142257. 
 
3. The Fresno County Transportation Authority has adopted a Resolution of Apportionment for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 

setting 1.33% of $12,463,337 (or $166,208) for the Subprogram or Category of funds checked above and available 
to the claimant.  On behalf of claimant, I hereby request release of the funds to claimant in accordance with: 
(a) Monthly payments consistent with adopted percentage, based on actual receipts 
(b)  Compliance with Steps A and B of the Strategic Implementation Plan (SIP) – Local Agency Pass-Through 

Funding programs and Other Revenue Program Funding  
 
4. On behalf of claimant, I hereby certify as follows: 

(a)  That the Subprogram or Category of funds checked above are not being used to substitute for property tax 
funds which claimant had previously used for local transportation purposes.  Such substitution of property tax 
funds is prohibited by California Public Utilities Code Section 142257. 

(b) That claimant has segregated property tax revenues from claimant's other general fund revenues used to 
support the Subprogram or Category of funds checked above so that verification of non-substitution can be 
proved through audit or that the non-substitution of funds shall apply to claimant's entire general fund. 

(c) That claimant shall account for Subprogram or Category of funds checked above and received pursuant to 
Public Utilities Code Section 142257.  Claimant shall maintain current records in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles and shall separately record expenditures for each type of eligible purpose.  
Claimant shall make such records available to the Authority for inspection or audit at any time. 

 
5. Claimant understands that should financial or compliance audit exceptions be found, the Fresno County 

Transportation Authority will take immediate steps to resolve the exceptions in accordance with its adopted 
procedures. 

 
    Authorized Signature: _______________________________________________________ 
 Title:   City Manager__________________ 
 Date:        __________________________ 

ATTACHMENT:   Evidence of Formal Action for Approval and Submittal Approved by:   
 

Fresno County Transportation Authority Board Date: ____________________________ 



Measure C Extension Strategic Implementation Plan - Appendix D 

MEASURE C EXTENSION 
LOCAL TRANSPORTATION PASS THROUGH REVENUES 

CERTIFICATION AND CLAIM FOR FY2019-20 
 
TO:  Fresno County Transportation Authority  
 
FROM:  City of Mendota 
                 Local Agency Name 
Address:643 Quince Street, Mendota, CA 93640   Contact:  Rudy Marquez, Finance Director_    

Telephone: (559) 655-3291 x107 _   FAX: (559) 655-4064_   Email Address: rmarquez@cityofmendota.com_ 
 

1. Applicable Funding Program: (Check One)   
Regional Public Transit Program 

   Fresno Area Express 
  Clovis Transit 
   FCRTA 
  PTIS/Transit Consolidation 
  ADA/Seniors/Paratransit 
  Farmworker Van Pools 
  Car/Van Pools 
  New Technology Reserve 

 

Local Transportation Program 
    Street Maintenance 
     ADA Compliance 
     Flexible Funding 
     Pedestrian/Trails Urban 
     Pedestrian/Trails Rural 
     Bicycle Facilities 

Regional Transportation Program 
     Fresno Airports 

 

 
Alternative Transportation Program 

    Rail Consolidation Subprogram 
Environmental Enhancement Program 

    School Bus Replacement  
     Transit Oriented Infrastructure for 

In-Fill 
Administrative/Planning Program 

    Fresno COG

2. The  City of Mendota ("claimant") is an eligible claimant of funds for local transportation purposes pursuant to 
         Local Agency Name 
 California Public Utilities Code Section 142257. 
 
3. The Fresno County Transportation Authority has adopted a Resolution of Apportionment for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 

setting 1.60% of $12,366,701 (or $197,530) for the Subprogram or Category of funds checked above and available 
to the claimant.  On behalf of claimant, I hereby request release of the funds to claimant in accordance with: 
(a) Monthly payments consistent with adopted percentage, based on actual receipts 
(b)  Compliance with Steps A and B of the Strategic Implementation Plan (SIP) – Local Agency Pass-Through 

Funding programs and Other Revenue Program Funding  
 
4. On behalf of claimant, I hereby certify as follows: 

(a)  That the Subprogram or Category of funds checked above are not being used to substitute for property tax 
funds which claimant had previously used for local transportation purposes.  Such substitution of property tax 
funds is prohibited by California Public Utilities Code Section 142257. 

(b) That claimant has segregated property tax revenues from claimant's other general fund revenues used to 
support the Subprogram or Category of funds checked above so that verification of non-substitution can be 
proved through audit or that the non-substitution of funds shall apply to claimant's entire general fund. 

(c) That claimant shall account for Subprogram or Category of funds checked above and received pursuant to 
Public Utilities Code Section 142257.  Claimant shall maintain current records in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles and shall separately record expenditures for each type of eligible purpose.  
Claimant shall make such records available to the Authority for inspection or audit at any time. 

 
5. Claimant understands that should financial or compliance audit exceptions be found, the Fresno County 

Transportation Authority will take immediate steps to resolve the exceptions in accordance with its adopted 
procedures. 

 
    Authorized Signature: _______________________________________________________ 
 Title:   City Manager__________________ 
 Date:        __________________________ 

ATTACHMENT:   Evidence of Formal Action for Approval and Submittal Approved by:   
 

Fresno County Transportation Authority Board Date: ____________________________ 



1 
 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL  
OF THE  

CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTY OF FRESNO 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL    RESOLUTION NO. 19-49 
OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA IN THE  
MATTER  CONCERNING LOCAL  
TRANSPORTATION PURPOSE FUNDS  
(MEASURE “C” EXTENSION FUNDS)             
 

WHEREAS, the City of Mendota is an eligible claimant of funds for Measure C 
Extension Local Transportation Pass-Through Projects and Program Funds pursuant to 
California Public Utilities Code Section 142257; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Fresno County Transportation Authority has adopted Resolution 
2016-01 designating Apportionments for FY 2019-2020 Measure C Extension Local 
Transportation Pass-Through Projects and Program Funds, and setting the City of 
Mendota’s percentages at the following:  

 
• 1.33 % of $12,463,337 ($166,208) for the Local Transportation Program, 

Local Allocation – Street Maintenance Category sub program; 
• 1.34 % of $432,978 ($5,817) for the Local Transportation Program, Local 

allocation – ADA Compliance Category sub program;  
• 1.60% of $12,366,701 ($197,530)for the Local Transportation Program, Local 

Allocation – Flexible Funding Category sub program;  
 

which shall be the proportionate share of Measure C Extension Local Transportation Pass-
Through Projects and Program Funds that the City shall be entitled within the fiscal year; 
and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1) The City of Mendota hereby submits its Local Transportation Purposes 
Certification and Claims for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Measure C Extension 
Local Transportation Pass-Through Projects and Program Funds;  

 
2) The City of Mendota hereby requests the release of funds to the City on a 

monthly payment basis consistent with the adopted percentages listed 
above, based on actual receipts; 

 
3) The City Council of the City of Mendota further certifies: 

 
a) That Local Transportation Purpose Funds will not be used to 

substitute for property tax funds which the City of Mendota had 
previously used for local transportation purposes; and 

 



b) That the City of Mendota has and will segregate property tax revenues 
used to support local transportation purposes so that verification of 
non-substitution can be proved through audit; and 

 
c) That the City of Mendota shall separately account for Local 

Transportation Purposes Funds received, pursuant to Public Utilities 
Code Section 142257. The City shall maintain records in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, shall separately record 
expenditures for each type of eligible purpose, shall file a separate 
claim form for each sub program allocation, and the City shall make 
such records available to the Authority for inspection or audit at any 
time; and 

 
d)   The City of Mendota shall complete the reporting requirements no 

later than November 15, 2019, when claim forms are submitted.   
 
4) The City of Mendota understands that should a financial or compliance 

audit reveal that the City of Mendota violated any of the requirements set 
forth in paragraph 3 (a) (b) or (c), that the Fresno County Transportation 
Authority may seek to take immediate steps to resolve the violation in 
accordance with its adopted procedures. 

 
5) The Council of the City of Mendota hereby authorizes the City Manager to 

submit and execute any and all related documents. 
 

 
________________________________ 
Robert Silva, Mayor  

 
ATTEST: 

 
I, Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk of the City of Mendota, do hereby certify 

that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted and passed by the City Council at a 
regular meeting of said Council, held at the Mendota City Hall on the 23rd of July, 2019 
by the following vote: 

 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
   

                    ________________________________ 
Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk  



1 

 

AGENDA IT EM – ST AFF REPORT  

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS 

FROM: NANCY M. DIAZ, FINANCE ADMINSTRATIVE SUPERVISOR 

VIA: CRISTIAN GONZALEZ, CITY MANAGER 

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION NO. 19-50, CLAIMING LOCAL TRANSPORTATION FUNDS FOR 
FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020 

DATE: JULY 23, 2019 

  

ISSUE 
Should the City Council approve Resolution No. 19-50 claiming Local Transportation 
Funds for Fiscal Year 2019-2020? 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Fresno Council of Governments (FCOG) has the authority to review claims and 
allocate such funds in accordance with the Transportation Development Act (TDA) of 
1971 and Chapter 3 of Title 21 of the California Administrative Code for the purposes 
allowed under Articles III, IV and VII which provides funding to be allocated to 
encourage inter-jurisdictional coordination of transportation needs and increased 
coordination of transportation implementation planning. This funding is allocated by the 
State Board of Equalization, which takes the amount of sales tax collected and returns the 
general sales tax revenue to the Council of Fresno County Governments. They in turn, 
allocate it to each City in the County based on population for the projects that were 
budgeted for the 2019-2020 fiscal year.  
 
ANALYSIS 
The attached resolution and claim forms for each applicable funding program are routine 
and required by FCOG in order to receive the funding for the Local Transportation 
Funds. With the funding provided under the TDA, the City is able to fund street projects 
approved during the budget for each fiscal year, rural transit and assist with regional 
transportation planning.  
 
The total amount allocated for the City of Mendota is $581,714.00. However, the City 
will be payable $461,130.00 from the total allocation. The remaining $120,584.00 will be 
distributed among four sections; Regional Transportation Planning, Community Transit 
Service, Article 4.5, Fresno County Rural Transit Agency LTF and Fresno County Rural 
Transit Agency STA. 
 
Regional Transportation Planning is a long-term design of a region’s transportation 
system. The plan identifies and analyzes transportation needs of the metropolitan region 
and creates a framework for project priorities. 



2 

 

 
Community Transit Service, Article 4.5 is a transportation planning agency for 
community transit services for those disabled, who cannot use conventional transit 
services. Transportation services which connect intra-community origins and destinations 
in which needs are not being met in the community.   
 
Fresno County Rural Transit is a transportation service offered in Fresno County to the 
13 rural incorporated communities and many unincorporated rural communities with 
limited services to neighboring counties Kings County (Avenal and Hanford). There is a 
Demand Responsive or Fixed Route Basis for all passengers. The difference between 
LTF and STA funding is STA is specific to transit purposes.  
 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
$461,130.00 to the City of Mendota “LTF” Fund. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends Council to approve Resolution No. 19-50, claiming Local 
Transportation Funds for Fiscal Year 2019-2020.  
 
 

Regional Transportation Planning 12,953.00$ 
Community Transit Service, Article 4.5 22,480.00$ 
Fresno County Rural Transit Agency STA 85,151.00$ 



Enter Date: 7/16/2019 Claimant Name:

TRANSPORTATION FUNDING CLAIM DETAIL FOR FISCAL YEAR:  2019/20

PURPOSE AMOUNT SUBTOTAL

1. Bicycle & Pedestrian Facilities:  
Article 3: 9,275.00$              

Article 8a:
Audit Exceptions (General Fund Payback);

Unexpended Funds, Held by Claimant: 
9,275.00$                    

2. Regional Transportation Planning: 12,953.00$            12,953.00$                  

3. Public Transportation State Transit Assistance Funds (STA): -$                       
Other: 

-$                             

4. Community Transit Service CTSA, Article 4.5: 22,480.00$            22,480.00$                  

5. Streets & Roads: Article 8a: 451,855.00$          
Unexpended Funds, Held by Claimant: 

451,855.00$                

6. To Be Claimed By:
Fresno County Rural Transit Agency LTF: -$                       
Fresno County Rural Transit Agency STA: 85,151.00$            

Other -$                       
85,151.00$                  

7. Reserve in Fund Pending Further Claiming -$                             

GRAND TOTAL 581,714.00$                
Claim Total Must Agree With Total on First Page 581,714.00$                

Minus Non Transit Claims 120,584.00$                
GRAND TOTAL PAYABLE TO CLAIMANT 461,130.00$                

Allocation instructions and payment by the Fresno County Auditor-Controller to the applicant is subject to such monies being available 
for distribution, and to the provisions that such monies will be used only in accordance with the rules and regulations of the 

Transportation Development Act.

City of Mendota



1 
 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE 

CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTY OF FRESNO 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL   RESOLUTION NO. 19-50 
OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA IN THE MATTER 
OF CLAIMING LOCAL TRANSPORTATION  
FUNDS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020  
 
 WHEREAS,  the City of Mendota hereby submits a Local Transportation Fund 
Claim from the Local Transportation Fund of Fresno County for Fiscal year 2019-2020; 
and  
 

WHEREAS, the Fresno Council of Governments (FCOG) has the authority to 
review claims and allocate such funds in accordance with the Transportation 
Development Act of 1971 and Chapter 3 of Title 21 of the California Administrative 
Code; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Council of Fresno County Governments encourages inter-
jurisdictional coordination of transportation needs and increased coordination of 
transportation implementation plans; and  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS, that the City Council of 
the City of Mendota hereby requests the Council of Fresno County Governments to 
allocate $581,714.00 from the Local Transportation Fund to the named applicant for the 
Fiscal Year 2019-2020 for the purposes allowed under Articles III, IV and VIII of the 
Transportation Development Act of 1971, as identified in the attached claim and which 
is in accordance with the adopted Regional Transportation Plan, and authorize the City 
Manager to execute all associated agreements and documents. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City of Mendota hereby requests that the 
City’s total Transportation Fund apportionment for the Fiscal Year 2019-2020, said 
amount being $581,714.00 be allocated from the Local Transportation Fund to the 
Council of Fresno County Governments for the purpose of conducting Regional 
Transportation Planning. 

 
 
_____________________________________ 
Robert Silva, Mayor  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2 
 

ATTEST: 
 

I, Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk of the City of Mendota, do hereby certify 
that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted and passed by the City Council at a 
regular meeting of said Council, held at the Mendota City Hall on the 23rd day of July, 
2019 by the following vote: 

 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
 
      ___________________________________ 

   Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk  
 



BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL  
OF THE  

CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTY OF FRESNO 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL    RESOLUTION NO. 19-53 
OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA IN THE MATTER 
OF ADOPTION OF A MITIGATED NEGATIVE 
DECLARATION PREPARED FOR THE ROJAS  
PIERCE PARK EXPANSION PROJECT  
  

WHEREAS, The City of Mendota (City) prepared an Initial Study/Mitigated Negative 
Declaration for the proposed Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project (“Project”) in 
accordance with requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and the 
CEQA Guidelines; and  

  
WHEREAS, as the agency primarily responsible for carrying out or approving said 

project, the City of Mendota assumes the role of lead agency pursuant to CEQA; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Project proposes to expand the existing park with the additional of 
10s for two additional soccer fields, a baseball diamond, storm water basin, restrooms, turf 
and trees. The eastern half of Amador Street will be improved to City arterial street 
standards (84-foot right-of-way) extending from the residential development to the north to 
the Smoot Avenue extension.  An on-street parking lot will be constructed adjacent to 
Smoot Avenue, providing approximately 80 additional on-street parking spaces; and  
 

WHEREAS, on June 12, 2019, the City filed a Notice of Intent to adopt a Mitigated 
Negative Declaration with the Fresno County Clerk and said Notice of Intent advertised a 
30-day review and comment period starting on June 12, 2019 and ending on July 11, 
2019; and  
 

WHEREAS, said notice of intent indicated that City Council intended to consider 
said Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration, attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, at a 
regular meeting on July 23, 2019; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Mendota is the custodian of the documents and other materials 

that constitute the record of proceedings upon which the City Council’s decision is based, and 
Mendota City Hall is the location of this record; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it cannot be fairly argued, nor is there any 

substantial evidence in the record, that the project will have a significant impact on the 
environment, either directly or indirectly; and 

 
WHEREAS, based upon the Initial Study/Environmental Checklist and the record, the 

project will not individually or cumulatively have an adverse impact on environmental 
resources. 
 

 
 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1) The City Council of the City of Mendota hereby determines that any impacts 
resulting from approval of SCH# 2019069031 will be reduced to less-than-
significant levels with incorporation of mitigation measures; and 

 
2) The City Council of the City of Mendota hereby adopts the Mitigated Negative 

Declaration as attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, including its mitigation monitoring 
and reporting program, with the initial study and environmental checklist 
remaining a part of the City’s records. 

 
__________________________________ 
Robert Silva, Mayor  

 
ATTEST: 
 

I, Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk of the City of Mendota, do hereby certify that 
the foregoing resolution was duly adopted and passed by the City Council at a regular 
meeting of said Council, held at Mendota City Hall on the 23rd day of July, 2019 by the 
following vote: 

 
AYES:      
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:    
  
  
   

                       _______________________________ 
   Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk  



Exhibit A 



City of Mendota  
 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion 
Project  
 

Administrative Draft Initial Study/ Mitigated Negative Declaration 
 

June 2019 
 

 
 

Prepared for: 

City of Mendota  
 
 

Prepared by: 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group 
286 W. Cromwell Avenue, Fresno, California 93711 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Report Prepared on behalf of: 

City of Mendota  

Contact: 
Cristian Gonzalez  
643 Quince Street 
Mendota, CA 93640  
Cristian@cityofmendota.com  
(559) 655-4298  

 
Report Prepared by: 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group 

Briza Sholars, Environmental Project Manager, QA/QC  
Michael Osborn, Engineering Project Manager 
Brooke Fletcher, Biologist 
Trevor Stearns, GIS/ Assistant Planner 
Jackie Lancaster, Administrative Support  
Jeffrey O’Neal, AICP, QA/QC 
 
 

Contact: 
Briza Sholars  
(559) 449-2700 
bsholars@ppeng.com 

 

COPYRIGHT 2019 by PROVOST & PRITCHARD CONSULTING GROUP 
 ALL RIGHTS RESERVED 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group expressly reserves its common law copyright and other applicable property rights to this 
document.  This document is not to be reproduced, changed, or copied in any form or manner whatsoever, nor are they to be 
assigned to a third party without first obtaining the written permission and consent of Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group  In the 
event of unauthorized reuse of the information contained herein by a third party, the third party shall hold the firm of Provost & 
Pritchard Consulting Group harmless, and shall bear the cost of Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group's legal fees associated with 
defending and enforcing these rights. 

mailto:Cristian@cityofmendota.com


  City of Mendota 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

\\ppeng.com\pzdata\clients\Mendota_City of-3336\333619004-Rojas Pierce Park Impr\_DOCS\Planning\Env Doc\Draft ENV\Draft 
IS.MND.docx 

Table of Contents 
Acronyms and Abbreviations .......................................................................................................................................... vi 

1 Introduction ............................................................................................................................................................ 1-1 

1.1 Regulatory Information .............................................................................................................................. 1-1 

1.2 Document Format ...................................................................................................................................... 1-1 

2 Project Description ................................................................................................................................................ 2-1 

2.1 Project Background and Objectives ......................................................................................................... 2-1 

 Project Title ................................................................................................................................... 2-1 

 Lead Agency Name and Address ............................................................................................... 2-1 

 Contact Person and Phone Number ......................................................................................... 2-1 

 Project Location ........................................................................................................................... 2-1 

 Latitude and Longitude ............................................................................................................... 2-1 

 Description of Project ................................................................................................................. 2-1 

 Surrounding Land Uses and Setting .......................................................................................... 2-3 

 Other Public Agencies Whose Approval May Be Required .................................................. 2-3 

 Consultation with California Native American Tribes ........................................................... 2-3 

Environmental Factors Potentially Affected...................................................................................................... 2-9 

3 Impact Analysis ................................................................................................................................................... 3-10 

3.1 Aesthetics ................................................................................................................................................... 3-10 

 Environmental Setting .............................................................................................................. 3-10 

 Impact Assessment ................................................................................................................... 3-11 

3.2 Agriculture and Forestry Resources ...................................................................................................... 3-12 

 Environmental Setting .............................................................................................................. 3-12 

 Impact Assessment ................................................................................................................... 3-13 

3.3 Air Quality ................................................................................................................................................. 3-16 

 Environmental Setting .............................................................................................................. 3-16 

 Methodology .............................................................................................................................. 3-16 

 Impact Assessment ................................................................................................................... 3-20 

3.4 Biological Resources ................................................................................................................................ 3-23 

 Environmental Setting .............................................................................................................. 3-23 

 Methodology .............................................................................................................................. 3-24 

 Impact Assessment ................................................................................................................... 3-31 

3.5 Cultural Resources ................................................................................................................................... 3-35 



  City of Mendota 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

\\ppeng.com\pzdata\clients\Mendota_City of-3336\333619004-Rojas Pierce Park Impr\_DOCS\Planning\Env Doc\Draft ENV\Draft 
IS.MND.docx 

 Environmental Setting .............................................................................................................. 3-35 

 Impact Assessment ................................................................................................................... 3-36 

3.6 Energy ........................................................................................................................................................ 3-38 

 Environmental Setting .............................................................................................................. 3-38 

 Impact Assessment ................................................................................................................... 3-38 

3.7 Geology and Soils ..................................................................................................................................... 3-40 

 Environmental Setting .............................................................................................................. 3-40 

 Impact Assessment ................................................................................................................... 3-41 

3.8 Greenhouse Gas Emissions ................................................................................................................... 3-44 

 Environmental Setting .............................................................................................................. 3-44 

 Methodology .............................................................................................................................. 3-45 

 Impact Assessment ................................................................................................................... 3-48 

3.9 Hazards and Hazardous Materials ......................................................................................................... 3-51 

 Environmental Setting .............................................................................................................. 3-51 

 Impact Assessment ................................................................................................................... 3-52 

3.10 Hydrology and Water Quality ................................................................................................................ 3-54 

 Environmental Setting .............................................................................................................. 3-54 

 Impact Assessment ................................................................................................................... 3-55 

3.11 Land Use and Planning ........................................................................................................................... 3-58 

 Environmental Setting .............................................................................................................. 3-58 

 Impact Assessment ................................................................................................................... 3-59 

3.12 Mineral Resources .................................................................................................................................... 3-62 

 Environmental Setting .............................................................................................................. 3-62 

 Impact Assessment ................................................................................................................... 3-62 

3.13 Noise .......................................................................................................................................................... 3-64 

 Environmental Setting .............................................................................................................. 3-64 

 Impact Assessment ................................................................................................................... 3-66 

3.14 Population and Housing ......................................................................................................................... 3-68 

 Environmental Setting .............................................................................................................. 3-68 

 Impact Assessment ................................................................................................................... 3-68 

3.15 Public Services .......................................................................................................................................... 3-69 

 Environmental Setting .............................................................................................................. 3-69 

 Impact Assessment ................................................................................................................... 3-70 

3.16 Recreation .................................................................................................................................................. 3-72 



  City of Mendota 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

\\ppeng.com\pzdata\clients\Mendota_City of-3336\333619004-Rojas Pierce Park Impr\_DOCS\Planning\Env Doc\Draft ENV\Draft 
IS.MND.docx 

 Environmental Setting .............................................................................................................. 3-72 

 Impact Assessment ................................................................................................................... 3-73 

3.17 Transportation .......................................................................................................................................... 3-74 

 Environmental Setting .............................................................................................................. 3-74 

 Impact Assessment ................................................................................................................... 3-75 

3.18 Tribal Cultural Resources ........................................................................................................................ 3-77 

 Environmental Setting .............................................................................................................. 3-77 

 Impact Assessment ................................................................................................................... 3-77 

3.19 Utilities and Service Systems .................................................................................................................. 3-79 

 Environmental Setting .............................................................................................................. 3-79 

 Impact Assessment ................................................................................................................... 3-80 

3.20 Wildfire ...................................................................................................................................................... 3-82 

 Environmental Setting .............................................................................................................. 3-82 

 Impact Assessment ................................................................................................................... 3-83 

3.21 CEQA Mandatory Findings of Significance ........................................................................................ 3-84 

 Impact Assessment ................................................................................................................... 3-84 

4 Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program ................................................................................................ 4-1 

5 References ............................................................................................................................................................... 5-1 

6 List of Preparers ..................................................................................................................................................... 6-1 

Appendix A ...................................................................................................................................................................... A-1 

Air Quality and Greenhouse Gas Emissions Evaluation Report .................................................................. A-1 

Appendix B ...................................................................................................................................................................... B-1 

Biological Evaluation Report ............................................................................................................................... B-1 

Appendix C ...................................................................................................................................................................... C-1 

Cultural Information ............................................................................................................................................. C-1 

Appendix D .................................................................................................................................................................... D-1 

Soils Report ........................................................................................................................................................... D-1 

 

 



  City of Mendota 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

\\ppeng.com\pzdata\clients\Mendota_City of-3336\333619004-Rojas Pierce Park Impr\_DOCS\Planning\Env Doc\Draft ENV\Draft 
IS.MND.docx 

List of Figures 
Figure 2-1.  Regional Location Map ............................................................................................................................. 2-5 

Figure 2-2.  Topographic Quadrangle Map ................................................................................................................. 2-6 

Figure 2-3.  Area of Potential Effect Map ................................................................................................................... 2-7 

Figure 2-4.  Site Plan........................................................................................................................................................ 2-8 

Figure 3-1.  Farmland Designation Map ................................................................................................................... 3-15 

Figure 3-2.  FEMA Flood Map ................................................................................................................................... 3-57 

Figure 3-3.  Zoning Map .............................................................................................................................................. 3-60 

Figure 3-4.  General Plan Land Use Designation Map ........................................................................................... 3-61 

 

List of Tables 
Table 3-1.  Aesthetics Impacts .................................................................................................................................... 3-10 

Table 3-2.  Agriculture and Forestry Resources Impacts ....................................................................................... 3-12 

Table 3-3.  Air Quality Impacts .................................................................................................................................. 3-16 

Table 3-4.  Summary of Ambient Air Quality Standards and Attainment Designation .................................... 3-18 

Table 3-5.  Unmitigated Short-Term Construction-Generated Emissions of Criteria Air Pollutants ............ 3-20 

Table 3-6.  Unmitigated Long-Term Operational Emissions ................................................................................ 3-21 

Table 3-7.  Biological Resources Impacts ................................................................................................................. 3-23 

Table 3-8.  List of Special Status Animals with Potential to Occur Onsite and/or in the Vicinity ................. 3-25 

Table 3-9.  List of Special Status Plants with Potential to Occur Onsite and/or in the Vicinity .................... 3-29 

Table 3-10.  Cultural Resources Impacts .................................................................................................................. 3-35 

Table 3-11.  Energy Impacts ....................................................................................................................................... 3-38 

Table 3-12.  Geology and Soils Impacts .................................................................................................................... 3-40 

Table 3-13.  Greenhouse Gas Emissions Impacts .................................................................................................. 3-44 

Table 3-14.  Short-Term Construction-Generated GHG Emissions................................................................... 3-48 

Table 3-15.  Long-Term Operational GHG Emissions ......................................................................................... 3-49 

Table 3-16.  Hazards and Hazardous Materials Impacts ........................................................................................ 3-51 

Table 3-17.  Hydrology and Water Quality Impacts ............................................................................................... 3-54 

Table 3-18.  Land Use and Planning Impacts .......................................................................................................... 3-58 

Table 3-19.  Mineral Resources Impacts ................................................................................................................... 3-62 

Table 3-20.  Noise Impacts ......................................................................................................................................... 3-64 

Table 21.  Exterior Noise Level Performance Protection Standards ................................................................... 3-65 



  City of Mendota 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

\\ppeng.com\pzdata\clients\Mendota_City of-3336\333619004-Rojas Pierce Park Impr\_DOCS\Planning\Env Doc\Draft ENV\Draft 
IS.MND.docx 

Table 22.  Typical Construction Equipment Noise Levels .................................................................................... 3-66 

Table 3-23.  Population and Housing Impacts ........................................................................................................ 3-68 

Table 3-24.  Public Services Impacts ......................................................................................................................... 3-69 

Table 3-25.  Recreation Impacts ................................................................................................................................. 3-72 

Table 3-26.  Transportation/Traffic Impacts ........................................................................................................... 3-74 

Table 3-27.  Trip Generation ...................................................................................................................................... 3-75 

Table 3-28.  Tribal Cultural Resources Impacts ....................................................................................................... 3-77 

Table 3-29.  Utilities and Service Systems Impacts ................................................................................................. 3-79 

Table 3-30.  Wildfire Impacts ..................................................................................................................................... 3-82 

Table 3-31.  Mandatory Findings of Significance Impacts ..................................................................................... 3-84 

Table 4-1.  Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program ...................................................................................... 4-2 

 



  City of Mendota 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  vi 

Acronyms and Abbreviations 
AB ................................................................................................................................................................ Assembly Bill 

AE-20 ............................................................................................................................................... Exclusive Agricultural 

APE .............................................................................................................................................. Area of Potential Effect 

APN .......................................................................................................................................... Assessor’s Parcel Number 

CAA ................................................................................................................................................................ Clean Air Act 

CalEEMod ......................................................................................................... California Emissions Estimator Model 

CalEPA .................................................................................................... California Environmental Protection Agency 

Cal/OSHA ............................................................................. California Division of Occupational Safety and Health 

Caltrans .......................................................................................................... California Department of Transportation 

CARB ............................................................................................................................... California Air Resources Board 

CAAQS .......................................................................................................... California Ambient Air Quality Standards 

CCAA .......................................................................................................................................... California Clean Air Act 

CDFW ........................................................................................................ California Department of Fish and Wildlife 

CEC ................................................................................................................................. California Energy Commission 

CEQA .................................................................................................................. California Environmental Quality Act 

CH4 ......................................................................................................................................................................... Methane 

CNDDB ................................................... California Department of Fish and Wildlife Natural Diversity Database 

CNPS ................................................................................................................................ California Native Plant Society 

CO ........................................................................................................................................................ Carbon Monoxide 

CO2e ....................................................................................................................................... Carbon Dioxide Equivalent 

DPM ............................................................................................................................................ Diesel Particulate Matter 

DTSC .............................................................................................................. Department of Toxic Substance Control 

EIR .................................................................................................................................. Environmental Impact Report 

EPA ................................................................................................................... U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

FEMA ............................................................................................................ Federal Emergency Management Agency 

FMMP ...................................................................................................... Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program 

GHG ......................................................................................................................................................... Greenhouse Gas 

GIS ............................................................................................................................... Geographic Information System 

IPaC ...................................... U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service’s Information for Planning and Consultation system 

IS ................................................................................................................................................................... Initial Study 

IS/MND.................................................................................................. Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

MBTA ....................................................................................................................................... Migratory Bird Treaty Act 



  City of Mendota 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  vii 

MMRP ..................................................................................................... Mitigation Monitoring & Reporting Program 

MND ................................................................................................................................ Mitigated Negative Declaration 

MRZ ............................................................................................................................................. Mineral Resource Zones 

MT CO2e ................................................................................................... Metric Tons of Carbon Dioxide Equivalent 

NAAQS ........................................................................................................... National Ambient Air Quality Standards 

ND ................................................................................................................................................... Negative Declaration 

NEPA ....................................................................................................................... National Environmental Policy Act 

NO2 ......................................................................................................................................................... Nitrogen Dioxide 

NOX ........................................................................................................................................................... Nitrogen Oxide 

NPDES ............................................................................................ National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 

NRCS ............................................................................................................... Natural Resources Conservation Service 

O3 ............................................................................................................................................................................ Ozone 

Pb ................................................................................................................................................................................ Lead 

PM2.5  ............................................................................................................................................... Particulate Matter less than 2.5 microns in diameter 

PM10 .............................................................................................. Particulate Matter less than 10 microns in diameter 

Project .................................................................................................................................. Rojas Pierce Park Expansion 

ROG.............................................................................................................................................. Reactive Organic Gases 

SJVAB .................................................................................................................................. San Joaquin Valley Air Basin 

SJVAPCD ........................................................................................ San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District 

SO2 .............................................................................................................................................................. Sulfur Dioxide 

SR .................................................................................................................................................................... State Route 

SWRCB ................................................................................................................. State Water Resources Control Board 

SWPPP.............................................................................................................. Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan 

TAC ............................................................................................................................................. Toxic Air Contaminants 

TPY ...............................................................................................................................................................Tons Per Year 

USDA ............................................................................................................................ U. S. Department of Agriculture 

USFWS ............................................................................................................................. U. S. Fish and Wildlife Service 

 



  Chapter One:  Introduction 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  1-1 

1 Introduction 
Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group (Provost & Pritchard) has prepared this Initial Study/Mitigated 
Negative Declaration (IS/MND) on behalf of the City of Mendota (City) to address the potential 
environmental effects of the Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project (Project or proposed Project). This 
document has been prepared in accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), Public 
Resources Code Section 21000 et.seq.  The City of Mendota (City) is the CEQA lead agency for this proposed 
Project.   
 
The site and the proposed Project are described in detail in the Project Description, Chapter 2. 

1.1 Regulatory Information 

An Initial Study (IS) is a document prepared by a lead agency to determine whether a project may have a 
significant effect on the environment.  In accordance with California Code of Regulations Title 14 (Chapter 3, 
Section 15000, et seq.)-- also known as the CEQA Guidelines-- Section 15064 (a)(1) states that an 
environmental impact report (EIR) must be prepared if there is substantial evidence in light of the whole 
record that the proposed Project under review may have a significant effect on the environment and should 
be further analyzed to determine mitigation measures or project alternatives that might avoid or reduce 
project impacts to less than significant levels.  A negative declaration (ND) may be prepared instead if the 
lead agency finds that there is no substantial evidence in light of the whole record that the project may have a 
significant effect on the environment.  An ND is a written statement describing the reasons why a proposed 
Project, not otherwise exempt from CEQA, would not have a significant effect on the environment and, 
therefore, why it would not require the preparation of an EIR (CEQA Guidelines Section 15371).  According 
to CEQA Guidelines Section 15070, a ND or mitigated ND shall be prepared for a project subject to CEQA 
when either: 

a. The IS shows there is no substantial evidence, in light of the whole record before the agency, that the 
proposed Project may have a significant effect on the environment, or  

b. The IS identified potentially significant effects, but: 

1. Revisions in the project plans or proposals made by or agreed to by the applicant before the 
proposed MND and IS is released for public review would avoid the effects or mitigate the 
effects to a point where clearly no significant effects would occur is prepared, and 

2. There is no substantial evidence, in light of the whole record before the agency, that the 
proposed Project as revised may have a significant effect on the environment.   

1.2 Document Format 

This IS/MND contains six chapters and four appendices. Chapter 1, Introduction, provides an overview of 
the proposed Project and the CEQA process.  Chapter 2, Project Description, provides a detailed 
description of proposed Project components and objectives.  Chapter 3, Impact Analysis, presents the 
CEQA checklist and environmental analysis for all impact areas, mandatory findings of significance, and 
feasible mitigation measures.  If the proposed Project does not have the potential to significantly impact a 
given issue area, the relevant section provides a brief discussion of the reasons why no impacts are expected.  
If the proposed Project could have a potentially significant impact on a resource, the issue area discussion 
provides a description of potential impacts, and appropriate mitigation measures and/or permit requirements 



  Chapter One:  Introduction 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  1-2 

that would reduce those impacts to a less than significant level. Chapter 4, Mitigation Monitoring and 
Reporting Program (MMRP), provides the proposed mitigation measures, implementation timelines, and 
the entity/agency responsible for ensuring implementation. Chapter 5 is References and Chapter 6 is 
Preparers.  

The CalEEMod Output Files, Biological Evaluation Report, Cultural Resources Information, and NRCS Soil 
Resource Report are provided as technical Appendix A, Appendix B, Appendix C and Appendix D, 
respectively, at the end of this document.   

The analyses of environmental impacts in Chapter 3 are separated into the following categories: 

Potentially Significant Impact.  This category is applicable if there is substantial evidence that an effect may be 
significant, and no feasible mitigation measures can be identified to reduce impacts to a less than significant 
level.  If there are one or more “Potentially Significant Impact” entries when the determination is made, an 
EIR is required. 

Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated.  This category applies where the incorporation of mitigation 
measures would reduce an effect from a “Potentially Significant Impact” to a “Less Than Significant Impact.”  
The lead agency must describe the mitigation measure(s), and briefly explain how they would reduce the 
effect to a less than significant level (mitigation measures from earlier analyses may be cross-referenced).  

Less Than Significant Impact.  This category is identified when the proposed Project would result in impacts 
below the threshold of significance, and no mitigation measures are required. 

No Impact.  This category applies when a project would not create an impact in the specific environmental 
issue area.  “No Impact” answers do not require a detailed explanation if they are adequately supported by the 
information sources cited by the lead agency, which show that the impact does not apply to the specific 
project (e.g. the project falls outside a fault rupture zone).  A “No Impact” answer should be explained where 
it is based on project-specific factors as well as general standards (e.g. the project will not expose sensitive 
receptors to pollutants, based on a project-specific screening analysis). 
 



  Chapter Two:  Project Description 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  2-1 

2 Project Description 

2.1 Project Background and Objectives 

 Project Title 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

 Lead Agency Name and Address 

City of Mendota  
643 Quince Street 
Mendota, CA 93640  

 Contact Person and Phone Number 

Lead Agency Contact 
Cristian Gonzalez, City Manager  
Cristian@cityofmendota.com  
(559) 655-4298  
 

CEQA Consultant 
Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group 
Briza Sholars, Environmental Project Manager 
bsholars@ppeng.com  
(559) 449-2700 

 Project Location 

The project site is located in western Mendota. Mendota is approximately 35 miles west of Fresno, and eight 
miles south of Firebaugh in western Fresno County (see Figure 2-1). State Routes 180 and 33 intersect 
approximately ½-mile northeast of the project site.  The park is situated in Section 36, Township 13 South, 
Range 14 East, Mount Diablo Base & Meridian; Assessor’s Parcel Number 012-190-55ST and 012-190-56ST. 

 Latitude and Longitude 

The approximate centroid of the Project area is 36o45’21.06” North, 120o23’29.45” West.  

 Description of Project 

2.1.6.1 Project Background and Purpose 

Rojas-Pierce Park is located at the intersection of Smoot Avenue and Sorensen Avenue in the City of 
Mendota.  The original park became a memorial for Fresno County soldiers who died in the Vietnam War.  
The park was upgraded in 1981, but until recently had received no additional improvement since that time. 
 
In 2006, the City of Mendota retained the services of SSA Landscape Architects, Inc. to provide master 
planning services for the renovation and expansion of the park.  Phase I of the project, completed in October 

mailto:Cristian@cityofmendota.com
mailto:bsholars@ppeng.com


  Chapter Two:  Project Description 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  2-2 

2008, involved the demolition and removal of nearly all onsite facilities within the original 12-acre park site 
and subsequent construction of new facilities. Amenities included new landscaping, a concert pavilion, a 
splash park, two jungle-gym play areas, a temporary skate park, three basketball courts, a permanent 
concession stand, restrooms, and an emergency/maintenance access road. Additionally, a single soccer field 
was constructed on a small portion of the City property on which the current project proposes to expand. 
The northern portion of the Sorenson Avenue frontage contains a decorative 3½-foot wall.  
 
The intent of the proposed project is to continue, but not complete, the master-planned facilities as 
commissioned by the Mendota City Council in 2006, and to provide a high-quality, easily-accessible 
recreational venue for the residents of Mendota and the surrounding area.  
 
The land is pre-zoned O (Open Space and Recreation) and R-2 (Multiple Family Medium High Density 
Residential), City of Mendota, zoned AE-20 (Exclusive Agriculture, Fresno County) with a General Plan 
Designation of Recreational and Medium Density Residential (City of Mendota); Agriculture (Fresno County) 

2.1.6.2 Project Description 

The 10-acre parcel of land adjacent to the existing park (currently outside the city limits) will receive two 
additional soccer fields, and a baseball diamond, and covered bleachers and sports field light-emitting diode 
(LED) lighting. Beyond the outfield of the baseball diamond an open space area will double as a storm water 
basin. Smoot Avenue will be fully improved to City local street standards (60-foot right-of-way) along the 
parcel frontage. The eastern half of Amador Street will be improved to City arterial street standards (84-foot 
right-of-way) extending from the residential development to the north to the Smoot Avenue extension. This 
will complete the circulation system in the area. An on-street parking lot will be constructed adjacent to 
Smoot Avenue, providing approximately 80 additional on-street parking spaces including four Americans 
with Disabilities (ADA) compliant stalls, one of which is van accessible. The development activities also 
include shade structures, installation of turf and trees, and continuation of the park’s interior pedestrian 
circulation system. Another concession stand and permanent restroom facility will be added which includes 
two unisex bathrooms, a storage room, and drinking fountain. For the purposes of this CEQA document the 
area of potential effect (APE) is approximately 15.4 acres.  
 
The park is separated from the adjacent subdivisions by standard residential wood fencing. For the safety of 
both the facility and patrons of the park, chain link fencing with gates provides a perimeter along street 
frontages. This fencing is six feet high along most of the perimeter and 12 feet high at the outfield of the 
baseball fields.  
 
Both within the existing park and the proposed expansion, large- and medium-size trees are oriented along 
the property lines as an additional buffer between the facility and the residential areas.  Trees are also aligned 
with the existing and proposed walkways that traverse the park.  Aside from the existing and proposed 
athletic fields, a large portion of the turfed area is designated as “unprogrammed grass area,” and is intended 
for general recreation.  Onsite structures are primarily located in the central area of the park, and thus create a 
minimal visual impact to the adjacent areas. 
 
Vehicular and pedestrian access to the site is available from both Smoot Avenue and Sorensen Avenue. The 
project will also provide vehicular and pedestrian access from Amador Street. 
 
The portion of the project site that is outside of the city limits is currently an informal soccer field and fallow 
agricultural field that was a part of farmland retired by Westlands Water District as part of a lawsuit 
settlement with the United States Department of the Interior, Bureau of Reclamation. On August 12, 2008, 
the City Council of the City of Mendota adopted Resolution No. 08-32, resulting in the acceptance of a grant 
deed from Westlands Water District. The property so conveyed through that grant deed comprises the 
additional park acreage to be developed with this project. 
 



  Chapter Two:  Project Description 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  2-3 

The 10-acre parcel of land adjacent to the existing park currently in the County of Fresno, and within the 
City’s Sphere of Influence is proposed to be annexed to the City of Mendota. APN No. 012-19-55ST.  

2.1.6.3 Construction/ Operation and Maintenance 

Construction of the Project is anticipated to be completed within approximately eight months, which will 
include grading, site preparation, and construction of the park facilities. Construction will likely take place 
September 2019 through April 2020. Construction equipment will likely include a backhoe, grader, front 
loader, dump truck (or two) sheeps foot and/or a roller, auger, concrete mixer, maybe a crane for the lights 
and hand tools. Construction will require one super, one foreman, two operators, four 
laborers/carpenters/masons. 

Generally, construction will occur between the hours of 7am and 5pm, Monday through Friday, excluding 
holidays. Staging areas will be located onsite.  

Although construction is not expected to generate hazardous waste, field equipment used during construction 
has the potential to contain various hazardous materials such as diesel fuel, hydraulic oil, grease, solvents, 
adhesives, paints, and other petroleum-based products.  

 Surrounding Land Uses and Setting 
The Project is located just outside of the western edge of Mendota’s City Limits. The City of Mendota is 
located in western Fresno county near the confluence of the San Joaquin River and the Fresno Slough. State 
Route 33 (SR33) and State Route 180 (SR 180) also intersect in Mendota. The Project is approximately 0.25 
miles west of SR 33. The Union Pacific Railroad maintains a line parallel to (east of) SR 180 through the City 
of Mendota.  
 
The Project site is surrounded by vacant/agricultural lands to the south and west, residential development to 
the north, and Rojas-Pierce Park to the east. A portion of the site is partially developed as an informal soccer 
field, the remainder is vacant land. The site is zoned AE-20 (Exclusive Ag, 20-acre minimum) by Fresno 
County and pre-zoned as O (Open Space and Recreation) and R-2 (Multiple Family Medium High Density 
Residential), See Figure 3-3.  Zoning and designated as Recreational/Multi-Use and Open Space by the City 
of Mendota General Plan.  

 Other Public Agencies Whose Approval May Be Required 

• State Water Resources Control Board – NPDES Construction General Permit 

• San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District – rules and regulations (Regulation VIII, Rule 9510; 
Regulation IV, Rule 4702) 

 Consultation with California Native American Tribes 

Assembly Bill 52 (AB 52; codified at Public Resources Code Section 21080.3.1, et seq.) requires that a lead 
agency, within 14 days of determining that it will undertake a project, must notify in writing any California 
Native American Tribe traditionally and culturally affiliated with the geographic area of the project if that 
Tribe has previously requested notification about projects in that geographic area.  The notice must briefly 
describe the project and inquire whether the Tribe wishes to initiate request formal consultation.  Tribes have 
30 days from receipt of notification to request formal consultation.  The lead agency then has 30 days to 
initiate the consultation, which then continues until the parties come to an agreement regarding necessary 
mitigation or agree that no mitigation is needed, or one or both parties determine that negotiation occurred in 
good faith, but no agreement will be made. 



  Chapter Two:  Project Description 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  2-4 

On August 8, 2016, the City of Mendota (City) received a letter from the Santa Rosa Rancheria Tachi Tribe. 
City staff initiated consultation in April 4, 2019 for the Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project pursuant to 
Public Resources Code Section 21080.3.1 requesting notification of proposed projects. All Tribal 
correspondence is discussed in further detail in Sections 3.5 and 3.18 of Chapter 3 and included as 
Appendix C.   



Chapter Two:  Project Description 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  2-5 

 

Figure 2-1.  Regional Location Map



Chapter Two:  Project Description 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  2-6 

 

Figure 2-2.  Topographic Quadrangle Map



Chapter Two:  Project Description 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  2-7 

 

Figure 2-3.  Area of Potential Effect Map



Chapter Two:  Project Description 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  2-8 

Figure 2-4.  Site Plan



Chapter Two: Project Description 
Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Environmental Factors Potentially Affected 
The environmental factors checked below would be potentially affected by this project, as indicated by the 
checklist and subsequent discussion on the following pages. 

D Aesthetics 

1:8:1 Biological Resources 

[81 Geology /Soils 

D Hydrology /Water Quality 

[8J Noise 

[8J Recreation 

[8J Utilities/Service Systems 

D .Agriculture Resources 

t8'J Cultural Resources 

D Greenhouse Gas Emissions 

[8J Land Use/Planning 

D Population/Housmg 

[8J 'l'ransportation/Traffic 

D Wildfire 

DETERMINATION: (To be completed by the Lead Agency) 

On the basis of this initial evaluation: 

[8J .f\.ir Quality 

D Energy 

D Hazards & Hazardous 
Materials 

D :Mineral Resources 

181 Public Sen.rices 

D Tribal Cultural Resources 

[8J Mandatory Pi.ndings of 
significance 

D I find that the proposed project COULD NOT have a significant effect on the environment, and a 
NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared. 

[81 I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, there 
will not be a significant effect in this case because revisions in the project have been made by o.r 
agreed to by the project proponent. A i\ITTIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be 
prepared. 

D I find that the proposed project lv1A Y have a significant effect on the environment, and an 
ENVIRONMENTAL IlvfPACT REPORT is required. 

D I find that the proposed project MAY have a "potentially significant impact" or «potentially 
significant unless mitigated" impact on the environment, but at least one effect 1) has been 
adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standardc;, and 2) has been 
addressed by mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis as desCl-ibed on attached sheets. An 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required, but it must analyze only the effects that 
remain to be addressed. 

D I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, because 
all potentially significant effects (a) have been analyzed adequatdy in an earlier EIR or NEGATIVE 
DECL'\RATION pursuant to applicable standards, and (b) have been avoided or mitigated pursuant 
to that earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION, including revisions or mitigation measures 
that are imposed upon the proposed project, nothing further is required. 

Signature Date 

Printed Name/Position 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group ci May 2019 2-9 

Cristian Gonzalez/City Manager





Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-10 

3 Impact Analysis 

3.1 Aesthetics 

Table 3-1.  Aesthetics Impacts 

Aesthetics 

Except as provided in Public Resources Code 
Section 21099, would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant With 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less than 
Significa
nt Impact 

No 
Impact 

a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista?      

b) Substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not 
limited to, trees, rock outcroppings, and historic buildings 
within a state scenic highway? 

    

c) In non-urbanized areas substantially degrade the existing 
visual character or quality of public views of the site and its 
surroundings?  (Public views are those that are 
experienced from publicly accessible vantage point). If the 
project is in an urbanized area, would the project conflict 
with applicable zoning and other regulations governing 
scenic quality? 

    

d) Create a new source of substantial light or glare which 
would adversely affect day or nighttime views in the area? 

    

 Environmental Setting 

The Project is located in the northwestern part of Fresno County in the Central San Joaquin Valley. Lands in 
the vicinity consist of relatively flat irrigated farmland, single family subdivisions, and a City operated park. 
The Project is adjacent to the western City limit boundary of Mendota. Agricultural practices in the vicinity 
consist of row crop and orchard cultivation. In Fresno County, a portion of State Route 180 (SR 180) has 
been officially identified by Caltrans as a “designated State Scenic Highway;” however, that segment is 
approximately 52 miles east of the Project. Mendota is located approximately 40 miles west of the foothills of 
the Sierra Nevada and approximately 18 miles east of the foothills of the Coastal Range. The Coastal Range 
can be seen on a clear day from the vantage point of the Project site. The majority of the Project site is 
currently vacant land with a desolate soccer field in the eastern portion of the Project site. The proposed 
Project is consistent with the aesthetics of the area. 

3.1.1.1 Local 

City of Mendota General Plan1: The Mendota General Plan sets forth the following goals and policies that 
protect the aesthetic character of the City and which have potential relevance to the Project’s CEQA review:  

• LU-3.1 Aesthetics, visual quality and character defining features of the community shall be maintained with 
development standards for landscaping, setbacks, signs, fencing and other visual characteristics of development. 

• OSC-8.8 Ensure that land uses do not produce glare, the spillage of light off-site, upward illumination or sky glow. 

                                                      
1 City of Mendota General Plan http://ci.mendota.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/City-of-Mendota-General-Plan-Update.pdf Accessed April 17, 
2019. 

http://ci.mendota.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/City-of-Mendota-General-Plan-Update.pdf


Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-11 

 Impact Assessment 

I-a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista? 

a) Less Than Significant Impact. The proposed impact areas include the developed soccer field within the 
park and an expansion of development and facilities into the ruderal vacant lot west of the existing park 
boundary. There is an existing subdivision to the north and a ruderal-fallow field to the south. To the west, 
there is a compacted dirt road, beyond which lies an expanse of fallow fields. There is no viewshed of 
particular importance that would be affected by the proposed project. Permanent features that may result in 
visible obstructions include lighting and trees; however, the existing view is primarily of idle agricultural land, 
existing urban features and the existing Rojas Pierce Park.  

I-b)  Substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not limited to, trees, rock outcroppings, 
and historic buildings within a state scenic highway? 

b) No Impact. The Scenic Highway Program was created to preserve and protect scenic highway corridors 
from change which would diminish the aesthetic value of lands adjacent to highways. A highway may be 
officially designated “scenic” depending upon how much of the natural landscape can be seen by travelers, 
the scenic quality of the landscape, and the extent to which development intrudes upon the traveler's 
enjoyment of the view. 
 
There are no trees, rock outcroppings, or historical buildings near a designated state scenic highway that 
would be substantially damaged by the Project. An approximate 24-mile segment of SR 180 located in 
southeastern Fresno County and north-central Tulare County is designated as a State Scenic Highway. Project 
activities would occur approximately 56 miles west and therefore would not adversely affect the scenic 
qualities of the highway.  

I-c)  Would the project, in non-urbanized areas, substantially degrade the existing visual character 
or quality of public views of the site and its surroundings? (Public views are those that are 
experienced from publicly accessible vantage point). If the project is in an urbanized area, 
would the project conflict with applicable zoning and other regulations governing scenic 
quality? 

c)  Less Than Significant Impact. The Project site is surrounded agricultural, residential uses, and 
recreational uses. The Project is located on a flat parcel which is currently developed with a soccer field and 
some vacant areas. This project would improve the area by increasing the size and recreational uses of the 
existing Rojas Pierce Park and by improving the traffic circulation in the area by constructing the street 
alignment. Impacts would be less than significant. 

I-d)  Create a new source of substantial light or glare which would adversely affect day or nighttime 
views in the area? 

d) Less Than Significant Impact. The proposed project would include some lighting improvements. 
Lighting would be consistent with the lighting in the existing Rojas Pierce Park and would improve safety in 
the neighborhood. All lights would be hooded and angled downwards. Impacts would be less than significant. 



Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-12 

3.2 Agriculture and Forestry Resources 

Table 3-2.  Agriculture and Forestry Resources Impacts 

Agriculture and Forest Resources 

Would the project: 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant With 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland 
of Statewide Importance (Farmland), as shown on the 
maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and 
Monitoring Program of the California Resources Agency, 
to non-agricultural use? 

    

b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a 
Williamson Act contract? 

    

c) Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, 
forest land (as defined in Public Resources Code section 
12220(g)), timberland (as defined by Public Resources 
Code section 4526), or timberland zoned Timberland 
Production (as defined by Government Code section 
51104(g))? 

    

d) Result in the loss of forest land or conversion of forest 
land to non-forest use? 

    

e) Involve other changes in the existing environment which, 
due to their location or nature, could result in conversion 
of Farmland, to non-agricultural use or conversion of 
forest land to non-forest use? 

    

 Environmental Setting 

The Project is located in the California’s Central San Joaquin Valley in Fresno County and more specifically 
adjacent to the City of Mendota. Fresno County is located within California’s agricultural heartland. For crop 
year 2016-2017, Fresno County ranked third for the top agricultural counties in the State in the estimated 
value of agricultural production, which is 7.04 billion dollars.2 
 
A wide range of commodities are grown in the county, with major production of milk, poultry, livestock, and 
other animal commodities, row crops, nuts and fruit tree crops, and vegetables. Rich soil, irrigation water, 
Mediterranean climate and steady access to local, national and global markets make this possible.   

                                                      
2 USDA. California County Agricultural Commissioners’ Reports 2016-2017. 
https://www.nass.usda.gov/Statistics_by_State/California/Publications/AgComm/2017/2017cropyearcactb00.pdf Accessed March 13, 2019.  



Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-13 

3.2.1.1 Local 

City of Mendota General Plan3: The Mendota General Plan sets forth the following goals and policies that 
protect the agricultural resources of the City and which have potential relevance to the Project’s CEQA 
review:  

• OSC-4.3 The City of Mendota will continue to coordinate planning efforts with Fresno county to ensure that a buffer 
is preserved between urban development in the City and productive agricultural lands in the unincorporated County.   

 Impact Assessment 

II-a)  Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance (Farmland), 
as shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program of 
the California Resources Agency, to non-agricultural use? 

a) Less Than Significant Impact. The Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program (FMMP) produces 
maps and statistical data use for analyzing impacts to California’s agricultural resources. Agricultural land is 
rated according to soil quality and irrigation status; the best quality land is called Prime Farmland. The 
Important Farmland maps identify eight land use categories, five of which are agriculture related: prime 
farmland, farmland of statewide importance, unique farmland, farmland of local importance, and grazing 
land. The ones onsite or adjacent to the Project site are summarized below4: 

• FARMLAND OF LOCAL IMPORTANCE (L): Land of importance to the local agricultural economy as 
determined by each county's board of supervisors and a local advisory committee. 

• URBAN AND BUILT-UP LAND (D): Land occupied by structures with a building density of at least 1 unit 
per 1.5 acres, or approximately 6 structures to a 10-acre parcel.  This land is used for residential, industrial, 
commercial, institutional, public administrative purposes, railroad and other transportation yards, cemeteries, airports, 
golf courses, sanitary landfills, sewage treatment, water control structures, and other developed purposes. 

As demonstrated in Figure 3-1, the FMMP for Fresno County designates the site of the Rojas Pierce Park 
Expansion Project as Farmland of Local importance and Urban and Built-Up Land. The property is currently 
within the City of Mendota Sphere of Influence and will be annexed from the County as a part of the project. 
The Project site is zoned as AE-20 by Fresno County, however, it has been pre-zoned with the zoning 
designation of O (Open Space/Recreation) and R-2 (Multiple Family Medium High Density Residential), see 
Figure 3-3.  Zoning. Furthermore, the Project is planned as Recreational and Medium Density Residential 
by the Mendota General Plan (Figure 3-4.  General Plan Land Use Designation). The existing Rojas-
Pierce Park is zoned as PF (Public Facilities) and designated by the Mendota General Plan as Recreational. 
Surrounding zone designations and General Plan land use designation are detailed in Figure 3-4. Impacts will 
be less than significant.   

II-b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a Williamson Act contract? 

b) Less Than Significant Impact. The Project site is zoned as AE-20 by Fresno County, however, it has 
been pre-zoned with the zoning designation of O (Open Space/Recreation) and R-2 (Multiple Family 
Medium High Density Residential), and is planned for annexation to the city. The parcels to be improved are 
not subject to a Williamson Act contract. Impacts are less than significant.  

II-c)  Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, forest land (as defined in Public 
Resources Code section 12220(g)), timberland (as defined by Public Resources Code section 

                                                      
3 City of Mendota General Plan http://ci.mendota.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/City-of-Mendota-General-Plan-Update.pdf Accessed April 17, 
2019. 
4 California Department of Conservation. FMMP – Report and Statistics. 
http://www.conservation.ca.gov/dlrp/fmmp/products/Pages/ReportsStatistics.aspx. Accessed March 13, 2019. 

http://ci.mendota.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/City-of-Mendota-General-Plan-Update.pdf


Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-14 

4526), or timberland zoned Timberland Production (as defined by Government Code section 
51104(g))? 

II-d)  Result in the loss of forest land or conversion of forest land to non-forest use? 

c and d) No Impact. There are no forest lands or timberlands within the Project site or vicinity. There will 
be no impact.  

II-e)  Involve other changes in the existing environment which, due to their location or nature, could 
result in conversion of Farmland, to non-agricultural use or conversion of forest land to non-
forest use? 

e) Less Than Significant Impact. As discussed above in Impact Assessments II a-d, the Project involves 
the expansion of an existing park adjacent to the City of Mendota. The Project will not result in land use 
conversion of farmland or forest land, either directly or indirectly. There will be no impact. 



Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-15 

 

Figure 3-1.  Farmland Designation Map



Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-16 

3.3 Air Quality 

Table 3-3.  Air Quality Impacts 

Air Quality 

Where available, the significance criteria 
established by the applicable air quality 

management district or air pollution control district 
may be relied upon to make the following 

determinations.  Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

With Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the 
applicable air quality plan? 

    

b) Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of 
any criteria pollutant for which the project region is non-
attainment under an applicable federal or state ambient 
air quality standard? 

    

c) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant 
concentrations? 

    

d) Result in other emissions (such as those leading to 
odors adversely affecting a substantial number of 
people)? 

    

 Environmental Setting 

The Project lies within the eight-county San Joaquin Valley Air Basin (SJVAB), which is managed by the San 
Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District (SJVAPCD). Air quality in the SJVAB is influenced by a variety 
of factors, including topography, local and regional meteorology. National Ambient Air Quality Standards 
(NAAQS) and California Ambient Air Quality Standards (CAAQS) have been established for the following 
criteria pollutants: carbon monoxide (CO), ozone (O3), sulfur dioxide (SO2), nitrogen dioxide (NO2), 
particulate matter (PM10 and PM2.5), and lead (Pb).  The CAAQS also set standards for sulfates (SO4), 
hydrogen sulfide (H2S), vinyl chloride (C2H3Cl) and visibility.  

Air quality plans or attainment plans are used to bring the applicable air basin into attainment with all State 
and Federal ambient air quality standards designed to protect the health and safety of residents within that air 
basin.  Areas are classified under the Federal Clean Air Act as either “attainment”, “nonattainment”, or 
“extreme nonattainment” areas for each criteria pollutant based on whether the NAAQS have been achieved 
or not.  Attainment relative to the State standards is determined by the California Air Resources Board 
(CARB).  The San Joaquin Valley is designated as a State and Federal nonattainment area for O3, a State and 
Federal nonattainment area for PM2.5, a State nonattainment area for PM10, a Federal and State attainment 

area for CO, SO2, and NO2, and a State attainment area for sulfates, vinyl chloride and Pb5. 

 Methodology 

An Air Quality and Greenhouse Gas Emissions Evaluation Report (Appendix A) was prepared using 
CalEEmod, Version 2016.3.2 for the proposed Project in April 2019.  The sections below detail the 
methodology of the air quality and greenhouse gas emissions report and its conclusions.  

                                                      
5 San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District.  Ambient Air Quality Standards and Valley Attainment Status. 
http://www.valleyair.org/aqinfo/attainment.htm.   

http://www.valleyair.org/aqinfo/attainment.htm


Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-17 

3.3.2.1 Short-Term Construction-Generated Emissions 

Short-term construction emissions associated with the Project were calculated using CalEEmod, Version 
2016.3.2. The emissions modeling includes emissions generated by off-road equipment, haul trucks, and 
worker commute trips. Emissions were quantified based on anticipated construction schedules and 
construction equipment requirements provided by the Project applicant. All remaining assumptions were 
based on the default parameters contained in the model. Localized air quality impacts associated with the 
Project would be minor and were qualitatively assessed. Modeling assumptions and output files are included 
in Appendix A. 

3.3.2.2 Long-Term Operational Emissions 

Long-term operational emissions associated with the Project are estimated to be minimal in nature. 
Maintenance will be provided on an as needed basis by existing City of Mendota staff. Modeling assumptions 
and output files are included in Appendix A.  

3.3.2.3 Thresholds of Significance 

To assist local jurisdictions in the evaluation of air quality impacts, the SJVAPCD has published the Guide for 
Assessing and Mitigating Air Quality Impacts.  This guidance document includes recommended thresholds of 
significance to be used for the evaluation of short-term construction, long-term operational, odor, toxic air 
contaminant, and cumulative air quality impacts.  Accordingly, the SJVAPCD-recommended thresholds of 
significance are used to determine whether implementation of the proposed Project would result in a 
significant air quality impact.  Projects that exceed these recommended thresholds would be considered to 
have a potentially significant impact to human health and welfare.  The thresholds of significance are 
summarized, as follows: 

Short-Term Emissions of Particulate Matter (PM10):  Construction impacts associated with the proposed 
Project would be considered significant if the feasible control measures for construction in compliance with 
Regulation VIII as listed in the SJVAPCD guidelines are not incorporated or implemented, or if project-
generated emissions would exceed 15 tons per year (TPY).  

Short-Term Emissions of Ozone Precursors (ROG and NOx):  Construction impacts associated with the 
proposed Project would be considered significant if the project generates emissions of Reactive Organic 
Gases (ROG) or NOX that exceeds 10 TPY. 

Long-Term Emissions of Particulate Matter (PM10):  Operational impacts associated with the proposed 
Project would be considered significant if the project generates emissions of PM10 that exceed 15 TPY. 

Long-Term Emissions of Ozone Precursors (ROG and NOx):  Operational impacts associated with the 
proposed Project would be considered significant if the project generates emissions of ROG or NOX that 
exceeds 10 TPY. 

Conflict with or Obstruct Implementation of Applicable Air Quality Plan:  Due to the region’s nonattainment 
status for ozone, PM2.5, and PM10, if the project-generated emissions of either of the ozone precursor 
pollutants (i.e., ROG and NOx) or PM10 would exceed the SJVAPCD’s significance thresholds, then the 
project would be considered to conflict with the attainment plans.  In addition, if the project would result in a 
change in land use and corresponding increases in vehicle miles traveled, the project may result in an increase 
in vehicle miles traveled that is unaccounted for in regional emissions inventories contained in regional air 
quality control plans.  



Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-18 

Local Mobile-Source CO Concentrations:  Local mobile source impacts associated with the proposed Project 
would be considered significant if the project contributes to CO concentrations at receptor locations in 
excess of the CAAQS (i.e. 9.0 ppm for 8 hours or 20 ppm for 1 hour). 

Exposure to toxic air contaminants (TAC) would be considered significant if the probability of contracting 
cancer for the Maximally Exposed Individual (i.e., maximum individual risk) would exceed 10 in 1 million or 
would result in a Hazard Index greater than 1.  

Odor impacts associated with the proposed Project would be considered significant if the project has the 
potential to frequently expose members of the public to objectionable odors. 

Table 3-4.  Summary of Ambient Air Quality Standards and Attainment Designation 

Summary of Ambient Air Quality Standards & Attainment Designation 

Pollutant 
Averaging 
Time 

California Standards* National Standards* 

Concentration* 
Attainment 
Status 

Primary 
Attainment 
Status 

Ozone  
(O3) 

1-hour 0.09 ppm 
Nonattainment/ 
Severe 

– 
No Federal 
Standard 

8-hour 0.070 ppm Nonattainment 0.075 ppm 
Nonattainment 
(Extreme)** 

Particulate Matter  
(PM10) 

AAM 20 μg/m3 
Nonattainment 

– 
Attainment 

24-hour 50 μg/m3 150 μg/m3 

Fine Particulate 
Matter (PM2.5) 

AAM 12 μg/m3 
Nonattainment 

12 μg/m3 
Nonattainment 

24-hour No Standard 35 μg/m3 

Carbon Monoxide  
(CO) 

1-hour 20 ppm 

Attainment/ 
Unclassified 

35 ppm 

Attainment/ 
Unclassified  

8-hour 9 ppm 9 ppm 

8-hour  
(Lake Tahoe) 

6 ppm – 

Nitrogen Dioxide  
(NO2) 

AAM 0.030 ppm 
Attainment 

53 ppb Attainment/ 
Unclassified 1-hour 0.18 ppm 100 ppb 

Sulfur Dioxide  
(SO2) 

AAM – 

Attainment 

-- 

Attainment/ 
Unclassified 

24-hour 0.04 ppm -- 

3-hour – 0.5 ppm 

1-hour 0.25 ppm 75 ppb 

Lead (Pb) 

30-day Average 1.5 μg/m3 

Attainment 

– 

No Designation/ 
Classification 

Calendar Quarter – -- 

Rolling 3-Month 
Average 

– 0.15 μg/m3 

Sulfates (SO4) 24-hour 25 μg/m3 Attainment 

No Federal Standards 

Hydrogen Sulfide 
(H2S) 

1-hour 
0.03 ppm  
(42 μg/m3) 

Unclassified 

Vinyl Chloride 
(C2H3Cl) 

24-hour 
0.01 ppm  
(26 μg/m3) 

Attainment 



Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-19 

Summary of Ambient Air Quality Standards & Attainment Designation 

Pollutant 
Averaging 
Time 

California Standards* National Standards* 

Concentration* 
Attainment 
Status 

Primary 
Attainment 
Status 

Visibility-Reducing 
Particle Matter 

8-hour 

Extinction 
coefficient: 0.23/km-
visibility of 10 miles 
or more due to 
particles when the 
relative humidity is 
less than 70%. 

Unclassified 

* For more information on standards visit: http//www.arb.ca.gov.research/aaqs/aaqs2.pdf 
** No Federal 1-hour standard. Reclassified extreme nonattainment for the Federal 8-hour standard May 5, 2010. 
***Secondary Standard 
Source: CARB 2015; SJVAPCD 2015 

3.3.2.4 Local 

City of Mendota General Plan6: The Mendota General Plan sets forth the following goals and policies that 
pertain to air quality of the City and which are not relevance to the Project’s CEQA review:  

San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District:  The SJVAPCD is the agency primarily responsible for 
ensuring that NAAQS and CAAQS are not exceeded and that air quality conditions are maintained in the 
SJVAB, within which the proposed Project is located. Responsibilities of the SJVAPCD include, but are not 
limited to, preparing plans for the attainment of ambient air quality standards, adopting and enforcing rules 
and regulations concerning sources of air pollution, issuing permits for stationary sources of air pollution, 
inspecting stationary sources of air pollution and responding to citizen complaints, monitoring ambient air 
quality and meteorological conditions, and implementing programs and regulations required by the CAA and 
the CCAA.  

The SJVAPCD Rules and Regulations that are applicable to the proposed Project include, but are not limited 
to, the following: 

Regulation VIII (Fugitive Dust Prohibitions), Regulation VIII (Rules 8011-8081): This regulation is a series of 
rules designed to reduce particulate emissions generated by human activity, including construction and 
demolition activities, carryout and trackout, paved and unpaved roads, bulk material handling and storage, 
unpaved vehicle/traffic areas, open space areas, etc.  If a non-residential area is 5.0 or more acres in area, a 
Dust Control Plan must be submitted as specified in Section 6.3.1 of Rule 8021. Additional requirements may 
apply, depending on total area of disturbance. 

San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District Thresholds of Significance. Projects that produce emissions 
that exceed the following thresholds shall be considered significant for a project level and/or cumulatively 
considerable impact to air quality.  The following thresholds are defined for purposes of determining 
cumulative effects as the baseline for “considerable”.  Projects located within the SJVAPCD will be subject to 
the significance thresholds identified in section 3.3.2.3 above. 

                                                      
6 City of Mendota General Plan http://ci.mendota.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/City-of-Mendota-General-Plan-Update.pdf Accessed April 17, 
2019. 

http://ci.mendota.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/City-of-Mendota-General-Plan-Update.pdf


Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-20 

 Impact Assessment 

III-a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan? 

a) No Impact.  As noted in Impact Assessments III-b and III-c below, implementation of the Project would 
not result in short-term or long-term increases in emissions that would exceed applicable thresholds of 
significance.  Projects that do not exceed the recommended thresholds would not be considered to conflict 
with or obstruct the implementation of applicable air quality plans.  

III-b)  Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the 
project region is non-attainment under an applicable federal or state ambient air quality 
standard? 

b) Less Than Significant Impact.  

Short-Term Construction-Generated Emissions 

Construction-generated emissions are temporary in duration, lasting approximately eight months for site 
preparation, grading, and construction of the park facilities. The construction of the Project would result in 
the temporary generation of emissions associated with site grading and excavation, motor vehicle exhaust 
associated with construction equipment and worker trips, as well as the movement of construction equipment 
on unpaved surfaces.    

Estimated construction-generated emissions and operational emissions are summarized in Table 3-5 and 
Table 3-6, respectively.  

Table 3-5.  Unmitigated Short-Term Construction-Generated Emissions of Criteria Air Pollutants 

Short-Term Construction-Generated Emissions of Criteria Air Pollutants 

Source 

Annual Emissions (Tons/Year) (1) 

ROG NOX  CO PM10 PM2.5 

2019 0.1688 1.8382 1.1429 0.5071 0.2339 

2020 0.0531 0.3474 0.3478 0.0414 0.0211 

Maximum Annual Proposed Project Emissions: 0.1688 1.8382 1.1429 0.5071 0.2339 

SJVAPCD Significance Thresholds: 10 10 100 15 15 

Exceed SJVAPCD Thresholds? No No No No No 

1. Emissions were quantified using CalEEmod Output Files Version 2016.3.2. Refer to Appendix A for modeling 

results and assumptions. Totals may not sum due to rounding. 



Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-21 

Table 3-6.  Unmitigated Long-Term Operational Emissions 

Long-Term Operational Emissions of Criteria Air Pollutants 

Source 

Annual Emissions (Tons/Year) (1) 

ROG NOX  CO PM10 PM2.5 

Maximum Annual Project Emissions: 0.0120 0.0 0.00014 0.0717 0.0176 

SJVAPCD Significance Thresholds: 10 10 100 15 15 

Exceed SJVAPCD Thresholds? No No No No No 

1. Emissions were quantified using CalEEmod Output Files Version 2016.3.2. Refer to Appendix A for 
modeling results and assumptions. Totals may not sum due to rounding. 

It is important to note that the proposed Project would be required to comply with SJVAPCD Regulation 
VIII (Fugitive PM10 Prohibitions).  Mandatory compliance with SJVAPCD Regulation VIII would further 
reduce emissions of fugitive dust from the Project site, and adequately minimize the proposed Project’s 
potential to adversely affect nearby sensitive receptors to localized PM impacts.   

Given that project-generated emissions would not exceed applicable SJVAPCD significance thresholds and 
the proposed Project would be required to comply with SJVAPCD Regulation VIII, construction-generated 
emissions of criteria pollutants would be considered less than significant. 

Long-Term Operational Emissions 
As illustrated in Table 3-6, long-term operational emissions associated with the Project will be minimal and 
well below the respective thresholds of significance. Maintenance will continue to be provided by existing 
City of Mendota staff. Therefore, Project-related impacts to air quality would be considered less than 
significant.   

III-c) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations? 

c) Less Than Significant Impact.  

Toxic Air Contaminants 

Implementation of the Project would not result in the long-term operation of any major onsite stationary 
sources of TACs, nor would Project implementation result in a substantial increase in vehicle trips along area 
roadways, in comparison to existing conditions. However, construction of the Project may result in 
temporary increases in emissions of diesel-exhaust particulate matter (DPM) associated with the use of off-
road diesel equipment. More than 90% of DPM is less than one µm in diameter, and thus is a subset of 
PM2.5.

7  Health-related risks associated with diesel-exhaust emissions are primarily associated with long-term 
exposure and associated risk of contracting cancer. As such, the calculation of cancer risk associated with 
exposure of to TACs are typically calculated based on a long-term (e.g., 70-year) period of exposure.  The use 
of diesel-powered construction equipment, however, would be temporary and episodic.  Construction 
activities would occur over an approximate eight-month period, which would constitute less than 1 percent of 
the typical 70-year exposure period. As a result, exposure to construction-generated DPM would not be 
anticipated to exceed applicable thresholds (i.e. incremental increase in cancer risk of 10 in one million).  

The nearest sensitive receptor is an operational elementary school, which is located approximately 0.25 miles 
from the Project area. Construction of the Project is not anticipated to result in a substantial increase in DPM 

                                                      
7 CARB. Inhalable Particulate Matter. https://www.arb.ca.gov/research/aaqs/common-pollutants/pm/pm.htm Accessed 30 April 2019. 

https://www.arb.ca.gov/research/aaqs/common-pollutants/pm/pm.htm


Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-22 

or other TACs. As indicated in Table 3-5, construction of the Project would generate maximum unmitigated 
annual emissions of approximately 0.2339 tons/year of PM2.5, which includes DPM. Operation of the Project 
would generate maximum unmitigated annual emissions of approximately 0.0176 tons/year of PM2.5, as 
illustrated in Table 3-6. Both short-term and long-term Project-related emissions will be minimal, and 
therefore impacts to sensitive receptors would be less than significant.  

Naturally Occurring Asbestos 

Naturally-occurring asbestos, which was identified by CARB as a TAC in 1986, is located in many parts of 
California and is commonly associated with ultramafic rock. The Project site is not located near any areas that 
are likely to contain ultramafic rock8.  As a result, risk of exposure to asbestos during the construction process 
would be considered less than significant.  

Fugitive Dust 

Construction of the Project would include ground-disturbing activities which could result in increased 
emissions of airborne particulate matter.  The Project would be required to comply with SJVAPCD 
Regulation VIII (Fugitive PM10 Prohibitions). Mandatory compliance with SJVAPCD Regulation VIII would 
reduce emissions of fugitive dust from the Project site.   
 
The nearest sensitive receptor is an operational elementary school, which is located approximately 0.25 miles 
from the Project area.  Construction of the Project is not anticipated to result in a substantial increase in 
particulate matter. As indicated in Table 3-5 and Table 3-6, respectively, construction of the Project would 
generate maximum unmitigated annual emissions of approximately 0.5071 tons/year of PM10, while operation 
of the Project would generate maximum unmitigated annual emissions of approximately 0.0717 tons/year of 
PM10, both of which are substantially less than SJVAPCD’s threshold of significance of 15 tons/year. Project-
related impacts to sensitive receptors would be less than significant.  

III-d)  Would the project result in other emissions (such as those leading to odors adversely 
affecting a substantial number of people? 

d) Less Than Significant Impact. Implementation of the Project would not result in long-term emissions 
of odors.  However, construction would involve the use of a variety of gasoline- or diesel-powered equipment 
that would emit exhaust fumes. Exhaust fumes, particularly diesel exhaust, may be considered objectionable 
by some people. Construction activities would be short-term in nature, lasting approximately eight months. 
Impacts would be less than significant. 

                                                      
8 Van Gosen, B.S. and J.P. Clinkenbeard. 2011. Report Historic Asbestos Mines, Historic Asbestos Prospects, and Other Natural 
Occurrences of Asbestos in California – California Geological Survey map Sheet 59. United States Geological Survey.  



Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-23 

3.4 Biological Resources 

Table 3-7.  Biological Resources Impacts 

Biological Resources 

Would the project: 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant With 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or 
through habitat modifications, on any species identified 
as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in 
local or regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by 
the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or U.S. 
Fish and Wildlife Service? 

    

b) Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian 
habitat or other sensitive natural community identified 
in local or regional plans, policies, regulations, or by the 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife or U.S. Fish 
and Wildlife Service? 

    

c) Have a substantial adverse effect on state or federally 
protected wetlands (including, but not limited to, marsh, 
vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct removal, filling, 
hydrological interruption, or other means? 

    

d) Interfere substantially with the movement of any native 
resident or migratory fish or wildlife species or with 
established native resident or migratory wildlife 
corridors, or impede the use of native wildlife nursery 
sites? 

    

e) Conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting 
biological resources, such as a tree preservation policy 
or ordinance? 

    

f) Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat 
Conservation Plan, Natural Community Conservation 
Plan, or other approved local, regional, or state habitat 
conservation plan? 

    

 Environmental Setting 

The Project site is located in Fresno County within the lower San Joaquin Valley, part of the Great Valley of 
California. The Valley is bordered by the Sierra Nevada Mountain Ranges to the east, the Coast Ranges to the 
west, the Klamath Mountains and Cascade Range to the north, and the Transverse Ranges and Mojave 
Desert to the south.   
 
Like most of California, the San Joaquin Valley experiences a Mediterranean climate. Warm, dry summers are 
followed by cool, moist winters. Summer temperatures often reach above 90 degrees Fahrenheit, and the 
humidity is generally low. Winter temperatures are often below 60 degrees Fahrenheit during the day and 



Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-24 

rarely exceed 70 degrees. On average, the Central Valley receives approximately 12 inches of precipitation in 
the form of rainfall yearly, most of which occurs between October and March.   
 
The Project is located within the Mowry Lake-Fresno Slough watershed; Hydrologic Unit Code (HUC): 
1803000910039, approximately 2.5 miles southwest of the Mendota Pool at the confluence of the San Joaquin 
River and the Fresno Slough. and 7 miles east of Panoche Creek. The San Joaquin River, Fresno Slough, and 
Mendota Pool have been levied and much of the surrounding land is now intensively cultivated for 
agricultural production. Historically, the Mendota area supported large areas of riparian wetlands and 
important waterfowl habitat. Due to alteration of the aquatic features in the vicinity and the conversion of 
natural habitat to agricultural lands, the riparian habitat is now limited to the margins of these waterways and 
to undisturbed areas within ecological reserves, managed wildlife areas, and national wildlife refuges.   
 
There are several managed reserves and wildlife areas in the vicinity of Mendota, most of which are dedicated 
to the preservation of native habitat for waterfowl and special status species. The CDFW-managed Mendota 
Wildlife Area lies approximately three miles southeast of the Project and encompasses 11,825 acres of 
wetland and upland habitats including a portion of the Fresno Slough. The Alkali Sink Ecological Reserve 
and the Kerman Ecological Reserve are located east-southeast of the Project, at a distance of approximately 6 
miles and 10.5 miles, respectively. Little Panoche Reservoir Wildlife Area and the Panoche Hills Ecological 
Reserve are located west of Interstate 5, approximately 20 miles west of the Project. The southern portion of 
the San Luis National Wildlife Refuge complex, which encompasses over 26,800 acres of wetlands, riparian 
forests, native grasslands, and vernal pools lies approximately 20 miles northwest of the Project. 

 Methodology 

A reconnaissance-level field survey of the Project site and surrounding areas was conducted on March 14, 
2019 by Provost & Pritchard.  Although the park expansion project only includes development of 
approximately 10-acres of land, the Project’s Area of Potential Effect (APE) was expanded to include all 
potential access routes and staging areas including street improvements, as illustrated on Figure 2-3. The 
surveyed area of approximately 17 acres, included all areas with potential to incur direct or indirect impacts 
which may be temporary or permanent nature. The survey consisted of walking through the Project area 
while identifying and noting land uses, biological habitats and communities, and plant and animal species 
encountered. Furthermore, the site and surrounding areas were assessed for suitable habitats of various 
wildlife species.   
 
Provost & Pritchard conducted an analysis of potential Project-related impacts to biological resources based 
on the resources known to exist or with potential to exist within the Project site and surrounding areas. 
Sources of information used in preparation of this analysis included: the California Department of Fish and 
Wildlife (CDFW) California Natural Diversity Database (CNDDB); the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 
(USFWS) Information for Planning and Consultation (IPaC) system; the California Native Plant Society 
(CNPS) Online Inventory of Rare and Endangered Vascular Plants of California; CalFlora’s online database 
of California native plants; the Jepson Herbarium online database (Jepson eFlora); U.S. Fish and Wildlife 
Service (USFWS) Environmental Conservation Online System (ECOS); the NatureServe Explorer online 
database; the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) Natural Resources Conservation Service 
(NRCS) Plants Database; the California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) California Wildlife Habitat 
Relationships (CWHR) database; the California Herps online database; and various manuals, reports, and 
references related to plants and animals of the San Joaquin Valley region. 
 
The field investigation did not include a wetland delineation or focused surveys for special status species. The 
field survey conducted included an appropriate level of detail to assess the significance of potential impacts to 

                                                      
9 EPA. Waters GeoViewer. https://www.epa.gov/waterdata/waters-geoviewer Accessed 30 April 2019. 

https://www.epa.gov/waterdata/waters-geoviewer


Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-25 

sensitive biological resources resulting from the Project.  Furthermore, the field survey was sufficient to 
generally describe those features of the Project that could be subject to the jurisdiction of federal and/or State 
agencies, such as the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, CDFW, and the Regional Water Quality Control Board. 
 
A thorough search of the CNDDB for published accounts of special status plant and animal species was 
conducted for the Firebaugh 7.5-minute quadrangle that contains the Project site in its entirety, and for the 8 
surrounding quadrangles: Oxalis, Poso Farm, Firebaugh NE, Broadview Farms, Mendota Dam, Chaney 
Ranch, Coit 2-5 Ranch, and Tranquillity. An official species list was obtained using the USFWS IPaC system 
for federally listed species with potential to be affected by the Project. These species, and their potential to 
occur within the Project area are listed in Table 3-8 and Table 3-9 on the following pages. 

Table 3-8.  List of Special Status Animals with Potential to Occur Onsite and/or in the Vicinity 

Species Status Habitat Occurrence on Project Site 
American badger  
(Taxidea taxus) 

CSC Grasslands, savannas, and mountain 
meadows near timberline are 
preferred. Most abundant in drier 
open spaces of shrub and grassland. 
Burrows in soil. 

Absent. Suitable burrows were 
absent during the biological survey. 
The disturbed habitats and clay soils 
onsite are unsuitable for this species. 
There is a recorded observation of 
this species within the Alkali Sink 
Ecological Reserve, approximately 
6.5 miles southeast of the Project. 
The largest recorded home range of a 
male of this species is 7.64 square 
miles, therefore, even if this species 
does inhabit one of the ecological 
reserves in the vicinity, the chances 
of an individual passing through the 
site during dispersal or mating 
movements is highly unlikely. The 
Project site is isolated from any 
patches of remaining suitable habitat, 
separated by urban and agricultural 
development. Frequent human 
disturbance and vehicle traffic along 
roadways would further preclude this 
species from reaching the site.  
 

 
bank swallow (Riparia 
riparia) 

CT These aerial insectivores nest 
colonially in burrows constructed 
along vertical banks and bluffs near 
waterbodies. This disturbance 
tolerant species is also known to nest 
in man-made sites, such as quarries, 
mounds of gravel or dirt, and road 
cuts.   

Unlikely. Suitable habitat is absent 
from the Project site and surrounding 
lands. At most, an individual could 
pass through the site as a transient or 
during migration.     

blunt-nosed leopard 
lizard (Gambelia sila) 

FE, CE, 
CFP 

Inhabits semi-arid grasslands, alkali 
flats, low foothills, canyon floors, 
large washes, and arroyos, usually on 
sandy, gravelly, or loamy substrate, 
sometimes on hardpan. Often found 
where there are abundant rodent 
burrows in dense vegetation or tall 
grass. Cannot survive on lands under 
cultivation. Known to bask on 

Unlikely. The disturbed habitats, 
vegetative cover, and clay soils onsite 
are unsuitable for this species. The 
ruderal parcel is disced at least yearly 
for weed abatement and rodent 
burrows are absent.   



Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-26 

Species Status Habitat Occurrence on Project Site 
kangaroo rat mounds and often seeks 
shelter at the base of shrubs, in small 
mammal burrows, or in rock piles. 
Adults may excavate shallow 
burrows, but rely on deeper pre-
existing rodent burrows for 
hibernation and reproduction.  

burrowing owl 
(Athene cunicularia) 

CSC Resides in open, dry annual or 
perennial grasslands, deserts, and 
scrublands with low 
growing vegetation. Nests 
underground in existing burrows 
created by burrowing mammals, 
most often ground squirrels. 

Unlikely. Suitable nesting habitat for 
this species is absent from the Project 
area and surrounding lands. Foraging 
habitat is marginal. No ground 
squirrel individuals or burrows were 
observed onsite during the biological 
survey.  

California red-legged 
frog (Rana draytonii) 

FT Inhabits perennial rivers, creeks, and 
stock ponds with vegetative cover 
within the Coast Range and northern 
Sierra foothills. 

Absent. The Project area does not 
provide suitable habitat for this 
species and is outside of its current 
known range. 

coast horned lizard 
(Phrynosoma 
blainvillii) 

CSC Found in grasslands, coniferous 
forests, woodlands, and chaparral, 
primarily in open areas with patches 
of loose, sandy soil and low-lying 
vegetation in valleys, foothills, and 
semi-arid mountains.  Frequently 
found near ant hills and along dirt 
roads in lowlands along sandy 
washes with scattered shrubs. 

Absent. The highly disturbed habitats 
and vegetative cover of the Project 
area are unsuitable for this species.  
There are recorded observations of 
this species within the Alkali Sink 
Ecological Reserve, approximately 6.5 
miles southeast of the Project. 

Delta smelt 
(Hypomesus 
transpacificus) 

FT, CE This pelagic and euryhaline species is 
Endemic to the Sacramento-San 
Joaquin River Delta, upstream 
through Contra Costa, Sacramento, 
San Joaquin, and Solano Counties.  

Absent. Suitable perennial aquatic 
habitat for this species is absent from 
the Project area and surrounding 
lands. 

Fresno kangaroo rat 
(Dipodomys 
nitratoides exilis) 

FE, CE An inhabitant of alkali sink open 
grassland environments in western 
Fresno County. Prefers bare, 
alkaline, clay-based soils subject to 
seasonal inundation with more 
friable soil mounds around shrubs 
and grasses.  

Absent. The highly disturbed habitats 
of the Project area and surrounding 
lands are unsuitable for this species.   
There is a recorded observation of this 
species within the Alkali Sink 
Ecological Reserve in 1992, 
approximately 6.5 miles southeast of 
the Project.  The status of this 
observation has since been updated to 
“possibly extirpated,” which means 
the species has been searched for but 
unobserved for many years.   

giant gartersnake 
(Thamnophis gigas) 

FT, CT Occurs in marshes, sloughs, drainage 
canals, irrigation ditches, rice fields, 
and adjacent uplands. Prefers 
locations with emergent vegetation 
for cover and open areas for basking. 
This species uses small mammal 
burrows adjacent to aquatic habitats 
for hibernation in the winter and to 
escape from excessive heat in the 
summer.  

Absent. Habitats required by this 
species are absent from the Project 
area and surrounding lands.  



Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-27 

Species Status Habitat Occurrence on Project Site 
giant kangaroo rat 
(Dipodomys ingens) 

FE, CE Inhabits annual grassland 
communities with few or no shrubs 
and well-drained, sandy-loam soils 
on gentle slopes. 

Absent. The highly disturbed habitats 
of the Project area and surrounding 
lands are unsuitable for this species.   
This species was observed in 1987 
approximately 15 miles southwest of 
the Project.  The status of this 
observation has since been updated to 
“possibly extirpated,” which means 
the species has been searched for but 
unobserved for many years.   

longhorn fairy shrimp 
(Branchinecta 
longiantenna) 

FE Inhabits clear to turbid vernal pools 
or seasonally ponded areas. 

Unlikely. Traditional vernal pools are 
absent. Although the clay soils onsite 
are conducive to seasonal pooling, 
frequent disturbance, including 
ground disturbance associated with 
discing, makes the site unsuitable for 
this species. 

mountain plover 
(Charadrius 
montanus) 

CSC Breeds on open plains at moderate 
elevations. Winters in short-grass 
plains and fields, plowed or fallow 
fields, and sandy deserts. Prefers flat, 
bare ground with burrowing rodents.  

Possible. Burrowing rodents were 
not observed onsite during the 
biological survey. However, this 
species is known to winter in fallow 
fields in the vicinity.  Much of the 
ruderal site consists of fallow field and 
surrounding uses are fallow fields, 
which would provide suitable 
wintering habitat for this species.    

Nelson’s antelope 
squirrel 
(Ammospermophilus 
nelsoni) 

CT Found in the western San Joaquin 
Valley on dry, sparsely vegetated 
loamy soils. Relies heavily on existing 
small mammal burrows. 

Unlikely. The disturbed habitats, 
vegetative cover, and clay soils onsite 
are unsuitable for this species. The 
ruderal parcel is disced at least yearly 
for weed abatement and rodent 
burrows are absent.   

 
northern California 
legless lizard (Anniella 
pulchra) 

CSC Found primarily underground, 
burrowing in loose, sandy soil. 
Forages in loose soil and leaf litter 
during the day. Occasionally 
observed on the surface at dusk and 
night.  

Unlikely. The highly disturbed 
habitats and clay soils of the Project 
area are unsuitable for this species. 
The nearest observation of this 
species was approximately 5.5 miles 
north of the Project.  

San Joaquin 
coachwhip 
(Masticophis 
flagellum ruddocki) 

CSC Found in open dry habitats with little 
or no tree cover in valley grassland 
and saltbush scrub communities in 
the San Joaquin Valley. Relies on 
mammal burrows for refuge and 
oviposition sites. 

Absent. Mammal burrows were not 
observed onsite during the biological 
survey. The disturbed habitats of the 
site do not provide suitable habitat 
for this species. There is a recorded 
observation of this species within the 
Alkali Sink Ecological Reserve in 
2004, approximately 6.5 miles 
southeast of the Project.   

San Joaquin kit fox 
(Vulpes macrotis 
mutica) 

FE, CT Underground dens with multiple 
entrances in alkali sink, valley 
grassland, and woodland in valleys 
and adjacent foothills. 

Unlikely. Burrows and suitable 
refugia are absent. Ground squirrels 
and rodents or associated sign were 
not observed, and therefore, foraging 
habitat is absent. The highly disturbed 
habitats of the Project area and 
fragmentation of the surrounding 



Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-28 

Species Status Habitat Occurrence on Project Site 
lands are generally unsuitable for this 
species. The Project is located 
approximately 20 miles east of the 
nearest known core population in 
Ciervo-Panoche Natural Area. 
Although some populations of San 
Joaquin Kit Fox in other parts of 
California have adapted to an 
urbanized environment, modern kit 
fox occurrences are locally scarce. At 
most, this species could conceivably 
pass through the Project area during 
dispersal movements, although that 
would be unlikely considering the 
Project is separated from the Ciervo-
Panoche core population by Interstate 
5 and miles of land intensively 
disturbed by agricultural practices.   

Steelhead – Central 
Valley DPS 
(Oncorhynchus 
mykiss irideus pop.11) 

FT This winter-fun fish begins migration 
to fresh water during peak flows 
during December and February. 
Spawning season is typically from 
February to April. After hatching, fry 
move to deeper, mid-channel 
habitats in late summer and fall. In 
general, both juveniles and adults 
prefer complex habitat boulders, 
submerged clay and undercut banks, 
and large woody debris.  

Absent. Suitable perennial aquatic 
habitat for this species is absent from 
the Project area and surrounding 
lands. 

Swainson’s hawk 
(Buteo swainsoni) 

CT Nests in large trees in open areas 
adjacent to grasslands, grain or alfalfa 
fields, or livestock pastures suitable 
for supporting rodent populations. 

Possible. Swainson’s hawks are not 
uncommon in this portion of the 
Central Valley. Nesting habitat is 
absent onsite and absence of rodents 
makes the ruderal field marginal, at 
best, for foraging. Large ornamental 
trees, associated with landscaping, 
could provide suitable nesting habitat, 
although the constant disturbance and 
presence of humans would likely 
discourage nesting in the few trees 
large enough to support a raptor nest 
in the vicinity. Swainson’s hawks may 
use fallow fields west of the Project 
for foraging.   

tricolored blackbird 
(Agelaius tricolor) 

CCE, 
CSC 

Nests colonially near fresh water in 
dense cattails or tules, or in thickets 
of riparian shrubs. Forages in 
grassland and cropland. Large 
colonies are often found on dairy 
farm forage fields. 

Unlikely. Suitable nesting habitat is 
absent from the Project area and 
surrounding lands. Foraging habitat is 
marginal, at best. The nearest known 
occurrence of this species was 
recorded approximately 4.5 miles 
southeast of the Project area in 1994.   

 



  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-29 

Table 3-9.  List of Special Status Plants with Potential to Occur Onsite and/or in the Vicinity 

Species Status Habitat Occurrence on Project Site 

brittlescale (Atriplex 
depressa) 

CNPS 1B Found in the San Joaquin Valley 
and Sacramento Valley in alkali 
or clay soils in shadescale scrub, 
valley grassland, alkali sink, and 
riparian communities at 
elevations below 1050 feet. 
Equally likely to occur in 
wetlands and non-wetlands. 
Blooms June – October. 

Absent. The disturbed habitats of the 
Project site are unsuitable for this 
species. The nearest observation of 
this species was recorded 
approximately 5 miles east of the site 
in 2008.  

California alkali grass 

(Puccinellia simplex) 

CNPS 1B Found in the San Joaquin Valley 

and other parts of California in 

saline flats and mineral springs 

within valley grassland and 

wetland-riparian communities at 

elevations below 3000 feet. 

Blooms March – May. 

Absent. Suitable habitat required by 
this species is absent from the Project 
area and surrounding lands. The 
nearest known occurrence of this 
species was recorded approximately 
13 miles northeast of the Project area 
in 2011.   

heartscale (Atriplex 
cordulata var. cordulata) 

CNPS 1B Found in the San Joaquin Valley 
and Sacramento Valley in 
alkaline flats and sandy soils in 
chenopod scrub, valley and 
foothill grassland, meadows and 
seeps at elevations up to 900 
feet. Blooms June – July. 

Absent. The disturbed habitats of the 
Project site are unsuitable for this 
species. The nearest observation of 
this species occurred within Mendota 
Wildlife Area, approximately 3 miles 
southeast of the Project site in 1996. 

lesser saltscale (Atriplex 
minuscula) 

CNPS 1B Found in the San Joaquin Valley 
in playas; sandy, alkaline soils in 
shadescale scrub, valley 
grassland, and alkali sink 
communities at elevations below 
300 feet. Blooms April – 
October.  

Absent. The disturbed habitats of the 
Project site are unsuitable for this 
species. The nearest observation of 
this species occurred within Alkali 
Sink Ecological Reserve, 
approximately 5 miles southeast of 
the Project site in 2009. 

Lost Hills crownscale 
(Atriplex coronata var. 
vallicola) 

CNPS 1B Found in the San Joaquin Valley 
in chenopod scrub, valley and 
foothill grassland, and vernal 
pools at elevations below 1400 
feet. Typically found in dried 
ponds on alkaline soils. Blooms 
April – September.   

Absent. The disturbed habitats of the 
Project site are unsuitable for this 
species. There are two recorded 
observations of this species in the 
vicinity of the Project. One 
occurrence is a historic collection 
(1937) from an unknown location in 
the vicinity of Mendota. The most 
recent occurrence is from 2008 near 
Alkali Sink Ecological Reserve, 
approximately 5 miles east of the 
Project area.  

Munz’s tidy-tips (Layia 
munzii) 

CNPS 1B Found in the San Joaquin Valley 
in alkali clay soils at elevations 
between 160 feet and 2625 feet 
in shadescale scrub, valley 
grassland, and riparian 
communities. Occurs 
predominantly in wetlands, but 
occasionally found in non-

Absent. The disturbed habitats of the 
Project site are unsuitable for this 
species. The only recent observation 
of this species was recorded in 2008 
near Alkali Sink Ecological Reserve, 
approximately 5 miles east of the 
Project.  



  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-30 

Species Status Habitat Occurrence on Project Site 

wetlands. Blooms March – 
April. 

palmate-bracted bird’s 
beak (Chloropyron 
palmatum) 

FE, CE, 
CNPS 1B 

Found in the San Joaquin Valley 
and Sacramento Valley in 
alkaline soils (usually Pescadero 
silty clay) in chenopod scrub, 
valley and foothill grassland at 
elevations below 500 feet. 
Blooms June – August. 

Absent. The disturbed habitats of the 
Project site are unsuitable for this 
species. The only recent observation 
of this species was recorded in 2017 
in Alkali Sink Ecological Reserve, 
approximately 5 miles east of the 
Project. 

Panoche pepper-grass 
(Lepidium jaredii ssp. 
album) 

CNPS 1B Found on steep slopes, washes, 
alluvial-fans, and clay, 
sometimes alkaline, within 
Valley and Foothill Grassland 
communities in western Fresno 
County at elevations between 
600 feet and 2400 feet. Blooms 
February – June.  

Absent. Suitable habitat required by 
this species is absent from the Project 
area and surrounding lands. The 
Project area is also outside of the 
elevational range of this species. The 
only recorded observation of this 
species in the vicinity has been 
reportedly extirpated by gravel 
extraction activities.      

EXPLANATION OF OCCURRENCE DESIGNATIONS AND STATUS CODES 

Present:  Species observed on the site at time of field surveys or during recent past 
Likely:    Species not observed on the site, but it may reasonably be expected to occur there on a regular basis 
Possible:    Species not observed on the site, but it could occur there from time to time 
Unlikely:    Species not observed on the site, and would not be expected to occur there except, perhaps, as a transient 
Absent:    Species not observed on the site, and precluded from occurring there due to absence of suitable habitat 

 

STATUS CODES 

FE Federally Endangered   CE California Endangered 
FT Federally Threatened   CT California Threatened 
FPE Federally Endangered (Proposed)  CCT California Threatened (Candidate) 
FPT Federally Threatened (Proposed)   CFP California Fully Protected 
FC Federal Candidate    CSC California Species of Special Concern   

CWL        California Watch List 
CCE        California Endangered (Candidate) 
CR  California Rare 

CNPS LISTING 

1A Plants Presumed Extinct in California  2 Plants Rare, Threatened, or Endangered in  
1B Plants Rare, Threatened, or Endangered in  California, but more common elsewhere 
 California and elsewhere 

3.4.2.1 Local  

City of Mendota General Plan Update  
 
The City of Mendota General Plan Update (2005-2025) sets forth the following goals and policies that protect  
biological resources and which have potential relevance to the Project’s CEQA review:   
 

• Goal OSC-7: Preservation of important ecological and biological resources, including habitat for flora and  
fauna.  

• Policy OSC-7.1: The City shall require a biological resources evaluation for private and public development  
projects in areas identified to contain or possibly contain listed plant and/or wildlife species based upon the  
City’s biological resource mapping provided in the General plan EIR or other technical materials. This  
evaluation shall be conducted prior to the authorization of any ground disturbance.   

• Policy OSC-7.5: If habitat for Swainson’s hawk is present, a protocol-level survey shall be conducted in  



  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-31 

accordance with Recommended Timing and Methodology for Swainson’s Hawk Nesting Surveys in California’s 
Central Valley (Swainson’s Hawk Technical Advisory Committee, 2000), to include the following:  
 

1) Schedule construction activities to avoid nesting activities. The avian breeding window on average is between 
February 1 and August 30, which complies with the Migratory Bird Treaty Act and Section 3503.5 of the 
FGC, therefore construction activities should occur between September and January.  
2) Conduct all vegetation clearing (including trees, shrubs, and bushes) outside of the nesting season. If 
clearing of any vegetation and/or construction activities occur during the avian breeding window, then 
preconstruction surveys for nesting raptors shall be conducted up to 30 days before construction. The qualified 
biologist shall survey the construction zone and a 100-foot radius surrounding the construction zone to 
determine whether the activities taking place have the potential to disturb or otherwise harm nesting birds.  
3) If an active nest is located within the 100-foot area surrounding the construction zone and construction 
must take place during the breeding season, a buffer zone shall be established by the biologist and confirmed 
by the appropriate resource agency and a qualified biologist shall monitor the nest to determine when the young 
have fledged and submit bi-weekly reports to City of Mendota planning Department throughout the nesting 
season. The biological monitor shall have the authority to cease construction if there is any sign of distress to 
the raptor. Reference to this requirement, the MBTA, and Section 3503.5 of the FGC shall be included in 
the construction specifications.   

 Impact Assessment 

IV-a)  Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or through habitat modifications, on any 
species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional 
plans, policies, or regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or U.S. 
Fish and Wildlife Service? 

a) Less Than Significant Impact with Mitigation Incorporated.  

Project-Related Mortality and/or Disturbance of Nesting Raptors, Migratory Birds, and Special 
Status Birds (Including Swainson’s Hawk and Mountain Plover) 
A pair of American kestrels were observed foraging over the site, and a red-tailed hawk was observed perched 
on a light pole, overlooking a fallow field in the vicinity. Portions of the Project site contain marginal foraging 
habitat for several avian species, including the Swainson’s hawk. Although the Project site does not contain 
any trees, there are a few ornamental trees in the vicinity large enough to house a raptor nest, and smaller 
avian species may nest within ornamental trees and shrubs in the vicinity. Ground-nesting birds, such as the 
killdeer could nest on the bare ground, and swallows could nest within buildings or structures in the vicinity.   
 
Swainson’s hawks are common in this portion of Fresno County, and there are known nest trees within five 
miles of the Project site. In the absence of preferred habitat, especially within the Central Valley, Swainson’s 
hawks often nest within eucalyptus trees lining highways, and several raptor species nest within ornamental 
Mexican fan palms. Although nesting habitat onsite and in the vicinity is not ideal due to the absence of 
native riparian trees, and foraging habitat is suboptimal, raptors, such as the special status Swainson’s hawk 
could conceivably nest or forage near Project areas. In the event that a Swainson’s hawk or other avian 
species is foraging within the Project site during construction activities, the individual would be expected to 
fly away from disturbance they encounter, subsequently eliminating the risk of injury or mortality while 
foraging. Birds nesting within the Project site could be injured or killed by Project activities. Furthermore, 
construction activities could disturb birds nesting within or adjacent to work areas, resulting in nest 
abandonment. Project construction activities that adversely affect the nesting success of raptors and 



  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-32 

migratory birds or result in the mortality of individual birds constitutes a violation of State and federal laws 
and is considered a significant impact under CEQA.  
 
Although they do not breed in California, mountain plovers are known to winter in fallow fields of the 
Central Valley. Since they do not breed in this region, loss of nesting habitat and disruption of reproductive 
success is not a concern for this Project, although a wintering mountain plover onsite could potentially be 
injured or killed by construction activities. Then again, avian species are highly mobile and would be expected 
to simply fly away from a disturbance.  
 
As previously mentioned, due to the developed and ruderal nature of the lands, nesting and foraging habitat 
for raptors, resident and migratory birds, and special status birds within the Project area is marginal, at best. 
Habitat of higher foraging and nesting value is regionally abundant. Therefore, the development resulting 
from implementation of the Project would not be considered a significant loss of foraging or nesting habitat 
under CEQA or NEPA.   
 
Nesting bird season is generally accepted as February 1 through August 31; however, Swainson’s hawk 
nesting season is generally accepted as March 1 through September 15. For simplicity, these timeframes have 
been combined.  
 
Implementation of the following measures will reduce potential impacts to nesting raptors, migratory birds, 
and special status birds, including Swainson’s hawk to a less than significant level under CEQA and NEPA, 
and will ensure compliance with State and federal laws protecting these avian species. 

Mitigation. The following measures will be implemented prior to the start of construction: 

Mitigation Measure BIO-1a (Avoidance): The Project’s construction activities shall occur, if 
feasible, between September 16 and January 31 (outside of nesting bird season) in an effort to avoid 
impacts to nesting birds.  
 
Mitigation Measure BIO-1b (Pre-construction Surveys): If activities must occur within nesting 
bird season (February 1 to September 15), a qualified biologist shall conduct pre-construction surveys 
for active nests within 30 days prior to the start of construction. The survey shall include the 
proposed work area and surrounding lands within 0.5 mile. If no active nests are observed, no 
further mitigation is required. Raptor nests are considered “active” upon the nest-building stage.   
 
Mitigation Measure BIO-1c (Establish Buffers): On discovery of any active nests near work 
areas, the biologist shall determine appropriate construction setback distances based on applicable 
CDFW and/or USFWS guidelines and/or the biology of the species in question. Construction 
buffers shall be identified with flagging, fencing, or other easily visible means, and shall be 
maintained until the biologist has determined that the nestlings have fledged.  
 

Implementation of Mitigation Measures BIO-1a through 1c will reduce potential impacts to nesting birds and 
any other special status avian species to a less than significant level and will ensure compliance with State and 
federal laws protecting these resources. 
 
Project-Related Impacts to Special Status Bats (Including Western Mastiff Bat and Western Red 
Bat) 
Although roosting and breeding habitat is absent, the ruderal fallow portion of the site could serve as 
marginal foraging habitat for bats, including the western mastiff bat and western red bat. If a special status bat 
were foraging onsite, it could be injured or killed by construction activities. Projects that adversely affect the 



  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-33 

reproductive success of special status species or result in the mortality of special status species is considered a 
violation of state and federal laws and are considered a potentially significant impact under CEQA.  
 
Implementation of the following measure will reduce potential impacts to foraging special status bats to a less 
than significant level under CEQA, and will ensure compliance with State and federal laws protecting this 
species.   
 
Mitigation. The following measures will be implemented during or prior to the start of construction:  
 
Mitigation Measure BIO-2 (Construction Hours): Construction activities shall be limited to daylight hours  
to reduce potential impacts to special status bats that could be foraging onsite. 
 
Implementation of Mitigation Measure BIO-2 will reduce potential impacts to foraging bats to a less than 
significant level and will ensure compliance with State and federal laws protecting these species. 
 
Project-Related Impacts to Special Status Plant Species 
Twelve special status plant species have been documented in the Project vicinity, including brittlescale  
(Atriplex depressa), California alkali grass (Puccinellia simplex), heartscale (Atriplex cordulata var. cordulata), lesser 
saltscale (Atriplex miniscula), Lost Hills crownscale (Atriplex coronata var. vallicola), Munz’s tidy-tips (Layia 
munzii), palmate-bracted bird’s beak (Chloropyron palmatum), Panoche pepper-grass (Lepidium jaredii ssp. album), 
recurved larkspur (Delphinium recurvatum), San Joaquín woollythreads (Monolopia congdonii), Sanford’s arrowhead 
(Sagittaria sanfordii), and subtle orache (Atriplex subtilis). None of these species were observed during the 
biological survey, which was conducted in Spring, during the typical blooming season for many of these 
species. In fact, the biological survey revealed a heavily disturbed lot of land overgrown with weedy invasive 
plant species. As explained in Table 3-9, all of the aforementioned special status plant species are absent 
from the Project area due to past and ongoing disturbance and/or the absence of suitable habitat. Therefore, 
the implementation of the Project will have no effect on individual plants or regional populations of these 
special status plant species. Mitigation measures are not warranted. 
 
Project-Related Impacts to Special Status Animal Species Absent From, or Unlikely to Occur on, the 
Project Site 
Of the 28 regionally occurring special status species, 24 are considered absent or unlikely to occur within the  
Project area due to past or ongoing disturbance and/or absence of suitable habitat. As explained in Table 
3-8, the following species were deemed absent from the Project area: American badger (Taxidea taxus), 
California red-legged frog (Rana draytonii), coast horned lizard (Phrynosoma blainvillii), Delta smelt (Hypomesus 
transpacificus), Fresno kangaroo rat (Dipodomys nitratoides exilis), giant gartersnake (Thamnophis gigas), giant 
kangaroo rat (Dipodomys ingens), San Joaquin coachwhip (Masticophis flagellum ruddocki), Steelhead-Central Valley 
DPS (Oncorhynchus mykiss irideus pop.11), two-striped gartersnake (Thamnophis hammondii), western pond turtle 
(Emys marmorata), western yellow-billed cuckoo (Coccyzus americanus occidentalis), and yellow-headed blackbird 
(Xanthocephalus xanthocephalus), and the following species were deemed unlikely to occur within the Project 
area: bank swallow (Riparia riparia), blunt-nosed leopard lizard (Gambelia sila), burrowing owl (Athene 
cunicularia), longhorn fairy shrimp (Branchinecta longiantenna), Nelson’s antelope squirrel (Ammospermophilus 
nelson), northern California legless lizard (Anniella pulchra), San Joaquin kit fox (Vulpes macrotis mutica), 
tricolored blackbird (Agelaius tricolor), Tulare grasshopper mouse (Onychomys torridus tularensis), vernal pool fairy 
shrimp (Branchinecta lynchi), and western spadefoot (Spea hammondii). Therefore, implementation of the Project 
will have no impact on these 24 special status species through construction mortality, disturbance, or loss of 
habitat. Mitigation measures are not warranted.  



  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-34 

IV-b)  Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community 
identified in local or regional plans, policies, regulations, or by the California Department of 
Fish and Wildlife or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service? 

IV-c)  Have a substantial adverse effect on state or federally protected wetlands (including, but not 
limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct removal, filling, hydrological 
interruption, or other means? 

b and c) No Impact.  The only aquatic feature onsite is a dry, isolated, excavated irrigation ditch with no 
connection to navigable waters or a natural drainage channel with a bed or bank, and therefore it can be 
reasonably assumed that jurisdictional waters are absent. A small amount of riparian vegetation is present 
within the dry excavated irrigation ditch due to lack of recent vegetation maintenance; however, the site is 
diced and cleared for weed abatement at least once per year and does not provide suitable habitat for wildlife 
species. The Project does not propose impacts or discharge to any surface waters. Regardless, due to 
proposed ground disturbance of an area greater than one acre in size, the Project will implement a SWPPP. 
For all of these reasons, implementation of the Project should have no impact on jurisdictional waters, 
wetlands, navigable waters, wild and scenic rivers, or other water features, and riparian habitat. Furthermore, 
the Project will not impact any bodies of water and will not require compliance with the Fish and Wildlife 
Coordination Act.  According to CNDDB, there are no recorded natural communities of special concern 
with potential to occur within the Project area or vicinity. Additionally, no natural communities of special 
concern were observed during the biological survey. Therefore, implementation of the Project will have no 
impact on riparian habitat, or any other sensitive natural communities nor will the Project impact any State or 
federally protected wetlands. Mitigation measures are not warranted.  

IV-d)  Interfere substantially with the movement of any native resident or migratory fish or wildlife 
species or with established native resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use 
of native wildlife nursery sites? 

d) Less Than Significant Impact. The Project area does not contain features that would be likely to 
function as a wildlife movement corridor. Furthermore, the Project is located in a region often disturbed by 
intensive agricultural cultivation practices and human disturbance which would discourage dispersal and 
migration. Therefore, implementation of the Project will have no impact on wildlife movement corridors, and 
mitigation is not warranted. 

IV-e)  Conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, such as a tree 
preservation policy or ordinance? 

e) No Impact. The Project description is in compliance with the goals and policies set forth in the Fresno 
County General Plan. Project activities do include the removal of five non-native eucalyptus trees, which are 
not protected by any local policies or ordinances. There will be no impact.  

IV-f)  Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Community 
Conservation Plan, or other approved local, regional, or state habitat conservation plan? 

f) No Impact. The Project site is not within a designated Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Conservation 
Plan, or any other State or local habitat conservation plan.  There would be no impact.   



  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-35 

3.5 Cultural Resources 

Table 3-10.  Cultural Resources Impacts 

Cultural Resources 

Would the project: 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant With 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance 
of a historical resource pursuant to §15064.5? 

    

b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance 
of an archaeological resource pursuant to §15064.5? 

    

c) Disturb any human remains, including those interred 
outside of dedicated cemeteries? 

    

 Environmental Setting 

The Proposed Project site lies within Fresno County, which occupies an archeologically and historically rich 
part of the San Joaquin Valley.   
 
RECORDS SEARCH 
On March 26, 2019, Provost & Pritchard received a records search from the Southern San Joaquin Valley 
Information Center (SSJVIC) of the California Historical Resources Information System (CHRIS), located at 
California State University, Bakersfield. The records search encompassed the Project APEs as well as a 0.5-
mile radius surrounding the various locations. SSJVIC staff examined site record files, maps, and other 
materials to identify previously recorded resources and prior surveys within the delineated area (Appendix C, 
Cultural Information). Additional sources included the State Office of Historic Preservation (SHPO) 
Historic Properties Directory, Archaeological Determinations of Eligibility, and the California Inventory of 
Historic Resources. 
 
NATIVE AMERICAN OUTREACH 
In April 2019, Provost & Pritchard contacted the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) in 
Sacramento. Provost & Pritchard provided NAHC a brief description of the project and a map showing its 
location and requested that the NAHC perform a search of the Sacred Lands File to determine if any Native 
American resources have been recorded in the immediate study area. Provost & Pritchard also requested 
NAHC provide a current list of local Native American contacts for the Proposed Project APE.  The 13 tribes 
identified by NAHC were contacted in writing via US mail with a letter dated March 19, 2019 informing them 
about the Proposed Project. No additional communication has been received.  

3.5.1.1 Local 

City of Mendota General Plan10: The Mendota General Plan sets forth the following goals and policies that 
protect the cultural resources of the City and which are not relevance to the Project’s CEQA review: 

                                                      
10 City of Mendota General Plan http://ci.mendota.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/City-of-Mendota-General-Plan-Update.pdf Accessed April 17, 
2019. 

http://ci.mendota.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/City-of-Mendota-General-Plan-Update.pdf


  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-36 

 Impact Assessment

V-a)  Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource as defined in
§15064.5?

V-b)  Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an archaeological resource
pursuant to §15064.5?

a-b) Less than Significant Impact with Mitigation Incorporated.
A records search from the California Historical Resources Information System (CHRIS) at the Southern San
Joaquin Valley Information Center (SSJVIC) dated March 26, 2019 (Appendix C) indicated that there are no 
recorded cultural resources within the project area or within a one-half
mile radius. To identify any historic properties, the SSJVIC examined the current inventories of the National
Register of Historic Places (NRHP), California Register of Historical Resources (CRHR), California Historical
Landmarks (CHL), California Points of Historical Interest (CPHI), California Inventory of Historic
Resources (CIHR), California State Historic Landmarks, and other pertinent historical data available at the
SSJVIC. Although the site was previously used for agriculture, it is unknown if cultural resources are present.
Therefore, Mitigation Measure CUL-1 has been incorporated into the project.

Provost & Pritchard contacted the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) for a Sacred Lands File
& Native American Contacts List which was received March 19, 2019. Following receipt of the list, Provost
& Pritchard sent letters to the following Tribes via certified mail requesting consultation:

1. Big Sandy Rancheria of Western Mono Indians, Elizabeth D. Kipp, Chairperson
2. Cold Springs Rancheria, Carol Bill, Chairperson
3. Dumna Wo-Wah Tribal Government, Robert Ledger SR, Tribal Chairperson
4. Dunlap Band of Mono Indians, Benjamin Charley Jr., Tribal Chair
5. Dunlap Band of Mono Indians, Dick Charley, Tribal Secretary
6. Kings River Choinumni Farm Tribe, Stan Alec
7. North Fork Mono Tribe, Ron Goode, Chairperson
8. Santa Rosa Indian Community of the Santa Rosa Rancheria, Rueben Barrios Sr., Chairperson
9. Table Mountain Rancheria of California, Leanne Walker-Grant, Chairperson
10. Table Mountain Rancheria of California, Bob Pennell, Cultural Resources Director
11. Traditional Choinumni Tribe, David Alvarez, Chairperson
12. Traditional Choinumni Tribe, Rick Osbourne, Cultural Resources
13. Wuksache Indian Tribe/Eshom Valley Band, Kenneth Woodrow, Chairperson

No written responses were received. All Tribal correspondence is included within Appendix C to this initial
study. Although it is unlikely that archeological remains will occur during construction or operation of the
Proposed Project, CUL-1 is to be considered.
 
Mitigation Measure CUL-1 (Archaeological Resources)  
In the event that archaeological remains are encountered at any time during development or ground-moving 
activities within the entire project area, all work in the vicinity of the find shall halt until a qualified 
archaeologist can assess the discovery. The District shall implement all recommendations of the archaeologist 
necessary to avoid or reduce to a less than significant level potential impacts to cultural resource.  Appropriate 
actions could include a Data Recovery Plan or preservation in place.  



  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-37 

V-c)  Disturb any human remains, including those interred outside of dedicated cemeteries? 

c) Less than Significant Impact with Mitigation Incorporated.  No formal cemeteries or other places of 
human internment are known to exist on the Project site; however, in accordance with Health and Safety 
Code Section 7050.5 and Public Resource Code Section 5097.98, if human remains are uncovered, Mitigation 
Measure CUL-2 would be implemented. 
 
Mitigation Measure CUL-2 (Human remains)  
If human remains are uncovered, or in any other case when human remains are discovered during 
construction, the Fresno County Coroner is to be notified to arrange their proper treatment and disposition. 
If the remains are identified—on the basis of archaeological context, age, cultural associations, or biological 
traits—as those of a Native American, California Health and Safety Code 7050.5 and Public Resource Code 
5097.98 require that the coroner notify the NAHC within 24 hours of discovery. The NAHC will then 
identify the Most Likely Descendent who will determine the manner in which the remains are treated. 



  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-38 

3.6 Energy 

Table 3-11.  Energy Impacts 

Energy 

Would the project: 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant With 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

a) Result in potentially significant environmental impact 
due to wasteful, inefficient, or unnecessary 
consumption of energy resources, during project 
construction or operation? 

    

b) Conflict with or obstruct a state or local plan for 
renewable energy or energy efficiency? 

    

 Environmental Setting 

PG&E has sufficient energy supplies to serve the growth that has occurred in Fresno County. Much of the 
energy consumed in the region is for residential, commercial, and transportation purposes.  
 
Construction equipment and construction worker vehicles operated during Project construction would use 
fossil fuels. This increased fuel consumption would be temporary and would cease at the end of the 
construction activity, and it would not have a residual requirement for additional energy input. The marginal 
increases in fossil fuel use resulting from Project construction are not expected to have appreciable impacts 
on energy resources. Lighting will be used during the operation of the Project in order to adequately light the 
soccer and baseball field. Lighting may include stadium lighting and pedestrian light poles. 

3.6.1.1 Local 

City of Mendota General Plan11: The Mendota General Plan sets forth the following goals and policies that 
pertain to energy of the City and which are not relevance to the Project’s CEQA review:  

 Impact Assessment 

VI-a)  Would the project result in potentially significant environmental impact due to wasteful, 
inefficient, or unnecessary consumption of energy resources, during project construction or 
operation? 

a) Less Than Significant Impact. As discussed in Section 3.3, the Project will not exceed any air emission 
thresholds during construction or operation. The Project will comply with construction best management 
practices and may be required to complete a SWPPP as part of construction and operational permits. Once 
completed, the Project will be mostly passive in nature and will not use an excessive amount of energy. The 
expansion of the park will include two additional soccer fields, a baseball diamond, and an open space area, 
which will be used as a stormwater basin. Additionally, Light-emitting diode (LED) lighting is proposed for 
the park. When compared to traditional incandescent lighting, LEDs use approximately 25% to 80% less 

                                                      
11 City of Mendota General Plan http://ci.mendota.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/City-of-Mendota-General-Plan-Update.pdf Accessed April 17, 
2019. 

http://ci.mendota.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/City-of-Mendota-General-Plan-Update.pdf


  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-39 

energy and has a considerably longer lifespan.12 The Project will not result in potentially significant 
environmental impacts due to wasteful, inefficient, or unnecessary consumption of energy resources during 
construction or operation. 

VI-b)  Would the project conflict with or obstruct a state or local plan for renewable energy or 
energy efficiency? 

b)  No Impact. The energy used for lighting purposes will be negligible due to the hours of operation. The 
construction phase will be temporary in nature and will not exceed any thresholds set by the SJVAPCD. 

                                                      
12 Department of Energy, https://www.energy.gov/energysaver/save-electricity-and-fuel/lighting-choices-save-you-money/how-energy-efficient-light 
Accessed April 30, 2019. 

https://www.energy.gov/energysaver/save-electricity-and-fuel/lighting-choices-save-you-money/how-energy-efficient-light


  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-40 

3.7 Geology and Soils 

Table 3-12.  Geology and Soils Impacts 

Geology and Soils 

Would the project: 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant With 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

a) Directly or indirectly cause potential substantial adverse 
effects, including the risk of loss, injury, or death 
involving:  

 i) Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as 
delineated on the most recent Alquist-Priolo 
Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the State 
Geologist for the area or based on other 
substantial evidence of a known fault?  Refer to 
Division of Mines and Geology Special Publication 
42. 

    

 ii) Strong seismic ground shaking?     

 iii) Seismic-related ground failure, including 
liquefaction? 

    

 iv) Landslides?     

b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil?     

c) Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, or 
that would become unstable as a result of the project, 
and potentially result in on- or off-site landslide, lateral 
spreading, subsidence, liquefaction or collapse? 

    

d) Be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table 18-1-
B of the most recently adopted Uniform Building Code 
creating substantial direct or indirect risks to life or 
property? 

    

e) Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use 
of septic tanks or alternative wastewater disposal 
systems where sewers are not available for the 
disposal of wastewater?   

    

f) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological 
resource or site or unique geologic feature?   

    

 Environmental Setting 

3.7.1.1 Geology and Soils 

The Project is located in northwestern Fresno County, in the central section of California’s Great Valley 
Geomorphic Province, or Central Valley. The Sacramento Valley makes up the northern third and the San 
Joaquin Valley makes up the southern two-thirds of the geomorphic province. Both valleys are watered by 
large rivers flowing west from the Sierra Nevada Range, with smaller tributaries flowing east from the Coast 



  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-41 

Ranges. Most of the surface of the Great Valley is covered by Quaternary (present day to 1.6 million years 
ago) alluvium. The sedimentary formations are steeply upturned along the western margin due to the uplifted 
Sierra Nevada Range.13 From the time the Valley first began to form, sediments derived from erosion of 
igneous and metamorphic rocks and consolidated marine sediments in the surrounding mountains have been 
transported into the Valley by streams.  

3.7.1.2 Faults and Seismicity 

The Project site is not located within an Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zone and no known faults cut 
through the local soil at the site. The nearest named fault is the O’Neill fault located approximately 20.3 miles 
away.  

3.7.1.3 Liquefaction 

The potential for liquefaction, which is the loss of soil strength due to seismic forces, is dependent on soil 
types and density, depth to groundwater, and the duration and intensity of ground shaking.  Although no 
specific liquefaction hazard areas have been identified in the county, this potential is recognized throughout 
the San Joaquin Valley where unconsolidated sediments and a high-water table coincide. Liquefaction risk in 
the project area is low. Using the USDA NRCS soil survey of Fresno County, an analysis of the soils onsite 
was performed.  

3.7.1.4 Soil Subsidence 

Subsidence occurs when a large land area settles due to over-saturation or extensive withdrawal of ground 
water, oil, or natural gas. These areas are typically composed of open-textured soils that become saturated. 
These areas are high in silt or clay content. The Project site is comprised of calfax clay loam (0-1% slopes). It 
is moderately well drained with a low risk of subsidence.  

3.7.1.5 Dam and Levee Failure 

Lake Joallan is located approximately 6,7 miles northwest, and the Project site lies approximately 218 feet 
from the Pine Flat inundation zone.  

3.7.1.6 Local 

City of Mendota General Plan14: The Mendota General Plan sets forth the following goals and policies that 
pertain to geology and soils of the City and which are not relevance to the Project’s CEQA review:  

 Impact Assessment 

VII-a) Would the Project directly or indirectly cause potential substantial adverse effects, including 
the risk of loss, injury, or death involving: 

VII-a-i) Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineated on the most recent Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning 
Map issued by the State Geologist for the area or based on other substantial evidence of a known fault?  
Refer to Division of Mines and Geology Special Publication 42. 

VII-a-ii) Strong seismic ground shaking? 

a-i and a-ii) Less Than Significant Impact. There are no known faults near the project area. The project 
work would occur in an area typically unaffected by seismic activity. Furthermore, no habitable structures 

                                                      
13 Harden, D.R. 1998, California Geology, Prentice Hall, 479 pages 
14 City of Mendota General Plan http://ci.mendota.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/City-of-Mendota-General-Plan-Update.pdf Accessed April 17, 
2019. 

http://ci.mendota.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/City-of-Mendota-General-Plan-Update.pdf


  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-42 

would be built as a result of the project. Structures built onsite would primarily comprises small, reinforced 
masonry buildings, and would pose little threat of collapse in the event of strong seismic activity. 

VII-a-iii) Seismic-related ground failure, including liquefaction? 

a-iii) Less Than Significant Impact. Liquefaction is a process which involves the temporary 
transformation of soil from a solid state to a fluid form during intense and prolonged groundshaking. Water-
saturated areas with shallow depth to groundwater and uniform sands, loose-to-medium in density, are prone 
to liquefaction. No subsidence-prone soils, oil or gas production or overdraft exists at the project site. 
Furthermore, soil conditions on the site are not prone to soil instability due to its low shrink-swell behavior. 
The impact would be less than significant.  

VII-a-iv) Landslides? 

a-iv) No Impact. As the Project is located on the Valley floor, no major geologic landforms exist on or near 
the site that could result in a landslide event. The potential landslide impact at this location is minimal as the 
site is approximately 20 miles from the foothills and the local topography is essentially flat and level. There 
will be no impact.   

VII-b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil? 

b) Less Than Significant Impact. The project site will be entirely covered with a combination of hardscape 
features and landscaping (turf, trees, etc.).  It will be graded for positive drainage, and there is little likelihood 
of erosion or loss of topsoil. If ground disturbance is greater than one acre the project would require a 
general permit under the Dischargers of Storm Water Associated with Construction Activity Construction 
General Permit Order 2009-0009-DWQ. Construction will utilize Best Management Practice’s detailed in the 
California Storm Water Best Management Practice Handbook for Construction Activity.15 Since the Project 
site has relatively flat terrain with a low potential for soil erosion and would comply with the SWRCB 
requirements, the impact would be less than significant. 

VII-c)  Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, or that would become unstable as a 
result of the project, and potentially result in on- or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, 
subsidence, liquefaction or collapse? 

VII -d)  Be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table 18-1-B of the most recently adopted 
Uniform Building Code creating substantial direct or indirect risks to life or property? 

c and d) Less Than Significant Impact. Soils onsite consist of Calflax clay loam, saline-sodic, wet 0 to 1 
percent slopes (See NRCS Soil Resource Report as part of the Biological Report in Appendix B). The 
Project site and surrounding areas do not contain substantial grade changes. Risk of landslides, lateral 
spreading, subsidence, liquefaction, and collapse are minimal. The Project does not propose significant 
alteration of the topography of the site and it does not involve development of structures or facilities that 
could be affected by expansive soils or expose people to substantial risks to life or property. Furthermore, the 
Project will be consistent with the California Building Standards Code. Any impacts would be less than 
significant.  

VII-e)  Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic tanks or alternative waste 
water disposal systems where sewers are not available for the disposal of waste water?   

e) No Impact.  No septic system is proposed.  The site will be connected to the City’s wastewater 
conveyance system. There will be no impact. 

                                                      
15 California Storm Water Best Management Practice Handbook for Construction Activity, 

https://www.casqa.org/sites/default/files/BMPHandbooks/BMP_NewDevRedev_Complete.pdf , Accessed February 19, 2019 

https://www.casqa.org/sites/default/files/BMPHandbooks/BMP_NewDevRedev_Complete.pdf


  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-43 

VII f)  Would the project directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource or site or 
unique geologic feature? 

f) Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated.  No known paleontological resources have been 
identified at the Project site. However, if a paleontological resource is found then the construction impacts 
can make a significant impact unless mitigated properly. The Project will be less than significant with 
mitigation incorporated. 

Mitigation Measure – GEO - 1 

Should paleontological resources be encountered on the Project site, all ground disturbing activities in 
the area shall stop. A qualified paleontologist shall be contacted to assess the discovery. Mitigation may 
include monitoring, recording the fossil locality, data recovery and analysis, a final report. Public 
educational outreach may also be appropriate. Upon completion of the assessment, a report 
documenting methods, findings, and recommendations shall be prepared and submitted to the City of 
Mendota for review, and (if paleontological materials are recovered) a paleontological repository, such as 
the University of California Museum of Paleontology.  



  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-44 

3.8 Greenhouse Gas Emissions 

Table 3-13.  Greenhouse Gas Emissions Impacts 

Greenhouse Gas Emissions 

Would the project: 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

With Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or 
indirectly, that may have a significant impact on the 
environment? 

    

b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation 
adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions of 
greenhouse gases? 

    

 Environmental Setting 

The Earth’s climate has been warming for the past century.  It is believed that this warming trend is related to 
the release of certain gases into the atmosphere. Greenhouse gases (GHG) absorb infrared energy that would 
otherwise escape from the Earth.  As the infrared energy is absorbed, the air surrounding the Earth is heated. 
An overall warming trend has been recorded since the late 19th century, with the most rapid warming 
occurring over the past two decades.  The 10 warmest years of the last century all occurred within the last 15 
years.  It appears that the decade of the 1990s was the warmest in human history (National Oceanic and 
Atmospheric Administration, 2010).  Human activities have been attributed to an increase in the atmospheric 
abundance of greenhouse gases.  The following is a brief description of the most commonly recognized 
GHGs. 

3.8.1.1 Greenhouse Gases 

Commonly identified GHG emissions and sources include the following: 

Carbon dioxide (CO2) is an odorless, colorless natural greenhouse gas. CO2 is emitted from natural and 
anthropogenic sources.  Natural sources include the following: decomposition of dead organic 
matter; respiration of bacteria, plants, animals, and fungus; evaporation from oceans; and volcanic 
out gassing. Anthropogenic sources include the burning of coal, oil, natural gas, and wood. 

Methane (CH4) is a flammable greenhouse gas.  A natural source of methane is the anaerobic decay of 
organic matter.  Geological deposits, known as natural gas fields, also contain methane, which is 
extracted for fuel. Other sources are from landfills, fermentation of manure, and ruminants such as 
cattle. 

Nitrous oxide (N2O), also known as laughing gas, is a colorless greenhouse gas.  Nitrous oxide is 
produced by microbial processes in soil and water, including those reactions that occur in fertilizer 
containing nitrogen.  In addition to agricultural sources, some industrial processes (fossil fuel-fired 
power plants, nylon production, nitric acid production, and vehicle emissions) also contribute to its 
atmospheric load. 

Water vapor is the most abundant, and variable greenhouse gas.  It is not considered a pollutant; in the 
atmosphere, it maintains a climate necessary for life. 



  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-45 

Ozone (O3) is known as a photochemical pollutant and is a greenhouse gas; however, unlike other 
greenhouse gases, ozone in the troposphere is relatively short-lived and, therefore, is not global in 
nature.  Ozone is not emitted directly into the atmosphere but is formed by a complex series of 
chemical reactions between volatile organic compounds, nitrogen oxides, and sunlight. 

Aerosols are suspensions of particulate matter in a gas emitted into the air through burning biomass 
(plant material) and fossil fuels.  Aerosols can warm the atmosphere by absorbing and emitting heat 
and can cool the atmosphere by reflecting light. 

Chlorofluorocarbons (CFCs) are nontoxic, nonflammable, insoluble, and chemically unreactive in the 
troposphere (the level of air at the earth’s surface).  CFCs were first synthesized in 1928 for use as 
refrigerants, aerosol propellants, and cleaning solvents.  CFCs destroy stratospheric ozone; therefore, 
their production was stopped as required by the Montreal Protocol in 1987. 

Hydrofluorocarbons (HFCs) are synthetic chemicals that are used as a substitute for CFCs.  Of all the 
greenhouse gases, HFCs are one of three groups (the other two are perfluorocarbons and sulfur 
hexafluoride) with the highest global warming potential.  HFCs are human-made for applications 
such as air conditioners and refrigerants. 

Perfluorocarbons (PFCs) have stable molecular structures and do not break down through the chemical 
processes in the lower atmosphere; therefore, PFCs have long atmospheric lifetimes, between 10,000 
and 50,000 years.  The two main sources of PFCs are primary aluminum production and 
semiconductor manufacture. 

Sulfur hexafluoride (SF6) is an inorganic, odorless, colorless, nontoxic, nonflammable gas. It has the 
highest global warming potential of any gas evaluated.  Sulfur hexafluoride is used for insulation in 
electric power transmission and distribution equipment, in the magnesium industry, in 
semiconductor manufacturing, and as a tracer gas for leak detection. 

3.8.1.2 Effects of Climate Change 

There are uncertainties as to exactly what the climate changes will be in various local areas of the earth, and 
what the effects of clouds will be in determining the rate at which the mean temperature will increase.  There 
are also uncertainties associated with the magnitude and timing of other consequences of a warmer planet: sea 
level rise, spread of certain diseases out of their usual geographic range, the effect on agricultural production, 
water supply, sustainability of ecosystems, increased strength and frequency of storms, extreme heat events, 
air pollution episodes, and the consequence of these effects on the economy.  
 
Emissions of GHGs contributing to global climate change are largely attributable to human activities 
associated with the industrial/manufacturing, utility, transportation, residential, and agricultural sectors. 
About three-quarters of human emissions of CO2 to the global atmosphere during the past 20 years are due 
to fossil fuel burning.  Atmospheric concentrations of CO2, CH4, and N2O have increased 31 percent, 151 
percent, and 17 percent respectively since the year 1750 (CEC 2008).  GHG emissions are typically expressed 
in carbon dioxide-equivalents (CO2e), based on the GHG’s Global Warming Potential (GWP).  The GWP is 
dependent on the lifetime, or persistence, of the gas molecule in the atmosphere. For example, one ton of 
CH4 has the same contribution to the greenhouse effect as approximately 21 tons of CO2.  Therefore, CH4 is 
a much more potent GHG than CO2. 

 Methodology 

An Air Quality and Greenhouse Gas Emissions Evaluation Report (Appendix A) was prepared in April 
2019. The sections below detail the methodology of the report and its conclusions.  



  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-46 

3.8.2.1 Short-Term Construction-Generated Emissions 

Short-term construction emissions associated with the Project were calculated using CalEEmod, Version 
2016.3.2.  Emissions’ modeling was assumed to occur over an approximate eight-month period and covering a 
site area of 15 acres. Remaining assumptions were based on the default parameters contained in the model. 
Modeling assumptions and output files are included in Appendix A.  

3.8.2.2 Long-Term Operational Emissions 

Long-term operational emissions associated with the Project are estimated to be minimal in nature. 
Maintenance will be provided by existing City of Mendota staff. Modeling assumptions and output files are 
included in Appendix A. 

3.8.2.3 Thresholds of Significance 

CEQA Guidelines Amendments became effective March 18, 2010.  Included in the Amendments are 
revisions to the Appendix G Initial Study Checklist.  In accordance with these Amendments, a project would 
be considered to have a significant impact to climate change if it would:  

a. Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a significant impact on 
the environment; or,  

b. Conflict with any applicable plan, policy or regulation of an agency adopted for the purpose of 
reducing the emissions of greenhouse gases.  
 

In accordance with SJVAPCD’s CEQA Greenhouse Gas Guidance for Valley Land-use Agencies in Addressing GHG 
Emission Impacts for New Projects16, proposed projects complying with Best Performance Standards (BPS) would 
be determined to have a less-than-significant impact.  Projects not complying with BPS would be considered 
less than significant if operational GHG emissions would be reduced or mitigated by a minimum of 29 
percent, in comparison to business-as-usual (year 2004) conditions.  In addition, project-generated emissions 
complying with an approved plan or mitigation program would also be determined to have a less-than-
significant impact.  

3.8.2.4 Local  

City of Mendota General Plan17: The Mendota General Plan sets forth the following goals and policies that 
pertain to greenhouse gases of the City and which are not relevance to the Project’s CEQA review:  

San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District 

SJVAPCD Climate Change Action Plan:  

On August 21, 2008, the SJVAPCD Governing Board approved the District’s Climate Change Action Plan 
with the following goals and actions: 
Goals: 

• Assist local land-use agencies with California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) issues relative to 
projects with GHG emissions increases. 

• Assist Valley businesses in complying with mandates of AB 32. 

• Ensure that climate protection measures do not cause increase in toxic or criteria pollutants that 
adversely impact public health or environmental justice communities. 

Actions: 

                                                      
16 Guidance for Valley Land-use Agencies in Addressing GHG Emission Impacts for New Projects under CEQA. 
  http://www.valleyair.org/Programs/CCAP/12-17-09/3%20CCAP%20-%20FINAL%20LU%20Guidance%20-%20Dec%2017%202009.pdf 
Accessed 17 April 2019 
17 City of Mendota General Plan http://ci.mendota.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/City-of-Mendota-General-Plan-Update.pdf Accessed 17 April 
2019. 

http://www.valleyair.org/Programs/CCAP/12-17-09/3%20CCAP%20-%20FINAL%20LU%20Guidance%20-%20Dec%2017%202009.pdf
http://ci.mendota.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/City-of-Mendota-General-Plan-Update.pdf


  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-47 

• Authorize the Air Pollution Control Officer to develop GHG significance threshold(s) or other 
mechanisms to address CEQA projects with GHG emissions increases.  Begin the requisite public 
process, including public workshops, and develop recommendations for Governing Board 
consideration in the spring of 2009. 

• Authorize the Air Pollution Control Officer to develop necessary regulations and instruments for 
establishment and administration of the San Joaquin Valley Carbon Exchange Bank for voluntary 
GHG reductions created in the Valley.  Begin the requisite public process, including public 
workshops, and develop recommendations for Governing Board consideration in spring 2009. 

• Authorize the Air Pollution Control Officer to enhance the District’s existing criteria pollutant 
emissions inventory reporting system to allow businesses subject to AB 32 emission reporting 
requirements to submit simultaneous streamlined reports to the District and the State of California 
with minimal duplication. 

• Authorize the Air Pollution Control Officer to develop and administer voluntary GHG emission 
reduction agreements to mitigate proposed GHG increases from new projects. 

• Direct the Air Pollution Control Officer to support climate protection measures that reduce GHG 
emissions as well as toxic and criteria pollutants. Oppose measures that result in a significant increase 
in toxic or criteria pollutant emissions in already impacted area. 

SJVAPCD CEQA Greenhouse Gas Guidance: On December 17, 2009, the SJVAPCD Governing Board 
adopted “Guidance for Valley Land-use Agencies in Addressing GHG Emission Impacts for New Projects 
under CEQA” and the policy, “District Policy—Addressing GHG Emission Impacts for Stationary Source 
Projects Under CEQA When Serving as the Lead Agency.”  The SJVAPCD concluded that the existing 
science is inadequate to support quantification of the impacts that project specific greenhouse gas emissions 
have on global climatic change.  The SJVAPCD found the effects of project-specific emissions to be 
cumulative, and without mitigation, that their incremental contribution to global climatic change could be 
considered cumulatively considerable.  The SJVAPCD found that this cumulative impact is best addressed by 
requiring all projects to reduce their greenhouse gas emissions, whether through project design elements or 
mitigation. 

The SJVAPCD’s approach is intended to streamline the process of determining if project-specific greenhouse 
gas emissions would have a significant effect.  Projects exempt from the requirements of CEQA, and projects 
complying with an approved plan or mitigation program would be determined to have a less than significant 
cumulative impact.  Such plans or programs must be specified in law or adopted by the public agency with 
jurisdiction over the affected resources and have a certified final CEQA document.  

Best performance standards (BPS) to address operational emissions of a project would be established 
according to performance-based determinations.  Projects complying with BPS would not require specific 
quantification of GHG emissions and would be determined to have a less than significant cumulative impact 
for GHG emissions.  Projects not complying with BPS would require quantification of GHG emissions and 
demonstration that operational greenhouse gas emissions have been reduced or mitigated by 29 percent, as 
targeted by CARB’s AB 32 Scoping Plan.  Furthermore, quantification of GHG emissions would be required 
for all projects for which the lead agency has determined that an Environmental Impact Report is required, 
regardless of whether the project incorporates BPS. 

Fresno County General Plan: The Fresno County General Plan does not contain any goals or policies related to 
greenhouse gas or climate change.  



  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-48 

 Impact Assessment 

VIII-a)  Would the project generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may 
have a significant impact on the environment?  And 

a) Less Than Significant Impact. 
Although the Project is not located in the Bay Area, the Bay Area Air Quality Management District’s 
thresholds for significance are based on the Statewide AB 32 objectives and will be used to quantify potential 
impacts related to GHG emissions. For land use development projects, the threshold is compliance with a 
qualified GHG Reduction Strategy or annual emissions less than 1,100 metric tons per year (MT/yr) of CO2e. 
For stationary source projects, such as those requiring a permit from a local air district to operate, the 
threshold is 10,000 MT/yr of CO2e. These thresholds are illustrated in Table 3-14 and Table 3-15, below. 
 

Short-Term Construction-Generated Emissions 

Estimated construction-generated emissions are summarized in Table 3-14.  As indicated, construction of the 
Project would generate maximum annual emissions of approximately 240.4052 metric tons of carbon dioxide 
equivalent (MTCO2e). Construction-related production of GHGs would be temporary and last approximately 
eight months.  

Table 3-14.  Short-Term Construction-Generated GHG Emissions 

Short-Term Construction-Generated GHG Emissions 

Year Emissions (MT CO2e)(1) 

2019 240.4052 

2020 73.1941 

AB 32 Consistency Threshold for Land-Use Development Projects*  1,100 

AB 32 Consistency Threshold for Stationary Source Projects*  10,000 

Exceed Threshold? No 

1. Emissions were quantified using the CalEEmod, Version 2016.3.2. Refer to Appendix A 
for modeling results and assumptions. Totals may not sum due to rounding. 

* As published in the Bay Area Air Quality Management District’s CEQA Air Quality Guidelines. Available online at 

http://www.baaqmd.gov/~/media/files/planning-and-research/ceqa/ceqa_guidelines_may2017-pdf.pdf?la=en Accessed April 22, 2019.  
 

Long-Term Operational Emissions 

Estimated long-term operational emissions are summarized in Table 3-15.  As indicated, operation of the 
Project would generate maximum annual emissions of approximately 18.9177 metric tons of carbon dioxide 
equivalent (MTCO2e). 

http://www.baaqmd.gov/~/media/files/planning-and-research/ceqa/ceqa_guidelines_may2017-pdf.pdf?la=en


  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-49 

Table 3-15.  Long-Term Operational GHG Emissions 

Long-Term Operational GHG Emissions 

 Emissions (MT CO2e)(1) 

Estimated Total Annual Operational CO2e Emissions 18.9177 

AB 32 Consistency Threshold for Land-Use Development Projects*  1,100 

AB 32 Consistency Threshold for Stationary Source Projects* 10,000 

Exceed Threshold? No 

1. Emissions were quantified using the CalEEmod, Version 2016.3.2. Refer to Appendix A 
for modeling results and assumptions. Totals may not sum due to rounding. 

   * As published in the Bay Area Air Quality Management District’s CEQA Air Quality Guidelines. Available online at     

http://www.baaqmd.gov/~/media/files/planning-and-research/ceqa/ceqa_guidelines_may2017-pdf.pdf?la=en April 22, 2019.  
 

Long-term operational emissions associated with the park expansion Project will include the use of an 
irrigation system and waste generated from those utilizing the facilities. The Project proposes an expansion of 
the existing Rojas-Pierce park, which is currently maintained by City of Mendota staff. Operations of the 
additional 10 acres of adjacent open space and recreational facilities will continue to be provided by existing 
City staff and will not result in a substantial increase of GHG emissions. Furthermore, there is no population 
growth associated with the Project. Therefore, Project-related emissions of GHGs would be less than 
significant.  

VIII-b)  Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing the 
emissions of greenhouse gases? 

b) Less Than Significant Impact. In accordance with SJVAPCD’s recommended guidance, project-
generated GHG emissions would be considered less than significant if: (1) the Project complies with 
applicable BPS; (2) operational GHG emissions would be reduced or mitigated by a minimum of 29 percent 
in comparison to business-as usual (year 2004) conditions; or (3) project-generated emissions would comply 
with an approved plan or mitigation program. 

The SJVAPCD recognizes that the CARB’s Cap-and-Trade regulation is an adopted State-wide plan for 
reducing or mitigating GHG emissions from targeted industries.  In June of 2014, the SJVAPCD issued APR- 
2025.  In this policy document, the SJVAPCD concluded that the combustion of fossil fuels including fuels 
associated with on- and off-road vehicles, are subject to Cap-and-Trade requirements.  The SJVAPCD further 
concluded that through implementation of the Cap-and-Trade regulation, project specific GHG emissions 
generated by fossil fuel use would be fully mitigated.   

As noted above in Table 3-14 and Table 3-15, Project-generated GHG emissions would be attributable to 
the consumption of fossil fuels associated with the operation of on- and off-road vehicles.  As discussed 
above, the SJVAPCD has determined that project-generated GHG emissions associated with the use of fossil 
fuels would be fully mitigated through implementation of CARB’s Cap-and-Trade regulation and, therefore, 
would be considered have a less than significant individual and cumulative impact on the environment. 

The Cap-and-Trade regulation is a key component in California’s AB 32 GHG-reduction goals.  On August 
21, 2008, the SJVAPCD Governing Board approved the District’s Climate Change Action Plan (CCAP).  The 
CCAP includes various recommended measures for the reduction of GHG emissions associated with 
development projects. However, of the measures recommended, none are applicable to the proposed Project.   

http://www.baaqmd.gov/~/media/files/planning-and-research/ceqa/ceqa_guidelines_may2017-pdf.pdf?la=en


  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-50 

As discussed in Impact Assessment VIII-a and illustrated in Table 3-14 and Table 3-15 above, the Project 
complies with the Bay Area Air Quality Management District’s GHG emissions thresholds for significance. 
For the aforementioned reasons, implementation of the proposed Project is not anticipated to conflict with 
any applicable plan, policy or regulation for reducing the emissions of GHGs, nor will the Project have a 
significant impact on the environment.  The impact would be considered less than significant.



  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-51 

3.9 Hazards and Hazardous Materials 

Table 3-16.  Hazards and Hazardous Materials Impacts 

Hazards and Hazardous Materials 

Would the project: 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant With 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

a) Create a significant hazard to the public or the 
environment through the routine transport, use, or 
disposal of hazardous materials? 

    

b) Create a significant hazard to the public or the 
environment through reasonably foreseeable upset and 
accident conditions involving the release of hazardous 
materials into the environment? 

    

c) Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or 
acutely hazardous materials, substances, or waste 
within one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed 
school? 

    

d) Be located on a site which is included on a list of 
hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant to 
Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a result, 
would it create a significant hazard to the public or the 
environment? 

    

e) For a project located within an airport land use plan or, 
where such a plan has not been adopted, within two 
miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the 
project result in a safety hazard or excessive noise for 
people residing or working in the project area? 

    

f) Impair implementation of or physically interfere with an 
adopted emergency response plan or emergency 
evacuation plan? 

    

g) Expose people or structures, either directly or indirectly 
to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving 
wildland fires? 

    

 Environmental Setting 

3.9.1.1 Hazardous Materials 

The Hazardous Waste and Substances Sites (Cortese) List is a planning document used by the State, local 
agencies, and developers to comply with CEQA requirements in providing information about the location of 
hazardous materials release sites. Government Code Section 65962.5 requires the California Environmental 
Protection Agency (CalEPA) to develop at least annually an updated Cortese List. The Department of Toxic 
Substances Control (DTSC) is responsible for a portion of the information contained in the Cortese List. 
Other State and local government agencies are required to provide additional hazardous material release 
information for the Cortese List. DTSC's EnviroStor database provides DTSC's component of Cortese List 
data (DTSC, 2010). In addition to the EnviroStor database, the State Water Resources Control Board 
(SWRCB) Geotracker database provides information on regulated hazardous waste facilities in California, 
including underground storage tank (UST) cases and non-UST cleanup programs, including Spills-Leaks-
Investigations-Cleanups (SLIC) sites, Department of Defense (DOD) sites, and Land Disposal program. A 



  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-52 

search of the DTSC EnviroStor database and the SWRCB Geotracker performed on April 18, 2019 
determined that there are no known active hazardous waste generators or hazardous material spill sites within 
the Project site or immediate surrounding vicinity. Implementation of the Project will not increase the risk 
hazards or hazardous materials affecting the community.  

3.9.1.2 Airports 

The Fresno Yosemite International Airport is located approximately 36.5 miles east and William Robert 
Johnston Municipal Airport is located approximately one mile east of the Project.  

3.9.1.3 Emergency Response Plan 

The City of Mendota has prepared an Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) in 2006. The objective of the EOP 
is to incorporate and coordinate all the facilities and personnel of the City into an efficient organization 
capable of responding to any emergency. 

3.9.1.4 Sensitive Receptors 

Along the northern boundary of the Project site, is a single-family residential subdivision. There are 
approximately 20 houses that abut the Project Site. Also, the nearest school (McCabe Junior High School) is 
located approximately 0.13 miles northeast of the Project.  

3.9.1.5 Local 

City of Mendota General Plan18: The Mendota General Plan sets forth the following goals and policies that 
pertain to hazards and hazardous materials of the City and which may be relevant to the Project’s CEQA 
review:  

• S-5.2 The City shall require any development that uses hazardous materials to meet all applicable County, State or 
Federal regulations concerning their transportation, use, storage or disposal. 

• S-5.3 Hazardous materials procedures should be consistent the Fresno County Hazardous Waste Management Plan 
(HWMP). 

• S-5.5 The City should storage handling, transport and disposal issues. 

 Impact Assessment 

IX-a)  Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine transport, 
use, or disposal of hazardous materials? and; 

IX -b)  Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through reasonably foreseeable 
upset and accident conditions involving the release of hazardous materials into the 
environment? 

IX -c)  Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, substances, 
or waste within one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed school? 

a-c) Less Than Significant Impact. At its nearest point, the Project area is located approximately 0.13 

miles northeast of McCabe Junior High School. The Project will not produce or utilize and hazardous 
substances. The Project will not result in the emission of any hazardous substances. There will be no handling 
of hazardous or acutely hazardous materials. 
 
Construction of the Project may involve the use of hazardous materials associated with construction 
equipment, such as diesel fuel, lubricants, hydraulic oil, grease, adhesive, paints, solvents, other petroleum-

                                                      
18 City of Mendota General Plan http://ci.mendota.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/City-of-Mendota-General-Plan-Update.pdf Accessed April 17, 
2019. 

http://ci.mendota.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/City-of-Mendota-General-Plan-Update.pdf


  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-53 

based products. Any potential accidental hazardous materials spills during construction are the responsibility 
of the contractor to remediate in accordance with industry best management practices and State and county 
regulations (Fresno County Hazardous Waste Management Plan).  

IX -d)  Be located on a site which is included on a list of hazardous materials sites compiled 
pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a result, would it create a significant 
hazard to the public or the environment? 

d) No Impact. The Project does not involve land that is listed as a hazardous materials site pursuant to 
Government Code Section 65962.5 and is not included on a list compiled by the Department of Toxic 
Substances Control. A search of the DTSC EnviroStor database and the SWRCB Geotracker performed on 
April 18, 2019 determined that there are no known active hazardous waste generators or hazardous material 
spill sites within the Project site or immediate surrounding vicinity. There will be no impact.  

IX -e)  For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been 
adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the project result in 
a safety hazard or excessive noise for people residing or working in the project area?; and, 

e) Less Than Significant Impact. The project site is located near to, but outside of, the boundaries of the 
Mendota Municipal Airport Land Use Plan. The Mendota Municipal Airport, also called the William Robert 
Johnston Municipal Airport is located approximately one mile east of the Project. There will be no safety 
hazard as a result of the proximity to the airport.   

IX -f)  Impair implementation of or physically interfere with an adopted emergency response plan or 
emergency evacuation plan? 

f) No Impact. The Project includes the construction and operation two additional soccer fields, a baseball 
diamond, and an open space area, which will double as a storm water basin. Construction traffic associated 
with the Project would be minimal and temporary, lasting approximately eight months. Operational traffic 
will consist of as-needed maintenance trips, sporting events, seasonal events, or community gatherings. The 
Project proposes to complete the circulation system in the area by building out Amador Street south 
connecting to the Smoot Avenue extension, which will run along the frontage of the Project site. The existing 
Rojas-Pierce Park has an existing emergency maintenance road. The road will allow access to the existing park 
and proposed expansion. Disturbances to traffic patterns, such as a partial road closures and detours are not 
to be expected. Therefore, Project-related impacts to emergency evacuation routes or emergency response 
routes on local roadways would have no impact.  

IX -g) Expose people or structures, either directly or indirectly to a significant risk of loss, injury or 
death involving wildland fires? 

g) No Impact. The nearest State Responsibility Area is located approximately 14.5 miles southwest of the 
Project site. The Project does not include any residential components, nor would it require any employees to 
be stationed permanently at the site on a daily basis. The project is located in an urbanized area, with 
permanently idle agricultural land adjacent to the West and Southwest. The agricultural land is considered 
fallow and has been disked regularly for fire prevention. There is no risk associated with wildland fires. There 
would be no impact.



  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-54 

3.10 Hydrology and Water Quality 

Table 3-17.  Hydrology and Water Quality Impacts 

Hydrology and Water Quality 

Would the project: 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant With 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

a) Violate any water quality standards or waste discharge 
requirements or otherwise substantially degrade 
surface or ground water quality?   

    

b) Substantially decrease groundwater supplies or 
interfere substantially with groundwater recharge such 
that the project may impede sustainable groundwater 
management of the basin?    

    

c) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the 
site or area, including through the alteration of the 
course of a stream or river or through the addition of 
impervious surfaces, in a manner which would:  

    

 i) result in substantial erosion or siltation on- or off-
site; 

    

 ii) substantially increase the rate or amount of surface 
runoff in a manner which would result in flooding on or 
offsite; 

    

 iii) create or contribute runoff water which would 
exceed the capacity of existing or planned stormwater 
drainage systems or provide substantial additional 
sources of polluted runoff; or 

    

iv) impede or redirect flood flows?     

d) In flood hazard, tsunami, or seiche zones, risk release 
of pollutants due to project inundation? 

    

e) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of a water 
quality control plan or sustainable groundwater 
management plan? 

    

 Environmental Setting 

The Project is located within the lower San Joaquin Valley, part of the Great Valley of California. The Valley 
is bordered by the Sierra Nevada Mountain Ranges to the east, the Coast Ranges to the west, the Klamath 
Mountains and Cascade Range to the north, and the Transverse Ranges and Mojave Desert to the south.  
Like most of California, the San Joaquin Valley experiences a Mediterranean climate. Warm, dry summers are 
followed by cool, moist winters. Summer temperatures often reach above 90 degrees Fahrenheit, and the 
humidity is generally low. Winter temperatures are often below 60 degrees Fahrenheit during the day and 
rarely exceed 70 degrees. On average, the Central Valley receives an average of seven inches of precipitation 
in the form of rainfall yearly, most of which occurs between October and March.  



  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-55 

3.10.1.1 Local 

City of Mendota General Plan19: The Mendota General Plan sets forth the following goals and policies that 
protect hydrology and water quality of the City and which are not relevance to the Project’s CEQA review:  

• OSC-9.6 The City shall maintain streets and gutters to prevent the accumulation of debris and litter. 

 Impact Assessment 

X-a)  Violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements or otherwise 
substantially degrade surface or ground water quality?   

a) Less Than Significant Impact. Surface runoff from the development of the park expansion will be 
accommodated by the stormwater basin that will be located beyond the outfield of the baseball diamond. Any 
wastewater from the street improvements will be accommodated by the City’s sewer system.  A Stormwater 
Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) will be completed prior to construction of the park expansion. Impacts 
would be less than significant.  

X -b)  Would the project substantially decrease groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with 
groundwater recharge such that the project would impede sustainable groundwater 
management of the basin? 

b) Less Than Significant Impact.  The project is not within a water short area of the County. Although the 
site is currently vacant and will be subject to improvements in its entirety, most of the site will contain turf 
and other landscaping as opposed to hardscape surfaces.  The water table and overall groundwater supply will 
not be substantially impacted. The City of Mendota water supply wells are located northeast of the city limits.  
These wells produce approximately 3,100 gallons per minute (GPM) or 4.5 million gallons per day (MGD).  
Peak summer water usage is approximately 2.8 MGD. The calculated annual water usage for the proposed 
expansion would be approximately 15,500 gpd average, and 31,000 during the summer months. The City’s 
water supply system will have more than sufficient capacity to serve the project, and the impact is less than 
significant. 

X -c)  Would the project substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including 
through the alteration of the course of a stream or river or through the addition of impervious 
surfaces, in a manner which would: 

(i) result in substantial erosion or siltation on- or off-site; 

(ii) substantially increase the rate or amount of surface runoff in a manner which would result in flooding on or offsite; 

(iii) create or contribute runoff water which would exceed the capacity of existing or planned stormwater drainage 
systems or provide substantial additional sources of polluted runoff; or 

(iv) impede or redirect flood flows? 

X -d)  Would the project in flood hazard, tsunami, or seiche zones, risk release of pollutants due to 
project inundation? 

c-d) Less Than Significant Impact. The site will be graded to allow for positive drainage.  However, most 
of the site will be landscaped, and it is anticipated that the turf and other flora will reduce the possibility of 
erosion to a less than significant level. The anticipated runoff can be accommodated by the City’s storm 
drainage system. The site is not located within a 100-year floodplain, See Figure 3-2. Due to the project site’s 

                                                      
19 City of Mendota General Plan http://ci.mendota.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/City-of-Mendota-General-Plan-Update.pdf Accessed April 17, 
2019. 

http://ci.mendota.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/City-of-Mendota-General-Plan-Update.pdf


  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-56 

distance from any significant body of water and the relatively flat and level nature of the site and the 
surrounding area, there is no danger of inundation by seiche, tsunami, or mudflow. 

X -e)  Otherwise substantially degrade water quality? 

e) No Impact. The City Engineer has determined that the City’s storm water system has sufficient capacity 
to accommodate any runoff from the project. Furthermore, construction activities will require 
implementation of a SWPPP and compliance with all Cal/OSHA regulations in order to reduce the potential 
for incidental release of pollutants or hazardous substances into surface water or groundwater. There will be 
no impact.   

X-f)  Would the project conflict with or obstruct implementation of a water quality control plan or 
sustainable groundwater management plan? 

f) No Impact.  The project will have a SWPPP in place prior to the start of construction, and will comply 
with requirements of the Regional Water Quality Control Board related to the preservation of water quality. 
The Project will not conflict with or obstruct implementation of any water quality control plan or sustainable 
groundwater management plan. There will be no impact. 



  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-57 

 

Figure 3-2.  FEMA Flood Map 



  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-58 

3.11 Land Use and Planning 

Table 3-18.  Land Use and Planning Impacts 

Land Use and Planning 

Would the project: 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant With 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

a) Physically divide an established community?     

b) Cause a significant environmental impact due to a 
conflict with any land use plan, policy, or regulation 
adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an 
environmental effect? 

    

 Environmental Setting 

The Project is located near the western boundary of the City of Mendota; it is within the Mendota Sphere of 
Influence. City of Mendota is within the northwestern portion of Fresno County. The Project site is located 
approximately 0.25 miles west of State Route 33 and 0.43 miles north of State Route 180. The Project is 
located between Smoot Avenue and Amador Avenue. The Project site is surrounded by a residential 
subdivision, fallow agriculture, and the Rojas-Pierce Park. 
 
The Project will be located on approximately 10-acres of land. The parcels the Project is proposed on are 
Assessor’s Parcel Number 012-190-56ST and 012-190-55ST. The Project site is zoned as AE-20 by Fresno 
County, however, it has been pre-zoned with the zoning designation of O (Open Space/Recreation) and R-2 
(Multiple Family Medium High Density Residential), see Figure 3-3.  Zoning. Furthermore, the Project is 
planned as Recreational and Medium Density Residential by the Mendota General Plan (Figure 3-4.  
General Plan Land Use Designation). The existing Rojas-Pierce Park is zoned as PF (Public Facilities) and 
designated by the Mendota General Plan as Recreational. Surrounding zone designations and General Plan 
land use designation are detailed in Figure 3-4. 

3.11.1.1 Local 

City of Mendota General Plan20: The Mendota General Plan sets forth the following goals and policies that 
pertains to land use and planning of the City and which are not relevance to the Project’s CEQA review:  

• OSC-15 New Development and Redevelopment provides open public spaces for Mendota’s residents, particularly 
downtown. 

• LU-1 New development  and  redevelopment  that  is  designed,  sited  and constructed  in  a  manner  that  creates  
an  aesthetically  pleasing  and desirable community in which to live.   

• LU-1.3 The City  shall monitor  growth,  and  promote  patterns  of  development that  allow  for  the  efficient  and  
timely  extension  of  infrastructure  and services. 

• LU-1.7 The City’s  Zoning  Code  shall  be  updated  to  establish  a  Future  Development  Overlay  designation  
consistent  with  the  Land  Use Diagram   with  the following land use characteristics: 

o Identifies areas adjacent to the City, within the City’s SOI, where it is anticipated that the City will grow 
and extend public services over the next twenty years; 

                                                      
20 City of Mendota General Plan http://ci.mendota.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/City-of-Mendota-General-Plan-Update.pdf Accessed April 17, 
2019. 

http://ci.mendota.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/City-of-Mendota-General-Plan-Update.pdf


  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-59 

• LU-10 The viability of open space areas within and surrounding Mendota are preserved while promoting planned, 
sustainable growth. 

• LU-10.1 The  City’s  Zoning  Code  shall  be  updated  to  establish  the  following Open  Space  land  use  
designations  consistent  with the following land use characteristics: 

o Appropriate uses include passive open space, recreational activities local and regional parks, trails, and 
ancillary commercial uses specifically related to adjoining recreational activities;  

• LU-12.1 Coordinate land use policies and planning decision with Fresno County, the Local Agency Formation 
commission (LAFCo), the Council of Fresno County Governments (Fresno COG), and other affected agencies as 
necessary to ensure cooperative attainment of City land use goals. 

Fresno County General Plan21: The Fresno County General Plan sets forth the following goals and policies 
regarding land use and planning which have potential relevance to the Project’s CEQA review. 

• LU-G.1 The County acknowledges that the cities have primary responsibility for planning within their LAFCO-
adopted spheres of influence and are responsible for urban development and the provision of urban services within their 
spheres of influence. 

• LU-G.2 Fresno County shall work cooperatively with all cities of the county to encourage each city to adopt and 
maintain its respective plan consistent with the Fresno County General Plan. The County shall adopt complementary 
planning policies through a cooperative planning process to be determined by the respective legislative bodies. 

• LU-G.7 Within the spheres of influence and two (2) miles beyond, the County shall promote consultation between the 
cities and the County at the staff level in the early stages of preparing general plan amendments and other policy changes 
that may impact growth or the provision of urban services. Staff consultations, particularly concerning community plans, 
shall provide for meaningful participation in the policy formulation process and shall seek resolution of issues prior to 
presentation to the decision-making bodies. 

 Impact Assessment 

XI-a) Would the project physically divide an established community? 

a) No Impact. The predominant land uses in the project vicinity are single-family residential, agriculture 
land, and open space/recreational land. The Project comprises of the expansion of an existing city park. It is 
located within the City’s planned future growth area and is intended to serve residents from Mendota and the 
surrounding areas. It is adequately served by local public streets and is within walking distance of two schools 
and hundreds of residences. It will not physically divide the community. There would be no impact. 

XI-b) Would the project cause a significant environmental conflict with any land use plan, policy, or 
regulation adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an environmental effect? 

b) Less Than Significant Impact. The project will provide additional public recreational facilities adjacent 
to a residential housing in a low income community The Project site is located outside of, but adjacent to, the 
city limits and will be annexed in the future. It is designated as Agriculture by the Fresno County General 
Plan, and is within the County’s AE-20 zoning district. Furthermore, it has been pre-zoned by the City as O 
(Open Space/Recreation) and R-2 (Multiple Family Medium High Density Residential). The proposed use is 
consistent with the City’s General Plan land use designation of Recreational and Medium Density Residential.  
Pursuant to California Government Code §65402(b), the County of Fresno shall receive the opportunity to 
comment on the conformity of the proposed project with its General Plan. However, under California 
Government Code §§53090-53091, there is intergovernmental immunity from zoning and general plan 
requirements. Nonconformance with the County’s General Plan and/or zoning does not prevent the City 
from constructing a public project on land outside the city limits.    

                                                      
21 Fresno County General Plan. https://www.co.fresno.ca.us/home/showdocument?id=18117 Accessed April 17, 2019. 

https://www.co.fresno.ca.us/home/showdocument?id=18117


  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-60 

 

Figure 3-3.  Zoning Map  



  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-61 

 

Figure 3-4.  General Plan Land Use Designation Map 



  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-62 

3.12 Mineral Resources 

Table 3-19.  Mineral Resources Impacts 

Mineral Resources 

Would the project: 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant With 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

a) Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral 
resource that would be of value to the region and the 
residents of the state? 

    

b) Result in the loss of availability of a locally important 
mineral resource recovery site delineated on a local 
general plan, specific plan or other land use plan? 

    

 Environmental Setting 

The Project is located in the northwestern Fresno County, in the southern section of California’s Great Valley 
Geomorphic Province, or Central Valley. Historically, Fresno County has been a leading producer of a variety 
of minerals including aggregate, fossil fuels, metals, and other materials used construction or in industrial 
processes. Currently, aggregate and petroleum are the County’s most significant mineral resources. The 
Coalinga area, in western Fresno County, has been a valuable region for mineral resources as a top producer 
of commercial asbestos and home to extensive oil recovery operations.22  
 
California Department of Conservation’s Division of Oil, Gas, and Geothermal Resources maintains a 
database of oil wells in the Project area (DOGGR). According to the DOGGR Well Finder there is one 
plugged and abandoned well within two miles of the Project site (Donco Co. #1). There are no active wells 
within two miles of the Project site. 
 
There are no known current or historic mineral resource extraction or recovery operations in the Project 
vicinity nor are there any known significant mineral resources onsite.  

3.12.1.1 Local 

City of Mendota General Plan23: The Mendota General Plan sets forth the following goals and policies that 
protect mineral resources of the City and which have no relevance to the Project’s CEQA review:  

 Impact Assessment 

XII-a) Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of value to the 
region and the residents of the state? 

XII-b) Result in the loss of availability of a locally important mineral resource recovery site 
delineated on a local general plan, specific plan or other land use plan? 

a) and b) No Impact. The California Surface Mining and Reclamation Act of 1975 (SMARA) was to 
address protecting the state’s need for a continuing supply of mineral resources, while protecting public an 
environmental health. SMARA requires that all cities incorporate into their general plans mapped mineral 

                                                      
22 Fresno County General Plan. Background Report. https://www.co.fresno.ca.us/home/showdocument?id=8398 Accessed April 9, 2019 
23 City of Mendota General Plan http://ci.mendota.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/City-of-Mendota-General-Plan-Update.pdf Accessed April 17, 
2019. 

https://www.co.fresno.ca.us/home/showdocument?id=8398
http://ci.mendota.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/City-of-Mendota-General-Plan-Update.pdf


  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-63 

resource designations approved by the State Mining and Geology Board. The State Geologist classifies land in 
California based on availability of mineral resources. Because available aggregate construction material is 
limited, five designations have been established for the classification of sand, gravel and crushed rock 
resources: Scientific Resource, Mineral Resource Zone 1, Mineral Resources Zone 2, and Mineral Resource 
Zone 3, and Mineral Resource Zone 4.  
 
According to the Department of Conservation Special Report 158, Mineral Land Classification: Aggregate 
Materials in the Fresno Production-Consumption Region Sanger Plate, the Project is in an undefined area of Fresno 
County. However, there are no known mineral resources locations near the Project. Mineral Resource Zone 3 
(MRZ-3) is an area where the significance of mineral deposits cannot be determined from the available data. 
However, there are no known sources of mineral resources extraction or recovery operations in the Project 
vicinity nor any known significant mineral resources onsite.24 Therefore, the Project could be classified in as 
MRZ-3. Implementation of the Project would not result in the loss of availability of a known mineral 
resource since no known mineral resources occur in this area. In addition, California’s Division of Oil, Gas 
and Geothermal Resources has no record of active or inactive oil or gas wells or petroleum resources on the 
Project site or in the vicinity25. Therefore, implementation of the Project would not result in the loss of 
availability of a known mineral resource since no known mineral resources occur in this area. Furthermore, 
the Project area has not been designated as a locally important mineral resource recovery site by a general 
plan, specific plan, or land use plan. There would be no impact. 

                                                      
24 Fresno County General Plan Background Report https://www.co.fresno.ca.us/home/showdocument?id=8398 Accessed March 25, 2019 
25 DOGGR Map of Oil and Gas Wells. https://maps.conservation.ca.gov/doggr/wellfinder/#openModal/-119.80553/36.52896/13 Accessed 18 
December 2018. 

https://www.co.fresno.ca.us/home/showdocument?id=8398
https://maps.conservation.ca.gov/doggr/wellfinder/#openModal/-119.80553/36.52896/13


  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-64 

3.13 Noise 

Table 3-20.  Noise Impacts 

Noise 

Would the project: 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant With 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

a) Generation of a substantial temporary or permanent 
increase in ambient noise levels in the vicinity of the 
project in excess of standards established in the local 
general plan or noise ordinance, or applicable 
standards of other agencies? 

    

b) Generation of excessive groundborne vibration or 
groundborne noise levels? 

    

c) For a project located within the vicinity of a private 
airstrip or an airport land use plan or, where such a 
plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a public 
airport or public use airport, would the project expose 
people residing or working in the project area to 
excessive noise levels? 

    

 Environmental Setting 

There are a variety of sources that produce noise in Mendota including traffic, airport operations, and 
agricultural operations. Traffic and railroad noise are the most dominant source of ambient noise near the 
Project site. State Route (SR) 180 runs through Mendota and is the largest source of traffic noise in the area 
due to the high volumes of traffic. The Mendota Municipal Airport is located approximately one mile east of 
the project site. 
 
Construction of the Project is anticipated to be completed within approximately eight months, which will 
include grading, site preparation, and construction of the park facilities. Construction will likely take place 
September 2019 through April 2020. Construction equipment will likely include a backhoe, grader, front 
loader, dump truck (or two) sheeps foot and/or a roller, auger, concrete mixer, maybe a crane for the lights 
and hand tools. Construction will require one super, one foreman, two operators, four 
laborers/carpenters/masons. Generally, construction will occur between the hours of 7am and 5pm, Monday 
through Friday, excluding holidays. Staging areas will be located onsite.  

3.13.1.1 Local 

City of Mendota General Plan26: The Mendota General Plan sets forth the following goals and policies that 
pertains to noise standards of the City and may have relevance to the Project’s CEQA review:  

• N-1.2 The City shall include noise mitigation measures in the design and use of new development projects when 
necessary. 

• N-1.2 The City shall include noise mitigation measures in the design and use of new development projects when 
necessary 

                                                      
26 City of Mendota General Plan http://ci.mendota.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/City-of-Mendota-General-Plan-Update.pdf Accessed April 17, 
2019. 

http://ci.mendota.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/City-of-Mendota-General-Plan-Update.pdf


  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-65 

o Action N-1.2.1 The city shall require development proposals to conform to the policies of the City’s Noise 
Element ensuring compatibility with the existing noise environment. 

o Action N-1.2.3 Where  proposed  non-residential  land  uses  are  likely  to  produce  noise  levels  at  

existing  or  planned  noise-sensitive  uses  that  could  exceed  the  City’s noise standards (Table 5-5, 
below), an acoustical analysis shall be  required  as  part  of  the  environmental  review  process  so  that  
noise  mitigation  may  be  included  in  the  project  design. Development  of procedures  that monitor and  
ensure  implementation  of noise mitigation measures pursuant to an acoustical analysis shall also be required. 

• N-1.8 The  City  shall  implement  acceptable  restrictions  for  various  noise producing activities throughout the City. 

o Action N-1.8.1 Noise created by construction activities, as shown in Table 5-8, shall be  limited  to  the  
daytime  hours  of  7:00  a.m.  to  7:00  p.m.  and prohibited on federal holidays.  Construction activities 
that would result in  safety  or  traffic-related  concerns  during  the  daytime  hours  may  be permitted during 
the more noise-sensitive nighttime hours with approval from the City’s Public Works director. 

o Action N-1.8.2 Construction equipment and equipment staging areas shall be located at the furthest distance 
possible from adjacent land uses. 

Table 21.  Exterior Noise Level Performance Protection Standards  

Exterior Noise Level Performance Protection Standards for Noise Sensitive Land Uses Affected 
by Non-Transportation Noise Sources 

Noise Level Descriptor 
Daytime (7 

a.m to 7 
p.m) 

Evening (7p.m. 
to 10 p.m.) 

Nighttim
e (10 

p.m. to 7 
a.m.) 

Hourly – Average (Leq), dBA 55 50 45 

Maximum (Lmax), dBA 70 60 55 

The noise level specified above shall be lowered by 5 dB for simple tone noises, noises consisting primarily of 
speech or music, or for recurring impulsive noises. These noise level standards do not apply to residential units 
established in conjunction with industrial or commercial uses(e.g., caretaker dwellings). The City can impose 
noise level standards which are more or less restrictive than those specified above based upon determination of 
existing ambient noise levels. Fixed-noise sources which are typically of concern include, but are not limited to, 
the following: HVAC Systems, Cooling Towers/Evaporative Condensers, Pump Stations, Lift Stations, 
Emergency Generators,  Boilers, Steam Valves, Steam Turbines,  Generators, Fans / Blowers, Air Compressors, 
Heavy Equipment, Conveyro Systems, Transformers, Pile Drivers, Grinders, Drill Rigs, Gas or Diesel Motors, 
Welders, Cutting Equipment, Outdoor Speakers. 

The exterior noise level standard shall be applied at exterior activity areas. In areas where exterior activity areas 
are not clearly defined the noise level standard shall be applied at the property line of the receiving land use or at 
a distance of 100feet from the residence,  whichever location is nearest to the residence..   For multi-family 
dwellings, an onsite common open-space or recreation area maybe designated as the open space area in lieu of 
individual dwelling balcony or patio areas. If the ambient noise level exceeds the noise standards identified in the 
above categories, the maximum ambient noise level shall be the noise standard for that category. 

Note: For the purposes of the Noise Element, transportation noise sources are defined as traffic on public 
roadways, railroad line operations, and aircraft in flight. Control of noise from these sources is preempted by 
Federal and State regulations. Other noise sources are presumed to be subject to local regulations, such as a 
noise control ordinance. Non-transportation noise sources may include industrial operations, outdoor recreation 
facilities, HVAC untis, loading docks, etc. a noise control ordinance. Non transportation noise sources may 
include industrial operations, outdoor recreation facilities, HVAC units, loading docks, etc. 

 



  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-66 

Table 22.  Typical Construction Equipment Noise Levels 

Typical Construction Equipment Noise Levels 

Equipment 
Typical Noise Levels (dBa 
Lmax) 50 feet from Source 

Backhoe 80 

Compactor 82 

Dozer 85 

Grader 85 

Truck 88 

Air Compressor 81 

Concrete Pump 82 

Concrete Vibrator 76 

Crane, Mobile 83 

Generator 81 

Impact Wrench 85 

Jack Hammer 88 

Paver 89 

Pneumatic Tool 85 

Pump 76 

Roller 74 

Saw 76 

 Impact Assessment 

XIII-a) Would the project result in generation of a substantial temporary or permanent increase in 
ambient noise levels in the vicinity of the project in excess of standards established in the 
local general plan or noise ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies? 

a) Less Than Significant Impact. The project is an expansion of an existing park which would have 
athletic field improvements. Expected noise would be cheering of fans during baseball or soccer games. 
These permanent noise level increases would not be significant or obtrusive. Temporary noise would occur 
during construction. Typical construction equipment would include scrapers, backhoes, drilling rigs and 
miscellaneous equipment (i.e. pneumatic tools, generators and portable air compressors).  Noise levels 
generated by the equipment would range from 76 to 88 dBA at a distance of 50 feet from the noise source; at 
100 feet, the noise levels would range from 70 to 82 dBA.  The City of Mendota does not have a 
comprehensive noise ordinance.  The City’s nuisance ordinance only places limitations on the time of day 
during which excessive noise may be produced.  Due to the nature of construction noise and the proximity of 
the site to existing residential areas, hours of construction shall be limited to 7:00 AM to 7:00 PM on 
weekdays, and 8:00 AM to 6:00 PM on Saturdays.  



  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-67 

XIII-b) Would the project result in generation of excessive groundborne vibration or groundborne 
noise levels? 

b) Less Than Significant Impact.  Any impacts regarding the exposure of persons to or generation of 
excessive groundbourne vibration or groundbourne noise levels have been discussed in Impact XI-a. 

XIII-c) For a project located within the vicinity of a private air strip or an airport land use plan or, 
where such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use 
airport, would the project expose people residing or working in the project area to excessive 
noise levels? and, 

c) Less Than Significant Impact.  The Project is located approximately one mile west of the Mendota  
Municipal Airport in Mendota however the Project does not involve the development of habitable structures 
or require the presence of permanent staff onsite. The Fresno Yosemite International Airport is located 
approximately 36.5 miles east of the Project. Impacts would be less than significant. 



  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-68 

3.14 Population and Housing  

Table 3-23.  Population and Housing Impacts 

Population and Housing 

Would the project: 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant With 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

a) Induce substantial unplanned population growth in an 
area, either directly (for example, by proposing new 
homes and businesses) or indirectly (for example, 
through extension of roads or other infrastructure)? 

    

b) Displace substantial numbers of existing people or 
housing, necessitating the construction of replacement 
housing elsewhere? 

    

 Environmental Setting 

The City of Mendota’s population was 11,014 at the 2010 U.S. Census. The State Routes 180 and 33 run 
through the agricultural city. Mendota is located approximately 8.5 miles south-southeast of Firebaugh, at an 
elevation of 174 feet. 

 Impact Assessment 

XIV-a) Induce substantial unplanned population growth in an area, either directly (for example, by 
proposing new homes and businesses) or indirectly (for example, through extension of 
roads or other infrastructure)? 

XIV-b) Displace substantial numbers of existing people or housing, necessitating the construction 
of replacement housing elsewhere? 

a-b) No Impact. The project will provide a recreational facility for use by current and future residents of the 
Mendota area.  It is intended to implement the master plan adopted by the City in 2006 and to help the City 
meet its General Plan standards for parkland. The project will be constructed on vacant land adjacent to the 
existing park.  It will not result in the displacement of any housing. The project will not result in the 
displacement of any people.   



  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-69 

3.15 Public Services 

Table 3-24.  Public Services Impacts 

Public Services 

Would the project: 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant With 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

a) Would the project result in substantial adverse physical 
impacts associated with the provision of new or 
physically altered governmental facilities, need for new 
or physically altered governmental facilities, the 
construction of which could cause significant 
environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable 
service ratios, response times or other performance 
objectives for any of the public services: 

    

 Fire protection?     

 Police protection?     

 Schools?     

 Parks?     

 Other public facilities?     

 Environmental Setting 

Fire Protection: The Closest fire station is Fresno County Fire District, Station 96, Mendota located 
approximately 0.6 miles northeast of the project.  

 
Police Protection: The closest law enforcement is the Mendota Police Department located approximately 1.7 
miles east of the project. The next closest law enforcement is the Fresno County Sheriff’s office, San Joaquin 
located approximately 22 miles southeast of the project site.  
 

Schools: The closest school to the Project is the McCabe Elementary School located approximately 0.13 miles 
east of the project site.  

 
Parks: The closest park is the existing Rojas Pierce Park located directly adjacent to the park expansion 
project. There is also the Jess Gill Park located approximately 0.13 miles east of the project.  

Landfills: The closest landfill to the project site is the American Avenue located approximately 15 miles 
southwest.  



  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-70 

3.15.1.1 Local Regulations 

City of Mendota General Plan27: The Mendota General Plan sets forth the following goals and policies that 
pertain to public services the of the City and which have potential relevance to the Project’s CEQA review:  

• OSC-2.1 The City shall maintain a standard of 5.0 acres of developed parkland per 1,000 residents. 

• OSC-2.3 The City shall reserve and promote open space and recreational areas of varying scales and uses in Mendota. 
The provision of private and common open space shall be required for multi-family residential development projects.   

• OSC-15 New Development and Redevelopment provides open public spaces for Mendota’s residents, particularly 
downtown. 

Fresno County General Plan28: The Fresno County General Plan sets forth the following goals and policies 
regarding public services which have potential relevance to the Project’s CEQA review. 

• OS-H.5 The County shall encourage Federal, State, and local agencies currently providing recreation facilities to 
maintain, at a minimum, and improve, if possible, their current levels of service. 

• OS-H.14 The County shall encourage the development of recreation facilities in western Fresno County. 

• LU-G.1 The County acknowledges that the cities have primary responsibility for planning within their LAFCO-
adopted spheres of influence and are responsible for urban development and the provision of urban services within their 
spheres of influence. 

• LU-G.2 Fresno County shall work cooperatively with all cities of the county to encourage each city to adopt and 
maintain its respective plan consistent with the Fresno County General Plan. The County shall adopt complementary 
planning policies through a cooperative planning process to be determined by the respective legislative bodies. 

• LU-G.7 Within the spheres of influence and two (2) miles beyond, the County shall promote consultation between the 
cities and the County at the staff level in the early stages of preparing general plan amendments and other policy changes 
that may impact growth or the provision of urban services. Staff consultations, particularly concerning community plans, 
shall provide for meaningful participation in the policy formulation process and shall seek resolution of issues prior to 
presentation to the decision-making bodies. 

 Impact Assessment 

XV-a)  Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the 
provision of new or physically altered governmental facilities, need for new or physically 
altered governmental facilities, the construction of which could cause significant 
environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or 
other performance objectives for any of the public services: 

a) No Impact.  The Project would utilize existing services provided by the County of Fresno and City of 
Mendota. There would be no impact. 

Fire Protection – The City of Mendota is located in the Fresno County Fire Protection District (FCFPD).  
The project site would be served by Station 96, located approximately ½-mile north on McCabe Street.  The 
project would be required to comply with the requirements of the FCFPD regarding access, water mains, 
fireflow, hydrants, and review of engineering plans.  Standard fire suppression conditions are incorporated as 
part of the project.  Increased demands for fire service are funded almost entirely through property taxes.  
Therefore, impacts to fire protection services are considered less than significant. 

                                                      
27 City of Mendota General Plan http://ci.mendota.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/City-of-Mendota-General-Plan-Update.pdf Accessed April 17, 
2019. 
28 Fresno County General Plan. https://www.co.fresno.ca.us/home/showdocument?id=18117 Accessed April 17, 2019. 

http://ci.mendota.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/City-of-Mendota-General-Plan-Update.pdf
https://www.co.fresno.ca.us/home/showdocument?id=18117


  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-71 

Police Protection – The City of Mendota contracts with the Fresno County Sheriff’s Department for policing 
services. The project site would be served by local police located in the City of Mendota. The project includes 
fencing and security cameras to prevent vandalism, and will be patrolled by City security staff. Therefore, 
adverse impacts to police protection would be less than significant. 

Schools – The project site is within the Mendota Unified School District (MUSD), and is adjacent to McCabe 
Elementary School.  As the project consists of the development of park facilities, and would not result in the 
creation of additional housing or result in population growth, there would be no impacts to schools. 

Parks and other public facilities – The project site is located within the City of Mendota Department of Parks 
and Recreation service area.  The project consists of development of additional park facilities such as two 
additional soccer fields, a baseball diamond, covered bleachers, sports field LED lighting, a parking facility 
along Smoot Avenue, shade structures, and an additional concession stand and permanent restroom facility 
with storage room. There would be no impacts to parks and recreation except a beneficial impact for the 
expansion.  

The project’s water and sewer requirements would be served by the City of Mendota. Water usage is 
approximately 15,500 gpd average, 31,000 in summer. Solid waste is estimated at approximately 1,600 gpd (20 
gpd/parking space with 80 parking spaces) and a grinder pump and pressure sewer lateral will take the waste 
to the City sewer main.   



  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-72 

3.16 Recreation 

Table 3-25.  Recreation Impacts 

Recreation 

Would the project: 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant With 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

a) Would the project increase the use of existing 
neighborhood and regional parks or other recreational 
facilities such that substantial physical deterioration of 
the facility would occur or be accelerated? 

    

b) Does the project include recreational facilities or require 
the construction or expansion of recreational facilities 
which might have an adverse physical effect on the 
environment? 

    

 Environmental Setting 

Fresno County has several regional parks, as well as State and national parks, national forest, wilderness areas, 
and other resources. Regional recreational facilities within the County include ten developed and three 
undeveloped park sites, five fishing access areas, and boating facility. The nearest parks to the Project site are 
located within Mendota. The Rojas-Pierce Park is immediately adjacent to the east and Jess Gill Park is 
approximately 0.13 miles southeast of the Project.  
 
The Mendota General Plan calculated the amount of park and recreational land based upon the combined 
total of developed park acreage plus 50 percent of the amount of school sites that have adjoining sports 
fields. The City currently has 23 acres of existing park and recreational land. Mendota’s three primary parks 
developed for recreational use are: Veteran’s Park, Lozano-Lindgren Park, and Rojas-Pierce Park. A buffer 
along the Fresno Slough provides additional open space. Existing recreational opportunities in Mendota 
range from traditional active sports such as softball and soccer to passive recreation such as nature 
observation and simply spending time outdoors. Between these two extremes falls a range of activities 
enjoyed by many residents, including picnicking in parks, walking and bicycling, and playground activities 

3.16.1.1 Local Regulations 

City of Mendota General Plan29: The Mendota General Plan sets forth the following goals and policies that 
pertain to recreational facilities of the City and which have potential relevance to the Project’s CEQA review:  

• OSC-2.1 The City shall maintain a standard of 5.0 acres of developed parkland per 1,000 residents. 

• OSC-2.3 The City shall reserve and promote open space and recreational areas of varying scales and uses in Mendota. 
The provision of private and common open space shall be required for multi-family residential development projects.   

                                                      
29 City of Mendota General Plan http://ci.mendota.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/City-of-Mendota-General-Plan-Update.pdf Accessed April 17, 
2019. 

http://ci.mendota.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/City-of-Mendota-General-Plan-Update.pdf


  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-73 

Fresno County General Plan30: The Fresno County General Plan sets forth the following goals and policies 
regarding recreation which have potential relevance to the Project’s CEQA review. 

• OS-H.5 The County shall encourage Federal, State, and local agencies currently providing recreation facilities to 
maintain, at a minimum, and improve, if possible, their current levels of service. 

• OS-H.14 The County shall encourage the development of recreation facilities in western Fresno County. 

 Impact Assessment 

XVI-a) Would the project increase the use of existing neighborhood and regional parks or other 
recreational facilities such that substantial physical deterioration of the facility would occur 
or be accelerated? 

XVI-b) Does the project include recreational facilities or require the construction or expansion of 
recreational facilities which might have an adverse physical effect on the environment? 

a-b) Less Than Significant Impact. The project consists of development of new and expanded park 
facilities. Phase I of the project, completed in October 2008, involved the demolition and removal of nearly 
all onsite facilities within the original 12-acre park site and subsequent construction of new facilities. The new 
10-acre expansion of land adjacent to the existing park will receive two additional soccer fields, a baseball 
diamond, sports field LED lighting, a parking facility along Smoot Avenue, shade structures, and an 
additional concession stand and permanent restroom facility with storage room. The project will provide a 
high-quality, easily-accessible recreational venue for the residents of Mendota and the surrounding area. The 
site will be maintained by City public works crews and waste is collected by Mid Valley Disposal. 

                                                      
30 Fresno County General Plan. https://www.co.fresno.ca.us/home/showdocument?id=18117 Accessed April 17, 2019. 

https://www.co.fresno.ca.us/home/showdocument?id=18117


  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-74 

3.17 Transportation 

Table 3-26.  Transportation/Traffic Impacts 

Transportation/Traffic 

Would the project: 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant With 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

a) Conflict with a program plan, ordinance or policy 
addressing the circulation system, including transit, 
roadway, bicycle and pedestrian facilities? 

    

b) Would the project conflict or be inconsistent with CEQA 
Guidelines section 15064.3, subdivision (b)? 

    

c) Substantially increase hazards due to a design feature 
(e.g., sharp curves or dangerous intersections) or 
incompatible uses (e.g., farm equipment)? 

    

d) Result in inadequate emergency access?     

 Environmental Setting 

The City of Mendota is a small rural community in western Fresno County. The City is located west of 
Fresno and east of I5. SR 180/Oller Street runs east-west and is approximately 2,600 feet north east of the 
park. SR 33/Derrick Avenue runs north-south and is approximately 1,300 feet east of the park.. Both of these 
routes provide a transportation corridors for residents of Mendota and farmers in the area 
 
Pedestrian and vehicular access to the park is from Sorensen Avenue and Smoot Avenue. The project will 
provide additional vehicular and pedestrian access from Amador Street, replacing an unpaved, unofficial dirt 
access from the west. 

3.17.1.1 Local Regulations 

City of Mendota General Plan31: The Mendota General Plan sets forth the following goals and policies that 
pertain to transportation facilities of the City and which have potential relevance to the Project’s CEQA 
review:  

• C-1.3 Develop a circulation network of local roads, minor collectors, major collectors, minor arterials that will meet 
projected traffic needs. 

• C-2.2 The City shall maintain safe and efficient circulation routes for safety and emergency purposes. Coordinate the 
City’s evacuation routes with state and county government plans. 

• C-3.2 Explore opportunities to install bicycle and pedestrian paths that provide connections to surrounding 
neighborhoods, parks, and open space areas.  

• C-3.3 Emphasize use of pedestrian pathways and sidewalks as an integral part of the City’s circulation system.  

• C-3.4 development to incorporate design features that make walking, cycling, and other forms of non-motorized 
transportation more convenient and attractive. Facilities for bicycles and pedestrians, including bike racks, should be 

                                                      
31 City of Mendota General Plan http://ci.mendota.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/City-of-Mendota-General-Plan-Update.pdf Accessed April 17, 
2019. 

http://ci.mendota.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/City-of-Mendota-General-Plan-Update.pdf


  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-75 

provided within new employment areas, shopping destinations, multi-modal transportation facilities, and community 
facilities. 

• C-4.2 Ensure that noise emissions generated by transportation modes do not exceed acceptable noise standards in 
various land use areas.  

• C-8 Provide safe, convenient, and adequate parking for land uses throughout the City. 

 Impact Assessment 

XVII-a) Would the project conflict with a plan, ordinance or policy addressing the circulation 
system, including transit, roadway, bicycle and pedestrian facilities? 

XVII-b) Would the project conflict or be inconsistent with CEQA Guidelines section 150643. 
Subdivision (b)? 

a-b) Less Than Significant Impact.  The total number of vehicle trips expected to be generated by the 
expansion are listed in the table below. This is well within the capacity of the local street system adjacent to 
and surrounding the project site. The number of vehicles trips anticipated as a result of the project will not 
significantly impact any of the subject roads or highways.  
 
The existing 12-acre park has one baseball diamond and one informal soccer field in addition to a skate park, 
a seasonal splash park, three full basketball courts, a large pavilion, barbeque pits, two play structures, grassy 
open space and off-street parking. The project will replace the existing informal soccer field with an 
additional baseball diamond and add two formal soccer fields to the west of the baseball diamonds along with 
80 on-street parking stalls off Smoot Avenue.  Based on ITE Trip Generation report (9th Edition), both City 
Parks and Soccer Complexes have a wide variation in number of trips generated per acres or per field, 
respectively. The following table provides ranges of trips generated by the existing park and the project’s 
proposed expansion. The fields host local sports teams and events throughout the year; quantifying visitors 
associated with these potential events would be speculative. 

Table 3-27.  Trip Generation 

Ranges of Trips Based on ITE Variables 

Description Acres Soccer 
Fields 

Trips Based on 
Acres 

Trips Based on 

Soccer Fields 

Existing Park 11.9 + 2.5 
informal 

soccer field 

1 Weekday: 27 

Sunday: 230 

Weekday: 71 

Saturday: 117 

Project’s Net 
Expansion 

7.5 1 Weekday: 14 

Sunday: 120 

Weekday: 71 

Saturday: 117 

Total:  21.9 2 Weekday: 41 

Sunday: 350 

Weekday: 143 

Saturday: 235 

 
The existing park has approximately 44 off-street parking spaces for visitors on the paved lot at the corner of 
Smoot Avenue and Sorensen Avenue and an additional 15 on-street parking spaces off Smoot Avenue near 
the existing baseball diamond. The project will add approximately 80 on-street parking spaces including four 
ADA complaint spaces off the extension of Smoot Avenue. 



  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-76 

XVII-c) Substantially increase hazards due to a design feature (e.g., sharp curves or dangerous 
intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g., farm equipment)? 

c) No Impact. Roadway improvements to Smoot and Amador will extend their existing alignment and 
improve circulation in the project area. There will not be a negative impact.  

XVII-d) Result in inadequate emergency access? 

d) No Impact. Smoot Avenue will be fully improved to City local street standards (60-foot right-of-way) 
along the parcel frontage.  The eastern half of Amador Street will be improved to City arterial street standards 
(84-foot right-of-way) extending from the residential development to the north to the Smoot Avenue 
extension. This will complete the circulation system in the area and improve existing inadequate emergency 
access to the streets and residences in the project area.



  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-77 

3.18 Tribal Cultural Resources 

Table 3-28.  Tribal Cultural Resources Impacts 

Tribal Cultural Resources 

Would the project: 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant With 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance 
of a tribal cultural resource, defined in Public 
Resources Code section 21074 as either a site, 
feature, place, cultural landscape that is geographically 
defined in terms of the size and scope of the 
landscape, sacred place, or object with cultural value to 
a California Native American tribe, and that is: 

    

i. Listed or eligible for listing in the California 
Register of Historical Resources, or in a local 
register of historical resources as defined in 
Public Resources Code section 5020.1(k), or 

    

ii. A resource determined by the lead agency, in 
its discretion and supported by substantial 
evidence, to be significant pursuant to criteria 
set forth in subdivision (c) of Public 
Resources Code Section 5024.1, the lead 
agency shall consider the significance of the 
resource to a California Native American 
tribe. 

    

 Environmental Setting 

3.18.1.1 Regional Setting 

Penutian-speaking Yokuts tribal groups occupied the southern San Joaquin Valley region and much of the 
nearby Sierra Nevada. For a variety of historical reasons, existing research information emphasizes the central 
Yokuts tribes who occupied both the valley and particularly the foothills of the Sierra Nevada mountains.  
 
Although population estimates vary and population size was greatly affected by the introduction of Euro-
American diseases and social disruption, the Yokuts were one of the largest, most successful groups in Native 
California. Cook estimates that the Yokuts region contained 27 percent of the aboriginal population in the 
state at the time of contact; other estimates are even higher. Many Yokut descendants continue to live in 
Fresno County, either on tribal reservations, or in local towns and communities. 

 Impact Assessment 

XVIII-a)  Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a tribal cultural resource, defined 
in Public Resources Code section 21074 as either a site, feature, place, cultural landscape 



  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-78 

that is geographically defined in terms of the size and scope of the landscape, sacred 
place, or object with cultural value to a California Native American tribe, and that is: 

XVIII-a-i)  Listed or eligible for listing in the California Register of Historical Resources, or in a local register of 
historical resources as defined in Public Resources Code section 5020.1(k) 

XVIII-a-ii)  A resource determined by the lead agency, in its discretion and supported by substantial evidence, to be 
significant pursuant to criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public Resources Code Section 5024.1, the 
lead agency shall consider the significance of the resource to a California Native American tribe. 

a-i-a-ii) Less than Significant Impact with Mitigation Incorporated. The City of Mendota received a 
formal request for notification from the Santa Rosa Rancheria Tachi Tribe on August 8, 2016, pursuant to 
AB52. The City sent a letter April 4, 2019 in response and no further communication has been received.  
 
 A records search was conducted at the Southern San Joaquin Valley Archaeological Information Center, 
California State University, Bakersfield on March 26, 2019 and no recorded cultural resources have been 
recorded within the project area or half mile radius. A record search of the Native American Heritage 
Commission (NAHC) Sacred Lands File was also conducted on March 19, 2019 which resulted in a 
declaration that no sacred sites or tribal cultural resources are known to exist within the Project site or in the 
vicinity. 

In addition to the record search of the Sacred Lands File, NAHC provided a list of 13 local Native American 
Tribal contacts, representing 10 different Native American Tribes who may have knowledge of cultural 
resources in the vicinity or general interest in the Project. The following 13 Tribal contacts were 
communicated with in writing via U.S. Mail with a letter dated March 19, 2019 informing them of the 
Proposed Project.  
 

1. Big Sandy Rancheria of Western Mono Indians, Auberry, Chairperson 
2. Cold Springs Rancheria, Tollhouse, Chairperson 
3. Dumna Wo-Wah Tribal Government, Fresno, Chairperson 
4. Dunlap Band of Mono Indians, Dunlap, Tribal Chair 
5. Dunlap Band of Mono Indians, Fresno, Tribal Secretary 
6. Kings River Choinumni Farm Tribe, Fresno,  
7. North Fork Mono Tribe, Clovis, Chairperson 
8. Santa Rosa Rancheria Tachi Yokut Tribe, Lemoore, Chairperson 
9. Table Mountain Rancheria, Friant, Chairperson 
10. Table Mountain Rancheria, Friant, Cultural Resources Director 
11. Traditional Choinumni Tribe, Fresno, Chairperson 
12. Traditional Choinumni Tribe, Fresno, Cultural Resources 
13. Wuksache Indian Tribe/Eshom Valley Band, Salinas, Chairperson 

 
No comments were received in response to the letters. A copy of Tribal correspondence can be found within 
the Cultural Information (Appendix C). 
 
Mitigation Measures CUL-1 and CUL-2, described above in Section 3.5, are required in the event cultural 
materials or human remains are unearthed during grading or construction.



  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-79 

3.19 Utilities and Service Systems 

Table 3-29.  Utilities and Service Systems Impacts 

Utilities and Service Systems 

Would the project: 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant With 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

a) Require or result in the relocation or construction of 
new or expanded water, wastewater treatment or storm 
water drainage, electric power, natural gas, or 
telecommunications facilities, the construction or 
relocation of which could cause significant 
environmental effects? 

    

b) Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the 
project and reasonably foreseeable future development 
during normal, dry and multiple dry years? 

    

c) Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment 
provider which serves or may serve the project that it 
has adequate capacity to serve the project’s projected 
demand in addition to the provider’s existing 
commitments? 

    

d) Generate solid waste in excess of State or local 
standards, or in excess of the capacity of local 
infrastructure, or otherwise impair the attainment of 
solid waste reductions goals? 

    

e) Comply with federal, state, and local management and 
reduction statutes and regulations related to solid 
waste? 

    

 Environmental Setting 

The Project is located within the Mowry Lake-Fresno Slough watershed; Hydrologic Unit Code (HUC): 
180300091003 (EPA, 2019), approximately 2.5 miles southwest of the Mendota Pool at the confluence of the 
San Joaquin River and the Fresno Slough. and 7 miles east of Panoche Creek. The San Joaquin River, Fresno 
Slough, and Mendota Pool have been levied and much of the surrounding land is now intensively cultivated 
for agricultural production. Historically, the Mendota area supported large areas of riparian wetlands and 
important waterfowl habitat. Due to alteration of the aquatic features in the vicinity and the conversion of 
natural habitat to agricultural lands, the riparian habitat is now limited to the margins of these waterways and 
to undisturbed areas within ecological reserves, managed wildlife areas, and national wildlife refuges.   
 
The City of Mendota’s Public Utilities Department’s mission is to deliver potable water to the residents of 
Mendota and provide sewer services for the disposal of wastewater. The City of Mendota water supply wells 
are located northeast of the city limits.  These wells produce approximately 3,100 gallons per minute (GPM) 
or 4.5 million gallons per day (MGD).  Peak summer water usage is approximately 2.8 MGD for the City.  
 
 



  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-80 

The City’s primary water supply currently comes from three water wells located northeast of the city on 
private property. The City’s wastewater treatment plant has been in operation since 1974 and is located 
northeast of the city.  

3.19.1.1 Water Supply 

Rojas Pierce Park is connected to the City of Mendota’s existing water supply system.  

3.19.1.2 Wastewater Collection and Treatment 

 Rojas Pierce Park is connected to the City of Mendota’s existing sewer system.  

3.19.1.3 Landfills 

The City of Mendota is served by the American Avenue Landfill which is located approximately 15 miles 
southwest of the Project site.  

 Impact Assessment 

XIX-a) Require or result in the construction of new water or wastewater treatment facilities or 
expansion of existing facilities, the construction of which could cause significant 
environmental effects? 

a) Less Than Significant Impact.  The proposed park expansion includes the construction of one 
permanent restroom facility which includes two unisex bathrooms, a storage room, and drinking fountain. 
Approximately 1,600 gpd (20 gpd/parking space) of wastewater for 80 parking spaces is estimated. A grinder 
pump will break down solids before pumping to the City sewer main. Impacts would be less than significant.  

XIX -b) Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project and reasonably foreseeable 
future development during normal, dry and multiple dry years? 

b) Less Than Significant Impact.  The majority of water will be used for irrigation, with a lesser amount 
attributed to restroom facilities and the time-metered splash park (which will only operate from May-
September).  As discussed, the City’s water supply system is capable of generating approximately 4.5 million 
gallons per day (MGD).  Peak summer usage is approximately 2.8 MGD.  It is estimated that the proposed 
park expansion will require approximately 15,500 GPD average, 31,000 GPD in summer. Impacts would be 
less than significant.  

XIX -c) Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment provider which serves or may serve 
the project that it has adequate capacity to serve the project’s projected demand in addition 
to the provider’s existing commitments? 

c) No Impact.  See discussion under XIX-a).   

XIX -d) Would the project generate solid waste in excess of State or local standards, or in excess of 
the capacity of local infrastructure, or otherwise impair the attainment of solid waste 
reduction goals? 

d) Less Than Significant Impact.  The project site will be served by the American Avenue landfill, 
operated by the County of Fresno, approximately 15 miles southwest, which has sufficient capacity to operate 
through 2031.  



  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-81 

XIX -e) Comply with federal, state, and local management and reduction statutes and regulations 
related to solid waste? 

e) No Impact.  The project will comply with all regulations related to the generation, storage, and disposal of 
solid waste. 



  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-82 

3.20 Wildfire 

Table 3-30.  Wildfire Impacts 

Wildfire 

If located in or near state responsibility areas or lands 
classified as very high fire hazard severity zones, would 

the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant With 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

a) Substantially impair an adopted emergency response 
plan or emergency evacuation plan? 

    

b) Due to slope, prevailing winds, and other factors, 
exacerbate wildfire risks, and thereby expose project 
occupants to pollutant concentrations from a wildfire or 
the uncontrollable spread of wildfire? 

    

c) Require the installation or maintenance of associated 
infrastructure (such as roads, fuel breaks, emergency 
water sources, power lines or other utilities) that may 
exacerbate fire risk or that may result in temporary or 
ongoing impacts to the environment? 

    

d) Expose people or structures to significant risks, 
including downslope or downstream flooding or 
landslides, as a result of runoff, post-fire slope 
instability, or drainage changes? 

    

 Environmental Setting 

The Project is located in Fresno County adjacent to the existing Rojas Pierce Park in the City of Mendota. 
The Project site is in a flat urbanized area of the Central San Joaquin Valley. The project is not located in or 
near state responsibility areas or lands classified as very high fire hazard severity zones.  Construction will 
complete the traffic circulation system in the area by improving Smoot and Amador Avenues. Additionally 
the expansion of 10 acres to the existing 12 acre park will improve the park’s interior pedestrian circulation 
system and recreational capabilities for the area.    



  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-83 

 Impact Assessment 

XX-a) Would the project substantially impair an adopted emergency response plan or emergency 
evacuation plan? 

XX-b) Would the project, due to slope, prevailing winds, or other factors exacerbate wildfire risks, 
and thereby expose project occupants to pollutant concentrations from wildfire or the 
uncontrolled spread of wildfire? 

XX-c) Would the project Require the installation or maintenance of associated infrastructure (such 
as roads, fuel breaks, emergency water sources, power lines or other utilities) that may 
exacerbate fire risk or that may result in temporary or ongoing impacts to the environment? 

XX-d) Expose people or structures to significant risks, including downslope or downstream 
flooding or landslides, as a result of runoff, post-fire slope instability, or drainage changes? 

a-d) No Impact. The Project is not located in or near state responsibility areas or lands classified as very 
high fire hazard severity zones. The nearest State Responsibility Area (SRA) is approximately 14.5 miles 
southwest of the Project site. Additionally, the site is approximately 21 miles from the nearest Very High 
classification of Fire Hazard Severity Zone (FHSZ). The project will not impair an emergency response plan 
or exacerbate fire risks. Therefore, further analysis of the Projects potential impacts to wildfire are not 
warranted.  There would be no impacts. 



  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-84 

3.21 CEQA Mandatory Findings of Significance 

Table 3-31.  Mandatory Findings of Significance Impacts 

Mandatory Findings of Significance 

Would the project: 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant With 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

a) Does the project have the potential to substantially 
degrade the quality of the environment, substantially 
reduce the habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a 
fish or wildlife population to drop below self-sustaining 
levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or animal 
community, substantially reduce the number or restrict 
the range of a rare or endangered plant or animal or 
eliminate important examples of the major periods of 
California history or prehistory? 

    

b) Does the project have impacts that are individually 
limited, but cumulatively considerable?  (“Cumulatively 
considerable” means that the incremental effects of a 
project are considerable when viewed in connection 
with the effects of past projects, the effects of other 
current projects, and the effects of probable future 
projects)? 

    

c) Does the project have environmental effects which will 
cause substantial adverse effects on human beings, 
either directly or indirectly? 

    

 Impact Assessment 

XXI-a) Does the project have the potential to substantially degrade the quality of the environment, 
substantially reduce the habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife 
population to drop below self-sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or animal 
community, substantially reduce the number or restrict the range of a rare or endangered 
plant or animal or eliminate important examples of the major periods of California history or 
prehistory? 

a) Less Than Significant Impact with Mitigation Incorporated.  The analysis conducted in this Initial 
Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration results in a determination that the Project, with incorporation of 
mitigation measures, will have a less than significant effect on the environment. The potential for impacts to 
biological resources and cultural resources from the implementation of the proposed Project will be less than 
significant with the incorporation of the mitigation measures discussed in Chapter 4, Mitigation 
Monitoring and Reporting Program. Accordingly, the proposed Project will involve no potential for 
significant impacts through the degradation of the quality of the environment, the reduction in the habitat or 
population of fish or wildlife, including endangered plants or animals, the elimination of a plant or animal 
community or example of a major period of California history or prehistory.   



  Chapter Three:  Impact Analysis 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  3-85 

XXI -b) Does the project have impacts that are individually limited, but cumulatively considerable?  
(“Cumulatively considerable” means that the incremental effects of a project are 
considerable when viewed in connection with the effects of past projects, the effects of 
other current projects, and the effects of probable future projects)?  

b) Less Than Significant Impact. CEQA Guidelines Section 15064(i) States that a Lead Agency shall 
consider whether the cumulative impact of a project is significant and whether the effects of the project are 
cumulatively considerable. The assessment of the significance of the cumulative effects of a project must, 
therefore, be conducted in connection with the effects of past projects, other current projects, and probable 
future projects.  The proposed Project would continue the master planned park facilities commissioned by 
the Mendota City Council in 2006.  Phase I of the project, completed in October 2008, involved the 
demolition and removal of nearly all onsite facilities within the original 12-acre park site and subsequent 
construction of new facilities.   
 
The new 10-acre expansion to the existing park will receive two additional soccer fields, and a baseball 
diamond and other park improvements. Smoot Avenue will be fully improved to City local street standards 
along the parcel frontage.  The eastern half of Amador Street will be improved to City arterial street standards 
extending from the residential development to the north to the Smoot Avenue extension. This will complete 
the circulation system in the area.  On-street parking will be constructed adjacent to Smoot Avenue, 
providing approximately 80 additional on-street parking spaces.  The development activities also include 
installation of turf and trees, and continuation of the park’s interior pedestrian circulation system.   
 
The park expansion will increase the recreational opportunities for the residents of Mendota and this project’s 
road improvements will improve traffic circulation and parking in the area. Implementation of the Project 
would not result in significant cumulative impacts and all potential impacts would be reduced to less than 
significant through the implementation of mitigation measures and basic regulatory requirements 
incorporated into the Project design. 

XXI -c) Does the project have environmental effects which will cause substantial adverse effects on 
human beings, either directly or indirectly? 

c) Less than Significant Impact. The proposed Project would include the expansion of an existing public 
park. The proposed Project in and of itself would not create a significant hazard to the public or the 
environment. Implementation of the Project would provide a high-quality, easily-accessible recreational venue 
for the residents of Mendota and the surrounding area. Construction-related air quality/dust exposure 
impacts could occur temporarily as a result of project construction. However, implementation of basic 
regulatory requirements identified in this IS/MND would ensure that impacts are less than significant.  
Therefore, the proposed Project would not have any direct or indirect adverse impacts on humans.  This 
impact would be less than significant. 



 Chapter Four:  Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019  4-1 

4 Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting 
Program 

This Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) has been formulated based upon the findings of 
the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND) for the City of Mendota Rojas Pierce Park 
Expansion Project (Project) in the County of Fresno.  The MMRP lists mitigation measures recommended in 
the IS/MND for the Project and identifies monitoring and reporting requirements.  
 
Table 4-1 presents the mitigation measures identified for the proposed Project. Each mitigation measure is 
numbered with a symbol indicating the topical section to which it pertains, a hyphen, and the impact number. 
For example, AIR-2 would be the second mitigation measure identified in the Air Quality analysis of the 
IS/MND.  
 
The first column of Table 4-1 identifies the mitigation measure. The second column, entitled “When 
Monitoring is to Occur,” identifies the time the mitigation measure should be initiated. The third column, 
“Frequency of Monitoring,” identifies the frequency of the monitoring of the mitigation measure. The fourth 
column, “Agency Responsible for Monitoring,” names the party ultimately responsible for ensuring that the 
mitigation measure is implemented. The last columns will be used by the City to ensure that individual 
mitigation measures have been complied with and monitored.



 Chapter Four:  Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019     4-2 

Table 4-1.  Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation Measure/Condition of Approval 
When Monitoring is 

to Occur 
Frequency of 

Monitoring 
Agency Responsible 

for Monitoring 

Method to 
Verify 

Compliance 

Verification 
of 

Compliance 

Biological Resources 

Mitigation Measure BIO-1: Construction Hours  

Construction activities shall be limited to daylight hours to reduce potential impacts to 
special status bats that could be foraging onsite. 

During construction 
activities 

Daily, during 
construction 
activities 

City of Mendota  
  

Mitigation Measure BIO-2a: Avoidance of Nesting Bird Season 

The Project’s construction activities shall occur, if feasible, between September 16 
and January 31 (outside of nesting bird season) in an effort to avoid impacts to 
nesting birds. 

During construction 
activities 

Daily, during 
construction 
activities 

City of Mendota   

Mitigation Measure BIO-2b: Pre-Construction Nesting Bird Survey 

If activities must occur within nesting bird season (February 1 to September 15), a 
qualified biologist shall conduct pre-construction surveys for active nests within 30 
days prior to the start of construction. The survey shall include the proposed work area 
and surrounding lands within 0.5 mile. If no active nests are observed, no further 
mitigation is required. Raptor nests are considered “active” upon the nest-building 
stage.   

Within 30 days prior to 
the start of work 
performed from 
February 1 to 
September 15 

Once City of Mendota   

Mitigation Measure BIO-2c: Establish Nest Buffers 

On discovery of any active nests near work areas, the biologist shall determine 
appropriate construction setback distances based on applicable CDFW and/or 
USFWS guidelines and/or the biology of the species in question. Construction buffers 
shall be identified with flagging, fencing, or other easily visible means, and shall be 
maintained until the biologist has determined that the nestlings have fledged. 

On discovery of active 
nests 

Once, per nest, or 
more frequently 
as determined by 
biologist 

City of Mendota   



 Chapter Four:  Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019     4-3 

Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation Measure/Condition of Approval 
When Monitoring is 

to Occur 
Frequency of 

Monitoring 
Agency Responsible 

for Monitoring 

Method to 
Verify 

Compliance 

Verification 
of 

Compliance 

Cultural Resources 

Mitigation Measure CUL-1: Archaeological Resources 

In the event that archaeological resources are encountered at any time during 
development or ground-moving activities within the entire project area, all work in the 
vicinity of the find shall halt until a qualified archaeologist can assess the discovery. 
The District shall implement all recommendations of the archaeologist necessary to 
avoid or reduce to a less than significant level potential impacts to cultural 
resource.  Appropriate actions could include a Data Recovery Plan or preservation in 
place. 

In the event 
archaeological 
resources are 
uncovered 

During excavation City of Mendota   

Mitigation Measure CUL-2: Human Remains 

If human remains are uncovered, or in any other case when human remains are 
discovered during construction, the Fresno County Coroner is to be notified to 
arrange proper treatment and disposition. If the remains are identified—on the basis 
of archaeological context, age, cultural associations, or biological traits—as those of a 
Native American, California Health and Safety Code 7050.5 and Public Resource 
Code 5097.98 require that the coroner notify the NAHC within 24 hours of discovery. 
The NAHC will then identify the Most Likely Descendent who will determine the 
manner in which the remains are treated. 

In the event human 
remains are 
uncovered 

During excavation City of Mendota   

Geological Resources 

Mitigation Measure – GEO – 1: Paleontological Resources      

Should paleontological resources be encountered on the Project site, all ground 
disturbing activities in the area shall stop. A qualified paleontologist shall be contacted 
to assess the discovery. Mitigation may include monitoring, recording the fossil 
locality, data recovery and analysis, a final report. Public educational outreach may 
also be appropriate. Upon completion of the assessment, a report documenting 
methods, findings, and recommendations shall be prepared and submitted to the City 
of Mendota for review, and (if paleontological materials are recovered) a 
paleontological repository, such as the University of California Museum of 
Paleontology. 

In the event 
paleontological 
resources are 
uncovered 

During excavation City of Mendota   



Chapter Five:  References 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019   5-1 

5 References 
List of Sources, Agencies and Persons Consulted:  
 
AB-52 Native Americans: California Environmental Quality Act 
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201320140AB52  
 
California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle) website: 
http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/ 
 
California Department of Toxic Substances Control website: 
http://www.envirostor.dtsc.ca.gov/public/  
 
California Department of Conservation's Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program 
https://maps.conservation.ca.gov/  
 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife: https://www.wildlife.ca.gov/Data/CNDDB  
 
California Emissions Estimator Model (CalEEMod), version 2013.2.2 
 
California State Water Resources Control Board website: http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/ and 
http://www.swrcb.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/stormwater/construction.shtml 
 
Caltrans http://www.dot.ca.gov/design/lap/livability/scenic-highways/index.html 
 
Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), Flood Map Service Center website: 
http://msc.fema.gov/portal 
 
Google Earth: https://www.google.com/earth/ 
 
Native American Heritage Commission  http://nahc.ca.gov/  
 
San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District http://www.valleyair.org/aqinfo/attainment.htm  
 
State Water Resources Control Board, GeoTracker http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/  
 
U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service National Wetlands Inventor: https://www.fws.gov/wetlands/  

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201320140AB52
http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/
http://www.envirostor.dtsc.ca.gov/public/
https://maps.conservation.ca.gov/
https://www.wildlife.ca.gov/Data/CNDDB
http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/
http://www.swrcb.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/stormwater/construction.shtml
http://msc.fema.gov/portal
https://www.google.com/earth/
http://nahc.ca.gov/
http://www.valleyair.org/aqinfo/attainment.htm
http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/
https://www.fws.gov/wetlands/


Chapter Six:  List of Preparers 

Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019   6-1 

6 List of Preparers 
 
 
The following firms, individuals, and agency staff contributed to the preparation of this 
document: 
 
 
 
 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group:  
Briza Sholars – Project Manager/Senior Planner  

Michael Osborn, Civil Engineer 
Jeffrey O’Neal, AICP, QA/QC 

Trevor Stearns – GIS/ Assistant Planner 
Brooke Fletcher – Biologist 

Jackie Lancaster – Administrative Support  
 
 

 



 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019   Appendix A-1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix A 
Air Quality and Greenhouse Gas Emissions Evaluation Report 



Project Characteristics - 

Land Use - 

Construction Phase - Construction estimated to take 8 months to complete.

Off-road Equipment - Equipment based on project description

Trips and VMT - 

Demolition - Estimated 10,000 CY of dirt imported/exported = 13,5000 tons.

Grading - 15 acre APE.

Construction Off-road Equipment Mitigation - 

1.1 Land Usage

Land Uses Size Metric Lot Acreage Floor Surface Area Population

City Park 15.00 Acre 15.00 653,400.00 0

1.2 Other Project Characteristics

Urbanization

Climate Zone

Urban

3

Wind Speed (m/s) Precipitation Freq (Days)2.2 45

1.3 User Entered Comments & Non-Default Data

1.0 Project Characteristics

Utility Company Pacific Gas & Electric Company

2020Operational Year

CO2 Intensity 
(lb/MWhr)

641.35 0.029CH4 Intensity 
(lb/MWhr)

0.006N2O Intensity 
(lb/MWhr)

City of Mendota- Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project
Fresno County, Annual

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 4/30/2019 1:43 PMPage 1 of 33

City of Mendota- Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project - Fresno County, Annual



Table Name Column Name Default Value New Value

tblAreaCoating Area_EF_Parking 150 0

tblAreaCoating Area_Nonresidential_Exterior 750 0

tblAreaCoating Area_Nonresidential_Interior 2250 0

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 20.00 25.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 300.00 25.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 20.00 25.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 30.00 25.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 20.00 25.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 10.00 25.00

tblFleetMix HHD 0.12 0.00

tblFleetMix LDA 0.48 0.00

tblFleetMix LDT1 0.03 0.00

tblFleetMix LDT2 0.17 0.00

tblFleetMix LHD1 0.02 0.00

tblFleetMix LHD2 4.9970e-003 0.00

tblFleetMix MCY 5.2610e-003 0.00

tblFleetMix MDV 0.13 0.00

tblFleetMix MH 6.6700e-004 0.00

tblFleetMix MHD 0.03 0.00

tblFleetMix OBUS 2.3690e-003 0.00

tblFleetMix SBUS 1.1150e-003 0.00

tblFleetMix UBUS 1.6750e-003 0.00

tblGrading AcresOfGrading 62.50 15.00

tblGrading AcresOfGrading 12.50 15.00

tblOffRoadEquipment HorsePower 231.00 226.00

tblOffRoadEquipment HorsePower 130.00 125.00

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 4/30/2019 1:43 PMPage 2 of 33

City of Mendota- Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project - Fresno County, Annual



2.0 Emissions Summary

tblOffRoadEquipment HorsePower 247.00 255.00

tblOffRoadEquipment HorsePower 247.00 255.00

tblOffRoadEquipment HorsePower 187.00 174.00

tblOffRoadEquipment OffRoadEquipmentUnitAmount 3.00 2.00

tblOffRoadEquipment OffRoadEquipmentUnitAmount 2.00 1.00

tblOffRoadEquipment OffRoadEquipmentUnitAmount 2.00 1.00

tblOffRoadEquipment OffRoadEquipmentUnitAmount 2.00 1.00

tblOffRoadEquipment OffRoadEquipmentUnitAmount 3.00 2.00

tblOffRoadEquipment OffRoadEquipmentUnitAmount 4.00 1.00

tblOffRoadEquipment UsageHours 7.00 4.00

tblOffRoadEquipment UsageHours 8.00 6.00

tblOffRoadEquipment UsageHours 8.00 7.00

tblOffRoadEquipment UsageHours 8.00 7.00

tblOffRoadEquipment UsageHours 8.00 6.00

tblOffRoadEquipment UsageHours 8.00 1.00

tblOffRoadEquipment UsageHours 7.00 8.00

tblOffRoadEquipment UsageHours 8.00 6.00

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 4/30/2019 1:43 PMPage 3 of 33

City of Mendota- Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project - Fresno County, Annual



2.1 Overall Construction

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Year tons/yr MT/yr

2019 0.1668 1.8382 1.1429 2.6300e-
003

0.4300 0.0771 0.5071 0.1622 0.0716 0.2339 0.0000 239.1195 239.1195 0.0514 0.0000 240.4052

2020 0.0531 0.3474 0.3478 8.2000e-
004

0.0266 0.0148 0.0414 7.1900e-
003

0.0139 0.0211 0.0000 72.8988 72.8988 0.0118 0.0000 73.1941

Maximum 0.1668 1.8382 1.1429 2.6300e-
003

0.4300 0.0771 0.5071 0.1622 0.0716 0.2339 0.0000 239.1195 239.1195 0.0514 0.0000 240.4052

Unmitigated Construction

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Year tons/yr MT/yr

2019 0.1668 1.8382 1.1429 2.6300e-
003

0.2124 0.0771 0.2895 0.0782 0.0716 0.1498 0.0000 239.1193 239.1193 0.0514 0.0000 240.4050

2020 0.0531 0.3474 0.3478 8.2000e-
004

0.0266 0.0148 0.0414 7.1900e-
003

0.0139 0.0211 0.0000 72.8987 72.8987 0.0118 0.0000 73.1941

Maximum 0.1668 1.8382 1.1429 2.6300e-
003

0.2124 0.0771 0.2895 0.0782 0.0716 0.1498 0.0000 239.1193 239.1193 0.0514 0.0000 240.4050

Mitigated Construction

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio-CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N20 CO2e

Percent 
Reduction

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 47.65 0.00 39.66 49.63 0.00 32.98 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 4/30/2019 1:43 PMPage 4 of 33

City of Mendota- Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project - Fresno County, Annual



2.2 Overall Operational

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Area 0.0120 0.0000 1.4000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 2.7000e-
004

2.7000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 2.9000e-
004

Energy 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Mobile 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0717 0.0000 0.0717 0.0176 0.0000 0.0176 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Waste 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.2619 0.0000 0.2619 0.0155 0.0000 0.6487

Water 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 18.1973 18.1973 8.2000e-
004

1.7000e-
004

18.2686

Total 0.0120 0.0000 1.4000e-
004

0.0000 0.0717 0.0000 0.0717 0.0176 0.0000 0.0176 0.2619 18.1976 18.4595 0.0163 1.7000e-
004

18.9177

Unmitigated Operational

Quarter Start Date End Date Maximum Unmitigated ROG + NOX (tons/quarter) Maximum Mitigated ROG + NOX (tons/quarter)

1 9-2-2019 12-1-2019 1.4775 1.4775

2 12-2-2019 3-1-2020 0.7594 0.7594

3 3-2-2020 6-1-2020 0.0295 0.0295

Highest 1.4775 1.4775

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 4/30/2019 1:43 PMPage 5 of 33

City of Mendota- Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project - Fresno County, Annual



2.2 Overall Operational

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Area 0.0120 0.0000 1.4000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 2.7000e-
004

2.7000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 2.9000e-
004

Energy 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Mobile 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0717 0.0000 0.0717 0.0176 0.0000 0.0176 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Waste 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.2619 0.0000 0.2619 0.0155 0.0000 0.6487

Water 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 18.1973 18.1973 8.2000e-
004

1.7000e-
004

18.2686

Total 0.0120 0.0000 1.4000e-
004

0.0000 0.0717 0.0000 0.0717 0.0176 0.0000 0.0176 0.2619 18.1976 18.4595 0.0163 1.7000e-
004

18.9177

Mitigated Operational

3.0 Construction Detail

Construction Phase

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio-CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N20 CO2e

Percent 
Reduction

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 4/30/2019 1:43 PMPage 6 of 33

City of Mendota- Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project - Fresno County, Annual



Phase 
Number

Phase Name Phase Type Start Date End Date Num Days 
Week

Num Days Phase Description

1 Demolition Demolition 9/2/2019 10/4/2019 5 25

2 Site Preparation Site Preparation 10/7/2019 11/8/2019 5 25

3 Grading Grading 11/11/2019 12/13/2019 5 25

4 Building Construction Building Construction 12/16/2019 1/17/2020 5 25

5 Paving Paving 1/20/2020 2/21/2020 5 25

6 Architectural Coating Architectural Coating 2/24/2020 3/27/2020 5 25

OffRoad Equipment

Residential Indoor: 0; Residential Outdoor: 0; Non-Residential Indoor: 2,250; Non-Residential Outdoor: 750; Striped Parking Area: 0 
(Architectural Coating – sqft)

Acres of Grading (Site Preparation Phase): 15

Acres of Grading (Grading Phase): 15

Acres of Paving: 0

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 4/30/2019 1:43 PMPage 7 of 33

City of Mendota- Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project - Fresno County, Annual



Phase Name Offroad Equipment Type Amount Usage Hours Horse Power Load Factor

Demolition Concrete/Industrial Saws 1 8.00 81 0.73

Demolition Dumpers/Tenders 1 6.00 16 0.38

Demolition Excavators 3 8.00 158 0.38

Demolition Rubber Tired Dozers 1 6.00 255 0.40

Demolition Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 2 6.00 97 0.37

Site Preparation Graders 1 8.00 174 0.41

Site Preparation Rubber Tired Dozers 3 8.00 247 0.40

Site Preparation Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 1 8.00 97 0.37

Grading Concrete/Industrial Saws 1 8.00 81 0.73

Grading Excavators 2 8.00 158 0.38

Grading Graders 1 8.00 187 0.41

Grading Rubber Tired Dozers 1 1.00 255 0.40

Grading Scrapers 2 8.00 367 0.48

Grading Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 2 6.00 97 0.37

Building Construction Cranes 1 4.00 226 0.29

Building Construction Forklifts 2 6.00 89 0.20

Building Construction Generator Sets 1 8.00 84 0.74

Building Construction Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 2 8.00 97 0.37

Building Construction Welders 1 8.00 46 0.45

Paving Cement and Mortar Mixers 4 6.00 9 0.56

Paving Pavers 1 7.00 125 0.42

Paving Paving Equipment 2 8.00 132 0.36

Paving Rollers 1 7.00 80 0.38

Paving Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 1 7.00 97 0.37

Architectural Coating Air Compressors 1 6.00 78 0.48

Trips and VMT

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 4/30/2019 1:43 PMPage 8 of 33

City of Mendota- Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project - Fresno County, Annual



3.2 Demolition - 2019

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Fugitive Dust 0.1444 0.0000 0.1444 0.0219 0.0000 0.0219 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Off-Road 0.0303 0.2972 0.2942 4.2000e-
004

0.0156 0.0156 0.0146 0.0146 0.0000 37.3613 37.3613 0.0101 0.0000 37.6127

Total 0.0303 0.2972 0.2942 4.2000e-
004

0.1444 0.0156 0.1600 0.0219 0.0146 0.0365 0.0000 37.3613 37.3613 0.0101 0.0000 37.6127

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

3.1 Mitigation Measures Construction

Water Exposed Area

Phase Name Offroad Equipment 
Count

Worker Trip 
Number

Vendor Trip 
Number

Hauling Trip 
Number

Worker Trip 
Length

Vendor Trip 
Length

Hauling Trip 
Length

Worker Vehicle 
Class

Vendor 
Vehicle Class

Hauling 
Vehicle Class

Demolition 8 20.00 0.00 1,335.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Site Preparation 5 13.00 0.00 0.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Grading 9 23.00 0.00 0.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Building Construction 7 274.00 107.00 0.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Paving 9 23.00 0.00 0.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Architectural Coating 1 55.00 0.00 0.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 4/30/2019 1:43 PMPage 9 of 33

City of Mendota- Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project - Fresno County, Annual



3.2 Demolition - 2019

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Hauling 5.7800e-
003

0.2012 0.0268 5.4000e-
004

0.0114 7.8000e-
004

0.0122 3.1400e-
003

7.5000e-
004

3.8900e-
003

0.0000 51.4370 51.4370 4.5900e-
003

0.0000 51.5518

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Worker 1.1800e-
003

7.8000e-
004

7.7900e-
003

2.0000e-
005

2.0000e-
003

1.0000e-
005

2.0100e-
003

5.3000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

5.4000e-
004

0.0000 1.7853 1.7853 5.0000e-
005

0.0000 1.7867

Total 6.9600e-
003

0.2020 0.0346 5.6000e-
004

0.0134 7.9000e-
004

0.0142 3.6700e-
003

7.6000e-
004

4.4300e-
003

0.0000 53.2223 53.2223 4.6400e-
003

0.0000 53.3385

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Fugitive Dust 0.0650 0.0000 0.0650 9.8400e-
003

0.0000 9.8400e-
003

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Off-Road 0.0303 0.2972 0.2942 4.2000e-
004

0.0156 0.0156 0.0146 0.0146 0.0000 37.3612 37.3612 0.0101 0.0000 37.6127

Total 0.0303 0.2972 0.2942 4.2000e-
004

0.0650 0.0156 0.0806 9.8400e-
003

0.0146 0.0244 0.0000 37.3612 37.3612 0.0101 0.0000 37.6127

Mitigated Construction On-Site

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 4/30/2019 1:43 PMPage 10 of 33

City of Mendota- Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project - Fresno County, Annual



3.2 Demolition - 2019

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Hauling 5.7800e-
003

0.2012 0.0268 5.4000e-
004

0.0114 7.8000e-
004

0.0122 3.1400e-
003

7.5000e-
004

3.8900e-
003

0.0000 51.4370 51.4370 4.5900e-
003

0.0000 51.5518

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Worker 1.1800e-
003

7.8000e-
004

7.7900e-
003

2.0000e-
005

2.0000e-
003

1.0000e-
005

2.0100e-
003

5.3000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

5.4000e-
004

0.0000 1.7853 1.7853 5.0000e-
005

0.0000 1.7867

Total 6.9600e-
003

0.2020 0.0346 5.6000e-
004

0.0134 7.9000e-
004

0.0142 3.6700e-
003

7.6000e-
004

4.4300e-
003

0.0000 53.2223 53.2223 4.6400e-
003

0.0000 53.3385

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

3.3 Site Preparation - 2019

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Fugitive Dust 0.2338 0.0000 0.2338 0.1250 0.0000 0.1250 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Off-Road 0.0550 0.5766 0.2469 4.4000e-
004

0.0293 0.0293 0.0270 0.0270 0.0000 39.2261 39.2261 0.0124 0.0000 39.5364

Total 0.0550 0.5766 0.2469 4.4000e-
004

0.2338 0.0293 0.2631 0.1250 0.0270 0.1520 0.0000 39.2261 39.2261 0.0124 0.0000 39.5364

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 4/30/2019 1:43 PMPage 11 of 33

City of Mendota- Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project - Fresno County, Annual



3.3 Site Preparation - 2019

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Worker 7.7000e-
004

5.1000e-
004

5.0600e-
003

1.0000e-
005

1.3000e-
003

1.0000e-
005

1.3100e-
003

3.5000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

3.5000e-
004

0.0000 1.1605 1.1605 3.0000e-
005

0.0000 1.1613

Total 7.7000e-
004

5.1000e-
004

5.0600e-
003

1.0000e-
005

1.3000e-
003

1.0000e-
005

1.3100e-
003

3.5000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

3.5000e-
004

0.0000 1.1605 1.1605 3.0000e-
005

0.0000 1.1613

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Fugitive Dust 0.1052 0.0000 0.1052 0.0563 0.0000 0.0563 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Off-Road 0.0550 0.5766 0.2469 4.4000e-
004

0.0293 0.0293 0.0270 0.0270 0.0000 39.2261 39.2261 0.0124 0.0000 39.5363

Total 0.0550 0.5766 0.2469 4.4000e-
004

0.1052 0.0293 0.1345 0.0563 0.0270 0.0832 0.0000 39.2261 39.2261 0.0124 0.0000 39.5363

Mitigated Construction On-Site

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 4/30/2019 1:43 PMPage 12 of 33

City of Mendota- Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project - Fresno County, Annual



3.3 Site Preparation - 2019

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Worker 7.7000e-
004

5.1000e-
004

5.0600e-
003

1.0000e-
005

1.3000e-
003

1.0000e-
005

1.3100e-
003

3.5000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

3.5000e-
004

0.0000 1.1605 1.1605 3.0000e-
005

0.0000 1.1613

Total 7.7000e-
004

5.1000e-
004

5.0600e-
003

1.0000e-
005

1.3000e-
003

1.0000e-
005

1.3100e-
003

3.5000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

3.5000e-
004

0.0000 1.1605 1.1605 3.0000e-
005

0.0000 1.1613

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

3.4 Grading - 2019

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Fugitive Dust 0.0174 0.0000 0.0174 6.0300e-
003

0.0000 6.0300e-
003

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Off-Road 0.0510 0.5781 0.4089 7.4000e-
004

0.0251 0.0251 0.0233 0.0233 0.0000 66.2671 66.2671 0.0193 0.0000 66.7499

Total 0.0510 0.5781 0.4089 7.4000e-
004

0.0174 0.0251 0.0425 6.0300e-
003

0.0233 0.0294 0.0000 66.2671 66.2671 0.0193 0.0000 66.7499

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 4/30/2019 1:43 PMPage 13 of 33

City of Mendota- Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project - Fresno County, Annual



3.4 Grading - 2019

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Worker 1.3600e-
003

8.9000e-
004

8.9600e-
003

2.0000e-
005

2.3000e-
003

2.0000e-
005

2.3100e-
003

6.1000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

6.2000e-
004

0.0000 2.0531 2.0531 6.0000e-
005

0.0000 2.0547

Total 1.3600e-
003

8.9000e-
004

8.9600e-
003

2.0000e-
005

2.3000e-
003

2.0000e-
005

2.3100e-
003

6.1000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

6.2000e-
004

0.0000 2.0531 2.0531 6.0000e-
005

0.0000 2.0547

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Fugitive Dust 7.8100e-
003

0.0000 7.8100e-
003

2.7100e-
003

0.0000 2.7100e-
003

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Off-Road 0.0510 0.5781 0.4089 7.4000e-
004

0.0251 0.0251 0.0233 0.0233 0.0000 66.2670 66.2670 0.0193 0.0000 66.7499

Total 0.0510 0.5781 0.4089 7.4000e-
004

7.8100e-
003

0.0251 0.0329 2.7100e-
003

0.0233 0.0260 0.0000 66.2670 66.2670 0.0193 0.0000 66.7499

Mitigated Construction On-Site

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 4/30/2019 1:43 PMPage 14 of 33

City of Mendota- Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project - Fresno County, Annual



3.4 Grading - 2019

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Worker 1.3600e-
003

8.9000e-
004

8.9600e-
003

2.0000e-
005

2.3000e-
003

2.0000e-
005

2.3100e-
003

6.1000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

6.2000e-
004

0.0000 2.0531 2.0531 6.0000e-
005

0.0000 2.0547

Total 1.3600e-
003

8.9000e-
004

8.9600e-
003

2.0000e-
005

2.3000e-
003

2.0000e-
005

2.3100e-
003

6.1000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

6.2000e-
004

0.0000 2.0531 2.0531 6.0000e-
005

0.0000 2.0547

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

3.5 Building Construction - 2019

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Off-Road 0.0107 0.0910 0.0783 1.2000e-
004

5.5700e-
003

5.5700e-
003

5.2800e-
003

5.2800e-
003

0.0000 10.6250 10.6250 2.3300e-
003

0.0000 10.6833

Total 0.0107 0.0910 0.0783 1.2000e-
004

5.5700e-
003

5.5700e-
003

5.2800e-
003

5.2800e-
003

0.0000 10.6250 10.6250 2.3300e-
003

0.0000 10.6833

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 4/30/2019 1:43 PMPage 15 of 33

City of Mendota- Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project - Fresno County, Annual



3.5 Building Construction - 2019

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Vendor 2.9600e-
003

0.0868 0.0148 1.8000e-
004

4.2500e-
003

6.3000e-
004

4.8800e-
003

1.2300e-
003

6.0000e-
004

1.8300e-
003

0.0000 17.4638 17.4638 2.2200e-
003

0.0000 17.5193

Worker 7.7700e-
003

5.1100e-
003

0.0512 1.3000e-
004

0.0131 9.0000e-
005

0.0132 3.4900e-
003

8.0000e-
005

3.5700e-
003

0.0000 11.7403 11.7403 3.5000e-
004

0.0000 11.7491

Total 0.0107 0.0919 0.0660 3.1000e-
004

0.0174 7.2000e-
004

0.0181 4.7200e-
003

6.8000e-
004

5.4000e-
003

0.0000 29.2041 29.2041 2.5700e-
003

0.0000 29.2684

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Off-Road 0.0107 0.0910 0.0783 1.2000e-
004

5.5700e-
003

5.5700e-
003

5.2800e-
003

5.2800e-
003

0.0000 10.6249 10.6249 2.3300e-
003

0.0000 10.6833

Total 0.0107 0.0910 0.0783 1.2000e-
004

5.5700e-
003

5.5700e-
003

5.2800e-
003

5.2800e-
003

0.0000 10.6249 10.6249 2.3300e-
003

0.0000 10.6833

Mitigated Construction On-Site

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 4/30/2019 1:43 PMPage 16 of 33

City of Mendota- Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project - Fresno County, Annual



3.5 Building Construction - 2019

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Vendor 2.9600e-
003

0.0868 0.0148 1.8000e-
004

4.2500e-
003

6.3000e-
004

4.8800e-
003

1.2300e-
003

6.0000e-
004

1.8300e-
003

0.0000 17.4638 17.4638 2.2200e-
003

0.0000 17.5193

Worker 7.7700e-
003

5.1100e-
003

0.0512 1.3000e-
004

0.0131 9.0000e-
005

0.0132 3.4900e-
003

8.0000e-
005

3.5700e-
003

0.0000 11.7403 11.7403 3.5000e-
004

0.0000 11.7491

Total 0.0107 0.0919 0.0660 3.1000e-
004

0.0174 7.2000e-
004

0.0181 4.7200e-
003

6.8000e-
004

5.4000e-
003

0.0000 29.2041 29.2041 2.5700e-
003

0.0000 29.2684

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

3.5 Building Construction - 2020

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Off-Road 0.0104 0.0900 0.0834 1.3000e-
004

5.2200e-
003

5.2200e-
003

4.9500e-
003

4.9500e-
003

0.0000 11.3656 11.3656 2.4800e-
003

0.0000 11.4276

Total 0.0104 0.0900 0.0834 1.3000e-
004

5.2200e-
003

5.2200e-
003

4.9500e-
003

4.9500e-
003

0.0000 11.3656 11.3656 2.4800e-
003

0.0000 11.4276

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 4/30/2019 1:43 PMPage 17 of 33

City of Mendota- Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project - Fresno County, Annual



3.5 Building Construction - 2020

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Vendor 2.6000e-
003

0.0862 0.0138 2.0000e-
004

4.6100e-
003

4.6000e-
004

5.0700e-
003

1.3300e-
003

4.4000e-
004

1.7700e-
003

0.0000 18.7566 18.7566 2.3200e-
003

0.0000 18.8146

Worker 7.6900e-
003

4.8800e-
003

0.0495 1.4000e-
004

0.0142 9.0000e-
005

0.0143 3.7800e-
003

8.0000e-
005

3.8700e-
003

0.0000 12.3234 12.3234 3.3000e-
004

0.0000 12.3317

Total 0.0103 0.0911 0.0633 3.4000e-
004

0.0189 5.5000e-
004

0.0194 5.1100e-
003

5.2000e-
004

5.6400e-
003

0.0000 31.0801 31.0801 2.6500e-
003

0.0000 31.1463

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Off-Road 0.0104 0.0900 0.0834 1.3000e-
004

5.2200e-
003

5.2200e-
003

4.9500e-
003

4.9500e-
003

0.0000 11.3655 11.3655 2.4800e-
003

0.0000 11.4275

Total 0.0104 0.0900 0.0834 1.3000e-
004

5.2200e-
003

5.2200e-
003

4.9500e-
003

4.9500e-
003

0.0000 11.3655 11.3655 2.4800e-
003

0.0000 11.4275

Mitigated Construction On-Site

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 4/30/2019 1:43 PMPage 18 of 33

City of Mendota- Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project - Fresno County, Annual



3.5 Building Construction - 2020

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Vendor 2.6000e-
003

0.0862 0.0138 2.0000e-
004

4.6100e-
003

4.6000e-
004

5.0700e-
003

1.3300e-
003

4.4000e-
004

1.7700e-
003

0.0000 18.7566 18.7566 2.3200e-
003

0.0000 18.8146

Worker 7.6900e-
003

4.8800e-
003

0.0495 1.4000e-
004

0.0142 9.0000e-
005

0.0143 3.7800e-
003

8.0000e-
005

3.8700e-
003

0.0000 12.3234 12.3234 3.3000e-
004

0.0000 12.3317

Total 0.0103 0.0911 0.0633 3.4000e-
004

0.0189 5.5000e-
004

0.0194 5.1100e-
003

5.2000e-
004

5.6400e-
003

0.0000 31.0801 31.0801 2.6500e-
003

0.0000 31.1463

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

3.6 Paving - 2020

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Off-Road 0.0147 0.1427 0.1511 2.4000e-
004

7.5600e-
003

7.5600e-
003

7.0000e-
003

7.0000e-
003

0.0000 20.5152 20.5152 6.2600e-
003

0.0000 20.6716

Paving 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0147 0.1427 0.1511 2.4000e-
004

7.5600e-
003

7.5600e-
003

7.0000e-
003

7.0000e-
003

0.0000 20.5152 20.5152 6.2600e-
003

0.0000 20.6716

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 4/30/2019 1:43 PMPage 19 of 33

City of Mendota- Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project - Fresno County, Annual



3.6 Paving - 2020

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Worker 1.2400e-
003

7.9000e-
004

7.9900e-
003

2.0000e-
005

2.3000e-
003

1.0000e-
005

2.3100e-
003

6.1000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

6.2000e-
004

0.0000 1.9893 1.9893 5.0000e-
005

0.0000 1.9907

Total 1.2400e-
003

7.9000e-
004

7.9900e-
003

2.0000e-
005

2.3000e-
003

1.0000e-
005

2.3100e-
003

6.1000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

6.2000e-
004

0.0000 1.9893 1.9893 5.0000e-
005

0.0000 1.9907

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Off-Road 0.0147 0.1427 0.1511 2.4000e-
004

7.5600e-
003

7.5600e-
003

7.0000e-
003

7.0000e-
003

0.0000 20.5151 20.5151 6.2600e-
003

0.0000 20.6716

Paving 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0147 0.1427 0.1511 2.4000e-
004

7.5600e-
003

7.5600e-
003

7.0000e-
003

7.0000e-
003

0.0000 20.5151 20.5151 6.2600e-
003

0.0000 20.6716

Mitigated Construction On-Site

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 4/30/2019 1:43 PMPage 20 of 33

City of Mendota- Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project - Fresno County, Annual



3.6 Paving - 2020

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Worker 1.2400e-
003

7.9000e-
004

7.9900e-
003

2.0000e-
005

2.3000e-
003

1.0000e-
005

2.3100e-
003

6.1000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

6.2000e-
004

0.0000 1.9893 1.9893 5.0000e-
005

0.0000 1.9907

Total 1.2400e-
003

7.9000e-
004

7.9900e-
003

2.0000e-
005

2.3000e-
003

1.0000e-
005

2.3100e-
003

6.1000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

6.2000e-
004

0.0000 1.9893 1.9893 5.0000e-
005

0.0000 1.9907

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

3.7 Architectural Coating - 2020

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Archit. Coating 0.0104 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Off-Road 3.0300e-
003

0.0211 0.0229 4.0000e-
005

1.3900e-
003

1.3900e-
003

1.3900e-
003

1.3900e-
003

0.0000 3.1916 3.1916 2.5000e-
004

0.0000 3.1977

Total 0.0135 0.0211 0.0229 4.0000e-
005

1.3900e-
003

1.3900e-
003

1.3900e-
003

1.3900e-
003

0.0000 3.1916 3.1916 2.5000e-
004

0.0000 3.1977

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 4/30/2019 1:43 PMPage 21 of 33

City of Mendota- Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project - Fresno County, Annual



3.7 Architectural Coating - 2020

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Worker 2.9700e-
003

1.8800e-
003

0.0191 5.0000e-
005

5.5000e-
003

4.0000e-
005

5.5300e-
003

1.4600e-
003

3.0000e-
005

1.4900e-
003

0.0000 4.7571 4.7571 1.3000e-
004

0.0000 4.7603

Total 2.9700e-
003

1.8800e-
003

0.0191 5.0000e-
005

5.5000e-
003

4.0000e-
005

5.5300e-
003

1.4600e-
003

3.0000e-
005

1.4900e-
003

0.0000 4.7571 4.7571 1.3000e-
004

0.0000 4.7603

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Archit. Coating 0.0104 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Off-Road 3.0300e-
003

0.0211 0.0229 4.0000e-
005

1.3900e-
003

1.3900e-
003

1.3900e-
003

1.3900e-
003

0.0000 3.1916 3.1916 2.5000e-
004

0.0000 3.1977

Total 0.0135 0.0211 0.0229 4.0000e-
005

1.3900e-
003

1.3900e-
003

1.3900e-
003

1.3900e-
003

0.0000 3.1916 3.1916 2.5000e-
004

0.0000 3.1977

Mitigated Construction On-Site

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 4/30/2019 1:43 PMPage 22 of 33

City of Mendota- Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project - Fresno County, Annual



4.0 Operational Detail - Mobile

4.1 Mitigation Measures Mobile

3.7 Architectural Coating - 2020

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Worker 2.9700e-
003

1.8800e-
003

0.0191 5.0000e-
005

5.5000e-
003

4.0000e-
005

5.5300e-
003

1.4600e-
003

3.0000e-
005

1.4900e-
003

0.0000 4.7571 4.7571 1.3000e-
004

0.0000 4.7603

Total 2.9700e-
003

1.8800e-
003

0.0191 5.0000e-
005

5.5000e-
003

4.0000e-
005

5.5300e-
003

1.4600e-
003

3.0000e-
005

1.4900e-
003

0.0000 4.7571 4.7571 1.3000e-
004

0.0000 4.7603

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 4/30/2019 1:43 PMPage 23 of 33

City of Mendota- Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project - Fresno County, Annual



ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Mitigated 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0717 0.0000 0.0717 0.0176 0.0000 0.0176 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Unmitigated 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0717 0.0000 0.0717 0.0176 0.0000 0.0176 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

4.2 Trip Summary Information

4.3 Trip Type Information

Average Daily Trip Rate Unmitigated Mitigated

Land Use Weekday Saturday Sunday Annual VMT Annual VMT

City Park 28.35 341.25 251.10 223,885 223,885

Total 28.35 341.25 251.10 223,885 223,885

Miles Trip % Trip Purpose %

Land Use H-W or C-W H-S or C-C H-O or C-NW H-W or C-W H-S or C-C H-O or C-NW Primary Diverted Pass-by

City Park 9.50 7.30 7.30 33.00 48.00 19.00 66 28 6

5.0 Energy Detail

4.4 Fleet Mix

Land Use LDA LDT1 LDT2 MDV LHD1 LHD2 MHD HHD OBUS UBUS MCY SBUS MH

City Park 0.000000 0.000000 0.000000 0.000000 0.000000 0.000000 0.000000 0.000000 0.000000 0.000000 0.000000 0.000000 0.000000

Historical Energy Use: N

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 4/30/2019 1:43 PMPage 24 of 33

City of Mendota- Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project - Fresno County, Annual



ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Electricity 
Mitigated

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Electricity 
Unmitigated

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

NaturalGas 
Mitigated

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

NaturalGas 
Unmitigated

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

5.2 Energy by Land Use - NaturalGas

NaturalGa
s Use

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use kBTU/yr tons/yr MT/yr

City Park 0 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Unmitigated

5.1 Mitigation Measures Energy

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 4/30/2019 1:43 PMPage 25 of 33

City of Mendota- Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project - Fresno County, Annual



5.2 Energy by Land Use - NaturalGas

NaturalGa
s Use

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use kBTU/yr tons/yr MT/yr

City Park 0 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Mitigated

5.3 Energy by Land Use - Electricity

Electricity 
Use

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use kWh/yr MT/yr

City Park 0 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Unmitigated

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 4/30/2019 1:43 PMPage 26 of 33

City of Mendota- Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project - Fresno County, Annual



6.1 Mitigation Measures Area

6.0 Area Detail

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Mitigated 0.0120 0.0000 1.4000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 2.7000e-
004

2.7000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 2.9000e-
004

Unmitigated 0.0120 0.0000 1.4000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 2.7000e-
004

2.7000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 2.9000e-
004

5.3 Energy by Land Use - Electricity

Electricity 
Use

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use kWh/yr MT/yr

City Park 0 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Mitigated

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 4/30/2019 1:43 PMPage 27 of 33

City of Mendota- Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project - Fresno County, Annual



7.0 Water Detail

6.2 Area by SubCategory

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

SubCategory tons/yr MT/yr

Architectural 
Coating

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Consumer 
Products

0.0120 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Landscaping 1.0000e-
005

0.0000 1.4000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 2.7000e-
004

2.7000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 2.9000e-
004

Total 0.0120 0.0000 1.4000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 2.7000e-
004

2.7000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 2.9000e-
004

Unmitigated

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

SubCategory tons/yr MT/yr

Architectural 
Coating

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Consumer 
Products

0.0120 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Landscaping 1.0000e-
005

0.0000 1.4000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 2.7000e-
004

2.7000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 2.9000e-
004

Total 0.0120 0.0000 1.4000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 2.7000e-
004

2.7000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 2.9000e-
004

Mitigated

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 4/30/2019 1:43 PMPage 28 of 33

City of Mendota- Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project - Fresno County, Annual



7.1 Mitigation Measures Water

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category MT/yr

Mitigated 18.1973 8.2000e-
004

1.7000e-
004

18.2686

Unmitigated 18.1973 8.2000e-
004

1.7000e-
004

18.2686

7.2 Water by Land Use

Indoor/Out
door Use

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use Mgal MT/yr

City Park 0 / 
17.8722

18.1973 8.2000e-
004

1.7000e-
004

18.2686

Total 18.1973 8.2000e-
004

1.7000e-
004

18.2686

Unmitigated

7.0 Water Detail

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 4/30/2019 1:43 PMPage 29 of 33

City of Mendota- Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project - Fresno County, Annual



8.1 Mitigation Measures Waste

7.2 Water by Land Use

Indoor/Out
door Use

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use Mgal MT/yr

City Park 0 / 
17.8722

18.1973 8.2000e-
004

1.7000e-
004

18.2686

Total 18.1973 8.2000e-
004

1.7000e-
004

18.2686

Mitigated

8.0 Waste Detail

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

MT/yr

 Mitigated 0.2619 0.0155 0.0000 0.6487

 Unmitigated 0.2619 0.0155 0.0000 0.6487

Category/Year

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 4/30/2019 1:43 PMPage 30 of 33

City of Mendota- Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project - Fresno County, Annual



8.2 Waste by Land Use

Waste 
Disposed

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use tons MT/yr

City Park 1.29 0.2619 0.0155 0.0000 0.6487

Total 0.2619 0.0155 0.0000 0.6487

Unmitigated

Waste 
Disposed

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use tons MT/yr

City Park 1.29 0.2619 0.0155 0.0000 0.6487

Total 0.2619 0.0155 0.0000 0.6487

Mitigated

9.0 Operational Offroad

Equipment Type Number Hours/Day Days/Year Horse Power Load Factor Fuel Type

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 4/30/2019 1:43 PMPage 31 of 33

City of Mendota- Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project - Fresno County, Annual



11.0 Vegetation

10.0 Stationary Equipment

Fire Pumps and Emergency Generators

Equipment Type Number Hours/Day Hours/Year Horse Power Load Factor Fuel Type

Boilers

Equipment Type Number Heat Input/Day Heat Input/Year Boiler Rating Fuel Type

User Defined Equipment

Equipment Type Number

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 4/30/2019 1:43 PMPage 32 of 33

City of Mendota- Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project - Fresno County, Annual



 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019   Appendix B-1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix B 
Biological Evaluation Report 



i 
 

 

City of Mendota: 
Rojas-Pierce Park Expansion Project 

 
Biological Evaluation 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Prepared by: 
Brooke Fletcher, Wildlife Biologist 

 

April 2019  



ii 

Table of Contents 
1 Introduction ............................................................................................................................................................. 1-1 

1.1 Project Description ....................................................................................................................................... 1-1 

1.2 Report Objectives .......................................................................................................................................... 1-1 

1.3 Study Methodology ....................................................................................................................................... 1-2 

2 Existing Conditions ................................................................................................................................................ 2-1 

2.1 Regional Setting ............................................................................................................................................. 2-1 

2.2 Project Site ...................................................................................................................................................... 2-1 

2.3 Biological Communities ................................................................................................................................ 2-2 

2.3.1 Developed .................................................................................................................................................. 2-2 

2.3.2 Ruderal ........................................................................................................................................................ 2-2 

2.4 Soils .................................................................................................................................................................. 2-3 

2.5 Natural Communities of Special Concern ................................................................................................. 2-4 

2.6 Designated Critical Habitat .......................................................................................................................... 2-4 

2.7 Wildlife Movement Corridors ..................................................................................................................... 2-4 

2.8 Special Status Plants and Animals ............................................................................................................... 2-4 

3 Impacts and Mitigation .......................................................................................................................................... 3-1 

3.1 Significance Criteria ....................................................................................................................................... 3-1 

3.2 Relevant Goals, Policies, and Laws ............................................................................................................ 3-3 

3.2.1 City of Mendota General Plan Update .................................................................................................. 3-3 

3.2.2 Threatened and Endangered Species ..................................................................................................... 3-3 

3.2.3 Designated Critical Habitat ..................................................................................................................... 3-4 

3.2.4 Migratory Birds .......................................................................................................................................... 3-4 

3.2.5 Birds of Prey .............................................................................................................................................. 3-4 

3.2.6 Nesting Birds ............................................................................................................................................. 3-4 

3.2.7 Wetlands and other “Jurisdictional Waters” ......................................................................................... 3-4 

3.3 Potentially Significant Project-Related Impacts and Mitigation ............................................................. 3-6 

3.3.1 Project-Related Mortality and/or Disturbance of Nesting Raptors, Migratory Birds, and Special 
Status Birds (Including Swainson’s Hawk and Mountain Plover) .................................................................. 3-6 

3.3.2 Project-Related Impacts to Special Status Bats (Including Western Mastiff Bat and Western Red 
Bat) 3-7 

3.4 Less Than Significant Project-Related Impacts ........................................................................................ 3-7 

3.4.1 Project-Related Impacts to Special Status Plant Species .................................................................... 3-7 

3.4.2 Project-Related Impacts to Special Status Animal Species Absent From, or Unlikely to Occur on, 
the Project Site ........................................................................................................................................................ 3-8 

3.4.3 Project-Related Impacts to Jurisdictional Waters, Wetlands, Navigable Waters, Wild and Scenic 
Rivers, or other Water Features, and Riparian Habitat .................................................................................... 3-9 

3.4.4 Project-Related Impacts to Wildlife Movement Corridors ................................................................ 3-9 



iii 

3.4.5 Project-Related Impacts to Critical Habitat .......................................................................................... 3-9 

3.4.6 Local Policies or Habitat Conservation Plans ...................................................................................... 3-9 

3.4.7 Coastal Zone and Coastal Barriers Resources Act .............................................................................. 3-9 

3.4.8 Project-Related Impact to Essential Fish Habitat ............................................................................... 3-9 

3.5 Section 7 Determination ............................................................................................................................... 3-9 

4 References ................................................................................................................................................................ 4-1 

 



iv 
 

APPENDICES 
Appendix A.  Selected Photographs of the Project Site ........................................................................................... A-1 
Appendix B.  CNDDB Query Results ........................................................................................................................ B-1 
Appendix C.  USFWS Species List .............................................................................................................................. C-1 
Appendix D.  NOAA EFH Mapping Query Results .............................................................................................. D-1 
Appendix E.  Soils Report ............................................................................................................................................. E-1 

LIST OF FIGURES 
Figure 1.  Regional Location Map ................................................................................................................................. 1-3 
Figure 2.  Topographic Quadrangle Map ..................................................................................................................... 1-4 
Figure 3.  Area of Potential Effect (APE) ................................................................................................................... 1-5 
Figure 4.  Site Plan ........................................................................................................................................................... 1-6 

LIST OF TABLES 
Table 1.  List of Special Status Animals with Potential to Occur Onsite and/or in the Vicinity ....................... 2-6 
Table 2.  List of Special Status Plants with Potential to Occur Onsite and/or in the Vicinity ........................ 2-12 
Table 3.  Section 7 Determinations ............................................................................................................................ 3-10 
 

 



 

1-1 
 

1 Introduction 
Rojas-Pierce Memorial Park is located at the northeast intersection of Smoot  and Sorensen Avenue’s 
alignment in Fresno County.  The City of Mendota proposes a westward expansion of the recreational 
facilities into the ruderal vacant lot west of the existing park boundaries. The proposed impact area is 
surrounded by urban development to the north and east, fallow field to the west, and ruderal-fallow field to 
the south.      
 
The following technical report, prepared by Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group, in compliance with the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), includes 
a description of the biological resources present or with potential to occur within the Project site and 
surrounding areas and evaluates potential Project-related impacts to those resources.  

1.1 Project Description 

 The City of Mendota approved a plan for significant improvements to Rojas-Pierce Park facilities in 2006. 
Phase I of the improvement project, which was completed in 2008, included the demolition and removal of 
nearly all onsite facilities and the development of new landscaping, a concert pavilion, a splash park, two 
jungle-gym play areas, a temporary skate park, three basketball courts, a permanent concession stand, 
restrooms, and an emergency/maintenance access road.  Additionally, a single soccer field was constructed on 
a small portion of the City property on which the current project proposes to expand. The intent of the 
proposed project is to continue, but not complete, the master-planned facilities as commissioned by the 
Mendota City Council in 2006, and to provide a high-quality, easily-accessible recreational venue for the 
residents of Mendota and the surrounding area. 
 
As illustrated in Figure 4, the ruderal parcel of land west of the existing park will receive two additional 
soccer fields and a baseball diamond. Beyond the outfield of the baseball diamond an open space area will 
double as a storm water basin. Smoot  and Amador Avenues will be extended to provide improved traffic 
circulation and on-street parking. Additional development activities include installation of turf and trees, 
continuation of pedestrian access routes, and the construction of a permanent restroom facility.   

1.2 Report Objectives 

Construction activities such as those proposed by City of Mendota for the Rojas-Pierce Park Expansion 
Project could potentially damage biological resources or modify habitats that are crucial for sensitive plant 
and wildlife species. In cases such as these, development may be regulated by state or federal agencies, subject 
to provisions of California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), and/or National Environmental Policy Act 
(NEPA), and/or addressed by local regulatory agencies.  
 
This report addresses issues related to the following: 

1) The presence of sensitive biological resources onsite, or with the potential to occur onsite. 
2) The federal, state, and local regulations regarding these resources. 
3) Mitigation measures that may be required to reduce the magnitude of anticipated impacts and/or 

comply with permit requirements of state and federal resource agencies.  
 
Therefore, the objectives of this report are: 

1) Summarize all site-specific information related to existing biological resources. 
2) Make reasonable inferences about the biological resources that could occur onsite based on 

habitat suitability and the proximity of the site to a species’ known range. 



 

1-2 

3) Summarize all state and federal natural resource protection laws that may be relevant to the 
Project. 

4) Identify and discuss Project impacts to biological resources likely to occur onsite within the 
context of CEQA or state or federal laws. 

5) Identify and publish a set of avoidance and mitigation measures that would reduce impacts to a 
less-than-significant level (as identified by CEQA) and are generally consistent with 
recommendations of the resource agencies for affected biological resources.  

1.3 Study Methodology 

A reconnaissance-level field survey of the Project site and surrounding areas was conducted on March 14, 
2019 by Provost & Pritchard.  Although the park expansion project only includes development of 
approximately 10-acres of land (Figure 3), the Project’s Area of Potential Effect (APE) was expanded to 
include all potential access routes and staging areas including street improvements, as illustrated on Figure 4. 
The surveyed area of approximately 17 acres, included all areas with potential to incur direct or indirect 
impacts which may be temporary or permanent nature. The survey consisted of walking through the Project 
area while identifying and noting land uses, biological habitats and communities, and plant and animal species 
encountered. Furthermore, the site and surrounding areas were assessed for suitable habitats of various 
wildlife species.  
 
Provost & Pritchard conducted an analysis of potential Project-related impacts to biological resources based 
on the resources known to exist or with potential to exist within the Project site and surrounding areas. 
Sources of information used in preparation of this analysis included: the California Department of Fish and 
Wildlife (CDFW) California Natural Diversity Database (CNDDB); the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 
(USFWS) Information for Planning and Consultation (IPaC) system; the California Native Plant Society 
(CNPS) Online Inventory of Rare and Endangered Vascular Plants of California; CalFlora’s online database 
of California native plants; the Jepson Herbarium online database (Jepson eFlora); U.S. Fish and Wildlife 
Service (USFWS) Environmental Conservation Online System (ECOS); the NatureServe Explorer online 
database; the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) Natural Resources Conservation Service 
(NRCS) Plants Database; the California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) California Wildlife Habitat 
Relationships (CWHR) database; the California Herps online database; and various manuals, reports, and 
references related to plants and animals of the San Joaquin Valley region.  
 
The field investigation did not include a wetland delineation or focused surveys for special status species. The 
field survey conducted included an appropriate level of detail to assess the significance of potential impacts to 
sensitive biological resources resulting from the Project.  Furthermore, the field survey was sufficient to 
generally describe those features of the Project that could be subject to the jurisdiction of federal and/or State 
agencies, such as the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), CDFW, and the Regional Water Quality 
Control Board (RWQCB). 



 

1-3 
 

Figure 1.  Regional Location Map 



 

1-4 
 

Figure 2.  Topographic Quadrangle Map 



 

1-5 
 

Figure 3.  Area of Potential Effect (APE)



 

1-6 
 

Figure 4.  Site Plan 



 

2-1 
 

2 Existing Conditions 

2.1 Regional Setting 

The Project site is located in Fresno County within the lower San Joaquin Valley, part of the Great Valley of 
California (See Figure 1). The Valley is bordered by the Sierra Nevada Mountain Ranges to the east, the 
Coast Ranges to the west, the Klamath Mountains and Cascade Range to the north, and the Transverse 
Ranges and Mojave Desert to the south.  
 
Like most of California, the San Joaquin Valley experiences a Mediterranean climate. Warm, dry summers are 
followed by cool, moist winters. Summer temperatures often reach above 90 degrees Fahrenheit, and the 
humidity is generally low. Winter temperatures are often below 60 degrees Fahrenheit during the day and 
rarely exceed 70 degrees. On average, the Central Valley receives approximately 12 inches of precipitation in 
the form of rainfall yearly, most of which occurs between October and March.  
 
The Project is located within the Mowry Lake-Fresno Slough watershed; Hydrologic Unit Code (HUC): 
180300091003 (EPA, 2019), approximately 2.5 miles southwest of the Mendota Pool at the confluence of the 
San Joaquin River and the Fresno Slough. and 7 miles east of Panoche Creek. The San Joaquin River, Fresno 
Slough, and Mendota Pool have been levied and much of the surrounding land is now intensively cultivated 
for agricultural production. Historically, the Mendota area supported large areas of riparian wetlands and 
important waterfowl habitat. Due to alteration of the aquatic features in the vicinity and the conversion of 
natural habitat to agricultural lands, the riparian habitat is now limited to the margins of these waterways and 
to undisturbed areas within ecological reserves, managed wildlife areas, and national wildlife refuges.  
 
There are several managed reserves and wildlife areas in the vicinity of Mendota, most of which are dedicated 
to the preservation of native habitat for waterfowl and special status species. The CDFW-managed Mendota 
Wildlife Area lies approximately three miles southeast of the Project and encompasses 11,825 acres of 
wetland and upland habitats including a portion of the Fresno Slough. The Alkali Sink Ecological Reserve 
and the Kerman Ecological Reserve are located east-southeast of the Project, at a distance of approximately 6 
miles and 10.5 miles, respectively. Little Panoche Reservoir Wildlife Area and the Panoche Hills Ecological 
Reserve are located west of Interstate 5, approximately 20 miles west of the Project. The southern portion of 
the San Luis National Wildlife Refuge complex, which encompasses over 26,800 acres of wetlands, riparian 
forests, native grasslands, and vernal pools lies approximately 20 miles northwest of the Project.    

2.2 Project Site 

The Project involves a westward expansion of the existing City of Mendota’s Rojas-Pierce Park. As illustrated 
in Figure 3 and Figure 4, the proposed impact areas include the developed soccer field within the park and 
an expansion of development and facilities into the ruderal vacant lot west of the existing park boundaries. 
There is an existing subdivision to the north and a ruderal-fallow field to the south. To the west, there is a 
compacted dirt road, beyond which lies an expanse of fallow fields. Photographs of the Project site and 
surrounding areas are available in Appendix A at the end of this document.  
 



 

2-2 

2.3 Biological Communities 

Two biological communities were identified within the Project area: developed and ruderal. Surrounding land 
uses consist of developed, ruderal, and fallow field. All habitats of the Project area and surrounding lands are 
disturbed or frequently maintained and therefore of relatively low quality for most native wildlife species.  

2.3.1 Developed 

The eastern portion of the Project area includes an existing soccer field. This portion of the site has been 
graded and leveled and planted with ornamental grass. This area is enclosed with chain-link fence and two 
soccer goal structures are present. Chalk or paint lines are present on the well-manicured grass.  
 
This developed and fenced portion of land represents low-quality habitat for most wildlife species. Avian 
species would be deterred from nesting in this area due to the lack of trees and shrubs and frequent human 
disturbance. Occurrence of common mammal species tolerant of disturbance such as raccoons (Procyon lotor), 
coyotes (Canis latrans), striped skunks (Mephitis mephitis), gray foxes (Urocyron cinereoargentus) and non-native 
opossums (Didelphis virginiana) would be restricted by the chain-link fence. Urban and agricultural “pests” such 
as Botta’s pocket gophers (Thomomys bottae) and California ground squirrels (Otospermophilus beecheyi) were not 
observed during the biological survey, and populations within developed regions are likely managed by 
rodenticides or other pest control techniques. Common reptiles and amphibians associated with urban 
development such as the San Joaquin fence lizard (Sceloporus occidentalis biseriatus) or California toad (Anaxyrus 
boreas halophilus) could occasionally pass through the site, although suitable breeding habitat and refugia was 
not observed during the biological survey. The light fixtures in the vicinity of the existing park could attract 
flying arthropods, which may encourage foraging by nocturnal raptors and bats, although they would likely be 
deterred by frequent human disturbance.  
 
Frequent disturbance associated with landscaping and organized sports makes the developed portion of the 
site unsuitable for rare plant species. During the biological survey, a turbid ephemeral pool was observed 
within a lawnmower tire rut. The rut was in a barren area of clay soils in the fenced soccer field area. Daphnia 
sp., oligochaetes, and mosquito larvae were present, but no tadpoles, fairy shrimp, or other sensitive 
branchiopod species were observed. Although the clay soils onsite are conducive to pooling, the 
aforementioned frequent disturbance makes the site unsuitable for special status vernal pool invertebrates or 
amphibians.  
 
Suitable nesting and foraging habitat is absent from the developed soccer field; however, the following avian 
species were observed either perched or passing over this portion of site: American crow (Corvus 
brachyrhynchos), cliff swallow (Petrochelidon pyrrhonota), house finch (Haemorhous mexicanus), house sparrow (Passer 
domesticus), mourning dove (Zenaida macroura), California scrub jay (Aphelcoma californica), and northern 
mockingbird (Mimus polyglottos).   

2.3.2 Ruderal 

Ruderal habitats are characterized by a high level of human disturbance and absence of vegetation or 
dominated by non-native plant species. The portion of the Project to the west of the existing soccer field was 
once utilized for agricultural production. This land has been fallow for several seasons and is disced at least 
once a year for weed abatement. The site has been graded and subject to years of ground disturbance, 
resulting in alteration of the original topography and vegetation composition. Signs of heavy vehicle traffic 
were observed within the field and it was likely used as a staging area for equipment during the development 
of the subdivision to the north. The ruderal lot abuts the rear fence line of residential backyards, many of 
which contain large, barking domestic dogs. There are constructed berms of compacted dirt walking trails 
bisecting the site. An excavated irrigation ditch is present, although it is currently dry and appears to be 
unmaintained, evidenced by decaying banks and an overgrowth of vegetation. This ditch appears to have 
historically received water from an outlet structure in the northwest corner of the ruderal lot directly west of 



 

2-3 

the soccer field. Given the location of the outlet structure and the newly developed subdivision to the north, 
it is possible this ditch is now periodically used as a stormwater catch basin during peak flows. Portions of the 
ruderal field appear to be used as dumping grounds for refuse, demonstrated by the presence of discarded 
mattresses, shopping carts, a dilapidated barbeque, and other garbage. The majority of the site is overgrown 
with weedy invasive vegetation, consistent with ruderal-annual grassland or ruderal-fallow field. However, for 
the purposes of this report, because of the high level of disturbance, this land will be classified simply as 
ruderal. In contrast, true fallow field habitat is present to the west of the Project site’s ruderal lot.  
 
Survey of the ruderal lands within the Project area revealed an absence of rodent sign and active burrows, 
although a pair of American kestrels (Falco sparverius) were observed hunting over the site. A red-tailed hawk 
(Buteo jamaicensis) was observed perched on a light pole adjacent to a residential neighborhood, overlooking a 
fallow field to the northwest of the Project site. The true fallow fields to the west of the site undoubtedly 
provide suitable foraging habitat and ground squirrel burrows were observed among portions of those 
adjacent parcels.  
 
Soils onsite were hard clay, not friable for burrowing, which may explain the absence of rodent burrows. The 
survey was performed shortly after a precipitation event and some ephemeral pools were observed within tire 
ruts. All ephemeral pools were inspected. Water ranged from clear to rather turbid. Daphnia sp. and mosquito 
larvae were present within a few of the pools, but no tadpoles, fairy shrimp, or special status vernal pool 
invertebrates were observed. Given its history of agricultural cultivation, and frequently disturbed nature, this 
site would not be considered suitable habitat for special status plants, vernal pool invertebrates, or special 
status amphibians. Killdeer (Charadrius vociferous) were observed wading and foraging within the ephemeral 
pools. A disturbance-tolerant ground-nesting bird, such as a killdeer could consider bare portions of this 
ruderal site suitable for nesting.  
 
Weedy, overgrown herbaceous vegetation, most of which was invasive, dominated the site. Native vegetation 
was essentially absent with the exception of scattered fiddleneck (Amsinckia menziesii), and the following 
dominant invasive species were observed: Brassica nigra, Brassica rapa, Capsella bursa-pastoris, Bromus diandrus, 
Bromus madritensis, Hordeum murinum, Erdoium botrys, and Malva parviflora. Species of vegetation in the ditch were 
similar to those already mentioned, with the exception of the presence of Salix exigua, Conium maculatum, 
Rumex crispus, Typha angustifolia, and Cyperus difformis within the ditch.    
 
Ruderal areas within the Project vicinity have minimal value to wildlife due to the frequent human 
disturbance, presence of domestic dogs and cats, and the absence of native vegetation. However, some 
disturbance-tolerant species may make incidental use of these ruderal lands.  

2.4 Soils  

One soil mapping unit was identified within the Project area: Calfax clay loam, saline-sodic, wet, 0 to 1 
percent slopes, MLRA 17. This soil series consists of deep, moderately well-drained sodic soils on fan skirts 
in arid regions. The water table is usually found at a depth of four to six feet, but is heavily influenced by 
irrigation. Most areas of these soils are cultivated and irrigated or fallow land. When left fallow or 
uncultivated, native vegetation is usually comprised of annual grasses, forbs, and saltbrush. This soil is not 
considered hydric, nor are any of the minor soil components. Hydric soils are defined as soils that are 
saturated, flooded, or ponded long enough during the growing season to develop anaerobic conditions such 
that under sufficiently wet conditions hydrophytic vegetation is supported. Some hydrophytic vegetation was 
observed within the excavated irrigation ditch onsite, and therefore areas within the irrigation ditch may have 
historically experienced seasonal ponding due to precipitation, stormwater runoff, or flood irrigation 
practices.   
 
The site lies within Major Land Resource Area (MLRA) 17, which encompasses the Central Valley. MLRA 17 
supports naturalized annuals and scattered trees. Dominate herbaceous species include wild barley and oats, 



 

2-4 

soft chess, ripgut and red brome, foxtail fescue, burclover, and filaree. Major wildlife species of this region 
include jackrabbit, coyote, fox, ground squirrel, pocket gopher, and various passerines.  
 
The complete Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) Web Soil Survey report and explanation of 
MLRA 17 are available in Appendix E at the end of this document.   

2.5 Natural Communities of Special Concern 

Natural communities of special concern are those that are of limited distribution, distinguished by significant 
biological diversity, or home to special status species. CDFW is responsible for the classification and mapping 
of all natural communities in California. Just like the special status plant and animal species, these natural 
communities of special concern can be found within the CNDDB.  

According to CNDDB, there are no recorded observations of natural communities of special concern with 
potential to occur within the Project area or vicinity. Additionally, no natural communities of special concern 
were observed during the biological survey. 

2.6 Designated Critical Habitat 

The USFWS often designates areas of “Critical Habitat” when it lists species as threatened or endangered. 
Critical Habitat is a specific geographic area that contains features essential for the conservation of a 
threatened or endangered species and that may require special management and protection.  
 
According to CNDDB and IPaC, designated critical habitat is absent from the Project area and vicinity.   

2.7 Wildlife Movement Corridors 

Wildlife movement corridors are routes that animals regularly and predictably follow during seasonal 
migration, dispersal from native ranges, daily travel within home ranges, and inter-population movements. 
Movement corridors in California are typically associated with valleys, ridgelines, and rivers and creeks 
supporting riparian vegetation.  
 
The Project area does not contain features that would be likely to function as wildlife movement corridors. 
Furthermore, the Project is located in a region often disturbed by intensive agricultural cultivation practices 
and human disturbance which would discourage dispersal and migration.   

2.8 Special Status Plants and Animals 

California contains several “rare” plant and animal species. In this context, “rare” is defined as species known 
to have low populations or limited distributions. As the human population grows, resulting in urban 
expansion which encroaches on the already limited suitable habitat, these sensitive species become 
increasingly more vulnerable to extirpation. State and Federal regulations have provided the CDFW and the 
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) with a mechanism for conserving and protecting the diversity of 
plant and animal species native to California. Numerous native plants and animals have been formally 
designated as “threatened” or “endangered” under state and federal endangered species legislation. Other 
formal designations include “candidate” for listing or “species of special concern” by CDFW. The California 
Native Plant Society (CNPS) has its list of native plants considered rare, threatened, or endangered. 
Collectively these plants and animals are referred to as “special status species.” 
 
A thorough search of the CNDDB for published accounts of special status plant and animal species was 
conducted for the Firebaugh 7.5-minute quadrangle that contains the Project site in its entirety, and for the 8 
surrounding quadrangles: Oxalis, Poso Farm, Firebaugh NE, Broadview Farms, Mendota Dam, Chaney Ranch, Coit 



 

2-5 

Ranch, and Tranquillity. An official species list was obtained using the USFWS IPaC system for federally listed 
species with potential to be affected by the Project. These species, and their potential to occur within the 
Project area are listed in Table 1 and Table 2 on the following pages. Additionally, Section 7 determinations 
are made in Error! Reference source not found. in Section 3.5. Raw data obtained from CNDDB and IPaC 
are available in Appendix B and Appendix C, respectively, at the end of this document. Other sources of 
information utilized in the preparation of this analysis included the California Native Plant Society (CNPS) 
Online Inventory of Rare and Endangered Vascular Plants of California, CalFlora’s online database of 
California native plants, the Jepson Herbarium online database (Jepson eFlora), U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 
(USFWS) Environmental Conservation Online System (ECOS), the NatureServe Explorer online database, 
the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) Plants 
Database, the California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) California Wildlife Habitat Relationships 
(CWHR) database, ebird.org, and the California Herps online database. Figure 2 shows the Project’s 7.5-
minute quadrangle, according to USGS Topographic Maps.  
 
  



 

2-6 

Table 1.  List of Special Status Animals with Potential to Occur Onsite and/or in the Vicinity 
Species Status Habitat Occurrence on Project Site 
American badger  
(Taxidea taxus) 

CSC Grasslands, savannas, and 
mountain meadows near 
timberline are preferred. Most 
abundant in drier open spaces of 
shrub and grassland. Burrows in 
soil. 

Absent. Suitable burrows were absent 
during the biological survey. The 
disturbed habitats and clay soils onsite 
are unsuitable for this species. There is 
a recorded observation of this species 
within the Alkali Sink Ecological 
Reserve, approximately 6.5 miles 
southeast of the Project. The largest 
recorded home range of a male of this 
species is 7.64 square miles, therefore, 
even if this species does inhabit one of 
the ecological reserves in the vicinity, 
the chances of an individual passing 
through the site during dispersal or 
mating movements is highly unlikely. 
The Project site is isolated from any 
patches of remaining suitable habitat, 
separated by urban and agricultural 
development. Frequent human 
disturbance and vehicle traffic along 
roadways would further preclude this 
species from reaching the site.  
 
 

bank swallow (Riparia 
riparia) 

CT These aerial insectivores nest 
colonially in burrows 
constructed along vertical banks 
and bluffs near waterbodies. 
This disturbance tolerant species 
is also known to nest in man-
made sites, such as quarries, 
mounds of gravel or dirt, and 
road cuts.   

Unlikely. Suitable habitat is absent 
from the Project site and surrounding 
lands. At most, an individual could 
pass through the site as a transient or 
during migration.     

blunt-nosed leopard 
lizard (Gambelia sila) 

FE, CE, 
CFP 

Inhabits semi-arid grasslands, 
alkali flats, low foothills, canyon 
floors, large washes, and arroyos, 
usually on sandy, gravelly, or 
loamy substrate, sometimes on 
hardpan. Often found where 
there are abundant rodent 
burrows in dense vegetation or 
tall grass. Cannot survive on 
lands under cultivation. Known 
to bask on kangaroo rat mounds 
and often seeks shelter at the 
base of shrubs, in small mammal 
burrows, or in rock piles. Adults 
may excavate shallow burrows, 
but rely on deeper pre-existing 
rodent burrows for hibernation 
and reproduction.  

Unlikely. The disturbed habitats, 
vegetative cover, and clay soils onsite 
are unsuitable for this species. The 
ruderal parcel is disced at least yearly 
for weed abatement and rodent 
burrows are absent.   
 
 



 

2-7 

Species Status Habitat Occurrence on Project Site 
burrowing owl (Athene 
cunicularia) 

CSC Resides in open, dry annual or 
perennial grasslands, deserts, and 
scrublands with low 
growing vegetation. Nests 
underground in existing burrows 
created by burrowing mammals, 
most often ground squirrels. 

Unlikely. Suitable nesting habitat for 
this species is absent from the Project 
area and surrounding lands. Foraging 
habitat is marginal. No ground squirrel 
individuals or burrows were observed 
onsite during the biological survey.  

California red-legged 
frog (Rana draytonii) 

FT Inhabits perennial rivers, creeks, 
and stock ponds with vegetative 
cover within the Coast Range and 
northern Sierra foothills. 

Absent. The Project area does not 
provide suitable habitat for this species 
and is outside of its current known 
range. 

coast horned lizard 
(Phrynosoma blainvillii) 

CSC Found in grasslands, coniferous 
forests, woodlands, and 
chaparral, primarily in open areas 
with patches of loose, sandy soil 
and low-lying vegetation in 
valleys, foothills, and semi-arid 
mountains.  Frequently found 
near ant hills and along dirt roads 
in lowlands along sandy washes 
with scattered shrubs. 

Absent. The highly disturbed habitats 
and vegetative cover of the Project 
area are unsuitable for this species.  
There are recorded observations of 
this species within the Alkali Sink 
Ecological Reserve, approximately 6.5 
miles southeast of the Project. 

Delta smelt (Hypomesus 
transpacificus) 

FT, CE This pelagic and euryhaline 
species is Endemic to the 
Sacramento-San Joaquin River 
Delta, upstream through Contra 
Costa, Sacramento, San Joaquin, 
and Solano Counties.  

Absent. Suitable perennial aquatic 
habitat for this species is absent from 
the Project area and surrounding 
lands. 

Fresno kangaroo rat 
(Dipodomys nitratoides 
exilis) 

FE, CE An inhabitant of alkali sink open 
grassland environments in 
western Fresno County. Prefers 
bare, alkaline, clay-based soils 
subject to seasonal inundation 
with more friable soil mounds 
around shrubs and grasses.  

Absent. The highly disturbed habitats 
of the Project area and surrounding 
lands are unsuitable for this species.   
There is a recorded observation of this 
species within the Alkali Sink 
Ecological Reserve in 1992, 
approximately 6.5 miles southeast of 
the Project.  The status of this 
observation has since been updated to 
“possibly extirpated,” which means 
the species has been searched for but 
unobserved for many years.   

giant gartersnake 
(Thamnophis gigas) 

FT, CT Occurs in marshes, sloughs, 
drainage canals, irrigation ditches, 
rice fields, and adjacent uplands. 
Prefers locations with emergent 
vegetation for cover and open 
areas for basking. This species 
uses small mammal burrows 
adjacent to aquatic habitats for 
hibernation in the winter and to 
escape from excessive heat in the 
summer.  

Absent. Habitats required by this 
species are absent from the Project 
area and surrounding lands.  



 

2-8 

Species Status Habitat Occurrence on Project Site 
giant kangaroo rat 
(Dipodomys ingens) 

FE, CE Inhabits annual grassland 
communities with few or no 
shrubs and well-drained, sandy-
loam soils on gentle slopes. 

Absent. The highly disturbed habitats 
of the Project area and surrounding 
lands are unsuitable for this species.   
This species was observed in 1987 
approximately 15 miles southwest of 
the Project.  The status of this 
observation has since been updated to 
“possibly extirpated,” which means 
the species has been searched for but 
unobserved for many years.   

longhorn fairy shrimp 
(Branchinecta 
longiantenna) 

FE Inhabits clear to turbid vernal 
pools or seasonally ponded areas. 

Unlikely. Traditional vernal pools are 
absent. Although the clay soils onsite 
are conducive to seasonal pooling, 
frequent disturbance, including ground 
disturbance associated with discing, 
makes the site unsuitable for this 
species. 

mountain plover 
(Charadrius montanus) 

CSC Breeds on open plains at 
moderate elevations. Winters in 
short-grass plains and fields, 
plowed or fallow fields, and 
sandy deserts. Prefers flat, bare 
ground with burrowing rodents.  

Possible. Burrowing rodents were not 
observed onsite during the biological 
survey. However, this species is 
known to winter in fallow fields in the 
vicinity.  Much of the ruderal site 
consists of fallow field and 
surrounding uses are fallow fields, 
which would provide suitable 
wintering habitat for this species.    

Nelson’s antelope 
squirrel 
(Ammospermophilus 
nelsoni) 

CT Found in the western San Joaquin 
Valley on dry, sparsely vegetated 
loamy soils. Relies heavily on 
existing small mammal burrows. 

Unlikely. The disturbed habitats, 
vegetative cover, and clay soils onsite 
are unsuitable for this species. The 
ruderal parcel is disced at least yearly 
for weed abatement and rodent 
burrows are absent.   
 

northern California 
legless lizard (Anniella 
pulchra) 

CSC Found primarily underground, 
burrowing in loose, sandy soil. 
Forages in loose soil and leaf litter 
during the day. Occasionally 
observed on the surface at dusk 
and night.  

Unlikely. The highly disturbed 
habitats and clay soils of the Project 
area are unsuitable for this species. 
The nearest observation of this species 
was approximately 5.5 miles north of 
the Project.  

San Joaquin coachwhip 
(Masticophis flagellum 
ruddocki) 

CSC Found in open dry habitats with 
little or no tree cover in valley 
grassland and saltbush scrub 
communities in the San Joaquin 
Valley. Relies on mammal 
burrows for refuge and 
oviposition sites. 

Absent. Mammal burrows were not 
observed onsite during the biological 
survey. The disturbed habitats of the 
site do not provide suitable habitat for 
this species. There is a recorded 
observation of this species within the 
Alkali Sink Ecological Reserve in 
2004, approximately 6.5 miles 
southeast of the Project.   



 

2-9 

Species Status Habitat Occurrence on Project Site 
San Joaquin kit fox 
(Vulpes macrotis 
mutica) 

FE, CT Underground dens with multiple 
entrances in alkali sink, valley 
grassland, and woodland in 
valleys and adjacent foothills. 

Unlikely. Burrows and suitable 
refugia are absent. Ground squirrels 
and rodents or associated sign were 
not observed, and therefore, foraging 
habitat is absent. The highly disturbed 
habitats of the Project area and 
fragmentation of the surrounding 
lands are generally unsuitable for this 
species. The Project is located 
approximately 20 miles east of the 
nearest known core population in 
Ciervo-Panoche Natural Area. 
Although some populations of San 
Joaquin Kit Fox in other parts of 
California have adapted to an 
urbanized environment, modern kit 
fox occurrences are locally scarce. At 
most, this species could conceivably 
pass through the Project area during 
dispersal movements, although that 
would be unlikely considering the 
Project is separated from the Ciervo-
Panoche core population by Interstate 
5 and miles of land intensively 
disturbed by agricultural practices.   

Steelhead – Central 
Valley DPS 
(Oncorhynchus mykiss 
irideus pop.11) 

FT This winter-fun fish begins 
migration to fresh water during 
peak flows during December and 
February. Spawning season is 
typically from February to April. 
After hatching, fry move to 
deeper, mid-channel habitats in 
late summer and fall. In general, 
both juveniles and adults prefer 
complex habitat boulders, 
submerged clay and undercut 
banks, and large woody debris.  

Absent. Suitable perennial aquatic 
habitat for this species is absent from 
the Project area and surrounding 
lands. 

Swainson’s hawk (Buteo 
swainsoni) 

CT Nests in large trees in open areas 
adjacent to grasslands, grain or 
alfalfa fields, or livestock pastures 
suitable for supporting rodent 
populations. 

Possible. Swainson’s hawks are not 
uncommon in this portion of the 
Central Valley. Nesting habitat is 
absent onsite and absence of rodents 
makes the ruderal field marginal, at 
best, for foraging. Large ornamental 
trees, associated with landscaping, 
could provide suitable nesting habitat, 
although the constant disturbance and 
presence of humans would likely 
discourage nesting in the few trees 
large enough to support a raptor nest 
in the vicinity. Swainson’s hawks may 
use fallow fields west of the Project 
for foraging.   



 

2-10 

Species Status Habitat Occurrence on Project Site 
tricolored blackbird 
(Agelaius tricolor) 

CCE, 
CSC 

Nests colonially near fresh water 
in dense cattails or tules, or in 
thickets of riparian shrubs. 
Forages in grassland and 
cropland. Large colonies are 
often found on dairy farm forage 
fields. 

Unlikely. Suitable nesting habitat is 
absent from the Project area and 
surrounding lands. Foraging habitat is 
marginal, at best. The nearest known 
occurrence of this species was 
recorded approximately 4.5 miles 
southeast of the Project area in 1994.   

Tulare grasshopper 
mouse (Onychomys 
torridus tularensis) 

CSC Typically inhabit arid shrubland 
communities in hot, arid 
grassland and shrubland 
associations. Diet consists almost 
exclusively of arthropods.  

Unlikely. The only recorded 
observation of this species in the 
vicinity of the Project is a historic 
collection from Panoche Creek in 
1918. 

two-striped gartersnake 
(Thamnophis 
hammondii) 

CSC Highly aquatic, found in or near 
permanent fresh water. Often 
along streams with rocky beds 
and riparian growth. 

Absent. Habitats required by this 
species are absent from the Project 
area and surrounding lands. 

vernal pool fairy shrimp 
(Branchinecta lynchi) 

FT Occupies vernal pools, clear to 
tea-colored water, in grass or 
mud-bottomed swales, and basalt 
depression pools. 

Unlikely. Traditional vernal pools are 
absent. Although the clay soils onsite 
are conducive to seasonal pooling, 
frequent disturbance, including ground 
disturbance associated with discing, 
makes the site unsuitable for this 
species. 

western mastiff bat 
(Eumops perotis 
californicus) 

CSC Found in open, arid to semi-arid 
habitats, including dry desert 
washes, flood plains, chaparral, 
oak woodland, open ponderosa 
pine forest, grassland, and 
agricultural areas, where it feeds 
on insects in flight. Roosts most 
commonly in crevices in cliff 
faces, but may also use high 
buildings and tunnels. 

Possible. Breeding habitat is absent 
from the Project area and surrounding 
lands. The ruderal field could be used 
for nocturnal foraging. 

western pond turtle 
(Emys marmorata) 

CSC An aquatic turtle of ponds, 
marshes, slow-moving rivers, 
streams, and irrigation ditches 
with riparian vegetation. Requires 
adequate basking sites and sandy 
banks or grassy open fields to 
deposit eggs. 

Absent. This species is known to 
occur in parts of the San Joaquin 
River, Fresno Slough, and Mendota 
Pool; however, the highly disturbed 
habitats of the Project area and 
surrounding lands are unsuitable due 
to frequent ground disturbance 
associated with discing. Major roads 
and urban development separate 
Mendota’s suitable aquatic features 
from the Project site. Therefore, it is 
extremely unlikely that even a highly 
mobile individual of this species would 
be able to reach the Project in seek of 
a nesting site.    

western red bat 
(Lasiurus blossevillii) 

CSC Roosts primarily in trees, 2-40 ft 
above ground, from sea level up 
through mixed conifer forests. 
Prefers habitat edges and mosaics 
with trees that are protected from 
above and open below with open 
areas for foraging. 

Possible. Breeding habitat is absent 
from the Project area and surrounding 
lands. The ruderal field could be used 
for nocturnal foraging. 



 

2-11 

Species Status Habitat Occurrence on Project Site 
western spadefoot 
(Spea hammondii) 

CSC Prefers open areas with sandy or 
gravelly soils, in a variety of 
habitats including mixed 
woodlands, grasslands, coastal 
sage scrub, chaparral, sandy 
washes, lowlands, river 
floodplains, alluvial fans, playas, 
alkali flats, foothills, and 
mountains. Vernal pools or 
temporary wetlands, lasting a 
minimum of three weeks, which 
do not contain bullfrogs, fish, or 
crayfish are necessary for 
breeding. 

Unlikely. The highly disturbed 
habitats of the Project area and 
surrounding lands are unsuitable for 
this species. Furthermore, the Project 
area and surrounding lands do not 
contain typical vernal pools or 
wetlands which are required for 
suitable breeding habitat. All 
occurrences in the vicinity have been 
reported within vernal pool in alkali 
sink and within undisturbed lands of 
ecological reserves.   

western yellow-billed 
cuckoo (Coccyzus 
americanus occidentalis) 

FT, CE Suitable nesting habitat in 
California includes dense 
riparian willow-cottonwood and 
mesquite habitats along a 
perennial river. Once a common 
breeding species in riparian 
habitats of lowland California, 
this species currently breeds 
consistently in only two 
locations in the State: along the 
Sacramento and South Fork 
Kern Rivers.  

Absent. Suitable nesting habitat for 
this species is absent from the Project 
area and surrounding lands. The 
nearest known occurrence of this 
species was recorded near the 
Mendota Pool, along the San Joaquin 
River, approximately 2.5 miles 
northeast of the Project area in 1950.  
The status of this observation has 
since been updated to “possibly 
extirpated,” which means evidence of 
habitat destruction or extirpation has 
been received by the CNDDB.   

yellow-headed blackbird 
(Xanthocephalus 
xanthocephalus) 

CSC Nests in freshwater emergent 
wetlands with dense vegetation 
and deep water. Often along 
borders of lakes or ponds. 

Absent. Suitable habitat is absent 
from the Project site and surrounding 
area. The most recent observation of 
this species in the Project’s vicinity 
occurred in 1919 at an unspecified 
location near the city of Los Banos. 



 

2-12 
 

Table 2.  List of Special Status Plants with Potential to Occur Onsite and/or in the Vicinity 

Species Status Habitat Occurrence on Project Site 

brittlescale (Atriplex 
depressa) 

CNPS 1B Found in the San Joaquin 

Valley and Sacramento Valley in 

alkali or clay soils in shadescale 

scrub, valley grassland, alkali 

sink, and riparian communities 

at elevations below 1050 feet. 

Equally likely to occur in 

wetlands and non-wetlands. 

Blooms June – October. 

Absent. The disturbed habitats of the 

Project site are unsuitable for this species. 

The nearest observation of this species 

was recorded approximately 5 miles east 

of the site in 2008.  

California alkali grass 
(Puccinellia simplex) 

CNPS 1B Found in the San Joaquin 

Valley and other parts of 

California in saline flats and 

mineral springs within valley 

grassland and wetland-riparian 

communities at elevations 

below 3000 feet. Blooms March 

– May. 

Absent. Suitable habitat required by this 

species is absent from the Project area 

and surrounding lands. The nearest 

known occurrence of this species was 

recorded approximately 13 miles 

northeast of the Project area in 2011.   

heartscale (Atriplex 
cordulata var. cordulata) 

CNPS 1B Found in the San Joaquin 

Valley and Sacramento Valley in 

alkaline flats and sandy soils in 

chenopod scrub, valley and 

foothill grassland, meadows and 

seeps at elevations up to 900 

feet. Blooms June – July. 

Absent. The disturbed habitats of the 

Project site are unsuitable for this species. 

The nearest observation of this species 

occurred within Mendota Wildlife Area, 

approximately 3 miles southeast of the 

Project site in 1996. 

lesser saltscale (Atriplex 
minuscula) 

CNPS 1B Found in the San Joaquin 

Valley in playas; sandy, alkaline 

soils in shadescale scrub, valley 

grassland, and alkali sink 

communities at elevations 

below 300 feet. Blooms April – 

October.  

Absent. The disturbed habitats of the 

Project site are unsuitable for this species. 

The nearest observation of this species 

occurred within Alkali Sink Ecological 

Reserve, approximately 5 miles southeast 

of the Project site in 2009. 

Lost Hills crownscale 
(Atriplex coronata var. 
vallicola) 

CNPS 1B Found in the San Joaquin 

Valley in chenopod scrub, 

valley and foothill grassland, 

and vernal pools at elevations 

below 1400 feet. Typically 

found in dried ponds on 

alkaline soils. Blooms April – 

September.   

Absent. The disturbed habitats of the 

Project site are unsuitable for this species. 

There are two recorded observations of 

this species in the vicinity of the Project. 

One occurrence is a historic collection 

(1937) from an unknown location in the 

vicinity of Mendota. The most recent 

occurrence is from 2008 near Alkali Sink 

Ecological Reserve, approximately 5 

miles east of the Project area.  



 

2-13 

Species Status Habitat Occurrence on Project Site 

Munz’s tidy-tips (Layia 
munzii) 

CNPS 1B Found in the San Joaquin 

Valley in alkali clay soils at 

elevations between 160 feet and 

2625 feet in shadescale scrub, 

valley grassland, and riparian 

communities. Occurs 

predominantly in wetlands, but 

occasionally found in non-

wetlands. Blooms March – 

April. 

Absent. The disturbed habitats of the 

Project site are unsuitable for this species. 

The only recent observation of this 

species was recorded in 2008 near Alkali 

Sink Ecological Reserve, approximately 5 

miles east of the Project.  

palmate-bracted bird’s 
beak (Chloropyron 
palmatum) 

FE, CE, 

CNPS 1B 

Found in the San Joaquin 

Valley and Sacramento Valley in 

alkaline soils (usually Pescadero 

silty clay) in chenopod scrub, 

valley and foothill grassland at 

elevations below 500 feet. 

Blooms June – August. 

Absent. The disturbed habitats of the 

Project site are unsuitable for this species. 

The only recent observation of this 

species was recorded in 2017 in Alkali 

Sink Ecological Reserve, approximately 5 

miles east of the Project. 

Panoche pepper-grass 
(Lepidium jaredii ssp. 
album) 

CNPS 1B Found on steep slopes, washes, 

alluvial-fans, and clay, 

sometimes alkaline, within 

Valley and Foothill Grassland 

communities in western Fresno 

County at elevations between 

600 feet and 2400 feet. Blooms 

February – June.  

Absent. Suitable habitat required by this 

species is absent from the Project area 

and surrounding lands. The Project area 

is also outside of the elevational range of 

this species. The only recorded 

observation of this species in the vicinity 

has been reportedly extirpated by gravel 

extraction activities.      

recurved larkspur 
(Delphinium recurvatum) 

CNPS 1B Found in the San Joaquin 

Valley and other parts of 

California. Occurs in poorly 

drained, fine, alkaline soils in 

grassland at elevations between 

100 feet and 1965 feet. Most 

often found in non-wetlands, 

but occasionally found in 

wetlands. Blooms March – 

June. 

Absent. The disturbed habitats of the 

Project site are unsuitable for this species. 

The nearest observation of this species 

corresponds to a historic (1903) 

collection mapped to the general area 

northeast of Mendota, exact location 

unknown.  

San Joaquin woollythreads 
(Monolopia congdonii) 

FE, CNPS 

1B 

Occurs in the San Joaquin 

Valley in sandy soils in 

shadescale shrub and grasslands 

at elevations between 300 feet 

and 2300 feet. Found primarily 

in non-wetlands, but 

occasionally found in wetlands. 

Blooms February – May. 

Absent. The disturbed habitats of the 

Project site are unsuitable for this species. 

The nearest observation of this species 

corresponds to a historic (1935) 

collection approximately 7 miles south of 

the Project area. The status of this 

observation has been updated to 

“possibly extirpated” due conversion of 

native habitat to irrigated agriculture.  



 

2-14 

Species Status Habitat Occurrence on Project Site 

Sanford’s arrowhead 
(Sagittaria sanfordii) 

CNPS 1B Found in the San Joaquin 

Valley and other parts of 

California in freshwater-marsh, 

primarily ponds and ditches, at 

elevations below 1000 feet. 

Blooms May – October. 

Absent. Habitats required by this species 

are absent from Project areas, and 

frequent ground disturbance further 

makes the site unsuitable.  

 

subtle orache (Atriplex 
subtilis) 

CNPS 1B Found in the San Joaquin 

Valley in saline depressions at 

elevations below 230 feet. 

Blooms June – October. 

Absent. The disturbed habitats of the 

Project site are unsuitable for this species. 

The nearest observation of this species 

was 14 miles northeast of the Project in 

2009. 

 

 

EXPLANATION OF OCCURRENCE DESIGNATIONS AND STATUS CODES 

Present:  Species observed on the site at time of field surveys or during recent past 
Likely:    Species not observed on the site, but it may reasonably be expected to occur there on a regular basis 
Possible:    Species not observed on the site, but it could occur there from time to time 
Unlikely:    Species not observed on the site, and would not be expected to occur there except, perhaps, as a transient 
Absent:    Species not observed on the site, and precluded from occurring there due to absence of suitable habitat 
 

STATUS CODES 

FE Federally Endangered   CE California Endangered 
FT Federally Threatened   CT California Threatened 
FPE Federally Endangered (Proposed)  CCT California Threatened (Candidate) 
FPT Federally Threatened (Proposed)   CFP California Fully Protected 
FC Federal Candidate    CSC California Species of Special Concern   

CWL        California Watch List 
CCE        California Endangered (Candidate) 
CR  California Rare 

CNPS LISTING 

1A Plants Presumed Extinct in California  2 Plants Rare, Threatened, or Endangered in  
1B Plants Rare, Threatened, or Endangered in  California, but more common elsewhere 
 California and elsewhere 

 
 



 

3-1 
 

3 Impacts and Mitigation 

3.1 Significance Criteria 

3.1.1 CEQA 

General plans, area plans, and specific projects are subject to the provisions of CEQA. The purpose of 
CEQA is to assess the impacts of proposed projects on the environment prior to project implementation. 
Impacts to biological resources are just one type of environmental impact assessed under CEQA, and vary 
from project to project in terms of scope and magnitude. Projects requiring removal of vegetation may result 
in the mortality or displacement of animals associated with this vegetation. Animals adapted to humans, 
roads, buildings, and pets may replace those species formerly occurring on a site. Plants and animals that are 
state and/or federally listed as threatened or endangered may be destroyed or displaced. Sensitive habitats 
such as wetlands and riparian woodlands may be altered or destroyed. Such impacts may be considered either 
“significant” or “less than significant” under CEQA. According to California Environmental Quality Act, Statute 
and Guidelines (AEP 2012), “significant effect on the environment” means a substantial, or potentially 
substantial, adverse change in any of the physical conditions within the area affected by the project including 
land, air, water, minerals, flora, fauna, ambient noise, and objects of historic or aesthetic interest. Specific 
project impacts to biological resources may be considered “significant” if they would: 

• Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or through habitat modifications, on any species 
identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, policies, or 
regulations, or by the CDFW or USFWS; 

• Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community 
identified in local or regional plans, policies, regulations or by the CDFW or USFWS; 

• Have a substantial adverse effect on federally protected wetlands as defined by Section 404 of the 
Clean Water Act (including, but not limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct 
removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or other means; 

• Interfere substantially with the movement of any native resident or migratory fish or wildlife species 
or with established native resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use of native 
wildlife nursery sites; 

• Conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, such as a tree 
preservation policy or ordinance; or 

• Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Community 
Conservation Plan, or other approved local, regional, or state habitat conservation plan. 

Furthermore, CEQA Guidelines Section 15065(a) states that a project may trigger the requirement to make a 
“mandatory finding of significance” if the project has the potential to: 

“Substantially degrade the quality of the environment, substantially reduce the 
habitat of a fish or wildlife species cause a fish or wildlife population to drop 
below self-sustaining levels threaten to eliminate a plant or animal community, 
reduce the number or restrict the range of an endangered, rare or threatened 
species, or eliminate important examples of the major periods of California history 
or prehistory.”  



 

3-2 
 

3.1.2 NEPA 
 
Federal projects are subject to the provisions of NEPA. The purpose of NEPA is to assess the effects of a 
proposed action on the human environment, assess the significance of those effects, and recommend 
measures that if implemented would mitigate those effects. As used in NEPA, a determination that certain 
effects on the human environment are “significant” requires considerations of both context and intensity 
(CFR 1508.27).  
 
Context means that the significance of an action must be analyzed in terms of the affected environment in 
which a proposed action would occur. For the purposes of assessing effects of an action on biological 
resources, the relevant context is often local, which means the analysis requires a comparison of the action 
area’s biological resources to the biological resources of the local area. However, the analysis may also require 
a comparison of the action area’s biological resources with the biological resources of an entire region.  
 
Intensity refers to the severity of impact. In considering intensity of impact to biological resources, it is 
necessary to address the unique qualities of wetlands and ecologically critical areas that may be affected, the 
degree to which the action will be controversial, the degree to which the effects will be controversial, the 
degree to which the effects will be uncertain, the degree to which the action will establish a precedent for 
future actions with potentially significant effects, and the potential for the action to result in cumulatively 
significant effects. 
 
The effects of an action on some biological resources are generally considered to be “significant.” An action 
that adversely affects federally listed threatened or endangered species, waters of the United States, or 
migratory movements of fish and wildlife are some examples of significant effects.  
 
NEPA requires disclosure of feasible mitigation measures for the effects of an action on the environment. 
Suitable measures include the following: 

a) Avoidance of the effect by not taking a certain action or parts of an action. 
b) Mitigation of the effect by limiting the degree or magnitude of the action and its implementation. 
c) Rectifying the effect by repairing, rehabilitating, or restoring the affected environment. 
d) Reducing or eliminating the effect over time by preservation and maintenance operations 

throughout the life of the action. 
e) Compensating for the effect by replacing or providing substitute resources or environments.  

 
This report identifies likely effects of an action, identifies those that may be considered significant pursuant to 
the provisions of NEPA, and provides mitigation measures to avoid adverse effects to biological resources.   



 

3-3 
 

3.2 Relevant Goals, Policies, and Laws 

3.2.1 City of Mendota General Plan Update 

The City of Mendota General Plan Update (2005-2025) sets forth the following goals and policies that protect 
biological resources and which have potential relevance to the Project’s CEQA review:  

Goal OSC-7: Preservation of important ecological and biological resources, including habitat for flora and 
fauna. 

Policy OSC-7.1: The City shall require a biological resources evaluation for private and public development 
projects in areas identified to contain or possibly contain listed plant and/or wildlife species based upon the 
City’s biological resource mapping provided in the General plan EIR or other technical materials. This 
evaluation shall be conducted prior to the authorization of any ground disturbance.  

Policy OSC-7.5: If habitat for Swainson’s hawk is present, a protocol-level survey shall be conducted in 
accordance with Recommended Timing and Methodology for Swainson’s Hawk Nesting Surveys in California’s Central 
Valley (Swainson’s Hawk Technical Advisory Committee, 2000), to include the following: 

1) Schedule construction activities to avoid nesting activities. The avian breeding window on 
average is between February 1 and August 30, which complies with the Migratory Bird Treaty 
Act and Section 3503.5 of the FGC, therefore construction activities should occur between 
September and January. 

2) Conduct all vegetation clearing (including trees, shrubs, and bushes) outside of the nesting 
season. If clearing of any vegetation and/or construction activities occur during the avian 
breeding window, then preconstruction surveys for nesting raptors shall be conducted up to 30 
days before construction. The qualified biologist shall survey the construction zone and a 100-
foot radius surrounding the construction zone to determine whether the activities taking place 
have the potential to disturb or otherwise harm nesting birds. 

3) If an active nest is located within the 100-foot area surrounding the construction zone and 
construction must take place during the breeding season, a buffer zone shall be established by 
the biologist and confirmed by the appropriate resource agency and a qualified biologist shall 
monitor the nest to determine when the young have fledged and submit bi-weekly reports to City 
of Mendota planning Department throughout the nesting season. The biological monitor shall 
have the authority to cease construction if there is any sign of distress to the raptor. Reference to 
this requirement, the MBTA, and Section 3503.5 of the FGC shall be included in the 
construction specifications.  

3.2.2 Threatened and Endangered Species 

Permits may be required from the USFWS and/or CDFW if activities associated with a Project have the 
potential to result in the “take” of a species listed as threatened or endangered under the federal and/or state 
Endangered Species Acts. “Take” is defined by the state of California as “to hunt, pursue, catch, capture, or 
kill, or attempt to hunt, pursue, catch, capture or kill” (California Fish and Game Code, Section 86). “Take” is 
more broadly defined by the federal Endangered Species Act to include “harm” (16 USC, Section 1532(19), 
50 CFR, Section 17.3). The CDFW and the USFWS are responding agencies under CEQA. Both agencies 



 

3-4 
 

review CEQA documents in order to determine the adequacy of their treatment of endangered species issues 
and to make project-specific recommendations for their conservation. 

3.2.3 Designated Critical Habitat 

When species are listed as threatened or endangered, the USFWS often designates areas of “Critical Habitat” 
as defined by section 3(5)(A) of the federal Endangered Species Act (ESA). Critical Habitat is a term defined 
in the ESA as a specific geographic area that contains features essential for the conservation of a threatened 
or endangered species and that may require special management and protection. Critical Habitat is a tool that 
supports the continued conservation of imperiled species by guiding cooperation with the federal 
government. Designations only affect federal agency actions or federally funded or permitted activities. 
Critical Habitat does not prevent activities that occur within the designated area. Only activities that involve a 
federal permit, license, or funding and are likely to destroy or adversely modify Critical Habitat will be 
affected.  

3.2.4 Migratory Birds 

The Federal Migratory Bird Treaty Act (MBTA: 16 USC 703-712) prohibits killing, possessing, or trading in 
any bird species covered in one of four international conventions to which the United States is a party, except 
in accordance with regulations prescribed by the Secretary of the Interior. The name of the act is misleading, 
as it actually covers almost all bird’s native to the United States, even those that are non-migratory. The 
MBTA encompasses whole birds, parts of birds, and bird nests and eggs. Additionally, California Fish and 
Game Code makes it unlawful to take or possess any non-game bird covered by the MBTA (Section 3513), as 
well as any other native non-game bird (Section 3800). 

3.2.5 Birds of Prey 

Birds of prey are protected in California under provisions of Fish and Game Code (Section 3503.5), which 
states that it is unlawful to take, possess, or destroy any birds in the order Falconiformes (hawks and eagles) 
or Strigiformes (owls), as well as their nests and eggs. The bald eagle and golden eagle are afforded additional 
protection under the federal Bald and Golden Eagle Protection Act (16 USC 668), which makes it unlawful to 
kill birds or their eggs. 

3.2.6 Nesting Birds 

In California, protection is afforded to the nests and eggs of all birds. California Fish and Game Code 
(Section 3503) states that it is “unlawful to take, possess, or needlessly destroy the nest or eggs of any bird 
except as otherwise provided by this code or any regulation adopted pursuant thereto.” Breeding-season 
disturbance that causes nest abandonment and/or loss of reproductive effort is considered a form of “take” 
by the CDFW. 

3.2.7 Wetlands and other “Jurisdictional Waters” 

Natural drainage channels and adjacent wetlands may be considered “waters of the United States” or 
“jurisdictional waters” subject to the jurisdiction of the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE). The extent 



 

3-5 
 

of jurisdiction has been defined in the Code of Federal Regulations but has also been subject to interpretation 
of the federal courts. Jurisdictional waters generally include: 
 

• All waters which are currently used, or were used in the past, or may be susceptible to use in 
interstate or foreign commerce, including all waters which are subject to the ebb and flow of the tide; 

• All interstate waters including interstate wetlands; 

• All other waters such as intrastate lakes, rivers, streams (including intermittent streams), mudflats, 
sandflats, wetlands, sloughs, prairie potholes, wet meadows, playa lakes, or natural ponds, the use, 
degradation or destruction of which could affect interstate or foreign commerce; 

• All impoundments of waters otherwise defined as waters of the United States under the definition; 

• Tributaries of waters identified in paragraphs (a)(1)-(4) (i.e. the bulleted items above). 

As determined by the United States Supreme Court in its 2001 Solid Waste Agency of Northern Cook County v. 
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (SWANCC) decision, channels and wetlands isolated from other jurisdictional 
waters cannot be considered jurisdictional on the basis of their use, hypothetical or observed, by migratory 
birds. Similarly, in its 2006 consolidated Carabell/Rapanos decision, the U.S. Supreme Court ruled that a 
significant nexus between a wetland and other navigable waters must exist for the wetland itself to be 
considered a navigable and therefore jurisdictional water. Furthermore, the Supreme Court clarified that the 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the USACE will not assert jurisdiction over ditches excavated 
wholly in and draining only uplands and that do not carry a relatively permanent flow of water.  

The USACE regulates the filling or grading of Waters of the U.S. under the authority of Section 404 of the 
Clean Water Act. The extent of jurisdiction within drainage channels is defined by “ordinary high water 
marks” on opposing channel banks. All activities that involve the discharge of dredge or fill material into 
Waters of the U.S. are subject to the permit requirements of the USACE. Such permits are typically issued on 
the condition that the applicant agrees to provide mitigation that result in no net loss of wetland functions or 
values. No permit can be issued until the Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) issues a Section 
401 Water Quality Certification (or waiver of such certification) verifying that the proposed activity will meet 
state water quality standards. 

Under the Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act of 1969, the State Water Resources Control Board has 
regulatory authority to protect the water quality of all surface water and groundwater in the State of California 
(“Waters of the State”). Nine RWQCBs oversee water quality at the local and regional level. The RWQCB for 
a given region regulates discharges of fill or pollutants into Waters of the State through the issuance of 
various permits and orders. Discharges into Waters of the State that are also Waters of the U.S. require a 
Section 401 Water Quality Certification from the RWQCB as a prerequisite to obtaining certain federal 
permits, such as a Section 404 Clean Water Act permit. Discharges into all Waters of the State, even those 
that are not also Waters of the U.S., require Waste Discharge Requirements (WDRs), or waivers of WDRs, 
from the RWQCB. The RWQCB also administers the Construction Storm Water Program and the federal 
National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) program. Projects that disturb one or more acres 
of soil must obtain a Construction General Permit under the Construction Storm Water Program. A 
prerequisite for this permit is the development of a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) by a 
certified Qualified SWPPP Developer. Projects that discharge wastewater, storm water, or other pollutants 
into a Water of the U.S. may require a NPDES permit. 

CDFW has jurisdiction over the bed and bank of natural drainages and lakes according to provisions of 
Section 1601 and 1602 of the California Fish and Game Code. Activities that may substantially modify such 
waters through the diversion or obstruction of their natural flow, change or use of any material from their 
bed or bank, or the deposition of debris require a Notification of Lake or Streambed Alteration. If CDFW 
determines that the activity may adversely affect fish and wildlife resources, a Lake or Streambed Alteration 
Agreement will be prepared. Such an agreement typically stipulates that certain measures will be implemented 
to protect the habitat values of the lake or drainage in question.  



 

3-6 
 

3.3 Potentially Significant Project-Related Impacts and Mitigation 

Species identified as candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans policies or 
regulations by CDFW or the USFWS that have the potential to be impacted by the Proposed Project are 
identified below with corresponding mitigation measures. 

3.3.1 Project-Related Mortality and/or Disturbance of Nesting Raptors, Migratory 
Birds, and Special Status Birds (Including Swainson’s Hawk and Mountain 
Plover) 

Although burrowing rodents were not detected during the biological survey, a pair of American kestrels were 
observed foraging over the site, and a red-tailed hawk was observed perched on a light pole, overlooking a 
fallow field in the vicinity. Portions of the Project site contain marginal foraging habitat for several avian 
species, including the Swainson’s hawk. Although the Project site does not contain any trees, there are a few 
ornamental trees in the vicinity large enough to house a raptor nest, and smaller avian species may nest within 
ornamental trees and shrubs in the vicinity. Ground-nesting birds, such as the killdeer could nest on the bare 
ground, and swallows could nest within buildings or structures in the vicinity.  
 
Swainson’s hawks are common in this portion of Fresno County, and there are known nest trees within five 
miles of the Project site. In the absence of preferred habitat, especially within the Central Valley, Swainson’s 
hawks often nest within eucalyptus trees lining highways, and several raptor species nest within ornamental 
Mexican fan palms. Although nesting habitat onsite and in the vicinity is not ideal due to the absence of 
native riparian trees, and foraging habitat is suboptimal, raptors, such as the special status Swainson’s hawk 
could conceivably nest or forage near Project areas. In the event that a Swainson’s hawk or other avian 
species is foraging within the Project site during construction activities, the individual would be expected to 
fly away from disturbance they encounter, subsequently eliminating the risk of injury or mortality while 
foraging. Birds nesting within the Project site could be injured or killed by Project activities. Furthermore, 
construction activities could disturb birds nesting within or adjacent to work areas, resulting in nest 
abandonment. Project construction activities that adversely affect the nesting success of raptors and 
migratory birds or result in the mortality of individual birds constitutes a violation of State and federal laws 
and is considered a significant impact under CEQA. 
 
Although they do not breed in California, mountain plovers are known to winter in fallow fields of the 
Central Valley. Since they do not breed in this region, loss of nesting habitat and disruption of reproductive 
success is not a concern for this Project, although a wintering mountain plover onsite could potentially be 
injured or killed by construction activities. Then again, avian species are highly mobile and would be expected 
to simply fly away from a disturbance.  
 
As previously mentioned, due to the developed and ruderal nature of the lands, nesting and foraging habitat 
for raptors, resident and migratory birds, and special status birds within the Project area is marginal, at best. 
Habitat of higher foraging and nesting value is regionally abundant. Therefore, the development resulting 
from implementation of the Project would not be considered a significant loss of foraging or nesting habitat 
under CEQA or NEPA.  
 
Nesting bird season is generally accepted as February 1 through August 31; however, Swainson’s hawk 
nesting season is generally accepted as March 1 through September 15. For simplicity, these timeframes have 
been combined. 
 
Implementation of the following measures will reduce potential impacts to nesting raptors, migratory birds, 
and special status birds, including Swainson’s hawk to a less than significant level under CEQA and NEPA, 
and will ensure compliance with State and federal laws protecting these avian species.  



 

3-7 
 

Mitigation. The following measures will be implemented prior to the start of construction: 

Mitigation Measure 3.3.1a (Avoidance): The Project’s construction activities shall occur, if 
feasible, between September 16 and January 31 (outside of nesting bird season) in an effort to avoid 
impacts to nesting birds.  
 
Mitigation Measure 3.3.1b (Pre-construction Surveys): If activities must occur within nesting 
bird season (February 1 to September 15), a qualified biologist shall conduct pre-construction surveys 
for active nests within 30 days prior to the start of construction. The survey shall include the 
proposed work area and surrounding lands within 0.5 mile. If no active nests are observed, no 
further mitigation is required. Raptor nests are considered “active” upon the nest-building stage.   
 
Mitigation Measure 3.3.1c (Establish Buffers): On discovery of any active nests near work areas, 
the biologist shall determine appropriate construction setback distances based on applicable CDFW 
and/or USFWS guidelines and/or the biology of the species in question. Construction buffers shall 
be identified with flagging, fencing, or other easily visible means, and shall be maintained until the 
biologist has determined that the nestlings have fledged.  
 

3.3.2 Project-Related Impacts to Special Status Bats (Including Western Mastiff Bat 
and Western Red Bat) 

Although roosting and breeding habitat is absent, the ruderal fallow portion of the site could serve as 
marginal foraging habitat for bats, including the western mastiff bat and western red bat. If a special status bat 
were foraging onsite, it could be injured or killed by construction activities. Projects that adversely affect the 
reproductive success of special status species or result in the mortality of special status species is considered a 
violation of state and federal laws and are considered a potentially significant impact under CEQA. 
 
Implementation of the following measure will reduce potential impacts to foraging special status bats to a less 
than significant level under CEQA, and will ensure compliance with State and federal laws protecting this 
species.  

Mitigation. The following measures will be implemented during or prior to the start of construction: 

Mitigation Measure 3.3.2a (Operational Hours): Construction activities shall be limited to daylight hours 
to reduce potential impacts to special status bats that could be foraging onsite. 

3.4 Less Than Significant Project-Related Impacts 

3.4.1 Project-Related Impacts to Special Status Plant Species 

Twelve special status plant species have been documented in the Project vicinity, including brittlescale 
(Atriplex depressa), California alkali grass (Puccinellia simplex), heartscale (Atriplex cordulata var. cordulata), lesser 
saltscale (Atriplex miniscula), Lost Hills crownscale (Atriplex coronata var. vallicola), Munz’s tidy-tips (Layia 
munzii), palmate-bracted bird’s beak (Chloropyron palmatum), Panoche pepper-grass (Lepidium jaredii ssp. album), 
recurneved larkspur (Delphinium recurvatum), San Joaquín woollythreads (Monolopia congdonii), Sanford’s 
arrowhead (Sagittaria sanfordii), and subtle orache (Atriplex subtilis). None of these species were observed 
during the biological survey, which was conducted in Spring, during the typical blooming season for many of 
these species. In fact, the biological survey revealed a heavily disturbed lot of land overgrown with weedy 
invasive plant species. As explained in Table 2, all of the aforementioned special status plant species are 
absent from the Project area due to past and ongoing disturbance and/or the absence of suitable habitat. 



 

3-8 
 

Therefore, the implementation of the Project will have no effect on individual plants or regional populations 
of these special status plant species. Mitigation measures are not warranted.  

3.4.2 Project-Related Impacts to Special Status Animal Species Absent From, or 
Unlikely to Occur on, the Project Site 

Of the 28 regionally occurring special status species, 24 are considered absent or unlikely to occur within the 
Project area due to past or ongoing disturbance and/or absence of suitable habitat. As explained in Table 1, 
the following species were deemed absent from the Project area: American badger (Taxidea taxus), California 
red-legged frog (Rana draytonii), coast horned lizard (Phrynosoma blainvillii), Delta smelt (Hypomesus transpacificus), 
Fresno kangaroo rat (Dipodomys nitratoides exilis), giant gartersnake (Thamnophis gigas), giant kangaroo rat 
(Dipodomys ingens), San Joaquin coachwhip (Masticophis flagellum ruddocki), Steelhead-Central Valley DPS 
(Oncorhynchus mykiss irideus pop.11), two-striped gartersnake (Thamnophis hammondii), western pond turtle (Emys 
marmorata), western yellow-billed cuckoo (Coccyzus americanus occidentalis), and yellow-headed blackbird 
(Xanthocephalus xanthocephalus), and the following species were deemed unlikely to occur within the Project 
area: bank swallow (Riparia riparia), blunt-nosed leopard lizard (Gambelia sila), burrowing owl (Athene 
cunicularia), longhorn fairy shrimp (Branchinecta longiantenna), Nelson’s antelope squirrel (Ammospermophilus 
nelson), northern California legless lizard (Anniella pulchra), San Joaquin kit fox (Vulpes macrotis mutica), 
tricolored blackbird (Agelaius tricolor), Tulare grasshopper mouse (Onychomys torridus tularensis), vernal pool fairy 
shrimp (Branchinecta lynchi), and western spadefoot (Spea hammondii). Therefore, implementation of the Project 
will have no impact on these 24 special status species through construction mortality, disturbance, or loss of 
habitat. Mitigation measures are not warranted.  
 



 

3-9 
 

3.4.3 Project-Related Impacts to Jurisdictional Waters, Wetlands, Navigable Waters, 
Wild and Scenic Rivers, or other Water Features, and Riparian Habitat 

The only aquatic feature onsite is a dry, isolated, excavated irrigation ditch with no connection to navigable 
waters or a natural drainage channel with a bed or bank, and therefore it can be reasonably assumed that 
jurisdictional waters are absent. A small amount of riparian vegetation is present within the dry excavated 
irrigation ditch due to lack of recent vegetation maintenance; however, the site is diced and cleared for weed 
abatement at least once per year and does not provide suitable habitat for wildlife species. The Project does 
not propose impacts or discharge to any surface waters. Regardless, due to proposed ground disturbance of 
an area greater than one acre in size, the Project will implement a SWPPP. For all of these reasons, 
implementation of the Project should have no impact on jurisdictional waters, wetlands, navigable waters, 
wild and scenic rivers, or other water features, and riparian habitat. Furthermore, the Project will not impact 
any bodies of water and will not require compliance with the Fish and Wildlife Coordination Act. Mitigation 
measures are not warranted.  

3.4.4 Project-Related Impacts to Wildlife Movement Corridors 

The Project area does not contain features that would be likely to function as wildlife movement corridors. 
Furthermore, the Project is located in a region often disturbed by intensive agricultural cultivation practices 
and human disturbance which would discourage dispersal and migration. Therefore, implementation of the 
Project will have no impact on wildlife movement corridors. Mitigation is not warranted. 

3.4.5 Project-Related Impacts to Critical Habitat  

Designated critical habitat is absent from the Project area and surrounding lands. Therefore, there will be no 
impact to critical habitat, and mitigation is not warranted.  

3.4.6 Local Policies or Habitat Conservation Plans 

Proposed Project design appears to be consistent with the goals and policies of the Fresno County General 
Plan. There are no known habitat conservation plans in the Project vicinity. Mitigation is not warranted.  

3.4.7 Coastal Zone and Coastal Barriers Resources Act 

The Project is not located within the coastal zone. The Project will not impact or be located within or near 
the Coastal Barrier Resources System or its adjacent wetlands, marshes, estuaries, inlets, and near-shore 
waters. Mitigation is not warranted. 

3.4.8 Project-Related Impact to Essential Fish Habitat 

Essential Fish Habitat (EFH) and Habitat Areas of Particular Concern (HAPC) are absent from the Project 
area and surrounding lands, and consultation with the National Marine Fisheries (NMFS) Service will not be 
required. Query results of the NMFS EHF Mapper can be found in Appendix D at the end of this 
document. Mitigation is not warranted. 

3.5 Section 7 Determination 

In addition to the effects analysis performed in Sections 2 and 3 of this document, Error! Reference source 
not found. summarizes Project effect determinations for Federally Listed Species found on the USFWS IPaC 
list generated on March 12, 2019 (Appendix C), in accordance with Section 7 of the Endangered Species Act.  



 

3-10 
 

Table 3.  Section 7 Determinations 

Species Determination Rationale for Determination 

Fresno kangaroo rat 
(Dipodomys nitratoides 
exilis) 

No effect Habitat absent. 
No observations in the vicinity 
for more than 25 years. 

giant kangaroo rat 
(Dipodomys ingens) 

No effect Habitat absent. 
No observations in the vicinity 
for more than 30 years. 

San Joaquin kit fox (Vulpes 
macrotis mutica) 

No effect Habitat absent. 
No observations in the vicinity 
for more than 25 years. 

yellow-billed cuckoo 
(Coccyzus americanus) 

No effect Habitat absent.  
No observations in the vicinity 
for more than 65 years. 

blunt-nosed leopard lizard 
(Gambelia sila) 

No effect Habitat absent. 
 

giant gartersnake 
(Thamnophis gigas) 

No effect Habitat absent. 
 

California red-legged frog 
(Rana draytonii) 

No effect Habitat absent. 
Project area is outside of the 
known distribution range of this 
species. 

Delta smelt (Hypomesus 
transpacificus) 

No effect Habitat absent. Water features 
absent from the site and 
surrounding areas. The Project 
does not include lake or 
streambed altering activities. 
Therefore, there is no potential 
for indirect downstream effects.  

vernal pool fairy shrimp 
(Branchinecta lynchi) 

No effect Habitat absent. 



 

4-1 
 

4 References 
Baldwin, B.G., D.H. Goldman, D.J. Keil, R. Patterson, T.J. Rosatti, and D.G. Wilken, editors. 2012. The 

Jepson Manual; Vascular Plants of California, second edition. University of California Press, Berkeley. 

Staff Report on Burrowing Owl Mitigation. State of California Natural Resources Agency. Prepared by The 
Department of Fish and Game. March, 2012. Available online at: 
https://nrm.dfg.ca.gov/FileHandler.ashx?DocumentID=83843&inline=true (Accessed March and 
April 2019).   

Calflora: Information on California Plants for Education, Research and Conservation. 2019. Berkeley, CA. 
Available online at: http://www.calflora.org/ (Accessed March and April 2019).  

California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW). 2019. California Natural Diversity Database. The 
Resources Agency, Sacramento, CA.  

California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW). 2019. California Wildlife Habitat Relationships 
(CHWR). Available online at: https://www.wildlife.ca.gov/Data/CWHR (Accessed March and April 
2019).  

California Native Plant Society. 2019. Inventory of Rare and Endangered Vascular Plants of California. 
Available online at: http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/ (Accessed March and April 2019). 

City of Mendota General Plan Update 2005-2025. (Adopted 2009). Available online at: 
http://ci.mendota.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/City-of-Mendota-General-Plan-Update.pdf 
(Accessed March and April 2019). 

eBird. 2019. eBird: An online database of bird distribution and abundance [web application]. eBird, Cornell 
Lab of Ornithology, Ithaca, New York. Available online at: https://ebird.org/ (Accessed March and 
April 2019).  

EPA Waters GeoViewer. 
https://epa.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=ada349b90c26496ea52aab66a092593
b (Accessed March and April 2019) 

Jepson Flora Project (eds.) 2019. Jepson eFlora. Available online at: http://ucjeps.berkeley.edu/eflora/ 
(Accessed March and April 2019).  

 
Laymon, S. and Halterman, M. Habitat Management for Yellow-Billed Cuckoos in California. USDA Forest 

Service Gen. Tech. Rep. PSW-110. 1989. Available online at: 
https://www.fs.fed.us/psw/publications/documents/psw_gtr110/psw_gtr110_f_laymon.pdf 
(Accessed March and April 2019).  

 
McBride, J. and Reid, C. .  California Wildlife Habitat Relationships System: Urban. California Department of 

Fish and Game and California Interagency Wildlife Task Group. Available online at:  
https://nrm.dfg.ca.gov/FileHandler.ashx?DocumentID=67420&inline (Accessed March and April 
2019). 

Nafis, G. 2019. California Herps: A Guide to the Amphibians and Reptiles of California. Available online at: 
http://www.californiaherps.com/ (Accessed March and April 2019).  

https://nrm.dfg.ca.gov/FileHandler.ashx?DocumentID=83843&inline=true
http://www.calflora.org/
https://www.wildlife.ca.gov/Data/CWHR
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/
http://ci.mendota.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/City-of-Mendota-General-Plan-Update.pdf
https://ebird.org/
https://epa.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=ada349b90c26496ea52aab66a092593b
https://epa.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=ada349b90c26496ea52aab66a092593b
http://ucjeps.berkeley.edu/eflora/
https://www.fs.fed.us/psw/publications/documents/psw_gtr110/psw_gtr110_f_laymon.pdf
https://nrm.dfg.ca.gov/FileHandler.ashx?DocumentID=67420&inline
http://www.californiaherps.com/


 

4-2 
 

National Wetlands Inventiory (NWI) map. https://www.fws.gov/wetlands/Data/Mapper.html (Accessed 
March and April 2019). 

Natural Resources Conservation Service. 2018. Custom Soil Resources Report, California. U.S. Department 
of Agriculture. Available online at: https://websoilsurvey.sc.egov.usda.gov/App/WebSoilSurvey.aspx 
(accessed March and April 2019).  

NatureServe Explorer: An Online Encyclopedia of Life. 2019. Available online at: 
http://explorer.natureserve.org/ (Accessed March and April 2019). 

Recommended Timing and Methodology for Swainson’s Hawk Nesting Surveys in California’s Central Valley. 
Prepared by the Swainson’s Hawk Technical Advisory Committee (TAC). May 31, 2000. Available 
online at: https://www.wildlife.ca.gov/Conservation/Birds/Swainson-Hawks (Accessed March and 
April 2019).  

Reese, D.A. and Welsh, H.H. Use of terrestrial habitat by western pond turtles, Clemys marmorata: Implications 
for management. 1997. USDA Forest Service. Arcata, CA. 

Shuford, W.D., and Gardali, T., editors. 2008. California Bird Species of Special Concern: A ranked 
assessment of species, subspecies, and distinct populations of birds of immediate conservation concern 
in California. Studies of Western Birds 1. Western Field Ornithologists, Camarillo, California, and 
California Department of Fish and Game, Sacramento.  

Smith, D; et al. Relative Abundance of Endangered San Joaquin Kit Foxes (Vulpes macrotis mutica) Based on 
Scat-Detection Dog Surveys. The Southwestern Naturalist. 51 (2): 210-219. June 2006. Available online 
at: 
http://www.carangeland.org/images/Relative_Abundance_of_Endangered_San_Joaquin_Kit_Foxes_B
ased_on_Scat-Detection.pdf (Accessed March and April 2019). 

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE). 1987. Corps of Engineers Wetlands Delineation Manual. 
Department of the Army. 

USDA, NRCS. 2019. The Plants Database. Available online at: https://plants.sc.egov.usda.gov/java/ 
(Accessed March and April 2019).  

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service Environmental Conservation Online System (ECOS). 2019. Available online at: 
https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/ (Accessed March and April 2019).  

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service. 2019. Official Species List, Information on Planning and Consultation (IPaC). 

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service Standardized Recommendations for Protection of the Endangered San Joaquin 
Kit Fox Prior to or During Ground Disturbance. Prepared by the Sacramento Fish and Wildlife Office. 
January, 2011. Available online at: https://www.fws.gov/sacramento/es/Survey-Protocols-
Guidelines/Documents/kitfox_standard_rec_2011.pdf (Accessed March and April 2019).  

 
Williams, D. F., et al. Recovery Plan for Upland Species of the San Joaquin Valley, California. 1998. Region 1. 

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service. Portland, Oregon.  
 

https://www.fws.gov/wetlands/Data/Mapper.html
https://websoilsurvey.sc.egov.usda.gov/App/WebSoilSurvey.aspx
http://explorer.natureserve.org/
https://www.wildlife.ca.gov/Conservation/Birds/Swainson-Hawks
http://www.carangeland.org/images/Relative_Abundance_of_Endangered_San_Joaquin_Kit_Foxes_Based_on_Scat-Detection.pdf
http://www.carangeland.org/images/Relative_Abundance_of_Endangered_San_Joaquin_Kit_Foxes_Based_on_Scat-Detection.pdf
https://plants.sc.egov.usda.gov/java/
https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/
https://www.fws.gov/sacramento/es/Survey-Protocols-Guidelines/Documents/kitfox_standard_rec_2011.pdf
https://www.fws.gov/sacramento/es/Survey-Protocols-Guidelines/Documents/kitfox_standard_rec_2011.pdf


 

A-1 
 

Appendix A.  Selected Photographs of the Project Site 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

A-2 
 

 
 

 
 
Photograph 1: Overview of the ruderal lot west of the existing park boundaries. 



 

A-3 
 

 
 
Photograph 2: Overview of the north-south ruderal excavated ditch onsite. The fenced soccer field is visible 
in the left margin of the photograph. 



 

A-4 
 

 
 
Photograph 3: Overview of the east-west ruderal excavated ditch onsite. The adjacent subdivision is visible in 
the right margin of this photograph.



 

A-5 
 

 
 
Photograph 5: Drainage outlet structure near the northeast corner of the ruderal lot. 



 

A-6 
 

 
 
Photograph 6: Overview of the ruderal lot with dumped garbage visible in the forground. An expanse of 
fallow fields, west of the Project, are visible in the background.



 

A-7 
 

 
 
Photograph 7: Signs of recent ground distubance within the ruderal field. Several ephemeral pools in tire ruts, 
similar to the one in this photograph, were present throughout. 



 

A-8 
 

 
 
Photograph 8: Overview of the ruderal field. The compacted dirt access road is visible in this photograph. 



 

A-9 
 

 
 
Photograph 9: Overview of the fenced soccer field in the Project area.



 

A-10 
 

 
 
Photograph 10: Ephemeral pool within lawnmower tire track depression in the soccer field. 



 

A-11 
 

 
 
Photograph 11: Overview of the ruderal field. A compacted dirt access road atop a berm, which separates the 
residences from the field, is visible in this photograph.  
 



 

B-1 
 

Appendix B.  CNDDB Query Results 



Species Element Code Federal Status State Status Global Rank State Rank

Rare Plant 
Rank/CDFW 
SSC or FP

American badger

Taxidea taxus

AMAJF04010 None None G5 S3 SSC

bank swallow

Riparia riparia

ABPAU08010 None Threatened G5 S2

blunt-nosed leopard lizard

Gambelia sila

ARACF07010 Endangered Endangered G1 S1 FP

brittlescale

Atriplex depressa

PDCHE042L0 None None G2 S2 1B.2

burrowing owl

Athene cunicularia

ABNSB10010 None None G4 S3 SSC

California alkali grass

Puccinellia simplex

PMPOA53110 None None G3 S2 1B.2

coast horned lizard

Phrynosoma blainvillii

ARACF12100 None None G3G4 S3S4 SSC

Coastal and Valley Freshwater Marsh

Coastal and Valley Freshwater Marsh

CTT52410CA None None G3 S2.1

Crotch bumble bee

Bombus crotchii

IIHYM24480 None None G3G4 S1S2

Fresno kangaroo rat

Dipodomys nitratoides exilis

AMAFD03151 Endangered Endangered G3TH SH

giant gartersnake

Thamnophis gigas

ARADB36150 Threatened Threatened G2 S2

giant kangaroo rat

Dipodomys ingens

AMAFD03080 Endangered Endangered G1G2 S1S2

heartscale

Atriplex cordulata var. cordulata

PDCHE040B0 None None G3T2 S2 1B.2

hoary bat

Lasiurus cinereus

AMACC05030 None None G5 S4

Hoover's eriastrum

Eriastrum hooveri

PDPLM03070 Delisted None G3 S3 4.2

lesser saltscale

Atriplex minuscula

PDCHE042M0 None None G2 S2 1B.1

longhorn fairy shrimp

Branchinecta longiantenna

ICBRA03020 Endangered None G1 S1S2

Lost Hills crownscale

Atriplex coronata var. vallicola

PDCHE04250 None None G4T2 S2 1B.2

Query Criteria: Quad<span style='color:Red'> IS </span>(Firebaugh (3612074)<span style='color:Red'> OR </span>Oxalis (3612085)<span 
style='color:Red'> OR </span>Poso Farm (3612084)<span style='color:Red'> OR </span>Firebaugh NE (3612083)<span 
style='color:Red'> OR </span>Broadview Farms (3612075)<span style='color:Red'> OR </span>Mendota Dam (3612073)<span 
style='color:Red'> OR </span>Chaney Ranch (3612065)<span style='color:Red'> OR </span>Coit Ranch (3612064)<span 
style='color:Red'> OR </span>Tranquillity (3612063))

Report Printed on Tuesday, March 12, 2019

Page 1 of 3Commercial Version -- Dated March, 2 2019 -- Biogeographic Data Branch

Information Expires 9/2/2019

Selected Elements by Common Name
California Department of Fish and Wildlife

California Natural Diversity Database



Species Element Code Federal Status State Status Global Rank State Rank

Rare Plant 
Rank/CDFW 
SSC or FP

merlin

Falco columbarius

ABNKD06030 None None G5 S3S4 WL

mountain plover

Charadrius montanus

ABNNB03100 None None G3 S2S3 SSC

Munz's tidy-tips

Layia munzii

PDAST5N0B0 None None G2 S2 1B.2

Nelson's antelope squirrel

Ammospermophilus nelsoni

AMAFB04040 None Threatened G2 S2S3

northern California legless lizard

Anniella pulchra

ARACC01020 None None G3 S3 SSC

palmate-bracted bird's-beak

Chloropyron palmatum

PDSCR0J0J0 Endangered Endangered G1 S1 1B.1

Panoche pepper-grass

Lepidium jaredii ssp. album

PDBRA1M0G2 None None G2G3T2T3 S2S3 1B.2

recurved larkspur

Delphinium recurvatum

PDRAN0B1J0 None None G2? S2? 1B.2

San Joaquin coachwhip

Masticophis flagellum ruddocki

ARADB21021 None None G5T2T3 S2? SSC

San Joaquin kit fox

Vulpes macrotis mutica

AMAJA03041 Endangered Threatened G4T2 S2

San Joaquin Pocket Mouse

Perognathus inornatus

AMAFD01060 None None G2G3 S2S3

San Joaquin woollythreads

Monolopia congdonii

PDASTA8010 Endangered None G2 S2 1B.2

Sanford's arrowhead

Sagittaria sanfordii

PMALI040Q0 None None G3 S3 1B.2

steelhead - Central Valley DPS

Oncorhynchus mykiss irideus pop. 11

AFCHA0209K Threatened None G5T2Q S2

subtle orache

Atriplex subtilis

PDCHE042T0 None None G1 S1 1B.2

Swainson's hawk

Buteo swainsoni

ABNKC19070 None Threatened G5 S3

tricolored blackbird

Agelaius tricolor

ABPBXB0020 None Candidate 
Endangered

G2G3 S1S2 SSC

Tulare grasshopper mouse

Onychomys torridus tularensis

AMAFF06021 None None G5T1T2 S1S2 SSC

two-striped gartersnake

Thamnophis hammondii

ARADB36160 None None G4 S3S4 SSC

Valley Sacaton Grassland

Valley Sacaton Grassland

CTT42120CA None None G1 S1.1

Valley Sink Scrub

Valley Sink Scrub

CTT36210CA None None G1 S1.1

Report Printed on Tuesday, March 12, 2019

Page 2 of 3Commercial Version -- Dated March, 2 2019 -- Biogeographic Data Branch

Information Expires 9/2/2019

Selected Elements by Common Name
California Department of Fish and Wildlife

California Natural Diversity Database



Species Element Code Federal Status State Status Global Rank State Rank

Rare Plant 
Rank/CDFW 
SSC or FP

vernal pool fairy shrimp

Branchinecta lynchi

ICBRA03030 Threatened None G3 S3

western mastiff bat

Eumops perotis californicus

AMACD02011 None None G5T4 S3S4 SSC

western pond turtle

Emys marmorata

ARAAD02030 None None G3G4 S3 SSC

western red bat

Lasiurus blossevillii

AMACC05060 None None G5 S3 SSC

western spadefoot

Spea hammondii

AAABF02020 None None G3 S3 SSC

western yellow-billed cuckoo

Coccyzus americanus occidentalis

ABNRB02022 Threatened Endangered G5T2T3 S1

white-faced ibis

Plegadis chihi

ABNGE02020 None None G5 S3S4 WL

yellow-headed blackbird

Xanthocephalus xanthocephalus

ABPBXB3010 None None G5 S3 SSC

Yuma myotis

Myotis yumanensis

AMACC01020 None None G5 S4

Record Count: 48

Report Printed on Tuesday, March 12, 2019

Page 3 of 3Commercial Version -- Dated March, 2 2019 -- Biogeographic Data Branch

Information Expires 9/2/2019

Selected Elements by Common Name
California Department of Fish and Wildlife

California Natural Diversity Database



 

C-1 
 

Appendix C.  USFWS Species List 



United States Department of the Interior

FISH AND WILDLIFE SERVICE
Sacramento Fish And Wildlife Office

Federal Building

2800 Cottage Way, Room W-2605

Sacramento, CA 95825-1846

Phone: (916) 414-6600 Fax: (916) 414-6713

In Reply Refer To: 

Consultation Code: 08ESMF00-2019-SLI-1323 

Event Code: 08ESMF00-2019-E-04273  

Project Name: Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project

 

Subject: List of threatened and endangered species that may occur in your proposed project 

location, and/or may be affected by your proposed project

To Whom It May Concern:

The enclosed species list identifies threatened, endangered, proposed and candidate species, as 

well as proposed and final designated critical habitat, under the jurisdiction of the U.S. Fish and 

Wildlife Service (Service) that may occur within the boundary of your proposed project and/or 

may be affected by your proposed project. The species list fulfills the requirements of the Service 

under section 7(c) of the Endangered Species Act (Act) of 1973, as amended (16 U.S.C. 1531 et 

seq.).

Please follow the link below to see if your proposed project has the potential to affect other 

species or their habitats under the jurisdiction of the National Marine Fisheries Service:

http://www.nwr.noaa.gov/protected_species/species_list/species_lists.html

New information based on updated surveys, changes in the abundance and distribution of 

species, changed habitat conditions, or other factors could change this list. Please feel free to 

contact us if you need more current information or assistance regarding the potential impacts to 

federally proposed, listed, and candidate species and federally designated and proposed critical 

habitat. Please note that under 50 CFR 402.12(e) of the regulations implementing section 7 of the 

Act, the accuracy of this species list should be verified after 90 days. This verification can be 

completed formally or informally as desired. The Service recommends that verification be 

completed by visiting the ECOS-IPaC website at regular intervals during project planning and 

implementation for updates to species lists and information. An updated list may be requested 

through the ECOS-IPaC system by completing the same process used to receive the enclosed list.

March 12, 2019



03/12/2019 Event Code: 08ESMF00-2019-E-04273   2

   

The purpose of the Act is to provide a means whereby threatened and endangered species and the 

ecosystems upon which they depend may be conserved. Under sections 7(a)(1) and 7(a)(2) of the 

Act and its implementing regulations (50 CFR 402 et seq.), Federal agencies are required to 

utilize their authorities to carry out programs for the conservation of threatened and endangered 

species and to determine whether projects may affect threatened and endangered species and/or 

designated critical habitat.

A Biological Assessment is required for construction projects (or other undertakings having 

similar physical impacts) that are major Federal actions significantly affecting the quality of the 

human environment as defined in the National Environmental Policy Act (42 U.S.C. 4332(2) 

(c)). For projects other than major construction activities, the Service suggests that a biological 

evaluation similar to a Biological Assessment be prepared to determine whether the project may 

affect listed or proposed species and/or designated or proposed critical habitat. Recommended 

contents of a Biological Assessment are described at 50 CFR 402.12.

If a Federal agency determines, based on the Biological Assessment or biological evaluation, that 

listed species and/or designated critical habitat may be affected by the proposed project, the 

agency is required to consult with the Service pursuant to 50 CFR 402. In addition, the Service 

recommends that candidate species, proposed species and proposed critical habitat be addressed 

within the consultation. More information on the regulations and procedures for section 7 

consultation, including the role of permit or license applicants, can be found in the "Endangered 

Species Consultation Handbook" at:

http://www.fws.gov/endangered/esa-library/pdf/TOC-GLOS.PDF

Please be aware that bald and golden eagles are protected under the Bald and Golden Eagle 

Protection Act (16 U.S.C. 668 et seq.), and projects affecting these species may require 

development of an eagle conservation plan (http://www.fws.gov/windenergy/ 

eagle_guidance.html). Additionally, wind energy projects should follow the wind energy 

guidelines (http://www.fws.gov/windenergy/) for minimizing impacts to migratory birds and 

bats.

Guidance for minimizing impacts to migratory birds for projects including communications 

towers (e.g., cellular, digital television, radio, and emergency broadcast) can be found at: http:// 

www.fws.gov/migratorybirds/CurrentBirdIssues/Hazards/towers/towers.htm; http:// 

www.towerkill.com; and http://www.fws.gov/migratorybirds/CurrentBirdIssues/Hazards/towers/ 

comtow.html.

We appreciate your concern for threatened and endangered species. The Service encourages 

Federal agencies to include conservation of threatened and endangered species into their project 

planning to further the purposes of the Act. Please include the Consultation Tracking Number in 

the header of this letter with any request for consultation or correspondence about your project 

that you submit to our office.



03/12/2019 Event Code: 08ESMF00-2019-E-04273   3

   

Attachment(s):

▪ Official Species List



03/12/2019 Event Code: 08ESMF00-2019-E-04273   1

   

Official Species List
This list is provided pursuant to Section 7 of the Endangered Species Act, and fulfills the 

requirement for Federal agencies to "request of the Secretary of the Interior information whether 

any species which is listed or proposed to be listed may be present in the area of a proposed 

action".

This species list is provided by:

Sacramento Fish And Wildlife Office

Federal Building

2800 Cottage Way, Room W-2605

Sacramento, CA 95825-1846

(916) 414-6600



03/12/2019 Event Code: 08ESMF00-2019-E-04273   2

   

Project Summary
Consultation Code: 08ESMF00-2019-SLI-1323

Event Code: 08ESMF00-2019-E-04273

Project Name: Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project

Project Type: RECREATION CONSTRUCTION / MAINTENANCE

Project Description: The 10-acre parcel of land adjacent to the existing park (currently outside 

the city limits) will receive two additional soccer fields, and a baseball 

diamond. Beyond the outfield of the baseball diamond an open space area 

will double as a storm water basin. Smoot Avenue will be fully improved 

to City local street standards (60-foot right-of-way) along the parcel 

frontage. The eastern half of Amador Street will be improved to City 

arterial street standards (84-foot right-of-way) extending from the 

residential development to the north to the Smoot Avenue extension. This 

will complete the circulation system in the area. An on-street parking lot 

will be constructed adjacent to Smoot Avenue, providing approximately 

80 additional on-street parking spaces. The development activities also 

include installation of turf and trees, and continuation of the park’s 

interior pedestrian circulation system. Another permanent restroom 

facility will be added.

Project Location:

Approximate location of the project can be viewed in Google Maps: https:// 

www.google.com/maps/place/36.755944489903115N120.39381364626863W

Counties: Fresno, CA

https://www.google.com/maps/place/36.755944489903115N120.39381364626863W
https://www.google.com/maps/place/36.755944489903115N120.39381364626863W


03/12/2019 Event Code: 08ESMF00-2019-E-04273   3

   

Endangered Species Act Species
There is a total of 9 threatened, endangered, or candidate species on this species list.

Species on this list should be considered in an effects analysis for your project and could include 

species that exist in another geographic area. For example, certain fish may appear on the species 

list because a project could affect downstream species.

IPaC does not display listed species or critical habitats under the sole jurisdiction of NOAA 

Fisheries , as USFWS does not have the authority to speak on behalf of NOAA and the 

Department of Commerce.

See the "Critical habitats" section below for those critical habitats that lie wholly or partially 

within your project area under this office's jurisdiction. Please contact the designated FWS office 

if you have questions.

1. NOAA Fisheries, also known as the National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS), is an 

office of the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration within the Department of 

Commerce.

Mammals
NAME STATUS

Fresno Kangaroo Rat Dipodomys nitratoides exilis
There is final critical habitat for this species. Your location is outside the critical habitat.

Species profile: https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/5150

Species survey guidelines:  

https://ecos.fws.gov/ipac/guideline/survey/population/37/office/11420.pdf

Endangered

Giant Kangaroo Rat Dipodomys ingens
No critical habitat has been designated for this species.

Species profile: https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/6051

Endangered

San Joaquin Kit Fox Vulpes macrotis mutica
No critical habitat has been designated for this species.

Species profile: https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/2873

Endangered

Birds
NAME STATUS

Yellow-billed Cuckoo Coccyzus americanus
Population: Western U.S. DPS

There is proposed critical habitat for this species. Your location is outside the critical habitat.

Species profile: https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/3911

Threatened

1

https://www.fisheries.noaa.gov/
https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/5150
https://ecos.fws.gov/ipac/guideline/survey/population/37/office/11420.pdf
https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/6051
https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/2873
https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/3911


03/12/2019 Event Code: 08ESMF00-2019-E-04273   4

   

Reptiles
NAME STATUS

Blunt-nosed Leopard Lizard Gambelia silus
No critical habitat has been designated for this species.

Species profile: https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/625

Endangered

Giant Garter Snake Thamnophis gigas
No critical habitat has been designated for this species.

Species profile: https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/4482

Threatened

Amphibians
NAME STATUS

California Red-legged Frog Rana draytonii
There is final critical habitat for this species. Your location is outside the critical habitat.

Species profile: https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/2891

Threatened

Fishes
NAME STATUS

Delta Smelt Hypomesus transpacificus
There is final critical habitat for this species. Your location is outside the critical habitat.

Species profile: https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/321

Threatened

Crustaceans
NAME STATUS

Vernal Pool Fairy Shrimp Branchinecta lynchi
There is final critical habitat for this species. Your location is outside the critical habitat.

Species profile: https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/498

Threatened

Critical habitats
THERE ARE NO CRITICAL HABITATS WITHIN YOUR PROJECT AREA UNDER THIS OFFICE'S 
JURISDICTION.

https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/625
https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/4482
https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/2891
https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/321
https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/498


 

D-1 
 

Appendix D.  NOAA EFH Mapping Query Results 



title Page 1 of2 

EFH Data Notice: Essential Fish Habitat (EFH) is defined by textual descriptions contained in the 
fishery management plans developed by the regional Fishery Management Councils. In most cases 
mapping data can not fully represent the complexity of the habitats that make up EFH. This report 
should be used for general interest queries only and should not be interpreted as a definitive 
evaluation of EFH at this location. A location-specific evaluation of EFH for any officia l purposes 
must be performed by a regional expert. Please refer to the following links for the appropriate 
regional resources. 

West Coast Regional Office 
Alaska Regional Office 

Query Results 

Degrees, Minutes, Seconds: Latitude = 36°45'24" N, Longitude = 121036'27'' W 
Decimal Degrees: Latitude= 36.76, Longitude = -120.39 

The query location intersects with spatial data representing EFH and/or HAPCs for the following 
species/management units. 

HA PCs 
No Habitat Areas of Particular Concern (HAPC) were identified at the report 
location . 

EFH Areas Protected from Fishing 

No EFH Areas Protected from Fishing (EFHA) were identified at the report location. 

Spatial data does not currently exist for all the managed species in this 
area. The following is a list of species or management units for which 
there is no spatial data. 
**For links to all EFH text descriptions see the complete data inventory: 
open data inventory--> 
Pacific Coastal Pelagic Species, 
Jack Mackerel, 
Pacific (Chub) Mackerel, 
Pacific Sardine, 
Northern Anchovy - Central Subpopulation, 
Northern Anchovy - Northern Subpopulation, 
Pacific Highly Migratory Species, 
Bigeye Thresher Shark - North Pacific, 
Blueffn Tuna - Pacific, 
Dolphinfish (Dorado or Mahimahi) ~ Pacific, 
Pelagic Thresher Shark - North Pacific, 

https ://www .habitat.noaa.gov/protection/efh/efhmapper/ 3/12/2019 



title Page 2 of2 

Spatial data does not currently exist for all the managed species in this 
area. The following is a list of species or management units for which 
there is no spatial data. 
**For links to an EFH text descriptions see the complete data inventory: 
open data inventory--> 
Swordfish - North Pacific, 
West Coast Salmon, 
All species and stocks 

https://www.habitat.noaa.gov/protection/efh/efhmapper/ 3/12/2019 



X I Zoom: ~ Q. I Extent: ~ ~ ~ :: I Location Query: ~ I 10 Min sq.: D !Help: ~ rc!J ~ I 1!? EFH View Tool II OOI Data Query Tool 
~___:_~---'========;----:-~~~~~~~r-~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~...., 

[OOI Activate Location Query J ~ 

[ Print This Report J 

EFH Data Notice: Essential Fish Habitat (EFH) is defined by textual descriptions 
contained in the fishery management plans developed by the regional Fishery 
Management Councils. I n most cases mapping data can not fully represent the 
complexity of the habitats that make up EFH. This report should be used for general 
interest queries only and should not be interpreted as a definitive evaluation of EFH 
at this loca ti on. A location-specific evaluation of EFH for any official purposes must 
be performed by a regional expert. Please refer to the following links for the 
appropriate regional resources. 

West Coast Regional Office 
Alaska Regional Office 

Query Results 

Degrees, Minutes, Seconds: Latitude= 36045'24" N, Longitude = 12 1036'27" W 
Decimal Degrees: Latitude = 36.76, Longitude = -120.39 

The query location intersects with spatial data representing EFH and/or HAPCs for 
the following species/management units. 

HA PCs 
No Habitat Areas of Particular Concern (HAPC) were identified at the report 
location. 

EFH Areas Protected from Fishing 

No EFH Areas Protected from Fishing (EFHA) were identified at the report location. 

Spatial data does not currently exist for all the managed species in this 
area. The following is a list of species or management units for which there 
is no spatial data. 
**For links to all EFH text descriptions see the complete data inventory: 
open data inventory--> 

ecies, 

Mel>:lota 

DOD: 36.802 lat, -120.310 long 



 

E-1 
 

Appendix E.  Soils Report 



United States
Department of
Agriculture

A product of the National
Cooperative Soil Survey,
a joint effort of the United
States Department of
Agriculture and other
Federal agencies, State
agencies including the
Agricultural Experiment
Stations, and local
participants

Custom Soil Resource 
Report for
Fresno County, 
California, Western 
Part

Natural
Resources
Conservation
Service

April 8, 2019



Preface
Soil surveys contain information that affects land use planning in survey areas. 
They highlight soil limitations that affect various land uses and provide information 
about the properties of the soils in the survey areas. Soil surveys are designed for 
many different users, including farmers, ranchers, foresters, agronomists, urban 
planners, community officials, engineers, developers, builders, and home buyers. 
Also, conservationists, teachers, students, and specialists in recreation, waste 
disposal, and pollution control can use the surveys to help them understand, 
protect, or enhance the environment.

Various land use regulations of Federal, State, and local governments may impose 
special restrictions on land use or land treatment. Soil surveys identify soil 
properties that are used in making various land use or land treatment decisions. 
The information is intended to help the land users identify and reduce the effects of 
soil limitations on various land uses. The landowner or user is responsible for 
identifying and complying with existing laws and regulations.

Although soil survey information can be used for general farm, local, and wider area 
planning, onsite investigation is needed to supplement this information in some 
cases. Examples include soil quality assessments (http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/
portal/nrcs/main/soils/health/) and certain conservation and engineering 
applications. For more detailed information, contact your local USDA Service Center 
(https://offices.sc.egov.usda.gov/locator/app?agency=nrcs) or your NRCS State Soil 
Scientist (http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/soils/contactus/?
cid=nrcs142p2_053951).

Great differences in soil properties can occur within short distances. Some soils are 
seasonally wet or subject to flooding. Some are too unstable to be used as a 
foundation for buildings or roads. Clayey or wet soils are poorly suited to use as 
septic tank absorption fields. A high water table makes a soil poorly suited to 
basements or underground installations.

The National Cooperative Soil Survey is a joint effort of the United States 
Department of Agriculture and other Federal agencies, State agencies including the 
Agricultural Experiment Stations, and local agencies. The Natural Resources 
Conservation Service (NRCS) has leadership for the Federal part of the National 
Cooperative Soil Survey.

Information about soils is updated periodically. Updated information is available 
through the NRCS Web Soil Survey, the site for official soil survey information.

The U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) prohibits discrimination in all its 
programs and activities on the basis of race, color, national origin, age, disability, 
and where applicable, sex, marital status, familial status, parental status, religion, 
sexual orientation, genetic information, political beliefs, reprisal, or because all or a 
part of an individual's income is derived from any public assistance program. (Not 
all prohibited bases apply to all programs.) Persons with disabilities who require 

2

http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/main/soils/health/
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/main/soils/health/
https://offices.sc.egov.usda.gov/locator/app?agency=nrcs
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/soils/contactus/?cid=nrcs142p2_053951
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/soils/contactus/?cid=nrcs142p2_053951


alternative means for communication of program information (Braille, large print, 
audiotape, etc.) should contact USDA's TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice 
and TDD). To file a complaint of discrimination, write to USDA, Director, Office of 
Civil Rights, 1400 Independence Avenue, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20250-9410 or 
call (800) 795-3272 (voice) or (202) 720-6382 (TDD). USDA is an equal opportunity 
provider and employer.

3



Contents
Preface.................................................................................................................... 2
How Soil Surveys Are Made..................................................................................5
Soil Map.................................................................................................................. 8

Soil Map................................................................................................................9
Legend................................................................................................................10
Map Unit Legend................................................................................................ 11
Map Unit Descriptions.........................................................................................11

Fresno County, California, Western Part.........................................................13
482—Calflax clay loam, saline-sodic, wet, 0 to 1 percent slopes, 

MLRA 17...............................................................................................13
References............................................................................................................15

4



How Soil Surveys Are Made
Soil surveys are made to provide information about the soils and miscellaneous 
areas in a specific area. They include a description of the soils and miscellaneous 
areas and their location on the landscape and tables that show soil properties and 
limitations affecting various uses. Soil scientists observed the steepness, length, 
and shape of the slopes; the general pattern of drainage; the kinds of crops and 
native plants; and the kinds of bedrock. They observed and described many soil 
profiles. A soil profile is the sequence of natural layers, or horizons, in a soil. The 
profile extends from the surface down into the unconsolidated material in which the 
soil formed or from the surface down to bedrock. The unconsolidated material is 
devoid of roots and other living organisms and has not been changed by other 
biological activity.

Currently, soils are mapped according to the boundaries of major land resource 
areas (MLRAs). MLRAs are geographically associated land resource units that 
share common characteristics related to physiography, geology, climate, water 
resources, soils, biological resources, and land uses (USDA, 2006). Soil survey 
areas typically consist of parts of one or more MLRA.

The soils and miscellaneous areas in a survey area occur in an orderly pattern that 
is related to the geology, landforms, relief, climate, and natural vegetation of the 
area. Each kind of soil and miscellaneous area is associated with a particular kind 
of landform or with a segment of the landform. By observing the soils and 
miscellaneous areas in the survey area and relating their position to specific 
segments of the landform, a soil scientist develops a concept, or model, of how they 
were formed. Thus, during mapping, this model enables the soil scientist to predict 
with a considerable degree of accuracy the kind of soil or miscellaneous area at a 
specific location on the landscape.

Commonly, individual soils on the landscape merge into one another as their 
characteristics gradually change. To construct an accurate soil map, however, soil 
scientists must determine the boundaries between the soils. They can observe only 
a limited number of soil profiles. Nevertheless, these observations, supplemented 
by an understanding of the soil-vegetation-landscape relationship, are sufficient to 
verify predictions of the kinds of soil in an area and to determine the boundaries.

Soil scientists recorded the characteristics of the soil profiles that they studied. They 
noted soil color, texture, size and shape of soil aggregates, kind and amount of rock 
fragments, distribution of plant roots, reaction, and other features that enable them 
to identify soils. After describing the soils in the survey area and determining their 
properties, the soil scientists assigned the soils to taxonomic classes (units). 
Taxonomic classes are concepts. Each taxonomic class has a set of soil 
characteristics with precisely defined limits. The classes are used as a basis for 
comparison to classify soils systematically. Soil taxonomy, the system of taxonomic 
classification used in the United States, is based mainly on the kind and character 
of soil properties and the arrangement of horizons within the profile. After the soil 

5



scientists classified and named the soils in the survey area, they compared the 
individual soils with similar soils in the same taxonomic class in other areas so that 
they could confirm data and assemble additional data based on experience and 
research.

The objective of soil mapping is not to delineate pure map unit components; the 
objective is to separate the landscape into landforms or landform segments that 
have similar use and management requirements. Each map unit is defined by a 
unique combination of soil components and/or miscellaneous areas in predictable 
proportions. Some components may be highly contrasting to the other components 
of the map unit. The presence of minor components in a map unit in no way 
diminishes the usefulness or accuracy of the data. The delineation of such 
landforms and landform segments on the map provides sufficient information for the 
development of resource plans. If intensive use of small areas is planned, onsite 
investigation is needed to define and locate the soils and miscellaneous areas.

Soil scientists make many field observations in the process of producing a soil map. 
The frequency of observation is dependent upon several factors, including scale of 
mapping, intensity of mapping, design of map units, complexity of the landscape, 
and experience of the soil scientist. Observations are made to test and refine the 
soil-landscape model and predictions and to verify the classification of the soils at 
specific locations. Once the soil-landscape model is refined, a significantly smaller 
number of measurements of individual soil properties are made and recorded. 
These measurements may include field measurements, such as those for color, 
depth to bedrock, and texture, and laboratory measurements, such as those for 
content of sand, silt, clay, salt, and other components. Properties of each soil 
typically vary from one point to another across the landscape.

Observations for map unit components are aggregated to develop ranges of 
characteristics for the components. The aggregated values are presented. Direct 
measurements do not exist for every property presented for every map unit 
component. Values for some properties are estimated from combinations of other 
properties.

While a soil survey is in progress, samples of some of the soils in the area generally 
are collected for laboratory analyses and for engineering tests. Soil scientists 
interpret the data from these analyses and tests as well as the field-observed 
characteristics and the soil properties to determine the expected behavior of the 
soils under different uses. Interpretations for all of the soils are field tested through 
observation of the soils in different uses and under different levels of management. 
Some interpretations are modified to fit local conditions, and some new 
interpretations are developed to meet local needs. Data are assembled from other 
sources, such as research information, production records, and field experience of 
specialists. For example, data on crop yields under defined levels of management 
are assembled from farm records and from field or plot experiments on the same 
kinds of soil.

Predictions about soil behavior are based not only on soil properties but also on 
such variables as climate and biological activity. Soil conditions are predictable over 
long periods of time, but they are not predictable from year to year. For example, 
soil scientists can predict with a fairly high degree of accuracy that a given soil will 
have a high water table within certain depths in most years, but they cannot predict 
that a high water table will always be at a specific level in the soil on a specific date.

After soil scientists located and identified the significant natural bodies of soil in the 
survey area, they drew the boundaries of these bodies on aerial photographs and 

Custom Soil Resource Report

6



identified each as a specific map unit. Aerial photographs show trees, buildings, 
fields, roads, and rivers, all of which help in locating boundaries accurately.

Custom Soil Resource Report

7



Soil Map
The soil map section includes the soil map for the defined area of interest, a list of 
soil map units on the map and extent of each map unit, and cartographic symbols 
displayed on the map. Also presented are various metadata about data used to 
produce the map, and a description of each soil map unit.

8



9

Custom Soil Resource Report
Soil Map

40
70

80
0

40
70

85
0

40
70

90
0

40
70

95
0

40
71

00
0

40
71

05
0

40
71

10
0

40
70

85
0

40
70

90
0

40
70

95
0

40
71

00
0

40
71

05
0

40
71

10
0

732450 732500 732550 732600 732650 732700 732750 732800 732850 732900

732450 732500 732550 732600 732650 732700 732750 732800 732850 732900

36°  45' 26'' N
12

0°
  2

3'
 4

6'
' W

36°  45' 26'' N

12
0°

  2
3'

 2
7'

' W

36°  45' 16'' N

12
0°

  2
3'

 4
6'

' W

36°  45' 16'' N

12
0°

  2
3'

 2
7'

' W

N

Map projection: Web Mercator   Corner coordinates: WGS84   Edge tics: UTM Zone 10N WGS84
0 100 200 400 600

Feet
0 30 60 120 180

Meters
Map Scale: 1:2,220 if printed on A landscape (11" x 8.5") sheet.

Soil Map may not be valid at this scale.



MAP LEGEND MAP INFORMATION

Area of Interest (AOI)
Area of Interest (AOI)

Soils
Soil Map Unit Polygons

Soil Map Unit Lines

Soil Map Unit Points

Special Point Features
Blowout

Borrow Pit

Clay Spot

Closed Depression

Gravel Pit

Gravelly Spot

Landfill

Lava Flow

Marsh or swamp

Mine or Quarry

Miscellaneous Water

Perennial Water

Rock Outcrop

Saline Spot

Sandy Spot

Severely Eroded Spot

Sinkhole

Slide or Slip

Sodic Spot

Spoil Area

Stony Spot

Very Stony Spot

Wet Spot

Other

Special Line Features

Water Features
Streams and Canals

Transportation
Rails

Interstate Highways

US Routes

Major Roads

Local Roads

Background
Aerial Photography

The soil surveys that comprise your AOI were mapped at 
1:24,000.

Warning: Soil Map may not be valid at this scale.

Enlargement of maps beyond the scale of mapping can cause 
misunderstanding of the detail of mapping and accuracy of soil 
line placement. The maps do not show the small areas of 
contrasting soils that could have been shown at a more detailed 
scale.

Please rely on the bar scale on each map sheet for map 
measurements.

Source of Map: Natural Resources Conservation Service
Web Soil Survey URL: 
Coordinate System: Web Mercator (EPSG:3857)

Maps from the Web Soil Survey are based on the Web Mercator 
projection, which preserves direction and shape but distorts 
distance and area. A projection that preserves area, such as the 
Albers equal-area conic projection, should be used if more 
accurate calculations of distance or area are required.

This product is generated from the USDA-NRCS certified data as 
of the version date(s) listed below.

Soil Survey Area: Fresno County, California, Western Part
Survey Area Data: Version 13, Sep 12, 2018

Soil map units are labeled (as space allows) for map scales 
1:50,000 or larger.

Date(s) aerial images were photographed: May 31, 2015—Nov 
6, 2017

The orthophoto or other base map on which the soil lines were 
compiled and digitized probably differs from the background 
imagery displayed on these maps. As a result, some minor 
shifting of map unit boundaries may be evident.

Custom Soil Resource Report

10



Map Unit Legend

Map Unit Symbol Map Unit Name Acres in AOI Percent of AOI

482 Calflax clay loam, saline-sodic, 
wet, 0 to 1 percent slopes, 
MLRA 17

15.4 100.0%

Totals for Area of Interest 15.4 100.0%

Map Unit Descriptions
The map units delineated on the detailed soil maps in a soil survey represent the 
soils or miscellaneous areas in the survey area. The map unit descriptions, along 
with the maps, can be used to determine the composition and properties of a unit.

A map unit delineation on a soil map represents an area dominated by one or more 
major kinds of soil or miscellaneous areas. A map unit is identified and named 
according to the taxonomic classification of the dominant soils. Within a taxonomic 
class there are precisely defined limits for the properties of the soils. On the 
landscape, however, the soils are natural phenomena, and they have the 
characteristic variability of all natural phenomena. Thus, the range of some 
observed properties may extend beyond the limits defined for a taxonomic class. 
Areas of soils of a single taxonomic class rarely, if ever, can be mapped without 
including areas of other taxonomic classes. Consequently, every map unit is made 
up of the soils or miscellaneous areas for which it is named and some minor 
components that belong to taxonomic classes other than those of the major soils.

Most minor soils have properties similar to those of the dominant soil or soils in the 
map unit, and thus they do not affect use and management. These are called 
noncontrasting, or similar, components. They may or may not be mentioned in a 
particular map unit description. Other minor components, however, have properties 
and behavioral characteristics divergent enough to affect use or to require different 
management. These are called contrasting, or dissimilar, components. They 
generally are in small areas and could not be mapped separately because of the 
scale used. Some small areas of strongly contrasting soils or miscellaneous areas 
are identified by a special symbol on the maps. If included in the database for a 
given area, the contrasting minor components are identified in the map unit 
descriptions along with some characteristics of each. A few areas of minor 
components may not have been observed, and consequently they are not 
mentioned in the descriptions, especially where the pattern was so complex that it 
was impractical to make enough observations to identify all the soils and 
miscellaneous areas on the landscape.

The presence of minor components in a map unit in no way diminishes the 
usefulness or accuracy of the data. The objective of mapping is not to delineate 
pure taxonomic classes but rather to separate the landscape into landforms or 
landform segments that have similar use and management requirements. The 
delineation of such segments on the map provides sufficient information for the 
development of resource plans. If intensive use of small areas is planned, however, 

Custom Soil Resource Report

11



onsite investigation is needed to define and locate the soils and miscellaneous 
areas.

An identifying symbol precedes the map unit name in the map unit descriptions. 
Each description includes general facts about the unit and gives important soil 
properties and qualities.

Soils that have profiles that are almost alike make up a soil series. Except for 
differences in texture of the surface layer, all the soils of a series have major 
horizons that are similar in composition, thickness, and arrangement.

Soils of one series can differ in texture of the surface layer, slope, stoniness, 
salinity, degree of erosion, and other characteristics that affect their use. On the 
basis of such differences, a soil series is divided into soil phases. Most of the areas 
shown on the detailed soil maps are phases of soil series. The name of a soil phase 
commonly indicates a feature that affects use or management. For example, Alpha 
silt loam, 0 to 2 percent slopes, is a phase of the Alpha series.

Some map units are made up of two or more major soils or miscellaneous areas. 
These map units are complexes, associations, or undifferentiated groups.

A complex consists of two or more soils or miscellaneous areas in such an intricate 
pattern or in such small areas that they cannot be shown separately on the maps. 
The pattern and proportion of the soils or miscellaneous areas are somewhat similar 
in all areas. Alpha-Beta complex, 0 to 6 percent slopes, is an example.

An association is made up of two or more geographically associated soils or 
miscellaneous areas that are shown as one unit on the maps. Because of present 
or anticipated uses of the map units in the survey area, it was not considered 
practical or necessary to map the soils or miscellaneous areas separately. The 
pattern and relative proportion of the soils or miscellaneous areas are somewhat 
similar. Alpha-Beta association, 0 to 2 percent slopes, is an example.

An undifferentiated group is made up of two or more soils or miscellaneous areas 
that could be mapped individually but are mapped as one unit because similar 
interpretations can be made for use and management. The pattern and proportion 
of the soils or miscellaneous areas in a mapped area are not uniform. An area can 
be made up of only one of the major soils or miscellaneous areas, or it can be made 
up of all of them. Alpha and Beta soils, 0 to 2 percent slopes, is an example.

Some surveys include miscellaneous areas. Such areas have little or no soil 
material and support little or no vegetation. Rock outcrop is an example.

Custom Soil Resource Report

12



Fresno County, California, Western Part

482—Calflax clay loam, saline-sodic, wet, 0 to 1 percent slopes, MLRA 
17

Map Unit Setting
National map unit symbol: 2vncl
Elevation: 160 to 340 feet
Mean annual precipitation: 7 to 9 inches
Mean annual air temperature: 62 to 64 degrees F
Frost-free period: 230 to 250 days
Farmland classification: Farmland of statewide importance

Map Unit Composition
Calflax, clay loam, saline-sodic, wet, and similar soils: 85 percent
Minor components: 15 percent
Estimates are based on observations, descriptions, and transects of the mapunit.

Description of Calflax, Clay Loam, Saline-sodic, Wet

Setting
Landform: Fan skirts
Landform position (two-dimensional): Footslope
Landform position (three-dimensional): Talf
Down-slope shape: Linear
Across-slope shape: Linear
Parent material: Alluvium derived from calcareous sedimentary rock

Typical profile
Ap - 0 to 8 inches: clay loam
Bw - 8 to 26 inches: clay loam
Bny - 26 to 33 inches: loam
Bnyz1 - 33 to 47 inches: silt loam
Bnyz2 - 47 to 65 inches: loam

Properties and qualities
Slope: 0 to 1 percent
Depth to restrictive feature: More than 80 inches
Natural drainage class: Moderately well drained
Runoff class: Low
Capacity of the most limiting layer to transmit water (Ksat): Moderately high (0.20 

to 0.57 in/hr)
Depth to water table: About 48 to 60 inches
Frequency of flooding: Rare
Frequency of ponding: None
Calcium carbonate, maximum in profile: 3 percent
Gypsum, maximum in profile: 5 percent
Salinity, maximum in profile: Slightly saline to strongly saline (4.0 to 16.0 

mmhos/cm)
Sodium adsorption ratio, maximum in profile: 40.0
Available water storage in profile: Moderate (about 7.3 inches)

Interpretive groups
Land capability classification (irrigated): 3s
Land capability classification (nonirrigated): 7s

Custom Soil Resource Report

13



Hydrologic Soil Group: C
Hydric soil rating: No

Minor Components

Ciervo, clay, saline-sodic, wet
Percent of map unit: 6 percent
Landform: Fan skirts
Hydric soil rating: No

Cerini, clay loam
Percent of map unit: 2 percent
Landform: Alluvial fans
Hydric soil rating: No

Posochanet, clay loam, saline-sodic, wet
Percent of map unit: 2 percent
Landform: Fan skirts
Hydric soil rating: No

Lethent, clay loam
Percent of map unit: 2 percent
Landform: Fan remnants
Hydric soil rating: No

Kimberlina, fine sandy loam
Percent of map unit: 1 percent
Hydric soil rating: No

Garces, silt loam
Percent of map unit: 1 percent
Hydric soil rating: No

Twisselman, clay, saline-sodic
Percent of map unit: 1 percent
Hydric soil rating: No

Custom Soil Resource Report

14



References
American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO). 
2004. Standard specifications for transportation materials and methods of sampling 
and testing. 24th edition.

American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM). 2005. Standard classification of 
soils for engineering purposes. ASTM Standard D2487-00.

Cowardin, L.M., V. Carter, F.C. Golet, and E.T. LaRoe. 1979. Classification of 
wetlands and deep-water habitats of the United States. U.S. Fish and Wildlife 
Service FWS/OBS-79/31.

Federal Register. July 13, 1994. Changes in hydric soils of the United States.

Federal Register. September 18, 2002. Hydric soils of the United States.

Hurt, G.W., and L.M. Vasilas, editors. Version 6.0, 2006. Field indicators of hydric 
soils in the United States.

National Research Council. 1995. Wetlands: Characteristics and boundaries.

Soil Survey Division Staff. 1993. Soil survey manual. Soil Conservation Service. 
U.S. Department of Agriculture Handbook 18. http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/
nrcs/detail/national/soils/?cid=nrcs142p2_054262 

Soil Survey Staff. 1999. Soil taxonomy: A basic system of soil classification for 
making and interpreting soil surveys. 2nd edition. Natural Resources Conservation 
Service, U.S. Department of Agriculture Handbook 436. http://
www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/soils/?cid=nrcs142p2_053577 

Soil Survey Staff. 2010. Keys to soil taxonomy. 11th edition. U.S. Department of 
Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service. http://
www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/soils/?cid=nrcs142p2_053580 

Tiner, R.W., Jr. 1985. Wetlands of Delaware. U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service and 
Delaware Department of Natural Resources and Environmental Control, Wetlands 
Section.

United States Army Corps of Engineers, Environmental Laboratory. 1987. Corps of 
Engineers wetlands delineation manual. Waterways Experiment Station Technical 
Report Y-87-1.

United States Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service. 
National forestry manual. http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/soils/
home/?cid=nrcs142p2_053374 

United States Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service. 
National range and pasture handbook. http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/
detail/national/landuse/rangepasture/?cid=stelprdb1043084 

15

http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/soils/?cid=nrcs142p2_054262
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/soils/?cid=nrcs142p2_054262
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/soils/?cid=nrcs142p2_053577
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/soils/?cid=nrcs142p2_053577
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/soils/?cid=nrcs142p2_053580
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/soils/?cid=nrcs142p2_053580
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/soils/home/?cid=nrcs142p2_053374
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/soils/home/?cid=nrcs142p2_053374
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/landuse/rangepasture/?cid=stelprdb1043084
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/landuse/rangepasture/?cid=stelprdb1043084


United States Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service. 
National soil survey handbook, title 430-VI. http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/
nrcs/detail/soils/scientists/?cid=nrcs142p2_054242 

United States Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service. 
2006. Land resource regions and major land resource areas of the United States, 
the Caribbean, and the Pacific Basin. U.S. Department of Agriculture Handbook 
296. http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/soils/?
cid=nrcs142p2_053624 

United States Department of Agriculture, Soil Conservation Service. 1961. Land 
capability classification. U.S. Department of Agriculture Handbook 210. http://
www.nrcs.usda.gov/Internet/FSE_DOCUMENTS/nrcs142p2_052290.pdf 

Custom Soil Resource Report

16

http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/soils/scientists/?cid=nrcs142p2_054242
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/soils/scientists/?cid=nrcs142p2_054242
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/soils/?cid=nrcs142p2_053624
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/soils/?cid=nrcs142p2_053624
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/Internet/FSE_DOCUMENTS/nrcs142p2_052290.pdf
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/Internet/FSE_DOCUMENTS/nrcs142p2_052290.pdf


Major Land Resource Regions Custom Report
Data Source:  USDA Agriculture Handbook 296 (2006)

http://soils.usda.gov/MLRAExplorer

Page 1
10/24/18

Land Resource Regions and
Major Land Resource Areas
of the United States, the
Caribbean, and the Pacific Basin

MLRA Explorer Custom Report
C - California Subtropical Fruit, Truck, and Specialty Crop Region

17 - Sacramento and San Joaquin Valleys



Major Land Resource Regions Custom Report
Data Source:  USDA Agriculture Handbook 296 (2006)

http://soils.usda.gov/MLRAExplorer

Page 2
10/24/18

MLRA 17 - Sacramento and San Joaquin Valleys

Figure 17-1: Location of MLRA 17 in Land Resource Region C

Introduction
This area is entirely in California (fig. 17-1). It makes up about 18,650 square miles

(48,330 square kilometers). From north to south, the major towns or cities in this area are
Redding, Red Bluff, Chico, Yuba City, Marysville, Woodland, Davis, Vacaville, Fairfield,
Sacramento, Stockton, Modesto, Merced, Madera, Firebaugh, Fresno, Hanford, Visalia,
and Bakersfield. Interstate 5 and California State Highway 99 both traverse the entire
length of the area. Interstate 80 crosses the midpoint of the area in Sacramento. The
MLRA includes Beale, McClellan, Mather, Travis, and Castle Air Force Bases; the
Sacramento Army Depot, Lemoore Naval Air Station, and Naval Petroleum Reserves #1
and #2; and numerous national wildlife refuges. The area is locally known as the Central
Valley and is part of the Pacific migratory waterfowl flyway.



Major Land Resource Regions Custom Report
Data Source:  USDA Agriculture Handbook 296 (2006)

http://soils.usda.gov/MLRAExplorer

Page 3
10/24/18

Biology
This area supports naturalized annuals and scattered trees. Wild barley, wild oats, soft

chess, ripgut brome, red brome, foxtail fescue, burclover, and filaree are the dominant
species.

Scattered oaks on terraces and oak, willow, and cottonwood grow along the rivers and
streams and in overflow areas. Saltgrass, along with such shrubs as iodinebush and
Australian saltbush, grow on saline-sodic soils on terraces and in basins.

The major wildlife species include jackrabbit, coyote, fox, ground squirrel, pocket
gopher, and various songbirds. The species of fish include salmon, striped bass,
steelhead, shad, sturgeon, largemouth bass, smallmouth bass, bluegill, and catfish.
Portions of the area are extremely important for wintering waterfowl and seasonally
neotropical migrants.



 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019   Appendix C-1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix C 
Cultural Information 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Cultural Resources Information 
Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Southern San Joaquin Valley Information Center, CSUB, California Historical Resources 
Information System: Record Search 19-096, dated March 26, 2019. 

• There are no recorded cultural resources within the project area or within a one-half mile 
radius. 

• There are no recorded cultural resources within the project area or radius that are listed 
in the National Register of Historic Places, the · California Register of Historical 
Resources, the California Points of Historical Interest, the California Inventory of 
Historical Resources or the California State Historical Landmarks. 

• There has been. one cultural resource study conducted within the project area and six 
additional studies conducted within a half mile radius. 

Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC): Sacred Lands File & Native American Contacts 
List Request, dated March 19, 2019. 

• A Record Search of the NAHC Sacred Lands File was completed for the Area of 
Potential Effect (APE) with negative results 

• A list of 13 tribes was provided, and letters to the 13 tribes were then mailed out March 
19, 2019. 

• No additional responses or additional cultural information was received. 

AB 52 Consultation pursuant to Public Resource Code Section 21080.3.1 
• The City of Mendota received a letters from the Santa Rosa Rancheria Tachi Tribe on 

August 8, 2016 regarding AB 52. 
• The City of Mendota sent a letter to the Santa Rosa Rancheria Tachi Tribe on April 4, 

2019 regarding AB 52. 
No additional responses or request for cultural consultation was received. 

Photographs of the Area of Potential Effect (APE) were taken March 14, 2019 by staff which 
show the ground disturbance and site conditions. 



California -
Histori"cal -

To: 

Resources 
Information -

!ystem 

Briza Sholars 

Fresno 
Kern 
Kings 
1\tfadera 
Tulare 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group 
286 W. Cromwell Ave. 
Fresno, CA 93711 

Date: March 26, 2019 

Re: Rojas Pierce Park 

County: Fresno 

Map(s): Firebaugh 7 .S' 

Southam San Joaquin VaUey Information Center 
California State University, Bakersfield 
Mao Stop: 72 DOB 
9001 Stockdale Highway 
Bakersfield, California 93311-1022 
{661) 654-2289 
E-mail: ssjvic@csub.edu 
Website; www.csub.edU/ssjVic 

Record Search 19..CJ96 

CULTURAL RESOURCES RECORDS SEARCH 

The California Office of Historic Preservation (OHP) contracts with the California Historical Resources 
Information System's (CHRIS) regional Information Centers (ICs) to maintain Information in the CHRIS inventory 
and make it available to local, state, and federal agencies, cultural resource professionals, Native American 
tribes, researchers, and the public. Recommendations made by IC coordinators or their staff regarding the 
Interpretation and application of this information are advisory only; Such recommendations do not necessarily 
represent the evaluation or opinion of the State Historic Preservation Officer in carrying out the OHP's 
regulatory authority under federal and state law. 

The following are the results of a search of the cultural resource files at the Southern San Joaquin Valley 
Information Center. These files include known and recorded cultural resources sites, inventory and excavation 
reports fifed with this office, and resources listed on the National Register of Historic Places, Historic Property 
Directory, California State Historical landmarks, california Register of Historical Resources, California Inventory 
of Historic Resources, and California Points of Historical Interest. Due to processing delays and other factors, 
not all of the historical resource reports and resource records that have been submitted to the Office of 
Historic Preservation are available via this records search. Additional information may be available through the 
federal, state, and local agencies that produced or paid for historical resource management work in the search 
area. 

PRIOR CULTURAL RESOURCE STUDIES CONDUCTED WITHIN THE PROJECT AREA AND WITHIN THE ONE-HALF 
MILE RADIUS 

According to the information in our files, there has been .one previous cultural resource study 
conducted within the project area, FR-02501. There have been six additional studies conducted within the one· 
half mile radius, FR-00171, 00806, 01617, 02201, 02505, and 02506. 



Record Search 19-096 

KNOWN/RECORDED CULTURAL RESOURCES WITHIN THE PROJECT AREA AND WITHIN THE ONE~HALF MILE 
RADIUS 

There are no recorded cultural resource within project area or within the one-half mile radius and it is 
not known if any exist in most of this area. 

There are no. recorded cultural resources. within the project area or. radius that are listed in the National 
Register of Historic Places, the California Register of Historical Resources, the California· Points of Historical 
Interest, California Inventory of Historic Resources, or the California State Historic Landmarks. 

COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

We understand this project consists of construction of two soccer fields, a baseball diamond, and an 
open space area that will double a·s a storm water basin. Further, we understand the project area was 
previously used for agricultural purposes. The study completed In this project ·area did not include any field 
survey. Therefore, it is unknown if cultural resources are present in the project area. Therefore, prior to project 
activities, we recommend a survey of the project area be C:onducted by a qualified, professional consultant to 
determine if cultural resources are present. A list of qualified consultants can be found at www.chrisinfo.org. · 

We also recommend that you contact the Native American Heritage Commission in Sacramento. They 
will provide you with a current list of Native American individuals/organizations that can assist you with 
Information regarding cultural resources that may not be included In the CHRIS Inventory and that may be of 
concern to the Native groups in the area. The Commission can consult their "Sacred lands Inventory" file in 
order to determine what sacred resources, if any, exist within this project area and the way in which these 
resources might be managed. FinaUy, please consult with the lead agency on this project to determine if any 
other cultural resource investigation is required. If you need any additional Information or have any questions 
or concerns, please contact our office at (661) 654-2289. 

By: 

/ {{i~vJ :/ 0 
Celeste M. Thomson, Coordinator Date: March 26, 201~ 

Please note that invoices for Information Center services will be sent under separate cover from the California 
State University, Bakersfield Accounting Office. 



STATE OE CALIFORNIA 

NATIVE AMERICAN HERITAGE COMMISSION 
Cultural and Environmental Department 
1550 Harbor Blvd., Suite 100 
West Sacramento, CA 95691 
Phone: (916) 373-3710 
Email: nahc@nahc.ca.gov 
Website: http://www.nahc.ca.gov 
Twitter: @CA_NAHC 

March 19, 2019 

Briza Sholars 
Provost & Pritchard Consulting 

VIA Email to: bsholars@ppeng.com 

RE: Rojas Pierce Park, Fresno County 

Dear Ms. Sholars: 

Gavin Newsom, Governor 

A record search of the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) Sacred Lands File (SLF) 
was completed for the information you have submitted for the above referenced project. The 
results were negative. However, the absence of specific site information in the SLF does not 
indicate the absence of cultural resources in any project area. Other sources of cultural resources 
should also be contacted for information regarding known and recorded sites. 

Attached is a list of Native American tribes who may also have knowledge of cultural resources in 
the project area. This list should provide a starting place in locating areas of potential adverse 
impact within the proposed project area. I suggest you contact all of those indicated; if they cannot 
supply information, they might recommend others with specific knowledge. By contacting all those 
listed, your organization will be better able to respond to claims of failure to consult with the 
appropriate tribe. If a response has not been received within two weeks of notification, the 
Commission requests that you follow-up with a telephone call or email to ensure that the project 
information has been received. 

If you receive notification of change of addresses and phone numbers from tribes, please notify 
the NAHC. With your assistance, we can assure that our lists contain current information. If you 
have any questions or need additional information, please contact me at my email address: 
katy.sanchez@nahc.ca.gov. 

Sincerely, 

Katy Sanchez 
Associate Environmental Planner 

Attachment 



Native American Heritage Commission 
Native American Contacts List 

3/19/2019 

Big Sandy Rancheria of Western Mono Indians 
Elizabeth D. Kipp, Chairperson 

Kings River Choinumni Farm Tribe 
Stan Alec 

PO. Box337 

Auberry .CA 93602 
lkipp@bsrnation.com 

(559) 374-0066 
(559) 374-0055 

Cold Springs Rancheria 
Carol Bill. Chairperson 
P.O. Box 209 
Tollhouse ·CA 93667 
coldsprgstribe@netptc.net 
(559) 855-5043 
(559) 855-4445 Fax 

Dumna Wo-Wah Tribal Goverment 
Robert Leda er Sr .• Chairperson 
2191 West Pico Ave. 
Fresno ·CA 93705 
ledgerrobert@ymail.com 

(559) 540-6346 

Dunlap Band of Mono Indians 
Benjamin Charley Jr .. Tribal Chair 
P.O. Box 14 
Dunlap ·CA 93621 
ben.charley@yahoo.com 
(760} 258-5244 

Dunlap Band of Mono Indians 
Dick Charlev. Tribal Secretary 
5509 E. McKenzie Avenue 
Fresno ·CA 93727 
dcharley2016@gmail.com 

(559) 554-5433 

Western Mono 

Mono 

3515 East Fedora Avenue 
Fresno ·CA 93726 
(559) 647-3227 Cell 

North Fork Mono Tribe 
Ron Goode. Chairperson 
13396 Tollhouse Road 
Clovis ·CA 93619 
rwgoode911@hotmail.com 

(559) 299-3729 Home 
(559) 355-1774 - cell 

Santa Rosa Rancheria Tachi Yokut Tribe 
Rueben Barrios Sr .• Chairperson 

Dumna/Foothill Yokuts P.O. Box 8 
Mono Lemoore ·CA 93245 

(559) 924-1278 
(559) 924-3583 Fax 

Table Mountain Rancheria 
Leanne Walker-Grant, Chairperson 

Foothill Yokuts 
Choinumni 

Mono 

Tache 
Tachi 
Yokut 

Mono P.O. Box 410 Yokuts 

Mono 

Friant 'CA 93626 
rpennell@tmr.org 
(559) 822-2587 
{559) 822-2693 Fax 

Table Mountain Rancheria 
Bob Pennell. Cultural Resources Director 
P.O. Box 410 Yokuts 
Friant ·CA 93626 
rpennell@tmr.org 
(559) 325-0351 
{559) 325-0394 Fax 

This list is current as of the date of this document and is based on the information available to the Commission on the date it 
was produced. 

Distribution of this list does not relieve any person of statutory responsibility as defined in Section 7050.5 of the Health and 
Safety Code,Section 5097.94 of the Public Resources Code, or Section 5097.98 of the Public Resources Code. 

This list is only applicable for contacting local Native American Tribes for the proposed: Rojas Pierce Park, Fresno County. 



Traditional Choinumni Tribe 
David Alvarez. Chairperson 
2415 E. Houston Avenue 
Fresno ·CA 93720 
davealvarez@sbcglobal.net 
(559) 217-0396 Cell 

Traditional Choinumni Tribe 
Rick Osborne, Cultural Resources 
2415 E. Houston Avenue 
Fresno ·CA 93720 
(559) 324-8764 
lemek(@.att.net 

Native American Heritage Commission 
Native American Contacts List 

3/1912019 

Choinumni 

Choinumni 

Wuksache Indian Tribe/Eshom Valley Band 
Kenneth Woodrow. Chairperson 
1179 Rock Haven Ct. 
Salinas ·CA 93906 
kwood8934@aol.com 

(831) 443-9702 

Foothill Yokuts 
M<;>no 
Wuksache 

Thfs list Is current as of the date of this document and is based on the information available to the Commission on the date it 
was produced. 

Distribution of this list does not relieve any person of statutory responsibility as defined in Section 7050.5 of the Health and 
Safety Code,Section 5097.94 of the Public Resources Code, or Section 5097.98 of the Public Resources Code. 

This list is only applicable for contacting local Native American Tribes for the proposed: Rojas Pierce Park, Fresno County. 



EST. 1966 

PROVOST& 
PRITCHARD 
CONSUi.. TING GROUP 

An EmplOyee Owflfl<I ComP1111y 

March 19, 2019 

Cold Springs Rancheria 
P.O. Box209 
Tollhouse CA 93667 

RE: Mendota Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Dear Ms. Bill: 

286 W. Cromwell Avenue 
Fresno, CA 93711-6162 

Tel: ("559) 449-2700 
Fax: (559) 449-2715 

www.ppeng.com 

Provost and Pritchard Consulting Group, .is providing cultural resources services in support of 
the City of Mendota Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project. 

The 10-acre parcel of land adjacent to the existing park (currently outside the city limits) will 
receive two additional soccer fields, and a baseball diamond. Beyond the outfield of the baseball 
diamond an open space area will double. as a storm water basin. Smoot Avenue will be fully 
improved to City local street standards (60-foot right-of-way) along the parcel frontage. The 
eastern half of Amador Street will be improved to City arterial street standards (84-foot right-of
way) extending from the residential development to the north to the Smoot Avenue extension. 
This will complete the circulation system in the area. An on-street parking lot will be constructed 
adjacent to Smoot Avenue, providing approximately 80 additional on-street parking spaces. 
The development activities also include installation of turf and trees, and continuation of the 
park's interior pedestrian circulation system. Another permanent restroom facility win be added. 

The project site is located in northwestern Mendota. Mendota is approximately 35 miles west of 
Fresno, and 8 miles south of Firebaugh in western Fresno County. State Routes 180 and 33 
intersect approximately ~-mile north of the project site. It is situated in Section 36, Township 13 
South, Range 14 East, Mount Diablo Base & Meridian; Assessor's Parcel Number 012-190-55. 
See attached map. 

Provost and Pritchard Consulting Group has requested a records search of the California 
Historic Resources Information System from the Southern San Joaquin Valley Information 
Center to identify any cultural resources within or adjacent to the Project Area. A search of the 
Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) Sacred Lands File was completed with 
negative results. The NAHC provided your name and address as a tribal contact that is 
culturally affiliated to the project area. If you have any information that you wish to share, or 
have questions or would like more information about the project, please do not hesitate to 
contact me by phone (559) 449-2700, email (bsholars@ppeng.com), or send a letter to my 
attention. I would appreciate any information you might provide to assist us with our inventory 
efforts. 

Be assured that any locations of archaeological sites, cemeteries, or sacred places will be 
treated confidentially, as required by law, and not disclosed in any document available to the 
general public. 

Sincerely, Briza Sholars 

~~ 
encl.: Topo Quad Map 

G:\Mendota_ City of-3336\333619004-Rojas Pierce Park lmpr\_DOCS\Planning\RePorts\Cultural\Cold Springs.docx 



t;ST. 1966 

PROVOST& 
PRITCHARD 
CONSUL TING GROUP 

An Employee OwnM ComP8Jly 

March 19, 2019 

Wuksache Indian Tribe/Eshom Valley Band 
1179 Rock Haven Ct. 
Salinas CA 93906 

RE: · Mendota Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Dear Mr. Woodrow: 

286 W. Cromwell Avenue 
Fresno, CA 93711-6162 

Tel: (559} 449-2700 
Fax: (559) 449-2715 

www.ppeng.com 

Provost and Pritchard Consulting Group, is providing cultural resources services in support of 
the City of Mendota Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project. 

The 10-acre parcel of land adjacent to the existing park (currently outside the city limits) will 
receive two additional soccer fields, and a baseball diamond. Beyond the outfield of the baseball 
diamond an open space area will double as a storm water basin. Smoot Avenue will be fully 
improved to City local street standards (60-foot right-of-way) along the parcel frontage. The 
eastern half of Amador Street will be improved to City arterial street standards (84-foot right-of
way) extending from the residential development to the north to the Smoot Avenue extension. 
This will complete the circulation system in the area. An on-street parking lot will be constructed 
adjacent to Smoot Avenue, providing approximately 80 addition~! on-street parking spaces. 
The development activities also include installation of turf and trees, and continuation of the 
park's interior pedestrian circulation system. Another permanent restroom facility will be added. 

The project site is located in northwestern Mendota. Mendota is approximately 35 miles west of 
Fresno, and 8 miles south of Firebaugh in western Fresno County. State Routes 180 and 33 
intersect approximately ~-mile north of the project site. It is situated in Section 36, Township 13 
South, Range 14 East, Mount Diablo Base & Meridian; Assessor's Parcel Number 012-190-55. 
See attached map. 

Provost and Pritchard Consulting Group has requested a records search of the California 
Historic Resources Information System from the Southern San Joaquin Valley Information 
Center to identify any cultural resources within or adjacent to the Project Area. A search of the 
Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) Sacred Lands File was completed with 
negative results. The NAHC provided your name and address as a tribal contact that is 
culturally affiliated to the project area. If you have any information that you wish to share, or 
have questions or would like more information about the project, please do not hesitate to 
contact me by phone (559) 449-2700, email (bsholars@ppeng.com), or send a letter to my 
attention. I would appreciate any information you might provide to assist us with our inventory 
efforts. 

Be assured that any locations of archaeological sites, cemeteries, or sacred places will be 
treated confidentially, as required by law, and not disclosed in any document available to the 
general public. 

Sincerely, Briza Sholars 

~~ 
encl.: Topo Quad Map 

G:\Mendota_ City of-3336\333619004-Rojas Pierce Park lmpr\_DOCS\Planning\Reports\Cultural\Wuksache.docx 



EST.1$68 

PROVOST& 
PRfTCHARD 
CONSULTING GROUP 

An Employea Owned Company 

March 19, 2019 

Traditional Choinumni Tribe 
2415 E. Houston Ave 
Fresno CA 93720 

RE: Mendota Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Dear Mr. Alvarez: 

286 W. Cromwell Avenue 
Fresno, CA 93711-6162 

Tel: (559) 449-2700 
Fax: (559) 449-2715 

www.ppeng.com 

Provost and Pritchard Consulting Group, is providing cultural resources services in support of 
the City of Mendota Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project. 

The 10-acre parcel of land adjacent to the existing park (currently outside the city limits) will 
receive two additional soccer fields, and a baseball diamond. Beyond the outfield of the baseball 
diamond an open space area will double as a storm water basin. Smoot Avenue will .be fully 
improved to City local street standards (60-foot right-of-way) along the parcel frontage. The 
eastern half of Amador Street will be improved to City arterial street standards (84-foot right-of
way) extending from the residential development to the north to the Smoot Avenue extension. 
This will complete the circulation system in the area. An on-street parking lot will be constructed 
adjacent to Smoot Avenue, providing approximately 80 additional on-street parking spaces. 
The development activities also include installation of turf and trees, and continuation of the 
park's interior pedestrian circulation system. Another permanent restroom facility will be added. 

The project site is located in northwestern Mendota. Mendota is approximately 35 miles west of 
Fresno, and 8 miles south of Firebaugh in western Fresno County. State Routes 180 and 33 
intersect approximately %-mile north of the project site. It is situated in Section 36, Township 13 
South, Range 14 East, Mount Diablo Base & Meridian; Assessor's Parcel Number 012-190-55. 
See attached map. 

Provost and Pritchard Consulting Group has requested a records search of the California 
Historic Resources Information System from the Southern San Joaquin Valley Information 
Center to identify any cultural resources within or adjacent to the Project Area. A search of the 
Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) Sacred Lands File was completed with 
negative results. The NAHC provided your name and address as a tribal contact that is 
culturally affiliated to the project area. If you have any information that you wish to share, or 
have questions or would like more information about the project, please do not hesitate to 
contact me by phone (559) 449-2700, email (bsholars@ppeng.com), or send a letter to my 
attention. I would appreciate any information you might provide to assist us with our inventory 
efforts. 

Be assured that any locations of archaeological sites, cemeteries, or sacred places will be 
treated confidentially, as required by law, and not disclosed in any document available to the 
general public. 

Sincerely, Briza Sholars 

~~ 
encl.: T opo Quad Map 

G:\Mendota_City of-3336\333619004·Rojas Pierce Park lmpr\_DOCS\Planning\Reports\Cultural\Traditional Choinumni.docx 



EST. 1968 

PROVOST& 
PRITCHARD 
CONSUL TING GROUP 

An Employee OW/'led Company 

March 19, 2019 

Traditional Choinumni Tribe 
2415 E. Houston Ave 
Fresno CA 93720 

RE: Mendota Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Dear Mr. Osbourne: 

286 W. Cromwell Avenue 
Fresno, CA 93711-6162 

Tel: (559) 449-2700 
Fax: (559) 449-2715 

www.ppeng.com 

Provost and Pritchard Consulting Group, is providing cultural resources services in support of 
the City of Mendota Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project. 

The 10-acre parcel of land adjacent to the existing park (currently outside the city limits) will 
receive two additional soccer fields, and a baseball diamond. Beyond the outfield of the baseball 
diamond an open space area will double as a storm water basin. Smoot Avenue will be fully 
improved to City local street standards (60-foot right-of-way) along the parcel frontage. The 
eastern half of Amador Street will be improved to City arterial street standards (84-foot right-of
way) extending from the residential development to the north to the Smoot Avenue extension. 
This will complete the circulation system in the area. An on-street parking lot will be constructed 
adjacent to Smoot Avenue, providing approximately 80 additional on-street parking spaces. 
The development activities also include installation of turf and trees, and continuation of the 
park's interior pedestrian circulation system. Another permanent restroom facility will be added. 

The project site is located in northwestern Mendota. Mendota is approximately 35 miles west of 
Fresno, and 8 miles south of Firebaugh in western Fresno County. State Routes 180 and 33 
intersect approximately Y2·mile north of the project site. It is situated in Section 36, Town ship 13 
South, Range 14 East. Mount Diablo Base & Meridian; Assessor's Parcel Number 012-190-55. 
See attached map. 

Provost and Pritchard Consulting Group has requested a records search of the California 
Historic Resources Information System from the Southern San Joaquin Valley Information 
Center to identify any cultural resources within or adjacent to the Project Area. A search of the 
Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) Sacred Lands File was completed with 
negative results. The NAHC provided your name and address as a tribal contact that is 
culturally affiliated to the project area. If you have any information that you wish to share, or 
have questions or would like more information about the project, please do not hesitate to 
contact me by phone (559) 449-2700, email (bsholars@ppeng.com), or send a letter to my 
attention. I would appreciate any information you might provide to assist us with our inventory 
efforts. 

Be assured that any locations of archaeological sites, cemeteries, or sacred places will be 
treated confidentially, as required by law, and not disclosed in any document available to the 
general public. 

Sincerely, Briza Sholars 

~~ 
encl.: Topo Quad Map 

G:\Mendota_City of-3336\333619004-Rojas Pierce Park lmpr\_DOCS\Planning\Reports\Cultural\Tradilional Choinumni 2.docx 



EST 1968 

PROVOST& 
PRITCHARD 
CONSUL TING GROUP 

Ari Employee OwllOO Camperry 

March 19, 2019 

Table Mountain Rancheria 
P.O. Box 410 
Friant CA 93626 

RE: Mendota Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Dear Ms. Walker-Grant: 

286 W. Cromwell Avenue 
Fresno, CA 93711-6162 

Tel: (559)449-2700 
Fax: (559) 449-2715 

www.ppeng.com 

Provost and Pritchard Consulting Group, is providing cultural resources services in support of 
the City of Mendota Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project. 

The 10-acre parcel of land adjacent to the existing park (currently outside the city limits) will 
receive two additional soccer fields, and a baseball diamond. Beyond the outfield of the baseball 
diamond an open space area will double as a storm water basin. Smoot Avenue will be fully 
improved to City local street standards (60-foot right-of-way) along the parcel frontage. The 
eastern half of Amador Street will be improved to City arterial street standards (84-foot right-of
way) extending from the residential development to the north to the Smoot Avenue extension. 
This will complete the circulation system in the area. An on-street parking lot will be constructed 
adjacent to Smoot Avenue, providing approximately 80 additional on-street parking spaces. 
The development activities also include installation of turf and trees, and continuation of the 
park's interior pedestrian circulation system. Another permanent restroom facility will be added. 

The project site is located in northwestern Mendota. Mendota is approximately 35 miles west of 
Fresno, and 8 miles south of Firebaugh in western Fresno County. State Routes 180 and 33 
intersect approximately }2-mile north of the project site. It is situated in Section 36, Township 13 
South, Range 14 East, Mount Diablo Base & Meridian; Assessor's Parcel Number 012-190-55. 
See attached map. 

Provost and Pritchard Consulting Group has requested a records search of the California 
Historic Resources Information System from the Southern San Joaquin Valley Information 
Center to identify any cultural resources within or adjacent to the Project Area. A search of the 
Native American Heritage .Commission (NAHC) Sacred Lands File was completed with 
negative results. The NAHC provided your name and address as a tribal contact that is 
culturally affiliated to the project area. If you have any information that you wish to share, or 
have questions or would like more information about the project, please do not hesitate to 
contact me by phone (559) 449-2700, email (bsholars@ppeng.com), or send a letter to my 
attention. I would appreciate any information you might provide to assist us with our inventory 
efforts. 

Be assured that any locations of archaeological sites, cemeteries, or sacred places will be 
treated confidentially, as required by law, and not disclosed in any document available to the 
general public. 

Sincerely, Briza Sholars 

~~ 
encl.: T opo Quad Map 

G:\Mendota_City of-3336\333619004-Rojas Pierce Park lmpr\_DOCS\Plannlng\Reports\Cultural\Table Mtn.docx 



EST. 1S68 

PROVOST& 
PRITCHARD 
CONSUL TING GROUP 

An Employee Owned Company 

March 19, 2019 

Table Mountain Rancheria 
P.O. Box 410 
Friant CA 93626 

RE: Mendota Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Dear Mr. Pennell: 

286 W. Cromwell Avenue 
Fresno, CA 93711-6162 

·Tel: (559) 449-2700 
Fax: (559)449-2715 

www.ppeng.com 

Provost and Pritchard Consulting Group, is providing cultural resources services in support of 
the City of Mendota Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project. 

The 10-acre parcel of land adjacent to the existing park (currently outside the city limits) will 
receive two additional soccer fields, and a baseball diamond. Beyond the outfield of the baseball 
diamond an open space area will double as a storm water basin. Smoot Avenue will be fully 
improved to City local street standards (60-foot right-of-way) along the parcel frontage. The 
eastern half of Amador Street will be improved to City arterial street standards (84-foot right-of
way) extending from the residential development to the north to the Smoot Avenue extension. 
This will complete the circulation system in the area. An on-street parking lot will be constructed 
adjacent to Smoot Avenue, providing approximately 80 additional on-street parking spaces. 
The development activities also include installation of turf and trees, and continuation of the 
park's interior pedestrian circulation system. Another permanent restroom facility will be added. 

The project site is located in northwestern Mendota. Mendota is approximately 35 miles west of 
Fresno, and 8 miles south of Firebaugh in western Fresno County. State Routes 180 and 33 
intersect approximately Y2-mile north of the project site. It is situated in Section 36, Township 13 
South, Range 14 East, Mount Diablo Base & Meridian; Assessor's Parcel Number 012-190-55. 
See attached map. 

Provost and Pritchard Consulting Group has requested a records search of the California 
Historic Resources Information System from the Southern San Joaquin Valley Information 
Center to identify any cultural resources within or adjacent to the Project Area. A search of the 
Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) Sacred Lands File was completed with 
negative results. The NAHC provided your name and address as a tribal contact that is 
culturally affiliated to the project area. If you have any information that you wish to share, or 
have questions or would like more information about the project, please do not hesitate to 
contact me by phone (559) 449-2700, email (bsholars@ppeng.com), or send a letter to my 
attention. I would appreciate any information you might provide to assist us with our inventory 
efforts. 

Be assured that any locations of archaeological sites, cemeteries, or sacred places will be 
treated confidentially, as required by law, and not disclosed in any document available to the 
general public. 

Sincerely, Briza Sholars 

~~ 
encl.: Topo Quad Map 

G:\Mendota_City of-3336\333619004-Rojas Pierce Park lmpr\_DOCS\Plannlng\Reports\Cultural\Table Mtn 2.docx 



EST.1968 

PROVOST& 
PRITCHARD 
CONSUt. TING GROUP 

An Employee Owned Company 

March 19, 2019 

Santa Rosa Rancheria Tachi Yokut Tribe 
P.O. Box8 
Lemoore CA 93245 

RE: Mendota Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Dear Mr. Barrios: 

286 W. Cromwell Avenue 
Fresno, CA 9371H5162 

Tel: (559) 449-2700 
Fax: (559) 449-2715 

www.ppeng.com 

Provost and Pritchard Consulting Group, is providing cultural resources services in support of 
the City of Mendota Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project. 

The 10-acre parcel of land adjacent to the existing park (currently outside the city limits) will 
receive two additional soccer fields, and a baseball diamond. Beyond the outfield of the baseball 
diamond an open space area will double as a storm water basin. Smoot Avenue will be fully 
improved to City local street standards (60-foot right-of-way) along the parcel frontage. The 
eastern half of Amador Street will be improved to City arterial street standards (84-foot right-of
way) extending from the residential development to the north to the Smoot Avenue extension. 
This will complete the circulation system in the area. An on-street parking lot will be constructed 
adjacent to Smoot Avenue, providing approximately 80 additional on-street parking spaces. 
The development activities also include installation of turf and trees, and continuation of the 
park's interior pedestrian circulation system. Another permanent restroom facility will be added. 

The project site is located in northwestern Mendota. Mendota is approximately 35 miles west of 
Fresno, and 8 miles south of Firebaugh in western Fresno County. State Routes 180 and 33 
intersect approximately 12-mile north of the project site. It is situated in Section 36, Township 13 
South, Range 14 East, Mount Diablo Base & Meridian; Assessor's Parcel Number 012-190-55. 
See attached map. 

Provost and Pritchard Consulting Group has requested a records search of the California 
Historic Resources Information System from the Southern San Joaquin Valley Information 
Center to identify any cultural resources within or adjacent to the Project Area. A search of the 
Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) Sacred Lands File was completed with 
negative results. The NAHC provided your name and address as a tribal contact that is 
culturally affiliated to the project area. If you have any information that you wish to share, or 
have questions or would like more information about the project, please do not hesitate to 
contact me by phone {559) 449-2700, email (bsholars@ppeng.com), or send a letter to my 
attention. I would appreciate any information you might provide to assist us with our inventory 
efforts. 

Be assured that any locations of archaeological sites, cemeteries, or sacred places will be 
treated confidentially, as required by law, and not disclosed in any document available to the 
general public. 

Sincerely, Briza Sholars 

~~ 
encl.: Topo Quad Map 

G:\Mendota_City of-3336\333619004-Rojas Pierce Park lmpr\_DOCS\Plannlng\Reports\Cultural\Santa Rosa .docx 



EST. 1968 

PROVOST& 
PRITCHARD 
CONSUL. TING GROUP 

An EmplO)!fle Owned Company 

March 19, 2019 

North Fork Mono Tribe 
13396 Tollhouse Road 
Clovis CA 93619 

RE: Mendota Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Dear Mr. Goode: 

286 W. Cromwell Avenue 
Fresno, CA 93711-6162 

Tel: (559) 449-2700 

Fax: (559) 449-2715 

www.ppeng.com 

Provost and Pritchard Consulting Group, is providing cultural resources services in support of 
the City of Mendota Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project. 

The 10-acre parcel of land adjacent to the existing park (currently outside the city limits) will 
receive two additional soccer fields, and a baseball diamond. Beyond the outfield of the baseball 
diamond an open space area will double as a storm water basin. Smoot Avenue will be fully 
improved to City local street standards (60-foot right-of-way) along the parcel frontage. The 
eastern half of Amador Street will be improved to City arterial street standards (84-foot right-of
way} extending from the residential development to the north to the Smoot Avenue extension. 
This will complete the ci.rculation system in the area. An on-street parking lot will be constructed 
adjacent to Smoot Avenue, providing approximately 80 additional on-street parking spaces. 
The development activities also include installation of turf and trees, and continuation of the 
park's interior pedestrian circulation system. Another permanent restroom facility will be added. 

The project site is located in northwestern Mendota. Mendota is approximately 35 miles west of 
Fresno, and 8 miles south of Firebaugh in western Fresno County. State Routes 180 and 33 
intersect approximately %-mile north of the project site. It is situated in Section 36, Township 13 
South, Range 14 East, Mount Diablo Base & Meridian; Assessor's Parcel Number 012-190-55. 
See attached map. 

Provost and Pritchard Consulting Group has requested a records search of the California 
Historic Resources Information System from the Southern San Joaquin Valley Information 
Center to identify any cultural resources within or adjacent to the Project Area. A search of the 
Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) Sacred Lands File was completed with 
negative results. The NAHC provided your name and address as a tribal contact that is 
culturally affiliated to the project area. If you have any information that you wish to share, or 
have questions or would like more information about the project, please do not hesitate to 
contact me by phone (559) 449·2700, email (bsholars@ppeng.com), or send a letter to my 
attention. I would appreciate any information you might provide to assist us with our inventory 
efforts. 

Be assured that any locations of archaeological sites, cemeteries, or sacred places will be 
treated confidentially, as required by law, and not disclosed in any document available to the 
general public. 

Sincerely, Briza Sholars 

~~ 
encl.: Topo Quad Map 

G:\Mendota_City of-3336\333619004-Rojas Pierce Park lmpr\_DOCS\Planning\Reports\Cultural\North Fork.docx 



EST 1968 

PROVOST& 
PRITCHARD 
CONSUL. TING GROUP 

An Employee Oivned Comp:my 

March 19, 2019 

Kings River Choinumni Farm Tribe 
3515 East Fedora Ave 
Fresno CA, 93726 

RE: Mendota Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Dear Mr. Alec: 

286 W. Cromwell Avenue 
Fresno, CA 93711-6162 

Tel: (559) 449-2700 
Fax: (559) 449-2715 

www.ppeng.com 

Provost and Pritchard Consulting Group, is providing cultural resources services in support of 
the City of Mendota Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project. 

The 10-acre parcel of land adjacent to the existing park (currently outside the city limits) will 
receive two additional soccer fields, and a baseball diamond. Beyond the outfield of the baseball 
diamond an open space area will double as a storm water basin. Smoot Avenue will be fully 
improved to City local street standards (60-foot right-of-way) along the parcel frontage. The 
eastern half of Amador Street will be improved to City arterial street standards (84-foot right-of
way) extending from the residential development to the north to the Smoot Avenue extension. 
This will complete the circulation system in the area. An on-street parking lot will be constructed 
adjacent to Smoot Avenue, providing approximately 80 additional on-street parking spaces. 
The development activities also include installation of turf and trees, and continuation of the 
park's interior pedestrian circulation system. Another permanent restroom facility will be added. 

The project site is located in northwestern Mendota. Mendota is approximately 35 miles west of 
Fresno, and 8 miles south of Firebaugh in western Fresno County. State Routes 180 and 33 
intersect approximately Y2-mile north of the project site. It is situated in Section 36, Township 13 
South, Range 14 East, Mount Diablo Base & Meridian; Assessor's Parcel Number 012-190-55. 
See attached map. 

Provost and Pritchard Consulting Group has requested a records search of the California 
Historic Resources Information System from the Southern San Joaquin Valley Information 
Center to identify any cultural resources within or adjacent to the Project Area. A search of the 
Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) Sacred Lands File was completed with 
negative results. The NAHC provided your name and address as a tribal contact that is 
culturally affiliated to the project area. If you have any information that you wish to share, or 
have questions or would like more information about the project, please do not hesitate to 
contact me by phone (559) 449-2700, email (bsholars@ppeng.com). or send a letter to my 
attention. I would appreciate any information you might provide to assist us with our inventory 
efforts. 

Be assured that any locations of archaeological sites, cemeteries, or sacred places will be 
treated confidentially, as required by law, and not disclosed in any document available to the 
general public. 

Sincerely, Briza Sholars· 

~~ 
encl.: Topo Quad Map 

G:\Mendota_ City of-3336\333619004-Rojas Pierce Park lmpr\_DOCS\Planning\Reports\Cultural\Kings River.docx 



EST. 19G8 

PROVOST& 
PRITCHARD 
CONSUL. TING GROUP 

An Employee Owned Company 

March 19, 2019 

Dunlap Band of Mono Indians 
P.O. Box 14 
Dunlap CA 93621 

RE: Mendota Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Dear Mr. Charley.: 

286 W. Cromwell Avenue 
Fresno, CA 93711-6162 

Tel: (559) 449-2700 
Fax: (559) 449-2715 

www.ppeng.com 

Provost and Pritchard Consulting Group, is providing cultural resources services in support of 
the City of Mendota Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project. 

The 10-acre parcel of land adjacent to the existing park (currently outside the city limits) will 
receive two additional soccer fields, and a baseball diamond. Beyond the outfield of the baseball 
diamond an open space area will double as a storm water basin. Smoot Avenue will be fully 
improved to City local street standards (60-foot right-of-way) along the parcel frontage. The 
eastern half of Amador Street will be improved to City arterial street standards (84-foot right-of
way) extending from the residential development to the north to the Smoot Avenue extension. 
This will complete the circulation system in the area. An on-street parking lot will be constructed 
adjacent to Smoot Avenue, providing approximately 80 additional on-street parking spaces. 
The development activities also include installation of turf and trees, and continuation of the 
park's interior pedestrian circulation system. Another permanent restroom facility will be added. 

The project site is located in northwestern Mendota. Mendota is approximately 35 miles west of 
Fresno, and 8 miles south of Firebaugh in western Fresno County. State Routes 180 and 33 
intersect approximately Y:z-mile north of the project site. It is situated in Section 36, Township 13 
South, Range 14 East, Mount Diablo Base & Meridian: Assessor's Parcel Number 012-190-55. 
See attached map. 

Provost and Pritchard Consulting Group has requested a records search of the California 
Historic Resources Information System from the Southern .San Joaquin Valley Information 
Center to identify any cultural resources within or adjacent to the Project Area. A search of the 
Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC} Sacred Lands File was completed with 
negative results. The NAHC provided your name and address as a tribal contact that is 
culturally affiliated to the project area. If you have any information that you wish to share, or 
have questions or would like more information about the project, please do not hesitate to 
contact me by phone (559) 449-2700, email (bsholars@ppeng.com), or send a letter to my 
attention. I would appreciate any information you might provide to assist us with our inventory 
efforts. 

Be assured that any locations of archaeological sites, cemeteries, or sacred places will be 
treated confidentially, as required by law, and not disclosed in any document available to the 
general public. 

Sincerely, Briza Sholars 

~~ 
encl.: Topo Quad Map 

G:\Mendota_ City of-3336\333619004-Rojas Pierce Park lmpr\_DOCS\Planning\Reports\Cultural\Dunlap Band.docx 



EST. '1968 

PROVOST& 
PRITCHARD 
CONSUi.. TING Gl'IOUP 

An Employee Owned C<impany 

March 19, 2019 

Dunlap Band of Mono Indians 
P.O. Box 14 
Dunlap CA 93621 

RE: Mendota Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Dear Mr. Charley.: 

286 W. Cromwell Avenue 
Fresno, CA 93711-6162 

Tel: (559) 449-2700 
Fax: (559) 449-2715 

www.ppeng.com 

Provost and Pritchard Consulting Group, is providing cultural resources services in support of 
the City of Mendota Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project. 

The 10-acre parcel of land adjacent to the existing park (currently outside the city limits) will 
receive two additional soccer fields, and a baseball diamond. Beyond the outfield of the baseball 
diamond an open space area will double as a storm water basin. Smoot Avenue will be fully 
improved to City local street standards (60-foot right-of-way) along the parcel frontage. The 
eastern half of Amador Street will be improved to City arterial street standards (84-foot right-of
way) extending from the residential development to the north to the Smoot Avenue extension. 
This wm complete the circulation system in the area. An on-street parking lot will be constructed 
adjacent to Smoot Avenue, providing approximately 80 additional on-street parking spaces. 
The development activities also include installation of turf and trees, and continuation of the 
park's interior pedestrian circulation system. Another permanent restroom facility will be added. 

The project site is located in northwestern Mendota. Mendota is approximately 35 miles west of 
Fresno, and 8 miles.south of Firebaugh in western Fresno County. State Routes 180 and 33 
intersect approximately %-mile north of the project site. It is situated in Section 36, Township 13 
South, Range 14 East, Mount Diablo Base & Meridian; Assessor's Parcel Number 012-190-55. 
See attached map. 

Provost and Pritchard Consulting. Group has requested a records search of the California 
Historic Resources Information System from the Southern San Joaquin Valley Information 
Center to identify any cultural resources within or adjacent to the Project Area. A search of the 
Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) Sacred Lands File was completed with 
negative results. The NAHC provided your name and address as a tribal contact that is 
culturally affiliated to the project area. If you have any information that you wish to share. or 
have questions or would like more information about the project, please do not hesitate to 
contact me by phone (559) 449-2700, email (bsholars@ppeng.com), or send a letter to my 
attention. I would appreciate any information you might provide to assist us with our inventory 
efforts. 

Be assured that any locations of archaeological sites, cemeteries, or sacred places will be 
treated confidentially, as required by law, and not disclosed in any document available to the 
general public. 

Sincerely, Briza Sholars 

~~ 
encl.: Topo Quad Map 

G:\Mendota_City of-3336\333619004-Rojas Pierce Park lmpr\_DOCS\Planning\Reports\Cultural\Dunlap Band 2.docx 



!;ST ~96B 

PROVOST& 
PRITCHARD 
CONSUL TING GROUP 

An Employ&e Owned Oomp;iny 

March 19, 2019 

Dumna Wo-Wah Tribal Government 
2191 West Pico Ave 
Fresno CA 93705 

RE: Mendota Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Dear Mr. Ledger: 

286 W. Cromwell Avenue 
Fresno, CA 93711~162 

Tel: (559) 449-2700 
Fax: (559) 449-2715 

www.ppeng.com 

Provost and Pritchard Consulting Group, is providing cultural resources services in support of 
the City of Mendota Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project. 

The 10-acre parcel of land adjacent to the existing park (currently outside the city limits) will 
receive two additional soccer fields, and a baseball diamond. Beyond the outfield of the baseball 
diamond an open space area will double as a storm water basin. Smoot Avenue will be fully 
improved to City local street standards (60-foot right-of-way) along the parcel frontage. The 
eastern half of Amador Street will be improved to City arterial street standards (84-foot right-of
way) extending from the residential development to the north to the Smoot Avenue extension. 
This will complete the circulation system in the area. An on-street parking lot will be constructed 
adjacent to Smoot Avenue, providing approximately 80 additional on-street parking spaces. 
The development activities also include installation of turf and trees, and continuation of the 
park's interior pedestrian circulation system. Another permanent restroom facility will be added. 

The project site is located !n northwestern Mendota. Mendota is approximately 35 miles west of 
Fresno, and 8 miles south of Firebaugh in western Fresno County. State Routes 180 and 33 
intersect approximately %-mile north of the project site. ·it is situated in Section 36, Township 13 
South, Range 14 East, Mount Diablo Base & Meridian; Assessor's Parcel Number 012-190-55. 
See attached map. 

Provost and Pritchard Consulting Group has requested a records search of the California 
Historic Resources Information System from the Southern San Joaquin Valley Information 
Center to identify any cultural resources within or adjacent to the Project Area. A search of the 
Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) Sacred Lands File was completed with 
negative results. The NAHC provided your name and address as a tribal contact that is 
culturally affiliated to the project area. If you have any information that you wish to share, or 
have questions or would like more information about the project, please do not hesitate to 
contact me by phone (559) 449-2700, email (bsholars@ppeng.com), or send a letter to my 
attention. I would appreciate any information you might provide to assist us with our inventory 
efforts. 

Be assured that any locations of archaeological sites, cemeteries, or sacred places will be 
treated confidentially, as required by law, and not disclosed in any document available to the 
general public. 

Sincerely, Briza Sholars 

~~ 
encl.: To po Quad Map 

G:\Mendota_City of-3336\333619004-Rojas Pierce Park lmpr\_DOCS\Planning\Reports\Cultural\Dumna Wo-Wah.docx 



EST. 196S 

PROVOST& 
PRITCHARD 
CONSUi. TING GROUP 

An Emptoyee Owf!IKJ Company 

March 19, 2019 

Big Sandy Rancheria of Western Mono Indians 
P.O. Box337 
Auberry, CA 93602 

RE: Mendota Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Dear Ms. Kipp: 

286 W. Cromwell Avenue 
Fresno, CA 93711-6162 

Tel: (559) 449-2700 
Fax: (559) 449-2715 

www.ppeng.com 

Provost and Pritchard Consulting Group, is providing cultural resources services in support of 
the City of Mendota Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project. 

The 10-acre parcel of land adjacent to the existing park (currently outside the city limits) will 
receive two additional soccer fields, and a baseball diamond. Beyond the outfield of the baseball 
diamond an open space area will double as a storm water basin. Smoot Avenue will be fully 
improved to City local street standards (60-foot right-of-way) along the parcel frontage. The 
eastern half of Amador Street will be improved to City arterial street standards (84-foot right-of
way) extending from the residential development to the north to the Smoot Avenue extension. 
This will complete the circulation system in the area. An on-street parking lot will be constructed 
adjacent to Smoot Avenue, providing approximately 80 additional on-street parking spaces. 
The development activities also include installation of turf and trees, and continuation of the 
park's interior pedestrian circulation system. Another permanent restroom facility will be added. 

The project site is located in northwestern Mendota. Mendota is approximately 35 miles west of 
Fresno, and 8 miles south of Firebaugh in western Fresno County. State Routes 180 and 33 
intersect approximately Y2-mile north of the project site. It is situated in Section 36, Township 13 
South, Range 14 East, Mount Diablo Base & Meridian; Assessor's Parcel Number 012-190-55. 
See attached map. 

Provost and Pritchard Consulting Group has requested a records search of the California 
Historic Resources Information System from the Southern San Joaquin Valley Information 
Center to identify any cultural resources within or adjacent to the Project Area. A search of the 
Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) Sacred Lands File was completed with 
negative results. The NAHC provided your name and address as a tribal contact that is 
culturally affiliated to the project area. If you have any information that you wish to share, or 
have questions or would like more information about the project. please do not hesitate to 
contact me by phone (559) 449-2700, email (bsholars@ppeng.com), or send a letter to my 
attention. I would appreciate any information you might provide to assist us with our inventory 
efforts. 

Be assured that any locations of archaeological sites, cemeteries, or sacred places will be 
treated confidentially, as required by law, and not disclosed in any document available to the 
general public. 

Sincerely, Briza Sholars 

~~ 
encl.: Topo Quad Map 

G:\Mendota_ City of-3336\333619004-Rojas Pierce Park lmpr\_DOCS\Planning\Reports\Cultural\Big Sandy.docx 



-
SANTA ROSA RANCHERIA TACHI TRIBE 

A FEDERALLY RECOGNIZED TRIBE 

Ruben Barrios 
<:hainnan 

08/08/16 

Elmer Thomas 
\'ice-Chairman 

City of Mendota 
C/O Director 
643 Quince Street 
Mendota CA 93640 

~~~~~~~~~~----' 

Rafaelia Dieter .& Rosa Hernandez A EJaine Jeff I Patricia D. Lewis 
Secretary Treasurer 

RE: California Environmental Quality Act Public Resources Code section 21080.3, 
subd. (b) Request for Formal Notification of Proposed Projects Within the Santa Rosa 
Rancheria's Geographic Area of Traditional and Cultural Affiliation 

To Whom It May Concern, 
As of the date of this letter, in accordance with Public Resources Code Section 
21080.3.1, subd. (b), Santa Rosa Rancheria Tachi Yokut Tribe which is traditionally and 
culturally affiliated with a geographic area within you_r agency's geographic area of 
jurisdiction, requests formal notice of and information on proposed projects for which 
your agency will serve as a lead agency under the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA), Public Resources Code section 21000 et seq. Pursuant to Public Resources 
Code section 21080.3.1. subd. (b), and until further notice, we hereby designate the 
following person as the tribe's lead contact person for purposes of receiving notices of 
proposed projects from your agency: 

Santa Rosa Rancheria Tac hi Yokut Tribe 

Ruben Barrios, Tribal Chairman 
C/O Cultural Department 
P.O. Box 8, Lemoore, CA 93245 

Cultural Department 

Hector Franco (Director); 
(559)924-1278 Ext: 4011 
(559)925-8530 
HFranco@tachi-yokut-nsn.gov; 

Shana Powers (Cultural Specialist II) 
{559)924-1278 Ext: 4013 
( 559)997-9919 
SBrum@tachi-yokut-nsn.gov 

P.O. Box. 8 A Lemoore, CA 93245 • (559) 924-1278 • Fax (559) 924-3583 
Ta.x Exemot #94-2W40Hfi 



CITY O.F MENDOTA 

April 4, 2019 

Santa Rosa Rancheria Tachi Yokut Tribe 
Rueben Barrios, Tribal Chairman 
CIO Cultural Department 
P.O. Box 8 
Lemoore, CA 93245 

"Cantaloupe Center Of The World" 

Subject: Consultation pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21080.3.1, et seq. 
for the Mendota Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project, CA 

Dear Mr. Barrios: 

The City of Mendota is processing an application for the Mendota Rojas Pierce Park Expansion 
Project and is requesting your review to determine if formal consultation is appropriate pursuant 
to Public Resources Code Section 21080.3.1, et seq. (Assembly Bill 52). The project proposes 
the following activities: 

The 10-acre parcel of land adjacent to the existing park (currently outside the city limits) will 
receive two additional soccer fields, and a baseball diamond. Beyond the outfield of the baseball 
diamond an open space area will double as a storm water basin. Smoot Avenue will be fully 
improved to City local street standards (60-foot right-of-way) along the parcel frontage. The 
eastern half of Amador Street will be improved to City arterial street standards (84-foot right-of
way) extending from the residential development to the north to the Smoot Avenue extension. 
This will complete the circulation system in the area. An on-street parking lot wili be constructed 
adjacent to Smoot Avenue, providing approximately 80 additional on-street parking spaces. 
The development activities also include installation of turf and trees, and continuation of the 
park's interior pedestrian circulation system. Another permanent restroom facility will be added. 

The project site is located in northwestern Mendota. Mendota is approximately 35 miles west of 
Fresno, and 8 miles south of Firebaugh in western Fresno County. State Routes 180 and 33 
intersect approximately %-mile north of the project site. It is situated in Section 36, Township 13 
South, Range 14 East, Mount Diablo Base & Meridian; Assessor's Parcel Number 012-190-
SSST. 

We understand that pursuant to Public Resources Code Subdivision 21080.3.1(d) the Tribe has 
30 days from receipt of this letter to request formal consultation. Please feel free to contact me 
with any questions at (559) 655-4298 or at Cristian@cityofmendota.com. Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

L--- c__ 
Cristian Gonzales, City Manager 

Enclosures: Site Plan 
Topo~Quad Map 



= 
State of California • Natural Resources Agency 

DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION 
OFFICE OF HISTORIC PRESERVATION 
Julianne Polanco, State Historic Preservation Officer 

1725 23rd Street, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95816-7100 
Telephone: (916) 445-7000 FAX: (916) 445-7053 
calshpo.ohp@parks.ca.gov 

June 4, 2019 

Mr. Cristian Gonzalez 
City Manager 
City of (l/lendota 
643 Quince Street 
Mendota, CA 93640 

Re: Rojas Pierce Park Expansion Project 

Dear Mr. Gonzalez: 

Gavin Newsom, Governor 

Lisa Ann L. Mangat, Director 

Refer to HUD_2019_0506_001 

The California State Historic Preservation Officer received the consultation submittal for the 
above referenced undertaking for our review and comment pursuant to Section 106 of the · 
National Historic Preservation Act and its implementing regulations found at 36 CFR Part 800. 
The regulations and advisory materials are located at "!fl!0!LE!.'o:'Wdc~"-· 

Pursuant to 36 CFR §800.4(d) we do not object to the City of Mendota's finding that .no historic 
properties will be affected by the proposed expansion of Rojas Pierce Park, which includes the 
addition of two soccer fields, a baseball diamond, bleachers, LED lighting, and an open space 
that will double as a storm water basin. However, the City may have additional Section 106 
responsibilities under certain circumstances set forth at 36 CFR Part 800. For example, in the 
event that historic properties are discovered during implementation of the undertaking, your 
agency is required to consult further pursuant to §800.13(b). 

We appreciate the City of Mendota's consideration of historic properties in the project planning 
process. If you have questions please contact Shannon Lauchner, Historian II, with the Local 
Government & Environmental Compliance Unit at (916)445-7013 or by email at 

Sincerely, 

Julianne Polanco 
State Hi.storic Preservation Officer 



t 
0 100 200 

Feet 

EST 1968 

PROVOST& 
PRITCHARD 
CONSUL TING G R OUP 

An Employoo Owntld Q)mp!my 

419/2019: G:\Mendota_Clty ol-3336\333819004-Rojas Pierce Park lmpnGIS\Map'\Aerfal.mxd 

E:::::::J ProjectAPE (15.4acres) 

I - - I Mendota City Limits - --



• • • • • • 

USGS Topo Maps (1 :24K} 

c::J Project Area 

CJ Towns.hip/Range 

c::J Top0graphieal Quadrangle 

t 
0 800 1,600 

Feet 
r.:oT 1snn 

PROVOST& 
PRITCHARD 
CQNDUt..flNG GROUP 

An Cmplo)'fl9 """*' Compatiy 

\ 
\., 

r--~ i;f ., ~ 
' • T -145 R14E \ 8M 1 AVl!NIJ£ 

\ ,, \ 
\ 

\ ' 

...... - ............ ~ti••-- . ., ........ ~ 

~ 

6 

~ 1 \ Copynl~~ 
3.'1112019 : \\ppeng.comlpzdetelciients\Mendota_City of-3336\33360G01_0n-Going\100\102 Contracts\102.42 Rojas Pierce Park 1mprovemerii8\GfS\Map\Topo.mlCd 

~' 
~ 

... 
~ ·. 

6 

Average Project Elevation: 175 feat 

13 National G:Jlraphic Societ\\-cubed 



/ 

~Qs:P~los 

/ 
/ 

/ 

E'1T '19613 

PROVOST& 
PRITCHARD 
CONSUL TINC G~OUP 

\ 

' (' 
\ 

( 
\,. 

\ 
) -

Madera 

: . 

Tranqullllty 

San Joaquin 

Cantua 
Creek 

0 2 

Miles 

r::Jcounty 

4 

City ff own 

41912019: G:\Mendota_City of-3336\333619004-Rojas Pierce Park 1mpr\GIS\Mep"\RE19ional_Locat1on.mxd 











 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • June 2019   Appendix D-1 

 

 

 

 
 

Appendix D 
Soils Report 

 



United States
Department of
Agriculture

A product of the National
Cooperative Soil Survey,
a joint effort of the United
States Department of
Agriculture and other
Federal agencies, State
agencies including the
Agricultural Experiment
Stations, and local
participants

Custom Soil Resource 
Report for
Fresno County, 
California, Western 
Part

Natural
Resources
Conservation
Service

April 8, 2019



Preface
Soil surveys contain information that affects land use planning in survey areas. 
They highlight soil limitations that affect various land uses and provide information 
about the properties of the soils in the survey areas. Soil surveys are designed for 
many different users, including farmers, ranchers, foresters, agronomists, urban 
planners, community officials, engineers, developers, builders, and home buyers. 
Also, conservationists, teachers, students, and specialists in recreation, waste 
disposal, and pollution control can use the surveys to help them understand, 
protect, or enhance the environment.

Various land use regulations of Federal, State, and local governments may impose 
special restrictions on land use or land treatment. Soil surveys identify soil 
properties that are used in making various land use or land treatment decisions. 
The information is intended to help the land users identify and reduce the effects of 
soil limitations on various land uses. The landowner or user is responsible for 
identifying and complying with existing laws and regulations.

Although soil survey information can be used for general farm, local, and wider area 
planning, onsite investigation is needed to supplement this information in some 
cases. Examples include soil quality assessments (http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/
portal/nrcs/main/soils/health/) and certain conservation and engineering 
applications. For more detailed information, contact your local USDA Service Center 
(https://offices.sc.egov.usda.gov/locator/app?agency=nrcs) or your NRCS State Soil 
Scientist (http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/soils/contactus/?
cid=nrcs142p2_053951).

Great differences in soil properties can occur within short distances. Some soils are 
seasonally wet or subject to flooding. Some are too unstable to be used as a 
foundation for buildings or roads. Clayey or wet soils are poorly suited to use as 
septic tank absorption fields. A high water table makes a soil poorly suited to 
basements or underground installations.

The National Cooperative Soil Survey is a joint effort of the United States 
Department of Agriculture and other Federal agencies, State agencies including the 
Agricultural Experiment Stations, and local agencies. The Natural Resources 
Conservation Service (NRCS) has leadership for the Federal part of the National 
Cooperative Soil Survey.

Information about soils is updated periodically. Updated information is available 
through the NRCS Web Soil Survey, the site for official soil survey information.

The U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) prohibits discrimination in all its 
programs and activities on the basis of race, color, national origin, age, disability, 
and where applicable, sex, marital status, familial status, parental status, religion, 
sexual orientation, genetic information, political beliefs, reprisal, or because all or a 
part of an individual's income is derived from any public assistance program. (Not 
all prohibited bases apply to all programs.) Persons with disabilities who require 

2

http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/main/soils/health/
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/main/soils/health/
https://offices.sc.egov.usda.gov/locator/app?agency=nrcs
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/soils/contactus/?cid=nrcs142p2_053951
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/soils/contactus/?cid=nrcs142p2_053951


alternative means for communication of program information (Braille, large print, 
audiotape, etc.) should contact USDA's TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice 
and TDD). To file a complaint of discrimination, write to USDA, Director, Office of 
Civil Rights, 1400 Independence Avenue, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20250-9410 or 
call (800) 795-3272 (voice) or (202) 720-6382 (TDD). USDA is an equal opportunity 
provider and employer.

3



Contents
Preface.................................................................................................................... 2
How Soil Surveys Are Made..................................................................................5
Soil Map.................................................................................................................. 8

Soil Map................................................................................................................9
Legend................................................................................................................10
Map Unit Legend................................................................................................ 11
Map Unit Descriptions.........................................................................................11

Fresno County, California, Western Part.........................................................13
482—Calflax clay loam, saline-sodic, wet, 0 to 1 percent slopes, 

MLRA 17...............................................................................................13
References............................................................................................................15

4



How Soil Surveys Are Made
Soil surveys are made to provide information about the soils and miscellaneous 
areas in a specific area. They include a description of the soils and miscellaneous 
areas and their location on the landscape and tables that show soil properties and 
limitations affecting various uses. Soil scientists observed the steepness, length, 
and shape of the slopes; the general pattern of drainage; the kinds of crops and 
native plants; and the kinds of bedrock. They observed and described many soil 
profiles. A soil profile is the sequence of natural layers, or horizons, in a soil. The 
profile extends from the surface down into the unconsolidated material in which the 
soil formed or from the surface down to bedrock. The unconsolidated material is 
devoid of roots and other living organisms and has not been changed by other 
biological activity.

Currently, soils are mapped according to the boundaries of major land resource 
areas (MLRAs). MLRAs are geographically associated land resource units that 
share common characteristics related to physiography, geology, climate, water 
resources, soils, biological resources, and land uses (USDA, 2006). Soil survey 
areas typically consist of parts of one or more MLRA.

The soils and miscellaneous areas in a survey area occur in an orderly pattern that 
is related to the geology, landforms, relief, climate, and natural vegetation of the 
area. Each kind of soil and miscellaneous area is associated with a particular kind 
of landform or with a segment of the landform. By observing the soils and 
miscellaneous areas in the survey area and relating their position to specific 
segments of the landform, a soil scientist develops a concept, or model, of how they 
were formed. Thus, during mapping, this model enables the soil scientist to predict 
with a considerable degree of accuracy the kind of soil or miscellaneous area at a 
specific location on the landscape.

Commonly, individual soils on the landscape merge into one another as their 
characteristics gradually change. To construct an accurate soil map, however, soil 
scientists must determine the boundaries between the soils. They can observe only 
a limited number of soil profiles. Nevertheless, these observations, supplemented 
by an understanding of the soil-vegetation-landscape relationship, are sufficient to 
verify predictions of the kinds of soil in an area and to determine the boundaries.

Soil scientists recorded the characteristics of the soil profiles that they studied. They 
noted soil color, texture, size and shape of soil aggregates, kind and amount of rock 
fragments, distribution of plant roots, reaction, and other features that enable them 
to identify soils. After describing the soils in the survey area and determining their 
properties, the soil scientists assigned the soils to taxonomic classes (units). 
Taxonomic classes are concepts. Each taxonomic class has a set of soil 
characteristics with precisely defined limits. The classes are used as a basis for 
comparison to classify soils systematically. Soil taxonomy, the system of taxonomic 
classification used in the United States, is based mainly on the kind and character 
of soil properties and the arrangement of horizons within the profile. After the soil 

5



scientists classified and named the soils in the survey area, they compared the 
individual soils with similar soils in the same taxonomic class in other areas so that 
they could confirm data and assemble additional data based on experience and 
research.

The objective of soil mapping is not to delineate pure map unit components; the 
objective is to separate the landscape into landforms or landform segments that 
have similar use and management requirements. Each map unit is defined by a 
unique combination of soil components and/or miscellaneous areas in predictable 
proportions. Some components may be highly contrasting to the other components 
of the map unit. The presence of minor components in a map unit in no way 
diminishes the usefulness or accuracy of the data. The delineation of such 
landforms and landform segments on the map provides sufficient information for the 
development of resource plans. If intensive use of small areas is planned, onsite 
investigation is needed to define and locate the soils and miscellaneous areas.

Soil scientists make many field observations in the process of producing a soil map. 
The frequency of observation is dependent upon several factors, including scale of 
mapping, intensity of mapping, design of map units, complexity of the landscape, 
and experience of the soil scientist. Observations are made to test and refine the 
soil-landscape model and predictions and to verify the classification of the soils at 
specific locations. Once the soil-landscape model is refined, a significantly smaller 
number of measurements of individual soil properties are made and recorded. 
These measurements may include field measurements, such as those for color, 
depth to bedrock, and texture, and laboratory measurements, such as those for 
content of sand, silt, clay, salt, and other components. Properties of each soil 
typically vary from one point to another across the landscape.

Observations for map unit components are aggregated to develop ranges of 
characteristics for the components. The aggregated values are presented. Direct 
measurements do not exist for every property presented for every map unit 
component. Values for some properties are estimated from combinations of other 
properties.

While a soil survey is in progress, samples of some of the soils in the area generally 
are collected for laboratory analyses and for engineering tests. Soil scientists 
interpret the data from these analyses and tests as well as the field-observed 
characteristics and the soil properties to determine the expected behavior of the 
soils under different uses. Interpretations for all of the soils are field tested through 
observation of the soils in different uses and under different levels of management. 
Some interpretations are modified to fit local conditions, and some new 
interpretations are developed to meet local needs. Data are assembled from other 
sources, such as research information, production records, and field experience of 
specialists. For example, data on crop yields under defined levels of management 
are assembled from farm records and from field or plot experiments on the same 
kinds of soil.

Predictions about soil behavior are based not only on soil properties but also on 
such variables as climate and biological activity. Soil conditions are predictable over 
long periods of time, but they are not predictable from year to year. For example, 
soil scientists can predict with a fairly high degree of accuracy that a given soil will 
have a high water table within certain depths in most years, but they cannot predict 
that a high water table will always be at a specific level in the soil on a specific date.

After soil scientists located and identified the significant natural bodies of soil in the 
survey area, they drew the boundaries of these bodies on aerial photographs and 

Custom Soil Resource Report

6



identified each as a specific map unit. Aerial photographs show trees, buildings, 
fields, roads, and rivers, all of which help in locating boundaries accurately.

Custom Soil Resource Report

7



Soil Map
The soil map section includes the soil map for the defined area of interest, a list of 
soil map units on the map and extent of each map unit, and cartographic symbols 
displayed on the map. Also presented are various metadata about data used to 
produce the map, and a description of each soil map unit.

8



9

Custom Soil Resource Report
Soil Map

40
70

80
0

40
70

85
0

40
70

90
0

40
70

95
0

40
71

00
0

40
71

05
0

40
71

10
0

40
70

85
0

40
70

90
0

40
70

95
0

40
71

00
0

40
71

05
0

40
71

10
0

732450 732500 732550 732600 732650 732700 732750 732800 732850 732900

732450 732500 732550 732600 732650 732700 732750 732800 732850 732900

36°  45' 26'' N
12

0°
  2

3'
 4

6'
' W

36°  45' 26'' N

12
0°

  2
3'

 2
7'

' W

36°  45' 16'' N

12
0°

  2
3'

 4
6'

' W

36°  45' 16'' N

12
0°

  2
3'

 2
7'

' W

N

Map projection: Web Mercator   Corner coordinates: WGS84   Edge tics: UTM Zone 10N WGS84
0 100 200 400 600

Feet
0 30 60 120 180

Meters
Map Scale: 1:2,220 if printed on A landscape (11" x 8.5") sheet.

Soil Map may not be valid at this scale.



MAP LEGEND MAP INFORMATION

Area of Interest (AOI)
Area of Interest (AOI)

Soils
Soil Map Unit Polygons

Soil Map Unit Lines

Soil Map Unit Points

Special Point Features
Blowout

Borrow Pit

Clay Spot

Closed Depression

Gravel Pit

Gravelly Spot

Landfill

Lava Flow

Marsh or swamp

Mine or Quarry

Miscellaneous Water

Perennial Water

Rock Outcrop

Saline Spot

Sandy Spot

Severely Eroded Spot

Sinkhole

Slide or Slip

Sodic Spot

Spoil Area

Stony Spot

Very Stony Spot

Wet Spot

Other

Special Line Features

Water Features
Streams and Canals

Transportation
Rails

Interstate Highways

US Routes

Major Roads

Local Roads

Background
Aerial Photography

The soil surveys that comprise your AOI were mapped at 
1:24,000.

Warning: Soil Map may not be valid at this scale.

Enlargement of maps beyond the scale of mapping can cause 
misunderstanding of the detail of mapping and accuracy of soil 
line placement. The maps do not show the small areas of 
contrasting soils that could have been shown at a more detailed 
scale.

Please rely on the bar scale on each map sheet for map 
measurements.

Source of Map: Natural Resources Conservation Service
Web Soil Survey URL: 
Coordinate System: Web Mercator (EPSG:3857)

Maps from the Web Soil Survey are based on the Web Mercator 
projection, which preserves direction and shape but distorts 
distance and area. A projection that preserves area, such as the 
Albers equal-area conic projection, should be used if more 
accurate calculations of distance or area are required.

This product is generated from the USDA-NRCS certified data as 
of the version date(s) listed below.

Soil Survey Area: Fresno County, California, Western Part
Survey Area Data: Version 13, Sep 12, 2018

Soil map units are labeled (as space allows) for map scales 
1:50,000 or larger.

Date(s) aerial images were photographed: May 31, 2015—Nov 
6, 2017

The orthophoto or other base map on which the soil lines were 
compiled and digitized probably differs from the background 
imagery displayed on these maps. As a result, some minor 
shifting of map unit boundaries may be evident.

Custom Soil Resource Report

10



Map Unit Legend

Map Unit Symbol Map Unit Name Acres in AOI Percent of AOI

482 Calflax clay loam, saline-sodic, 
wet, 0 to 1 percent slopes, 
MLRA 17

15.4 100.0%

Totals for Area of Interest 15.4 100.0%

Map Unit Descriptions
The map units delineated on the detailed soil maps in a soil survey represent the 
soils or miscellaneous areas in the survey area. The map unit descriptions, along 
with the maps, can be used to determine the composition and properties of a unit.

A map unit delineation on a soil map represents an area dominated by one or more 
major kinds of soil or miscellaneous areas. A map unit is identified and named 
according to the taxonomic classification of the dominant soils. Within a taxonomic 
class there are precisely defined limits for the properties of the soils. On the 
landscape, however, the soils are natural phenomena, and they have the 
characteristic variability of all natural phenomena. Thus, the range of some 
observed properties may extend beyond the limits defined for a taxonomic class. 
Areas of soils of a single taxonomic class rarely, if ever, can be mapped without 
including areas of other taxonomic classes. Consequently, every map unit is made 
up of the soils or miscellaneous areas for which it is named and some minor 
components that belong to taxonomic classes other than those of the major soils.

Most minor soils have properties similar to those of the dominant soil or soils in the 
map unit, and thus they do not affect use and management. These are called 
noncontrasting, or similar, components. They may or may not be mentioned in a 
particular map unit description. Other minor components, however, have properties 
and behavioral characteristics divergent enough to affect use or to require different 
management. These are called contrasting, or dissimilar, components. They 
generally are in small areas and could not be mapped separately because of the 
scale used. Some small areas of strongly contrasting soils or miscellaneous areas 
are identified by a special symbol on the maps. If included in the database for a 
given area, the contrasting minor components are identified in the map unit 
descriptions along with some characteristics of each. A few areas of minor 
components may not have been observed, and consequently they are not 
mentioned in the descriptions, especially where the pattern was so complex that it 
was impractical to make enough observations to identify all the soils and 
miscellaneous areas on the landscape.

The presence of minor components in a map unit in no way diminishes the 
usefulness or accuracy of the data. The objective of mapping is not to delineate 
pure taxonomic classes but rather to separate the landscape into landforms or 
landform segments that have similar use and management requirements. The 
delineation of such segments on the map provides sufficient information for the 
development of resource plans. If intensive use of small areas is planned, however, 

Custom Soil Resource Report

11



onsite investigation is needed to define and locate the soils and miscellaneous 
areas.

An identifying symbol precedes the map unit name in the map unit descriptions. 
Each description includes general facts about the unit and gives important soil 
properties and qualities.

Soils that have profiles that are almost alike make up a soil series. Except for 
differences in texture of the surface layer, all the soils of a series have major 
horizons that are similar in composition, thickness, and arrangement.

Soils of one series can differ in texture of the surface layer, slope, stoniness, 
salinity, degree of erosion, and other characteristics that affect their use. On the 
basis of such differences, a soil series is divided into soil phases. Most of the areas 
shown on the detailed soil maps are phases of soil series. The name of a soil phase 
commonly indicates a feature that affects use or management. For example, Alpha 
silt loam, 0 to 2 percent slopes, is a phase of the Alpha series.

Some map units are made up of two or more major soils or miscellaneous areas. 
These map units are complexes, associations, or undifferentiated groups.

A complex consists of two or more soils or miscellaneous areas in such an intricate 
pattern or in such small areas that they cannot be shown separately on the maps. 
The pattern and proportion of the soils or miscellaneous areas are somewhat similar 
in all areas. Alpha-Beta complex, 0 to 6 percent slopes, is an example.

An association is made up of two or more geographically associated soils or 
miscellaneous areas that are shown as one unit on the maps. Because of present 
or anticipated uses of the map units in the survey area, it was not considered 
practical or necessary to map the soils or miscellaneous areas separately. The 
pattern and relative proportion of the soils or miscellaneous areas are somewhat 
similar. Alpha-Beta association, 0 to 2 percent slopes, is an example.

An undifferentiated group is made up of two or more soils or miscellaneous areas 
that could be mapped individually but are mapped as one unit because similar 
interpretations can be made for use and management. The pattern and proportion 
of the soils or miscellaneous areas in a mapped area are not uniform. An area can 
be made up of only one of the major soils or miscellaneous areas, or it can be made 
up of all of them. Alpha and Beta soils, 0 to 2 percent slopes, is an example.

Some surveys include miscellaneous areas. Such areas have little or no soil 
material and support little or no vegetation. Rock outcrop is an example.

Custom Soil Resource Report

12



Fresno County, California, Western Part

482—Calflax clay loam, saline-sodic, wet, 0 to 1 percent slopes, MLRA 
17

Map Unit Setting
National map unit symbol: 2vncl
Elevation: 160 to 340 feet
Mean annual precipitation: 7 to 9 inches
Mean annual air temperature: 62 to 64 degrees F
Frost-free period: 230 to 250 days
Farmland classification: Farmland of statewide importance

Map Unit Composition
Calflax, clay loam, saline-sodic, wet, and similar soils: 85 percent
Minor components: 15 percent
Estimates are based on observations, descriptions, and transects of the mapunit.

Description of Calflax, Clay Loam, Saline-sodic, Wet

Setting
Landform: Fan skirts
Landform position (two-dimensional): Footslope
Landform position (three-dimensional): Talf
Down-slope shape: Linear
Across-slope shape: Linear
Parent material: Alluvium derived from calcareous sedimentary rock

Typical profile
Ap - 0 to 8 inches: clay loam
Bw - 8 to 26 inches: clay loam
Bny - 26 to 33 inches: loam
Bnyz1 - 33 to 47 inches: silt loam
Bnyz2 - 47 to 65 inches: loam

Properties and qualities
Slope: 0 to 1 percent
Depth to restrictive feature: More than 80 inches
Natural drainage class: Moderately well drained
Runoff class: Low
Capacity of the most limiting layer to transmit water (Ksat): Moderately high (0.20 

to 0.57 in/hr)
Depth to water table: About 48 to 60 inches
Frequency of flooding: Rare
Frequency of ponding: None
Calcium carbonate, maximum in profile: 3 percent
Gypsum, maximum in profile: 5 percent
Salinity, maximum in profile: Slightly saline to strongly saline (4.0 to 16.0 

mmhos/cm)
Sodium adsorption ratio, maximum in profile: 40.0
Available water storage in profile: Moderate (about 7.3 inches)

Interpretive groups
Land capability classification (irrigated): 3s
Land capability classification (nonirrigated): 7s

Custom Soil Resource Report

13



Hydrologic Soil Group: C
Hydric soil rating: No

Minor Components

Ciervo, clay, saline-sodic, wet
Percent of map unit: 6 percent
Landform: Fan skirts
Hydric soil rating: No

Cerini, clay loam
Percent of map unit: 2 percent
Landform: Alluvial fans
Hydric soil rating: No

Posochanet, clay loam, saline-sodic, wet
Percent of map unit: 2 percent
Landform: Fan skirts
Hydric soil rating: No

Lethent, clay loam
Percent of map unit: 2 percent
Landform: Fan remnants
Hydric soil rating: No

Kimberlina, fine sandy loam
Percent of map unit: 1 percent
Hydric soil rating: No

Garces, silt loam
Percent of map unit: 1 percent
Hydric soil rating: No

Twisselman, clay, saline-sodic
Percent of map unit: 1 percent
Hydric soil rating: No

Custom Soil Resource Report

14



References
American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO). 
2004. Standard specifications for transportation materials and methods of sampling 
and testing. 24th edition.

American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM). 2005. Standard classification of 
soils for engineering purposes. ASTM Standard D2487-00.

Cowardin, L.M., V. Carter, F.C. Golet, and E.T. LaRoe. 1979. Classification of 
wetlands and deep-water habitats of the United States. U.S. Fish and Wildlife 
Service FWS/OBS-79/31.

Federal Register. July 13, 1994. Changes in hydric soils of the United States.

Federal Register. September 18, 2002. Hydric soils of the United States.

Hurt, G.W., and L.M. Vasilas, editors. Version 6.0, 2006. Field indicators of hydric 
soils in the United States.

National Research Council. 1995. Wetlands: Characteristics and boundaries.

Soil Survey Division Staff. 1993. Soil survey manual. Soil Conservation Service. 
U.S. Department of Agriculture Handbook 18. http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/
nrcs/detail/national/soils/?cid=nrcs142p2_054262 

Soil Survey Staff. 1999. Soil taxonomy: A basic system of soil classification for 
making and interpreting soil surveys. 2nd edition. Natural Resources Conservation 
Service, U.S. Department of Agriculture Handbook 436. http://
www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/soils/?cid=nrcs142p2_053577 

Soil Survey Staff. 2010. Keys to soil taxonomy. 11th edition. U.S. Department of 
Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service. http://
www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/soils/?cid=nrcs142p2_053580 

Tiner, R.W., Jr. 1985. Wetlands of Delaware. U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service and 
Delaware Department of Natural Resources and Environmental Control, Wetlands 
Section.

United States Army Corps of Engineers, Environmental Laboratory. 1987. Corps of 
Engineers wetlands delineation manual. Waterways Experiment Station Technical 
Report Y-87-1.

United States Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service. 
National forestry manual. http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/soils/
home/?cid=nrcs142p2_053374 

United States Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service. 
National range and pasture handbook. http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/
detail/national/landuse/rangepasture/?cid=stelprdb1043084 

15

http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/soils/?cid=nrcs142p2_054262
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/soils/?cid=nrcs142p2_054262
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/soils/?cid=nrcs142p2_053577
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/soils/?cid=nrcs142p2_053577
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/soils/?cid=nrcs142p2_053580
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/soils/?cid=nrcs142p2_053580
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/soils/home/?cid=nrcs142p2_053374
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/soils/home/?cid=nrcs142p2_053374
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/landuse/rangepasture/?cid=stelprdb1043084
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/landuse/rangepasture/?cid=stelprdb1043084


United States Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service. 
National soil survey handbook, title 430-VI. http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/
nrcs/detail/soils/scientists/?cid=nrcs142p2_054242 

United States Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service. 
2006. Land resource regions and major land resource areas of the United States, 
the Caribbean, and the Pacific Basin. U.S. Department of Agriculture Handbook 
296. http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/soils/?
cid=nrcs142p2_053624 

United States Department of Agriculture, Soil Conservation Service. 1961. Land 
capability classification. U.S. Department of Agriculture Handbook 210. http://
www.nrcs.usda.gov/Internet/FSE_DOCUMENTS/nrcs142p2_052290.pdf 

Custom Soil Resource Report

16

http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/soils/scientists/?cid=nrcs142p2_054242
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/soils/scientists/?cid=nrcs142p2_054242
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/soils/?cid=nrcs142p2_053624
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/soils/?cid=nrcs142p2_053624
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/Internet/FSE_DOCUMENTS/nrcs142p2_052290.pdf
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/Internet/FSE_DOCUMENTS/nrcs142p2_052290.pdf


1 
 

AGENDA ITEM 

 
 
TO:  HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS  
 
FROM: CRISTIAN GONZALEZ, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: PROVIDING TRANSLATION SERVICES AT CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS 
 
DATE: JULY 23, 2019 
 
 
ISSUE 
Should the City Council implement a policy to provide English-Spanish translation services at 
City Council meetings? 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Recently, the City has received requests that it provide, at its own expense, English-Spanish 
translation services at City Council meetings.  In response to these requests, staff solicited quotes 
from interpreters and received several proposals, ranging from $100/hour (with a two hour 
minimum) up to $475/hour (with a three hour minimum).  
 
Accordingly, to assist the Council in determining whether and how to provide such services, this 
Staff Report will discuss the City’s legal obligations with respect to providing English-Spanish 
translation services and will propose a range of options consistent with those obligations. 
 
The Dymally-Alatorre Bilingual Services Act 
 
The Dymally-Alatorre Bilingual Services Act (“Act”) was enacted to provide for effective 
communication between all levels of government and the public who may be precluded from 
utilizing public services due to language barriers.  (Govt. Code § 7291.)  Under the Act, every 
city “serving a substantial number of non-English speaking people, shall employ a sufficient 
number of qualified bilingual persons in public contact positions or as interpreters to assist those 
in such positions, to ensure provisions of information and services in the language of the non-
English-speaking person.”  (Id. at § 7293.)  A “public contact position” is defined as “a position 
determined by the [city] to be one which emphasizes the ability to meet, contact and deal with 
the public in the performance of the [city’s] functions.”  (Id. at § 7297.) 
 
Notably, however, cities are vested with authority to determine what constitutes a “substantial 
number” of non-English speaking people, (id. at § 7293), and are required to implement the Act 
only to the extent funds are available.  (Id. at § 7299.)Moreover, the Act is directed at 
government employees, not elected officials, and it does not purport to regulate the conduct of 
public hearings.  (See Govt. Code § 7291 [finding that “state and local agency employees 
frequently are unable to communicate with persons requiring the services because of [the] 



2 
 

language barrier”] [emphasis added]; see also § 7293 [titled “Local public agencies; bilingual 
employees] [emphasis added].)   
 
Due Process 
 
In general, due process requires reasonable notice and an opportunity to be heard before any 
government deprivation of life, liberty, or property.(U.S. Const. 14th Amend., § 1; Cal. Const., 
art. I, § 7.)  “[T]he precise dictates of due process are flexible and vary according to context.”  
(Today’s Fresh Start, Inc. v. Los Angeles County Office of Education, supra, 57 Cal.4th at p. 
212.)  “[D]ue process, unlike some legal rules, is not a technical conception with a fixed content 
unrelated to time, place, and circumstances.”  (Matthews v. Eldridge, supra, 424 U.S. at p. 334 
[internal quotations omitted].)  “[T]here is no precise manner in which a hearing must be 
afforded; rather the particular interests at issue must be considered in determining what kind of 
hearing is appropriate.”  (Saleeby v. State Bar (1985) 39 Cal.3d 547, 565.)   
 
While there is no set rule for determining what constitutes a “reasonable opportunity to be 
heard,” the U.S. Supreme Court has articulated a number of factors that should be considered: 
 

First, the private interest that will be affected by the official action; 
second, the risk of an erroneous deprivation of such interest 
through the procedures used, and the probable value, if any, of 
additional or substitute procedural safeguards; and finally, the 
Government's interest, including the function involved and the 
fiscal and administrative burdens that the additional or substitute 
procedural requirement would entail.    

 
(Mathews v. Eldridge, supra, 424 U.S. at p. 335.) 
 
The California Supreme Court has adopted the Mathews test with an additional factor.  (Today’s 
Fresh Start, Inc. v. Los Angeles County Office of Education, supra, 57 Cal.4th at p. 213.)  Thus, 
under the California Constitution, due process also requires consideration of “the dignitary 
interest in informing individuals of the nature, grounds and consequences of the action and in 
enabling them to present their side of the story before a responsible governmental official.”  
(Saleeby v. State Bar, supra, 39 Cal.3d at p. 565, quoting People v. Ramirez (1979) 25 Cal.3d 
260, 269.)   
 
Equal Protection 
 
In general, equal protection requires the government to treat similarly situated people alike, 
unless there is a rational basis for the difference in treatment.  (Genesis Environmental Services 
v. San Joaquin Valley Unified Air Pollution Control Dist. (2003) 113 Cal.App.4th 597, 605.)  
Consequently, the equal protection clause is violated if a person is “treated differently from other 
similarly situated persons,” “the difference in treatment was intentional,” and “there [is] no 
rational basis for the difference in treatment.”  (Id.)   
 
 



3 
 

ANALYSIS 
Even if it is assumed that the Act applies to city councilmembers, and to public meetings, the 
City is not required to provide translation services unless Council (1) determines that it serves a 
“substantial number” of non-English speaking people, and (2) finds that sufficient funds are 
available to provide the services.  (Id. at §§ 7293, 7299.)  Accordingly, to the extent the Act 
applies, the dispositive question is whether sufficient funds are available to provide translation 
services at City Council hearings. 
 
As a matter of due process, the City is probably not required to provide translation services at 
every City Council meeting.  (See Guerrero v. Carleson (1973) 9 Cal.3d 808.)  Although 
translation services may be required in limited circumstances, such as public hearings pertaining 
to the rights or duties of specific individuals, the City already provides personal translation to 
individuals who are the subject of, or wish to comment on, matters that directly affect them.   
Moreover, providing translation services at every Council meeting would likely be a significant 
financial burden on the City, as costs for such services range between $400 and $1425 per 
meeting. 
 
Similarly, equal protection does not require that English-Spanish translation services be required 
at every City council meeting, since there would be a rational basis for the difference in 
treatment—namely, the cost of providing such services, as well as the availability of receiving 
assistance by other means.  (See id.; Jara v. Municipal Court (1978) 21 Cal.3d 181, 184.)  
 
Accordingly, the City likely has no constitutional obligation to provide English-Spanish 
translation services at City Council meetings.  Moreover, even if it is assumed that the Act 
applies in this context, the City’s obligation would be limited by the availability of funding to 
provide the service. 
 
Notwithstanding the absence of a legal requirement to provide translation services, the Council 
certainly has the authority to provide such services if it so desires.  However, careful 
consideration should be given to how such services are provided. 
 
First, the translation should not be provided by a Councilmember or participating City staff, as 
they are actively engaged in the proceedings, and providing translation services would likely be a 
distraction from their official duties.  It also creates a danger of mistranslation due to bias 
resulting from Councilmembers’ and staff’s involvement in the proceedings. 
 
Second, it would be preferable to have translations to the public via headset so as to avoid any 
distractions to others. The City currently owns a headset system that can accommodate up to 15 
individuals. However, if there are additional persons that request translation, the City would need 
to acquire additional equipment. This would likely increase the cost of providing the service.   
 
Third, Council would need to determine which meetings should receive translation services (e.g., 
Council meetings, Planning Commission meetings, Recreation Committee meetings, etc.)  
Obviously, the more meetings at which translation services are provided, the greater the financial 
burden on the City.  
 



4 
 

Consistent with the above, staff proposes the following options: 
 

1. Provide professional English-Spanish translation services at every meeting of the 
City Council, Planning Commission, and Recreation Committee. 

 
As noted above, based on the quotes staff received, the cost of English-Spanish translation 
services will range from $400 and $1425 per meeting.  The City Council meets twice per month, 
while the Planning Commission and Recreation Committee meet once per month.  Consequently, 
the cost of service would be between $9,600 to $34,200 per year for City Council meetings, and 
$4,800 to $17,100 for both Planning Commission meetings and Recreation Committee meetings, 
representing a total annual cost of $19,200 to $68,400.  
 

2. Provide professional English-Spanish translation services at every meeting of the 
City Council, but only at City Council meetings. 

 
Consistent with the figures above, the annual cost to provide the service under this scenario 
would range from $9,600 to $34,200.  
 

3. Provide professional English-Spanish translation services upon request at any 
meeting of the City Council, Planning Commission, or Recreation Committee. 

 
As there is no way of knowing how often requests will be made for translation services, it is 
impossible to estimate the costs of this option precisely.  Moreover, in order to ensure adequate 
funds are allocated for this purpose in the budget, it must be assumed that a request is made for 
translation services at every meeting.  Therefore, the annual cost of this option should be 
assumed to be identical to Option 1—i.e., $19,200 to $68,400 per year. However, it should be 
recognized that there would likely be surplus funds at the end of each year that could be carried 
over in subsequent years, thereby reducing the financial burden on an ongoing basis.  
 

4. Provide professional English-Spanish translation services upon request only at City 
Council meetings. 

 
Again, there is no way of knowing how often requests will be made for translation services, so it 
is impossible to estimate the costs of this option precisely.  Moreover, in order to ensure 
adequate funds are allocated for this purpose in the budget, it must be assumed that a request is 
made for translation services at every Council meeting.  Therefore, the annual cost of this option 
should be assumed to be identical to Option 2—i.e., $9,600 to $34,200 per year.  However, 
again, it should be recognized that there would likely be surplus funds at the end of each year 
that could be carried over in subsequent years, thereby reducing the financial burden on an 
ongoing basis. 
 

5. Provide professional English-Spanish translation services only at a City Council 
meeting that includes a hearing affecting significant individual rights or duties of a 
particular person, and only if the person requests such services, and provide limited 
staff-assisted English-Spanish translation services only when individuals actually 
make public comments at public meetings. 



5 
 

 
This option is largely consistent with current City practice.  While it may be assumed that there 
is no additional cost incurred by virtue of the staff-assisted translation services, here again it is 
impossible to estimate costs precisely, since there is no way of knowing how often City Council 
meetings will include the sort of hearings for which professional services would be provided, or, 
how often requests would be made when such hearings do occur. 
 
Nevertheless, based on the experience of staff, it is reasonable to estimate that public hearings 
affecting significant rights or duties of a particular person (e.g., nuisance abatement hearings) 
may be held on average six times per year.  If it is assumed that a request for translation services 
is made at each such meeting, then the approximate cost would be between $2,400 and $8,550.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
See above. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Whether to provide translation services is a policy decision entirely within the discretion of 
Council.  However, if Council desires to provide such services, then staff recommends that 
services be provided only to the extent funding is available.  
 



1 
 

AGENDA ITEM 

 
 
TO:  HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS  
 
FROM: CRISTIAN GONZALEZ, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: RESOLUTION ANNEXING TERRITORY TO COMMUNITY FACILITIES 

DISTRICT NO. 2006-1 AND APPROVING AN AMENDED BOUNDARY 
MAP 

 
DATE: JULY 23, 2019 
 
 
ISSUE 
Should the City Council adopt a resolution annexing the La Colonia subdivision to Community 
Facilities District No. 2006-1 (District) and approve the amended boundary map depicting the 
revised boundaries of the District? 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Mello-Roos Act 
The Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, Government Code § 53311 et seq. (Act) 
authorizes local agencies to establish community facilities district to fund, via the imposition of a 
special tax, facilities and services in addition to those provided within the boundaries of the 
proposed district, and permits landowners to petition a local agency for the creation of a 
community facilities district, as well as for the annexation of specified territory to an established 
community facilities district. 
 
The establishment of a community facilities district pursuant to the Act requires a lengthy 
process by which the Council must declare its intention to form a community facilities district, 
hold a hearing on the district’s formation, conduct a majority protest on the district’s formation, 
call for and conduct a special election on the levy of the special tax, and then adopt an ordinance 
authorizing the levy of the special tax.  Although the Act permits waiver of certain notice, 
hearing, and election requirements upon the unanimous consent of the owners of the land within 
the proposed district, the formation process nevertheless requires at least three council meetings 
and takes approximately three months.  
 
A similar process must be followed in order to annex property to an existing community 
facilities district.  However, if the agency proposes areas for future annexation in accordance 
with the Act, then§ 53339.7 permits the use of an alternative, streamlined procedure by which 
the annexation can be affected administratively by the unanimous approval of all owners of the 
property to be annexed, without additional hearings or elections.  
 
 



2 
 

Procedural History 
On October 20, 2006, the City received a petition from H/S Development, LLC (H/S 
Development) to establish a community facilities district for certain land within the City of 
Mendota (City) owned by H/S Development.  In accordance with the Act’s provisions, the 
petition consented to the District’s formation and to its imposition of a special tax, and waived 
various requirements relating to the District’s formation and the conduct of the special election 
regarding the levy of the special tax.  
 
On October 24, 2006, the Council adopted Resolution No. 06-39, declaring its intention to 
establish Community Facilities District No. 2006-1 for specified territory, and providing for the 
future annexation of other, specified territory (Future Annexation Area) upon unanimous 
approval of the owners of such territory at the time of annexation, and calling for a public 
hearing on November 28, 2006.  The Future Annexation Area was defined as “undeveloped 
parcels within the boundaries of the City, other than those parcels already within the boundaries 
of the proposed District, that require a discretionary approval for development, which are 
developed for private residential purposes of four or more units, and such other parcels as may 
be added upon the petition of the property owners thereof.”   
 
In accordance with the consents and waivers contained in H/S Development’s petition, the public 
hearing, majority protest, special election, and first reading of the ordinance authorizing the levy 
of the special tax were consolidated and conducted at a single meeting on November 28, 2006. 
 
At the November 28, 2006 hearing, the testimony of all interested persons, including all 
taxpayers, property owners, and registered voters within the proposed district and the Future 
Annexation Area, desiring to be heard on the establishment of the proposed district, the extent 
thereof, the furnishing of specified services, the proposed special tax, the establishment of an 
appropriations limit, the future annexation of territory in the Future Annexation Area, and any 
other matter set forth in Resolution No. 06-39, was heard and a full and fair hearing was 
conducted thereon.  After the public hearing, the City adopted Resolution No. 06-44, 
determining the validity of the formation proceedings, including that there was no majority 
protest against the establishment of the District, as proposed, or with respect to the proposed 
future annexation of the Future Annexation Area, the furnishing of specified services or 
facilities, or the levying of a special tax within the proposed district or the Future Annexation 
Area.The Council then adopted Resolution No. 06-45, calling for a special election on the 
proposed special tax to be levied upon the property within the District.  As the landowner’s 
petition waived formal requirements for the conduct of the special election, the ballot was 
provided in advance of the meeting.  Consequently, after the special election was called, the 
landowner submitted a ballot in favor of the levy of a special tax on all land in the District.  The 
Council then adopted Resolution 06-46, canvassing the results of the special election and 
determining that the proposed special tax’s levy was duly and validly approved.  Finally, the 
Council adopted Ordinance No. 06-03, authorizing the levy of the special tax within the District.  
 
Subsequently, on December 5, 2006, the City Clerk recorded a Notice of Special Tax Lien 
regarding the imposition of a lien to secure payment of the special taxes imposed within the 
District, thereby completing the process for the formation of the District and the levy of the 
special tax.  



3 
 

 
On July 22, 2019, the City received a petition from KSA Homes, Inc. (KSA Homes) requesting 
annexation of land within the Future Annexation Area to the District, certifying that KSA Homes 
is the owner of all property within the area proposed for annexation, and consenting to 
annexation of the specified property without additional hearings or formal election, in 
accordance with §§ 53318, 53319, and 53327 of the Act.  
 
ANALYSIS 
Because the City proposed the Future Annexation Area for future annexation at the same time it 
declared its intent to form the District, the City ensured that all requisite proceedings were held 
with respect to both the formation of the District and the future annexation of any property 
located in the Future Annexation Area.  As a result, the City is authorized to use the alternative, 
streamlined procedure to process KSA Homes’ petition for annexation, as all of the land 
proposed for annexation is within the Future Annexation Area defined in Resolution No. 06-39. 
 
Accordingly, the City is not required to hold any further hearings or elections to affect the 
annexation requested by KSA Homes.  The City need only confirm the annexation, approve the 
amended boundary map depicting the revised boundaries of the District, and submit the 
necessary documentation to the County Recorder for recording.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Estimated $79,312.64 per year. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the attached resolution annexing territory to 
Community Facilities District No. 2006-1, approving an amended boundary map, and directing 
the City Clerk to record all necessary documentation with the County Recorder.  
 



 1 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE 

CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTYOF FRESNO 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL   RESOLUTION NO. 19-51 
OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA ACTING AS THE 
LEGISLATIVE BODY OF CITY OF MENDOTA  
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2006-1 
(POLICE AND FIRE SERVICES) ANNEXING  
TERRITORY TO THE DISTRICTAND  
APPROVING AN AMENDED BOUNDARY MAP 
 
 WHEREAS, the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, Government Code 
§ 53311 et seq. (Act) authorizes local agencies to establish community facilities district 
to fund facilities and services in addition to those provided within the boundaries of the 
proposed district, and permits landowners to petition a local agency for the creation of a 
community facilities district; 
 
 WHEREAS, on October 20, 2006, the City received a petition, attached hereto as 
Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this reference, from H/S Development, LLC to 
establish a community facilities district for certain land within the City of Mendota (City) 
and consenting and waiving certain requirements under the Act in accordance with 
Government Code, §§ 53318, 53319, and 53327; 
 
 WHEREAS, on October 24, 2006, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 06-
41, attached hereto as Exhibit “B” and incorporated herein by this reference, which 
adopted local goals and policies for the use of revenue from the establishment of 
community facilities districts in the City, as required by the Act;  
 
 WHEREAS, on October 24, 2006, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 06-
39, attached hereto as Exhibit “C” and incorporated herein by this reference, declaring 
its intention to establish Community Facilities District No. 2006-1 for specified territory, 
and providing for the future annexation of other, specified territory (Future Annexation 
Area) upon unanimous approval of the owner(s) of each parcel(s) at the time of 
annexation, and calling for a public hearing on November 28, 2006; 
 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with the direction of Resolution No. 06-39, the City 
Clerk recorded a boundary map of the proposed district with the County Recorder for 
the County of Fresno on October 31, 2006 at Book 42 of Maps of Assessment and 
Community Facilities Districts at Page 29, as Instrument No. 20060234667, attached 
hereto as Exhibit “D” and incorporated herein by this reference; 
 
 WHEREAS, at the November 28, 2006 hearing, the testimony of all interested 
persons, including all taxpayers, property owners, and registered voters within the 
proposed district and the Future Annexation Area, desiring to be heard on the 
establishment of the proposed district, the extent thereof, the furnishing of specified 



 2 

services, the proposed special tax, the establishment of an appropriations limit, the 
future annexation of territory in the Future Annexation Area, and any other matter set 
forth in Resolution No. 06-39, was heard and a full and fair hearing was conducted 
thereon; 
 
 WHEREAS, on November 28, 2006, the City adopted Resolution No. 06-44, 
attached hereto as Exhibit “E” and incorporated herein by this reference, determining 
the validity of prior proceedings, including that there was no majority protest against the 
establishment of the district, as proposed, or with respect to the proposed future 
annexation of the Future Annexation Area, the furnishing of specified services or 
facilities, or the levying of a special tax within the proposed district or the Future 
Annexation Area, and establishing Community Facilities District No. 2006-1;  
 
 WHEREAS, on November 28, 2006, the City adopted Resolution No. 06-
45,attached hereto as Exhibit “F” and incorporated herein by this reference, calling for a 
special election on the proposed special tax to be levied upon the property within 
Community Facilities District No. 2006-1;  
 
 WHEREAS, on November 28, 2006, the City adopted Resolution No. 06-46, 
attached hereto as Exhibit “G” and incorporated herein by this reference, canvassing 
the results of the special election on the proposed special tax and determining that the 
proposed special tax’s levy was duly and validly approved by the voters;  
 
 WHEREAS, on November 28, 2006, the City adopted Ordinance No. 06-03, 
attached hereto as Exhibit “H” and incorporated herein by this reference, authorizing the 
levy of a special tax within Community Facilities District No. 2006-1; 
 
 WHEREAS, on December 5, 2006, the City Clerk recorded a Notice of Special 
Tax Lien, attached hereto as Exhibit “I” and incorporated herein by this reference, 
regarding the imposition of a lien to secure payment of the special taxes imposed within 
Community Facilities District No. 2006-1; 
 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with § 53339.7 of the Act, and as specified in 
Resolution No. 06-39, property within the Future Annexation Area may be annexed to 
Community Facilities District No. 2006-1 upon the unanimous approval of the owner(s) 
of each parcel(s) at the time of annexation, without additional hearings;  
 
 WHEREAS, on July 18, 2019, the City received a petition from KSA Homes, Inc., 
attached hereto as Exhibit “J” and incorporated herein by this reference, requesting 
annexation of land within the Future Annexation Area to Community Facilities District 
No. 2006-1, certifying that the landowner is the owner of all property with the area 
proposed for annexation, and consenting to annexation of the specified property without 
additional hearings or formal election, in accordance with §§ 53318, 53319, and 53327; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Engineer has prepared an amended boundary map 
reflecting the inclusion of the territory requested for annexation pursuant to the petition 



 3 

of KSA, Homes, Inc. in accordance with the requirements of Streets and Highways 
Code § 3113, which is attached hereto as Exhibit “K” and incorporated herein by this 
reference; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 
Mendota, State of California, as follows: 
 

1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by this 
reference. 
 

2. The territory described in Exhibit “L,” attached hereto and incorporated herein 
by this reference, is hereby annexed to and made part of Community 
Facilities District No. 2006-1 with full force and effect. 

 
3. The amended boundary map, attached hereto as Exhibit “K,” depicting the 

revised boundaries of Community Facilities District No. 2006-1, is hereby 
approved without modification. 

 
4. All prior proceedings and actions taken by the City pursuant to the Act in 

connection with the formation of Community Facilities District No. 2006-1, and 
the annexation of territory thereto, were and are valid and in conformity with 
the Act; 
 

5. The City Clerk is hereby directed to submit and record all necessary and 
appropriate documents with the County Recorder of the County of Fresno 
within fifteen (15) days of this resolution’s adoption, including all boundary 
maps and any notice of special tax lien.  The City Clerk is hereby authorized 
and directed to endorse the certificates set forth on any map to be filed with 
the County Recorder and to record the map in accordance with the provisions 
of Sections 3111, 3113 and 3113.5 of the Streets and Highways Code of the 
State of California, or other applicable law. 

 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Mendota, State 
of California, that the activities contemplated herein are not subject to the California 
Environmental Quality Act, Public Resources Code, § 21000 et seq. (CEQA), pursuant 
to Title 14, Chapter 3, Section 15378(b)(4) of the California Code of Regulations 
because they involve the “creation of government funding mechanisms or other 
government fiscal activities which do not involve any commitment to any specific project 
which may result in a potentially significant physical impact on the environment” and  
therefore do not constitute a “project” within the meaning of CEQA.   

 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Robert Silva, Mayor 
 
 



 4 

ATTEST: 
 
 I, Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk of the City of Mendota, do hereby certify 
that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted and passed by the City Council at a 
regular meeting of said Council, held at the Mendota City Hall on the 23rd day of July, 
2019, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
 
 

______________________________ 
Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk 



Exhibit A 



TO: 

FROM: 

CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA 

HIS DEVELOPMENT, L.L.C. 

PETITION (INCLUDING CONSENT AND W AIYER) 
REQUESTING THE ESTABLISHMENT OF A 

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 

The undersigned landowner does hereby ce1iify under penalty of perjury that the 
following statements are all true and correct: 

1. The undersigned is authorized to represent the landowner identified below 
and is its designated representative to petition the City Council (the "City Council") of the City 
of Mendota (the "City") and to give the consent and waiver contained herein with respect to a 
Community Facilities District (the "CFD") to be formed under the provisions of the "Mello-Roos 
Community Facilities Act of 1982" (the "Act"), being Chapter 2.5 of Part 1 of Division 2 of title 
5 (commencing with Section 53311) of the California Government Code. 

2. The undersigned hereby certifies that as of the date indicated, the 
landowner listed herein is the owner of all the property within the proposed boundaries of the 
CFD described in Exhibit "A" hereto. 

3. The undersigned, pursuant to Section 53318 of the Act, hereby requests 
that proceedings be commenced to established the CFD for the purpose of financing police and 
fire services that are in addition to those provided in the te1Titory within the CFD prior to the 
formation of the CFD. 

4. In accordance with the prov1s1ons of the Act, and specifically 
Sections 53326(a) and 53327(b) thereof allowing certain time and conduct requirements relative 
to a special landowner election to be waived with the unanimous consent of all the landowners to 
be included in a community facilities district and concurrence of the election official conducting 
the election, the undersigned (i) expressly consents to the conduct of the special election at the 
earliest possible time following the adoption by the City Council of a resolution forming the 
CFD and (ii) expressly waives any requirement to have the special election conducted within the 
time periods specified in Section 53326 of the Act or in the California Elections Code. 

5. The undersigned waives any requirement for the mailing of the ballot for 
the special election and expressly agree that said election may be conducted by mailed or hand
delivered ballot to be returned as quickly as possible to the designated election official, being the 
office of the City Clerk of the City Council and the undersigned request that the results of said 
election be canvassed and reported to the City Council at the same meeting of the City Council 
as the public hearing on the formation of the CFD or the next available meeting. 

6. The undersigned expressly waives all applicable waiting periods for the 
election and waives the requirement for analysis and arguments relating to the special election, 
as set forth in Section 53327 of the Act, and consents to not having such materials provided to 

45827817.1 



the landowne1· in the balfot packet, and expressly waives any requirements as to the form of the 
ballot. 

7. The undersigned expressly waives all notice requirements relating to 
hearings and special elections, whether by posting, publishing or mailing, and whether such 
requirements are found in the California Elections Code, the California Government Code or 
other laws or procedures, including but limited to any notice provided for by compliance with the 
provisions of Section 4101 of the California Elections Code. 

8. The undersigned hereby consents to and expressly waives any and all 
claims based on any irregularity, error, mistake or departure from the provisions of the Act or 
other laws of the State and any and all laws and requirements incorporated therein, and no step or 
action in any proceeding relative to the CFD or the special election therein shall be invalidated or 
affected by any such irregularity, error, mistake or departure. 

.., .t:/. 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand this~ day of 

ocrooer2 , 2006. 

H/S DEVELOPMENT, L.L.C. 

By: ~tu ,t:J--
Name: S-Z~plt""-"'- w. 1~a..,r.. 
Title: H,;,..,,<.:. r ,.:._r 1t.1 1 _ 

~· ,._'I ,_I '7rt!'.JW i> .. v , 

FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF MENDOTA THIS d- b DAY OF 0 y ~006. 

City Clerk. 

45827817. l 2 



STATE OF California 

COUNTY OF _,M._..e=r=ce=d,__ _____ _ 

On October 20, 2006 beforeme, R.McCal/, 'O~Jtl f~\·;s; 
(Name of Notary PubllcJ 

personally appeared-=St..,.e""p'-'-he=n_,__.._,W...._. _,_.H.._aj.._r _____________________ _ 

personally known to me (or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence) to be the person(s) whose 
name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the 
same in his/her/their authorized capaclty(ies), and that by his/her/their slgnature{s) on the instrument the 
person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 

WITNESS my h~ official seal. 

(/4ll 
(Signature of No ary Public) 

(notary)(07·02) 

R. MCCALL 
Commtsslon # 1453290 
Notary Public - California ~ 

Merced County 
My Comm. Expires Dec 22, 2007 

(This area for notarial seal) 



SK 111. V... er... 
llU!to 251 

=--~ ~ 9:8{'7a!l) ~1G-112UB 

(06-030) 

BELMONT 

SHEET 1 OF 1 

MAP OF PROPOSED BOUNDARIES OF 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2006-1 

(POLICE AND FIRE SERVICES) 

I 

I 
i 
I 
I 
i 
I 

I 
I r 

CITY OF MENDOTA 
COUNTY OF FRESNO 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

BASS 

AVE. 

l.EGE:ND 

2 

C.FU BOUNDARY 

ASSESSOR'S 
PAACll. NO. 

FiUO IN lH£ Ofl'IC( Cf" bit CTY a.ERK lMIS _ DAY Of ----- 200-

flt.En THtS - DAY CF '200,_ AT TI-1£ MOIJR OF - o•a.ooc _M. 
IN TIE: SOOK --QF MN'S OF ~ENT ~O IXlMMUHITY FACU11ES CIS1'RIC1S. 
PAGE -- MO l>S •NSIRUMENT NO. IN 'n1£ OFFICE ~ THE 
CCIUNTY - IN ll1E CXXJNTY Of FRESNO, STAT<: Of CAIS<:fWA. 

eouim- !!£CORDER 
CO\JtlTY Of ~ 
STA'lE:Cf:"~,A 

ntE .FRESNO CCIUH1Y ASSESSORS NAPS SHAU. GO\'ERM f"OR Ml. DETAILS COHCERNlNC THE 
UNES ..... C. tllMEMSICNS CF SUOt LOTS CR PARCELS. 

l;(J(1 -· C' 
BOO' 

SeAl£ , 1• - 800' 



Exhibit B 



BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE 

CITY OF MEN DOT A, COUNTY OF FRESNO 

RESOLUTION NO. 06-41 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA 
ADOPTING GOALS AND POLICIES PURSUANT TO THE MELLO
ROOS COMMUNITY FACILITIES ACT OF 1982 

WHEREAS, the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, 
commencing with Section 53311 of the Government Code of the State of California (the "Act") 
provides that on and after January 1, 1994, a local agency may initiate proceedings to establish a 
district pursuant to the Act only if it has first considered and adopted local goals and policies 
concerning the use of the Act; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council ("Council") of the City of Mendota (the "City") desires to 
initiate proceedings to form community facilities districts to finance certain public capital 
improvements and/or services; 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA DOES 
HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The Council hereby adopts the "City of Mendota Comprehensive Goals and 
Policies, " a copy of which is attached hereto and a copy of which shall be kept on file with the 
Office of the City Clerk. 

Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after the date of its passage and 
adoption. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 24th day of October, 2006, ·by the 
following vote: 

A YES: 5 Mayor Riofrio, Mayor Pro Temp Silva, Council Member 
Flores, Council Member Quiroga and Council Member Covarrubia 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ATTEST: / 

D~l 
Brenda L. Carter, City Clerk 

45827819.1 



CITY OF MENDOTA 
COMPREHENSIVE GOALS AND POLICIES 

I. INTRODUCTION 

The City of Mendota (the "City") has established the following Goals and Fiscal Policies 
for New Development and Annexations to address the fiscal viability of new development and 
annexations within the City and for the creation of community facilities districts for services and 
public facilities, and where applicable, debt financing as guidelines to assist concerned parties in 
following the City's approach to community facilities districts, assessment districts and debt 
financing. It is the City's goal to support developments and annexations that are consistent with 
the overall goals and policies of the General Plan, that address a public need and provide a public 
benefit and that do not adversely import the City's fiscal viability, environmental resources, 
infrastructure and services, and quality of life. Proposed projects requesting community facility 
district or assessment district debt financing will be evaluated to determine if such financing is 
financially viable and in the best interest of the City and current and future City and project 
residents. These Goals and Policies are designed to comply with Section 53312. 7 of the 
Government Code. 

The City will consider applications requesting the formation of community facilities 
districts and assessment districts and, ·if applicable, the issuance of bonds to finance eligible 
public facilities pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended. The 
City may initiate services districts by direction of the City Council. The City reserves the right 
to request any reports, information or studies reasonably necessary in evaluating these 
applications. 

All City and any consultant costs incurred in evaluating applications requesting the 
establishment of community facilities districts or assessment districts will be paid by the 
applicant(s) by advance deposit increments or as otherwise agreed in writing by the City. The 
City shall not incur any non-reimbursable expense for processing such applications. Expenses 
not chargeable to the district shall be borne by the applicant. 

II. ANNEXATION GOALS AND POLICIES 

A. Ensure that City interests are protected in all annexation processes. 

B. Prepare or request any reports, information or feasibility studies reasonably 
necessary in evaluating annexation requests. 

C. Coordinate with the County, landowners, and pertinent service agencies to assure 
that development within the sphere of influence (SOI) complements, does not adversely compete 
with, and assures the fiscal viability of the City of Mendota. 

D. Ensure that annexations to the City of Mendota are consistent with the overall 
goals and policies of the General Plan and do not adversely impact the City's fiscal viability, 
environmental resources, infrastructure, services, and quality of life. 

45697181.3 



E. Require that existing and proposed development within proposed annexations 
areas generate sufficient revenues, to compensate the City for its fair-share of community service 
costs. 

F. Require that infrastructure needs for proposed annexation areas meet the City 
standards prior to annexation. 

G. Require that, if an area annexes to the City, a Community Facilities District 
(CFD) or other financing option be established for the provision of police, fire, paramedic and 
other required public services. 

H. Specifically, require that all annexation areas include the costs of any landscaped 
arterial and median installation into the fiscal impact analysis. Also, that all new development 
install any and all arterial and open space landscaping. Require. that both annexed areas and new 
development annex into a landscaping and lighting maintenance district, or any other sufficient 
financing district. 

III. NEW DEVELOPMENT GOALS AND POLICIES 

For the purposes of this policy new development is defined as development of vacant or raw land 
that exists within the current boundaries of the City of Mendota. 

A. Prepare or request any reports, information or feasibility studies reasonably 
necessary in evaluating the development requests. 

B. Ensure that· new development to the City of Mendota are consistent with the 
overall goals and policies of the General Plan and do not adversely impact the City's fiscal 
viability, environmental resources, infrastructure, services, and quality of life. 

C. Require proposed development to generate sufficient revenues, to compensate the 
City for its fair-share of community service costs. 

D. Require that infrastructure needs for proposed development meet the City 
standards prior to approval. 

E. Encourage that a Community Facilities District (CFD) or other financing option 
be established for the provision and maintenance of streets, and other public services. 

F. Specifically, require that all new development plans include the costs of any 
landscaped arterial and median installation into the fiscal impact analysis. Also, that all new 

· development install any and all arterial and open space landscaping, Require that new 
development annex into a landscaping and lighting maintenance district, or any other sufficient 
financing district. 

IV. DEFINITIONS 

"1915 Act" means the Improvement Bond Act of 1915, as amended. 

45697181.3 2 



"AD" means an assessment district formed under the 1913 Act. 

"Bonds" means bonds authorized and issued under the CFD Act or the 1915 Act. 

"City" means the City of Mendota. 

"CFD" means a community facilities district formed under the CFD Act. 

"CFD Act" means the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended. 

"Public Facilities" means improvements authorized to be constructed or acquired under 
the CFD Act including, but not limited to, fees for capital facilities imposed by public agencies 
as a condition to approval of the development encompassed by the district or as a condition to 
service the CFD. 

"Public Services" means_ public services authorized to be provided by a CFD pursuant to 
the CFD Act. 

"Value" or "Fair Market Value" means the amount of cash or its equivalent which 
property would bring if exposed for sale in the open market under conditions in which neither 
buyer nor seller could take advantage of a difficulty of the other and both have knowledge of all 
of the uses and purposes to which the property is adapted and for which it is capable of being 
used and of the enforceable restrictions upon uses and purposes. 

V. ELIGIBLE PUBLIC FACILITIES, PRIORITIES AND PUBLIC SERVICES 

The improvements eligible to be financed must be owned by a public agency or public 
utility, and must have a useful life of at least five (5) years. In any event, no bonds shall be 
issued with a maturity date greater than the useful life of the facilities or improvements being 
financed. The development proposed within the district must be consistent with the City's 
general plan, if any, and must have received any required zoning or specific plan approvals. 

The list of public facilities, including fees relating thereto, eligible to be financed by a 
CFD or AD include, but are not limited to, the following: 

• Streets, highways and bridges 

• Street lighting 

• Traffic signals and safety lighting 

• Parks 

• Governmental facilities 

45697181.3 

• Flood control facilities 

• Libraries 

• Public utilities 

• Law enforcement and fire protection 
facilities 

• Recreation facilities, including golf 
courses 

3 



• Sanitary sewer facilities 

• Storm drain facilities 

• Potable and reclaimed water facilities 

• Biological mitigation measures involving 
land acquisition, dedicating and 
revegetation 

In general, none of these types of facilities will have priority over the others; however, 
the City has final determination as to any facility's eligibility for financing, as well as the 
prioritization of facilities to be included within a financing district. Furthermore, when 
establishing a CFD, the City may condition any facility's eligibility for financing on the 
allocation of an annual amount of special taxes for public services as determined by the City 
including, but not limited to law enforcement, fire and paramedics and/or the annexation of the 
proposed district requesting financing into an operation and maintenance district that the City 
may have established for such services. 

VI. CREDIT QUALITY REQUIRED OF BOND ISSUES 

In evaluating a proposed Bond issuance, the City may require that the City's financial 
advisor, if any, has reviewed and approved the proposed issuance of the Bonds. 

VII. DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS 

A. Disclosure Requirement for Developers. The applicant will be required to 
demonstrate, to the satisfaction of the City, that there will be full disclosure of the Mello-Roos 
special taxes and any other special tax, assessment, overlapping special taxes or assessment of 
other districts, or other liens on individual parcels to existing and future property owners, and to 
prospective purchasers of property including interim purchasers and sales to merchant builders 
(Section 53341.5 of the Government Code). In addition to all requirements oflaw, the City shall 
require the applicant to provide disclosure of such information as the City deems appropriate to 
the purchasers of property within the district, with respect to the existence of the district, 
maximum and/or backup special taxes to be levied within the district, facilities to be constructed, 
services to be provided for which special taxes will be levied, the foreclosure process and the 
terms and conditions of Bond issues on behalf of the district. Such disclosure shall include 
homebuyer notifications requiring signature prior to home purchases, as well as methods to 
notify subsequent home purchasers. 

B. Compliance with Federal Securities Laws. The City shall use all reasonable 
means to ensure compliance with applicable federal securities laws in connection with the 
issuance of debt and the provision of annual information regarding any district established by the 
City with respect to which Bonds have been issued, including requiring any developer in a 
district who is material to the Bond issue to transmit appropriate information to the City or its 
designee for disclosure to Bond investors. 

45697181.3 4 



VIII. EQUITY OF TAX ALLOCATION FORMULAS 

The rate and method of apportionment of the special tax and method of spread of 
assessment must be both reasonable and equitable in apportioning the costs of the public 
facilities to be financed and/or services to be provided to each of the parcels within the 
boundaries of the proposed district. 

The rate and method of apportionment of the special tax and method of spread of 
assessment is to provide for the administrative expenses of the proposed district, including, but 
not limited to, those expenses necessary for the enrollment and collection of the special tax or 
assessment and Bond administration. 

All property not otherwise exempted by the CFD Act from taxation or 1915 Act from 
assessment shall be subject to the levy of special tax or assessment. The rate and method of 
apportionment or method of spread of assessment may provide for exemptions to be extended to 
parcels that are to be dedicated at a future date to public entities, held by a home owner's 
association, or designated open space. 

The annual special tax or assessment levy on each residential parcel developed to its final 
land use shall be approximately equal each year, except that a variation for administrative 
expenses will be allowed. The City will allow an annual escalation factor on parcels within a 
CFD. 

The maximum annual special tax or special assessment, together with ad valorem 
property taxes, special assessments or taxes for an overlapping financing district, or any other 
charges, taxes, or fees payable from and secured by the property, including potential charges, 
taxes, or fees relating to authorized but unissued debt of public entities other than the City, in 
relation to the expected assessed value of each parcel upon completion of the private 
improvements to the parcel is of great importance to the City in evaluating the proposed 
financing. · 

The objective of the City is to limit the "overlapping" debt burden on any parcel to two 
percent (2.0%) of the expected assessed value of the parcel upon completion of the 
improvements. In evaluating whether this objective can be met, the City will consider the 
aggregate public service needs for the proposed project. It will consider what public 
improvements the applicant is proposing to be financed in relation to these aggregate needs and 
decide what is an appropriate amount to extend in public financing to the identified public 
improvements, as well as the appropriate level of special taxes to be levied for services. 

This evaluation will be based on information obtained from other affected taxing entities 
that have jurisdiction to impose a levy on the proposed project. 

The total maximum annual special taxes or assessments that can be collected from 
taxable property in a district, taking into account any potential changes in land use or 
development density or rate, and less all projected administrative expenses, must be equal to at 
least one hundred ten percent ( 110%) of the gross annual debt service on any Bonds issued by or 
on behalf of the district in each year that said Bonds will remain outstanding, plus the amount of 
any special taxes for services. 

45697181.3 5 



The rate and method of apportionment of any CFD special tax shall include a provision 
or a backup tax to protect against any changes in development that would result in insufficient 
special tax revenues to meet the debt service requirements of the district. Such backup tax shall 
be structured in such a manner that it shall not violate any provisions of the CFD Act regarding 
cross-collateralization limitations for residential properties. 

The projected annual special tax or assessment revenues shall include reasonable 
administrative expenses and other direct costs to the District. If bonds are sold and special tax 
payments or assessments are not immediately required (capitalized interest), a reasonable amount 
of projected actual administrative costs and expenses will be funded from the proceeds of the 
bonds or from the developer. 

· A formula to provide for the prepayment of the special tax may be provided; however, 
neither the City nor the CFD shall be obligated to pay for the cost of determining the prepayment 
amount which is to be paid by the applicant. The method of prepayment for a 1915 Act must 
adhere to the provisions set forth in the 1915 Act, §8766-8766.5 of the California Streets and 
Highways Code. 

Any proposed subsequent change in land use after formation of the district that would 
result in a decrease in special tax revenue for the property shall require the property owner to 
deposit with the City at the time of the land use change, the present value amount to cover the 
differential between the original authorized tax and the proposed projected tax, plus any required 
penalties or bond redemption premium. Any proposed subsequent change in land use after the 
formation of an assessment district must adhere to the 1915 Act formal assessment 
apportionment criteria set forth in the 1915 Act. 

IX. APPRAISALS 

A. Definition of Appraisal. An appraisal is a written statement independently and 
impartially prepared by a qualified appraiser setting forth an opinion of defined value of an 
adequately described property as of a specific date, supported by the presentation and analysis of 
relevant market information. 

B. Appraisal Standards. The Appraisal Standards for Land Secured Financings (the 
"Standards") published by the California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission, originally 
dated May 1994 and as amended July 2004, are adopted as the appraisal standards of the City. 

45697181.3 

(1) 

(2) 

(3) 

A statement of the value of the real property. 

The effective date of valuation, date of appraisal, signature, and 
certification of the appraiser. 

Conflict of Interest. No appraiser or review appraiser shall have any 
interest direct or indirect in the real property being appraised for the 
Agency that would in any way conflict with the preparation or review of 
the appraisal. Compensation for making an appraisal shall not be based on 
the amount of the valuation. 

6 



X. EXCEPTIONS TO THESE POLICIES 

The City may find in limited and exceptional instances that a waiver to any of the above 
stated policies is reasonable given identified special City benefits to be derived from such 
waiver. Such waivers are granted only by action of the City Council based upon specific public 
purpose and/or health and safety findings. 

45697181.3 7 



Exhibit C 



BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE 

CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTY OF FRESNO 

RESOLUTION OF INTENTION OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA TO 
ESTABLISH COMMUNITY FACILITIES 
DISTRICT NO. 2006~1 (POLICE AND FIRE 
SERVICES) AND TO AUTHORIZE THE LEVY 
OF A SPECIAL TAX WITHIN SAID DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION NO. 06-39 

WHEREAS, the City Council (the "Council") of the City of Mendota (the "City") intends 
· to establish City of Mendota Community Facilities District No. 2006-1 (Police and Fire Services) 
(the "District") pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, 
commencing with Section 53311 of the Government Code of the State of California (the "Act"); 
and 

WHEREAS, the Council intends to finance police and fire services that are in addition to 
those provided in the territory within the District prior to the formation of the District and do not 
supplant services already available within the territory proposed to be included in the District 
through the formation of the District subject to the levy of a special tax to pay for such services, 
being approved at an election to be held within the boundaries of the District; and 

WHEREAS, the Council intends to provide for the annexation in the future of territory 
(the "Future Annexation Area") to the District pursuant to the terms and provisions of the Act. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Mendota as 
follows: 

Section 1. The Council hereby determines to institute proceedings for the formation 
of a community facilities district under the terms of the Act. The exterior boundaries of the 
community facilities district are hereby specified and described to be as shown on that certain 
map now on file in the office of the City Clerk entitled "Proposed Boundaries, City of Mendota 
Community Facilities District No. 2006-1 (Police and Fire Services)," which map indicates by a 
boundary line the extent of the territory included in the proposed community facilities district 
and shall govern for all details as to the extent of the District. On the original and one copy of 
the map of such District on file in the City Clerk's office, the City Clerk shall endorse the 
certificate evidencing the date and adoption of this Resolution. The City Clerk shall file the 
original of such map in her office and, within fifteen (15) days after the adoption of this 
Resolution, the City Clerk shall file a copy of such map so endorsed in the records of the County 
Recorder, County of Fresno, State of California. 

45827820.1 



Section 2. The Future Annexation Area, which area is to be subject to a special tax to 
be levied, shall be comprised of undeveloped parcels within the boundaries of the City, other 
than those parcels already within the boundaries of the proposed District, that require a 
discretionary approval for development, which are developed for private residential purposes of 
four or more units, and such other parcels as may be added upon the petition of the property 
owners thereof. Such Future Annexation Area may be annexed only with the unanimous 
approval of the owner or owners of each parcel or parcels at the time that parcel or those parcels 
are annexed. 

Section 3. The name of the proposed community facilities district shall be "City of 
Mendota Community Facilities District No. 2006-1 (Police and Fire Services).'; 

Section 4. Except where funds are otherwise available, it is the intention of the City 
Council to levy annually in accordance with procedures contained in the Act a special tax (the 
"Special Tax") sufficient to finance a portion of the cost of providing law enforcement, and fire 
services that are in addition to those provided in the territory within the District prior to the 
formation of the District and do not supplant services already available within the territory 
proposed to be included in the District, the costs of administering the levy and collection of the 
Special Tax and all other costs of the levy of the Special Tax, including any foreclosure 
proceedings, legal, fiscal, and financial consultant fees, election costs, and all other 
administrative costs of the tax levy. The Special Tax will be secured by recordation of a 
continuing lien against all non-exempt real property in the proposed District. The schedule of 
the rate and method of apportionment and manner of collection of the Special Tax is described in 
detail in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein. 

The Special Tax is apportioned to each parcel on the foregoing basis pursuant to 
Section, 53325.3 of the Act. 

Section 5. A public hearing (the "Hearing") on the establishment of the District and 
the proposed rate and method of apportionment of the Special Tax shall be held on November 
28, at 6:00 o'clock p.m., or as soon thereafter as practicable, at the chambers of the City Council 
of the City of Mendota 643 Quince Street, Mendota, California 93640. 

Section 6. At the time and place set forth above for the hearing, any interested 
person, including all persons owning lands or registered to vote within the proposed District, 
may appear and be heard. 

Section 7. Each City officer who is or will be responsible for the District, if it is 
established, is hereby directed to study the proposed District and, at or before the time of the 
above-mentioned Hearing, file a report with the City Council, and which is to be made a part of 
the record of the Hearing, containing a brief description of the·District and his or her estimate of 
the cost of providing additional law enforcement, and fire services within the boundary of the 
District. The City Manager is directed to estimate the fair and reasonable cost of all incidental 
expenses, including all costs associated with the creation of the District, determination of the 
amount of any speCial taxes, collection of any special taxes, or costs otherwise incurred in order 
to carry out the authorized purposes of the City with respect to the District. 



Section 8. The City may accept advances of funds from any sources, including 
private persons or private entities, and is authorized and directed to use such funds for any 
authorized purpose, including any cost incurred by the City in creating the District. The City 
may enter into an agreement to repay all of such funds as are not expended or committed for any 
authorized purpose at the time of the election on the levy of the Special Tax, if the proposal to 
levy such tax should fail, and to repay all of such funds advanced if the levy of the Special Tax 
shall be approved by the qualified electors of the District. 

Section 9. The City Clerk is hereby directed to publish a notice ("Notice") of the 
Hearing pursuant to Section 6061 of the Government Code in a newspaper of general circulation 
published in the area of the proposed District. Such Notice shall contain the text of this 
Resolution, state the time and place of the Hearing, a statement that the testimony of all 
interested persons or taxpayers will be heard, a description of the protest rights of the registered 
voters and landowners in the proposed District as provided in Section 53324 of the Act and a 
description of the proposed voting procedure for the election required by the Act. Such 
publication shall be completed at least 7 days prior to the date of the Hearing. 

Section 10. The voting procedure with respect to the establishment of the District and 
the imposition of the special tax shall be by hand delivered ballot election or by mailed ballot 
election. 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 24th day of October, ·2006 by the 
following votes: 

AYES: 5 Mayor Riofrio, Mayor Pro Temp Silva, Council Member 
Covarrubia, Council Member Flores and Council Member Quiroga 

NOES: 0 

b~~i- ~ 
Brenda L. Carter, City Clerk 



EXHIBIT A 
RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT OF SPECIAL TAX 

CITY OF MENDOTA 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2006-1 

(POLICE AND FIRE SERVICES) 

A special tax as hereinafter defined shall be levied on and collected for City of Mendota 
Community Facilities District No. 2006-1 (Police and Fire Services) ("CFD No. 2006-1 ") each 
Fiscal Year, commencing in Fiscal Year 2006-2007, in an amount determined by the City 
Council of the City of Mendota through the application of the appropriate Special Tax for 
"Developed Residential Property" as described below. All of the real property in CFD No. 2006-
1, unless exempted by law or by the provisions hereof, shall be taxed for the purposes, to the 
extent, and in the manner herein provided. 

1. DEFINITIONS 

The terms hereinafter set forth have the following meanings: 

"Act" means the Mello-Roos Communities Facilities Act of 1982 as amended, being 
Chapter 2.5, Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California. 

"Administrative Expenses" means any actual ordinary and necessary expense of the City 
of Mendota, or designee thereof or both, to carry out the administration of CFD No. 2006-1 
related to the determination of the amount of the levy of the Special Tax, the collection of 
the Special Tax including the expenses of collecting delinquencies, the payment of a 
proportional share of salaries and benefits of any City employee whose duties are directly 
related to the administration of CFD No. 2006-1, fees and expenses for counsel, Special Tax 
consultant and other consultants hired by the City in relation to CFD No. 2006-1, costs 
associated with responding to public inquiries regarding CFD No. 2006-1, and costs 
otherwise incurred in order to carry out the authorized purposes of CFD No. 2006-1. 

"Annual Escalation Factor" means for the Special Tax, the greater of (i) two percent 
(2.00%), or (ii) the percentage change in the Consumer Price Index for the Calendar Year 
ending in December of the prior Fiscal Year. 

"Assessor's Parcel" means a lot or parcel of land designated on an Assessor's Parcel Map 
with an assigned Assessor's Parcel number within the boundaries of CFD No. 2006-1. 

"Assessor's Parcel Map" means an official map of the Assessor of the County designating 
parcels by Assessor's Parcel number. 

"Base Year" means Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2007. 

"Building Permit" means a permit for new construction for a residential dwelling Unit. For 
purposes of this definition, "Building Permit" shall not include permits for construction or 

October 26, 2006 1 Community Facilities District No. 2006-1 
of the City of Mendota 



installation of retaining walls, utility improvements, or other such improvements not 
intended for human habitation. 

"Calendar Year" means the period commencing January 1 of any year and ending the 
following December 31. 

"CFD Administrator" means an official of the City, or designee thereof, responsible for 
determining the Special Tax Requirements and providing for the levy and collection of the 
Special Tax. 

"CFD No. 2006-1" means Community Facilities District No. 2006-1 (Police and Fire 
Services) established by the City under the Act. 

"City" means the City of Mendota. 

"City Council" means the City Council of the City, acting as the Legislative Body of CFD 
No. 2006-1, or its designee. 

"Consumer Price Index" means the index published by the U.S. Department of Labor, 
Bureau of Labor Statistics for all urban consumers in the Fresno County area. 

"County" means the County of Fresno. 

"Developed Residential Property" means all Assessor's Parcels within CFD No. 2006-1 
for which Building Permits were issued for purposes of constructing Single-Family 
Residential or Multi-Family Residential dwelling Units on or before June 1 preceding the 
Fiscal Year for which the Special Tax is being levied, and that each such Assessor's Parcel is 
associated with a Lot within a Final Map, as determined reasonably by the City and/or CFD 
administrator. 

"Exempt Property" means all Assessor's Parcels within CFD No. 2006-1 designated as 
being exempt from the Special Tax as determined in Section F. 

"Final Map" means a subdivision of property evidenced by the recordation of a final map, 
parcel map, or lot line adjustment, pursuant to the Subdivision Map Act (California 
Government Code Section 66410 et seq.) or the recordation of a condominium plan pursuant 
to California Civil Code 13 52 that creates individual lots for which Building Permits may be 
issued without further subdivision. 

"Fiscal Year" means the period commencing on July 1 of any year and ending the 
following June 30. 

"Lot" means an individual legal lot created by a Final Map for which a Building Permit 
could or has been issued. 

"Maximum Special Tax" means the Maximum Special Tax determined in accordance with 
Section C, which can be levied by CFD No. 2006-1 in any Fiscal Year on Developed 
Residential Property within CFD No. 2006-1. 

"Multi-Family Residential" means all Assessor's Parcels for which a Building Permit has 
been issued for purposes of constructing a residential structure consisting of two or more 
residential Units that share common walls, including, but not limited to, duplexes, triplexes, 
town homes, condominiums, and apartment Units . 

"Non-Residential Property" means all Assessor's Parcels for which a Building Permit was 
issued for any type of non-residential use. 

October 26, 2006 2 Community Fqcilities District No. 2006-1 
of the City of Mendota 



"Public Property" means any property within the boundaries of CFD No. 2006-1 that is 
owned by or irrecoverable dedicated to the City, the federal government, the State of 
California, the County, CFD No. 2006-1, or other public agency. 

"Public Services" means new police and fire services, including but not limited to (i) the 
costs of contracting services, (ii) related facilities, equipment, vehicles, ambulances, fire 
apparatus and supplies, (iii) the salaries and benefits of City and non-City staff that directly 
provide police and fire services, and (iv) City and non-City overhead costs associated with 
providing such services within CPD No. 2006-1. The Special Tax provides only partial 
funding for police and fire services. 

"Special Tax" means any special tax authorized to be levied by CPD No. 2006-1 pursuant 
to the Act to fund Public Services and Administrative Expenses. 

"Single-Family Residential" means all Assessor's Parcels for which a Building Permit has 
been issued for purposes of constructing one single-family residential dwelling Unit. 

"Tax-Exempt Property', means an Assessor's Parcel not subject to the Special Tax as 
defined under Section F. 

"Undeveloped Property" means all Assessor's Parcels within CPD No. 2006-1 for which 
Building Permits have not been issued and are not classified as Public Property. 

"Unit" means any separate residential dwelling unit in which a person or persons may live, 
which comprises an independent facility capable of conveyance separate from adjacent 
residential dwelling units and is not considered to be for commercial or industrial use. 

2. LAND USE CLASSIFICATION 

Each Fiscal Year, beginning with Fiscal Year 2006-2007, each Assessor's Parcel within 
CPD No. 2006-1 shall be classified as Developed Residential Property or Exempt Property. 

3. MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAX RATES 

The Maximum Special Tax for each Assessor's Parcel classified as Developed Residential 
Property in Fiscal Year 2006-2007 shall be equal to $660.00 per Unit. For each subsequent 
Fiscal Year following the Base Year, the Maximum Special Tax shall be adjusted by the 
Annual Escalation Factor. 

October 26, 2006 3 Community Facilities District No. 2006-1 
of the City of Mendota 



4. METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT 

Commencing with Fiscal Year 2006-2007, and for each subsequent Fiscal Year, the CFD 
Administrator shall calculate the Maximum Special Tax applicable for such Fiscal Year and 
levy the Maximum Special Tax on all Developed Residential Property. 

5. TERM: OF SPECIAL TAX 

The Special Tax shall be levied in perpetuity to fund Public Services provided to CFD No. 
2006-1. 

6. EXEMPTIONS 

The City shall classify as Exempt Property: (i) Public Property, (ii) Non-Residential 
Property, (iii) Undeveloped Property, (iv) Assessor's Parcels which are used as places of 
worship and are exempt from ad valorem property taxes because they are owned by a 
religious organization, (v) Assessor's Parcels used exclusively by a homeowners' 
association, or (vi) Assessor's Parcels with public or utility easements making impractical 
their utilization for other purposes than those set forth in the easement. 

7. APPEALS 

Any property owner claiming that the amount or application of the Special Tax is not 
correct may file a written notice of appeal with the City Council not later than twelve 
months after having paid the first installment of the Special Tax that is disputed. A 
representative(s) of CFD No. 2006-1 shall promptly review the appeal, and if necessary, 
meet with the property owner, consider written and oral evidence regarding the amount of 
the Special Tax, and rule on the appeal. If the representative's decision requires that the 
Special Tax for an Assessor's Parcel be modified or changed in favor of the property owner, 
a cash refund shall not be made, but an adjustment shall be made to the Special Tax on that 
Assessor's Parcel in the subsequent Fiscal Year(s). 

8. COLLECTION OF SPECIAL TAXES 

Collection of the Annual Special Tax shall be made by the County in the same manner as 
ordinary ad valorem property taxes are collected and the Annual Special Tax shall be 
subject to the same penalties and the same lien priority in the case of delinquency as ad 
valorem taxes; provided, however, that the Council may provide for other means of 
collecting the Special Tax, including direct billings thereof to the property owners, 

October 26, 2006 4 Community Facilities District No. 2006-1 
of the City of Mendota 



Exhibit D 



I 
1· 

I 
! 

-..... ·_. 

'""" 
KOJPPE&i-RUBER 
~~ Via. VcC"a. Crut. 
StiJ\.fl; 256 
S.~n Maf'C'O:!. Ca!Ucm.W ~076 
l''no!le ("IGO) SI0-0299 r •• i7&l) 5J0-·02BS 

BELMONT 

MAP OF PROPOSED BOUNDARIES 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 

(POLICE AND FIRE SERVICES) 
crry Of MENDOTA. 

COJNIY 01' FRESNO 
STATf. Of- CAUFORXlA 

BASS AVE. 

'· '; 

/ 

OF 
2006-1 

SH'.:ET 1 OF 

'f~i: GllLS M-1:0 !J!t.t~'Sltt~s or i~'"".w~ ;.OT C-R ;>.:..RCE'.t ~"°'i\'N CN f:.IOS Ci.Z;\;.~Afl. ~ri~i..~ E:i 
~! l.~~$ A~ C:1.1~:.lliSi~$ J.S $1-!0~ Ori ;}".,:: f'Rt.$f.l0- t~'.1'NJ''r ASS!.'SS!i-RS U.N'S fOR 
rl·i-:;SE., PA-~!.:LS U'S'lt.O. 

/i 
/ ' 

>:. 
l'N 
I 
[ 

® Cl .tOY V aoo-
; 

L {~-nv'S} 
-·------'------------------------~--~ 



Exhibit E 



RESOLUTION NO. 06-44 

RESOLUTION OF FORMATION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MENDOTA DETERMINING THE VALIDITY OF PRIOR PROCEEDINGS, 

ESTABLISHING CITY OF MENDOTA COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO, 
2006-1 (POLICE AND FIRE SERVICES) 

WHEREAS, the City Council (the "Council") of the City of Mendota, California (the 
"City"), has heretofore adopted Resolution No. 06-39 stating its intention to form City of 
Mendota Community Facilities District No. 2006-1 (Police and Fire Services) (the "District") 
pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, (the "Act"); and 

WHEREAS, a copy of Resolution No. 06-39, incorporating a description and map of the 
proposed boundaries of the District and setting forth the rate and method of apportionment and 
manner of collection of the special tax to be levied within the District, which will be used to 
finance a portion of the cost of providing police and fire services that are in addition to those 
provided in the territory within the District prior to the formation of the District and do not 
supplant services already available within the territory of proposed to be included in the District, 
is on file with the City Clerk and incorporated herein by reference; and 

WHEREAS, Resolution No. 06-39 set November 28, 2006 as the date of the public 
hearing on the formation of the District and this Council held the said public hearing as required 
by law; and 

WHEREAS, at said hearing all persons not exempt from the special tax desiring to be 
heard on all matters pertaining to the formation of the District were heard and a full and fair 
hearing was held; and 

WHEREAS, at said hearing evidence was presented to the Council on said matters before 
it, and this Council at the conclusion of said hearing is fully advised in the premises; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Mendota as 
follows: 

Section 1. Pursuant to Section 53325. l(b) of the Government Code, the Council finds 
and determines that the proceedings prior hereto were valid and in conformity with the 
requirements of the Act. 

Section 2. A community facilities district to be designated "City of Mendota Community 
Facilities District No. 2006-1 (Police and Fire Services)" is hereby established pursuant to the 
Act. 

Section 3. The description and map of the boundaries of the District on file in the City 
Clerk's office and as described in said Resolution No. 06-39 and incorporated herein by 
reference, shall be the boundaries of the District. The map of the proposed boundaries of the 
District has been recorded in the Office of the County Recorder of Fresno County, California in 

45844112.1 



Book 42, page 29 of the Book of Maps of Assessments and Community Facilities Districts 
(Instrument Number 2006-0234667). 

Section 4. Except where funds are otherwise available, there shall be levied annually in 
accordance with procedures contained in the Act, a special tax sufficient to finance a portion of 
the cost of providing police and fire services that are in addition to those provided in the territory 
within the District prior to the formation of the district and do not supplant services already 
available within the territory proposed to be included in the District. The rate and method of 
apportionment of the special tax and manner of collection is described in detail in Exhibit "A" 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. The special tax shall be utilized to pay 
for authorized services. 

Section 5. Pursuant to and in compliance with the provisions of Government Code 
Section 50075.1, the Council hereby establishes the following accountability measures pertaining 
to the levy by the District of the special tax: 

A. Such special tax shall be levied for the specific purposes set forth herein. 

B. The proceeds of the levy of such special tax shall be applied only to the specific 
purposes set forth herein. 

C. The District shall establish an account or accounts into which the proceeds of 
such special tax shall be deposited. 

D. The City Manager, or his or here designee, acting for and on behalf of the District, 
shall annually file a report with the Council as required pursuant to Government Code Section 
50075.3. 

Section 6. Upon recordation of a notice of special tax lien pursuant to Section 3114.5 of 
the Streets and Highways Code, a continuing lien to secure each levy of the special tax shall 
attach to all real property in the District, and this lien shall continue in force and effect until the 
special tax obligation is canceled in accordance with law or until collection of the tax by the City 
ceases. 

Section 7. The Council finds that the proposed public services are necessary to meet the 
increased demand put upon the City as a result of the development within the District. 

Section 8. The Council finds that there is not an ad valorem property tax currently being 
levied on propetty within the proposed District for the exclusive purpose of financing police and 
fire services. 

Section 9. Written protests against the establishment of the District, or against the 
furnishing of specified services or facilities or the levying of a specified special tax within the 
District, have not been filed by fifty percent (50%) or more of the registered voters or property 
owners of one-half (112) or more of the area of land within the proposed District. 

Section 10. Written protests against the future annexation of the Future Annexation 
Area, or against the furnishing of specified services or facilities or the levying of a specified 

45844112.1 2 



special tax within such Future Annexation Area, have not been filed by fifty percent (50%) or 
more of the registered voters or property owners of one-half (1/2) or more of the area of land 
within the Future Annexation Area. 

Section 11. The . Office of the City Manager, 643 Quince Street, Mendota, California 
93640, (559) 655-3291, or its designee, is designated to be responsible for preparing annually a 
current roll of special tax levy obligations by assessor's parcel number and for estimating future 
special tax levies pursuant to Section 53340. l of the Government Code, 

Section 12. The City Clerk is directed to ce1tify and attest to this Resolution and to take 
any and all necessary acts to call, hold, canvass and ce1tify an election or elections on the levy of 
the special tax, and the establishment of the appropriation limit. 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 28th day of November, 2006 by the 
following votes: 

A YES: 4 Mayor Riofrio, Mayor Pro Temp Silva, Council Member Flores 
and Council Member Covarrubia 

NOES: 1 Council Member Quiroga 

JO,EPH R. RIOFRIO, M 

ATTEST: 

(

_....,'< 

j~/ A~.c~k /. ___ .o.:d~---
BRENDA L. CARTER, CITY CLERK 

45844112.1 3 



45844112.1 

EXHIBIT A 

RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT 
OF SPECIAL TAX 



Exhibit F 



RESOLUTION NO. 06-45 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA 
ACTING ON BEHALF OF CITY OF MENDOTA COMMUNITY 
FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2006-1 (POLICE AND FIRE SERVICES) 
CALLING A SPECIAL ELECTION 

WHEREAS, the City Council (the "Council") of the City of Mendota, California (the 
HCity"), has heretofore adopted Resolution No. 06-39 stating its intention to form City of 
Mendota Community Facilities District No. 2006-1 (Police and Fire Services) (the "District") 
pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, (the "Act"); and 

WHEREAS, a copy of Resolution No. 06-39, incorporating a description and map of the 
proposed boundaries of the District and setting forth the rate and method of appo11ionment and 
manner of collection of the special tax to be levied within the District, which will be used to 
finance a portion of the cost of providing police and fire services that are in addition to those 
provided in the territory within the District prior to the formation of the District and do not 
supplant services already available within the territory proposed to be included in the District, is 
on file with the City Clerk and incorporated herein by reference; and 

WHEREAS, on November 28, 2006, this Council held a noticed hearing as required by 
law relative to the proposed formation of the District; and 

WHEREAS, at said hearing all persons not exempt from the special tax desiring to be 
heard on all matters pertaining to the formation of the District were heard and a full and fair 
hearing was held; and 

WHEREAS, at said hearing evidence was presented to this Council on said matters 
before it, and this Council at the conclusion of said hearing was and is fully advised in the 
premises; and 

WHEREAS, this Council adopted its Resolution No. 06~44 (the "Resolution of 
Formation") determining the validity of prior proceedings and establishing the District; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed special tax to be levied upon prope11y within the District to 
finance the above referenced public services has not been precluded by protest of the owners of 
one-half (1/2) or more of the area of land within the District; and 

WHEREAS, this Council wishes to present to the qualified electors of the District a 
proposition to levy special taxes on property within the District; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Mendota as 
follows: 

Section 1. Pursuant to Government Code Section 53353.S, the Council hereby 
submits to the qualified electors of the District a proposition (the "Proposition") to levy special 

45844131.J 



taxes on property within the District in accordance with the rate and method specified in the 
Resolution of Formation. The Proposition is attached as Exhibit "A." 

Section 2. A special election is hereby called for the District on the Proposition set 
forth in Section I above. 

Section 3. The City Clerk shall hand deliver the ballot to the landowner immediately 
upon the adoption of this Resolution or shall have mailed the ballot in advance. 

Section 4, The date of the special election for the District on the Proposition shall be 
on the 28th day of November, 2006. The voter ballot shall be returned to the City Clerk at 643 
Quince Street, Mendota, California 93640, no later than 11 :00 o'clock p.m. on November 28, 
2006. 

Section 5. The Council finds and determines that there were no registered voters 
residing within the territory of proposed District at the time of the protest hearing and ninety (90) 
days prior thereto, and that there is only one landowner in the District. The requirements of 
Section 53326 of the Government Code having been waived by the landowner, the ballot for the 
special election shall be personally delivered to the landowner within the District or shall have 
been delivered in advance. 

Section 6. The District shall constitute a single election precinct for the purpose of 
holding said election. 

Section 7. The Council hereby directs that the election be conducted by the City 
Clerk of the City of Mendota, as the elections official. 

45844131.1 2 



PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 28th day of November, 2006 by the 
following votes: 

AYES: 4 Mayor Riofrio, Mayor Pro Temp Silva, Council Member Flores 
and Council Member Covanubia 

NOES: 0 Council Member Quiroga 

ATTEST: 

~?2~~~ ~ CJ~ 
BRENDA L. CARTER, CITY CLERK 

4584413l.l 3 

• I 



OFFICIAL BALLOT 

CITY OF MENDOTA 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2006-1 

(POLICE AND FIRE SERVICES) 

SPECIAL TAX ELECTION 
November 28, 2006 

To vote, mark a cross (+) in the voting square after the word "YES" or after the word 
"NO." All marks otherwise made are forbidden. 

This ballot is provided to , as owner or authorized 
representative of such owner of land within City of Mendota Community Facilities District No. 
2006-1 (Police and Fire Services) and represents _vote. 

If you wrongly mark, tear, or deface this ballot, return it to the City Clerk of the City of 
Mendota at 643 Quince Street, Mendota, California 93640. 

PROPOSITION Shall City of Mendota Community Facilities 
District No. 2006-1 (Police and Fire Services) be authorized to 
levy special taxes thereof pursuant to the rate and method of 
apportionment of special taxes (the "Special Tax Formula") set 
forth in Resolution of Formation adopted on November 28, 2006 to 
finance the authorized services, all as provided for in the Special 
Tax Formula? 

45844131.I 

YES 

NO 



CONCURRENCE ON HOLDING SPECIAL ELECTION LESS THAN 125 DAYS 
FOLLOWING THE ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION OF FORMATION 

As the elections official of the special election (the "Election") called for by 
Resolution No. 06-45 (Resolution Calling a Special Election), I hereby concur on holding the 
Election less than 125 days following the adoption of Resolution No. 06-44 (Resolution of 
Formation). 

Dated: November 28, 2006 By~~ .. l ~g_ 
Brenda L. Carter, City Clerk of the City ofMeooota 

45863740.1 



Exhibit G 



RESOLUTION NO. 06-46 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA 
ACTING ON BEHALF OF CITY OF MENDOTA COMMUNITY 
FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2006-1 (POLICE AND FIRE SERVICES) 
CANVASSING THE RESULTS OF THE SPECIAL ELECTION HELD 
WITHIN SAID DISTRICT 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Mendota, California (the "Council") has 
previously conducted proceedings pertaining to the formation of City of Mendota Community 
Facilities District No. 2006-1 (Police and Fire Services) (the "District"), the rate and method of 
app01tionment of a special tax to finance a portion of the cost of providing certain public 
services, and the calling of a special election in regard to the foregoing; and 

WHEREAS, on November 28, 2006, a special election was held within the District 
regarding the rate and method of apportionment of the proposed special tax; and 

WHEREAS, at such special election the proposal for the rate and method of 
apportionment and manner of collection of the special tax for the District was approved by the 
qualified electors of the District; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Mendota as 
follows: 

Section 1. It is hereby determined that the election conducted within the District was 
duly and validly conducted. 

Section 2. The Council, acting as the legislative body of the District, is authorized to 
levy the special tax on behalf of the District, as specified in Resolution No. 06-44 adopted by the 
City Council on November 28, 2006. 

45844141.l 



PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 281
h day of November, 2006 by the 

following votes: 

AYES: 4 Mayor Riofrio, Mayor Pro Temp Silva, Council Member Flores 
and Council Member Covarrubia 

NOES: Council Member Quiroga 

ATTEST: 

BRENDAL. CARTER, CITY CLERK 

45844141.l 



Exhibit H 



ORDINANCE NO. 06-03 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA 
ACTING AS THE LEGISLATIVE BODY OF CITY OF MENDOTA 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRiCT NO. 2006-1 (POLICE AND 
FIRE SERVICES) AUTHORIZING THE LEVY OF A SPECIAL TAX 

WHEREAS, on October 24, 2006, the City Council (the "Council") of the City of 
Mendota, California (the "City") adopted Resolution No. 06-39 stating its intention to form the 
City of Mendota Community Facilities District No. 2006-1 (Police and Fire Services) (the 
"District") pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, . (the 
"Act"); and 

WHEREAS, notice was published as required by law relative to the intention of the 
Council to form the District; and 

WHEREAS, on November 28, 2006 this Council held a noticed public hearing as 
required by law relative to the determination to proceed with the formation of the District and the 
rate and method of apportionment and manner of collection of the special tax to be levied within 
the District to finance certain public services; and 

WHEREAS, at said hearing all persons desiring to be heard on all matters pertaining to 
the formation of the District were heard and a full and fair hearing was held; and 

WHEREAS, the Council subsequent to said hearing adopted Resolution No. 06N44 
determining the validity of prior proceedings relative to the formation of the District and 

. establishing the District; and 

WHEREAS, the Council subsequent to said hearing adopted Resolution No. 06-44 which 
called an election within the District for November 28, 2006 on the proposition of levying a 
special tax; and 

WHEREAS, on November 28, 2006 an election was held within the District in which the 
eligible electors approved by more than two-thirds vote the proposition of levying a special tax; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Mendota as 
follows: 

Section I. A special tax is levied within the boundaries of the District pursuant to the 
formula set forth in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and incorporated by reference in an amount 
necessary to finance a portion of the cost of providing police and fire services that are in addition 
to those provided in the territory within the District prior to the formation of the District. 

Section 2. This legislative body is hereby further authorized to provide, by resolution 
adopted as provided in Section 53340 of the Act, for the levy of the special tax in the then 
current tax year or future tax years, except that the special tax rates to be levied shall not exceed 
the maximum rates set forth in Exhibit 4'A". 

City of Mendota 
Community Facilities District No. 2006-1 Page 1 



Section 3. All of the collections of the special tax shall be used as provided for in the 
Act and Resolution No. 06-44 of the Council. 

Section 4. The above authorized special tax shall be collected in the same manner as 
ordinary ad valorem taxes are collected and shall be subject to the same penalties and the same 
procedurn and sale in cases of delinquency and provided for ad valorem taxes. 

Section 5. The Mayor shall sign this ordinance and the City Clerk shall attest to such 
signature. The City Clerk is directed to cause the title and summary or text of the this ordinance, 
together with the vote thereon, to be published within fifteen (15) days after its passage at least 
once in a newspaper of general circulation published and circulated within the territorial 
jurisdiction of the City, and to post at the main office of the City a certified copy of the full text 
of the adopted ordinance along with the names of the Council Members voting for and against 
the ordinance. 

Section 6. This ordinance relating to the levy of the special tax takes effect and shall 
be in force from and after 30 days from the date of final passage. A copy of this ordinance shall 
be transmitted to the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors of Fresno County, the Assessor and the 
TreasurerMTax Collector of Fresno County. 

* * * * * * * * * * 
The foregoing Ol'dinance was introduced on November 28, 2006, and duly and regularly passed 
by the Council of the City of Mendota at a regular meeting thereof held on the 12th day of 
December, 2006, by the following vote: 

AYES: 4 Mayor Silva, Mayor Pro Temp Amador, Council Member Capuchino and 

NOES: 
ABSENT: 

ATTEST: 

Council Member Riofrio 
0 
1 

By:b~ 
Brenda L. Carter, 
City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

~D~ 
Michael D. Flores, 
City Attorney 

City of Mendota 
Community Facilities District No. 2006-1 Page 2 



EXHIBIT A 
RA TE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT 

CITY OF MENDOTA 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2006-1 

(POLICE AND FIRE SERVICES) 

A special tax as hereinafter defined shall be levied on and collected for City of Mendota Community 
Facilities District No. 2006-1 (Police and Fire Services) ("CFD No. 2006-1") each Fiscal Year, 
commencing in Fiscal Year 2006-2007, in an ainount determined by the City Council of the City of 
Mendota through the application of the appropriate Special Tax for "Developed Residential 
Property" as described below. All of the real pt:aperty in CFD No. 2006-1, unless exempted by law 
or by the provisions hereof, shall be taxed for the purposes, to the extent, and in the manne1· herein 
provided, 

A. DEFINITIONS 

The terms hereinafter set forth have the following meanings: 

"Act" means the Mello-Roos Communities Facilities Act of 1982 as amended, being 
Chapter 2.5, Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California. 

"Administrative Expenses" means any actual ordinary and necessary expense of the City 
of Mendota, or designee thereof or both, to carry out the administration of CFO No. 2006-1 
related to the determination of the amount of the levy of the Special Tax, the collection of 
the Special Tax including the expenses of collecting delinquencies, the payment of a 
proportional share of salaries and benefits of any City employee whose duties are directly 
related to the administration of CFD No. 2006-1, fees and expenses for counsel, Special Tax 
consultant and other consultants hired by the City in relation to CFD No. 2006-1, costs 
associated with responding to public inquiries regarding CFD No. 2006-1, and costs 
otherwise incurred in order to carry out the authorized purposes of CFD No. 2006-1. 

"Annual Escalation Factor" means for the Special Tax, the greater of (i) two percent 
(2.00%), or (ii) the percentage change in the Consumer Price Index for the Calendar Year 
ending in December of the prior Fiscal Year. 

"Assessor's Parcel" means a lot or parcel of land designated on an Assessor's Parcel Map 
with an assigned Assessor's Parcel number within the boundaries of CFD No. 2006-1. 

"Assessor's Parcel Map" means an official map of the Assessor of the County designating 
parcels by Assessor's Parcel number. 

"~ase Year" means Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2007. 

"Building Permit" means a permit for new construction for a residential dwelling Unit. For 
purposes of this definition, "Building Permit" shall not include permits for construction or 
installation of retaining walls, utility improvements, or other such improvements not 
intended for human habitation. 

City of Mendota 
Community Fflcilities District No. 2006-1 Page3 



"Calendar Year" means the period commencing January 1 of any year and ending the 
following December 31. 

"CFD Administrator" means an official of the City, or designe~ thereof, responsible for 
determining the Special Tax Requirements and providing for the levy and collection of the 
Special Tax. 

"CFD No. 2006-1" means Community Facilities District No. 2006-1 (Police and Fire 
Services) established by the City under the Act. 

"City" means the City of Mendota. 

"City Council" means the City Council of the City, acting as the Legislative Body of CFD 
No. 2006-1, or its designee. · 

"Consumer Price Index" means the index published by the U.S. Department of Labor, 
Bureau of Labor Statistics for all utban consumers in the Fresno County area. 

"County" means the County of Fresno. 

"Developed Residential Property" means all Assessor's Parcels within CFD No. 2006-1 
for which Building Permits were issued for purposes of constructing Single-Family 
Residential or Multi-Family Residential dwelling Units on or before June 1 preceding the 
Fiscal Year for which the Special Tax is being levied, and that each such Assessor's Parcel is 
associated with a Lot within a Final Map, as determined reasonably by the City and/or CFD 
administrator. 

"Exempt Property" means all Assessor's Parcels within CFD No. 2006-1 designated as 
being exempt from the Special Tax as determined in Section F. 

"Final Map" means a subdivision of property evidenced by the recordation of a final map, 
parcel map, or lot line adjustment, pursuant to the Subdivision Map Act (California 
Government Code Section 66410 et seq.) or the recordation of a condominium plan pursuant 
to California Civil Code 1352 that creates individual lots for which Building Permits may be 
issued without further subdivision. 

"Fiscal Year,, means the period commencing on July 1 of any year and ending the 
following June 30. 

"Lot" means an individual legal lot created by a Final Map for which a Building Permit 
could or has been issued. 

"Maximum Special Tax" means the Maximum Special Tax determined in accordance with 
Section C, which can be levied by CFD No. 2006-1 in any Fiscal Year on Developed 
Residential Property within CFD No. 2006-1. 

"Multi-Family Residential" means all Assessor's Parcels for which a Building Permit has 
been issued for purposes of constructing a residential structure consisting of two or more 

City of Mendota 
Community Facilities DistJ::ict No. 2006-1 Page4 



residential Units that share common walls, including, but not limited to, duplexes, triplexes, 
town homes, condominiums, and apartment Units. 

"Non-Residential Property" means all Assessor's Parcels for which a Building Permit was 
issued for any type of non-residential use. 

"Public Property'' means any property within the boundaries of CPD No. 2006-1 that is 
owned by or irrecoverable dedicated to the City, the federal government, the State of 
California, the County, CFD No. 2006-1, or other public agency. 

"Public Services" means new police and fire services, including but not limited to (i) the 
costs of contracting services, (ii) related facilities, equipment, vehicles, ambulances, fire 
apparatus and supplies, (iii) the salaries and benefits of City and non-City staff that directly 
provide police and fire services, and (iv) City and non-City overhead costs associated with 
providing such services within CFD No. 2006-1. The Special Tax provides only partial 
funding for police and fire services .. 

"Special Tax'' means any special tax authorized to be levied by CFD No. 2006-1 pursuant 
to the Act to fund Public Services and Administrative Expenses. 

"Single-Family Residential" means alJ Assessor's Parcels for which a Building Permit has 
been issued for purposes of constructing one single-family residential dwelling Unit. 

"Tax-Exempt Property" means an Assessor1s Parcel not subject to the Special Tax as 
defined under Section F. 

"Undeveloped Property" means all Assessor' s Parcels within CFO No. 2006~1 for which 
Building Permits have not been issued and are not classified as Public Property. 

"Unit" means any separate residential dwelling unit in which a person or persons may live, 
which comprises an independent facility capable of conveyance separate from adjacent 
residential dwelling units and is not considered to be for commercial or industrial use. 

B. CLASSIFICATION OF ASSESSOR'S PARCELS 

Each Fiscal Year, beginning with Fiscal Year 2006-2007, each Assessor's Parcel within CFO No. 
2006-i shall be classified as Developed Residential Property or Exempt Property. 

City of Mendota 
Community Facilities District No. 2006-1 Page 5 



C MAXIMUM ANNUAL SPECIAL TAX 

The Maximum Special Tax for each Assessor's Parcel classified as Developed Residential 
Prope1iy in Fiscal Year 2006-2007 shall be equal to $660.00 per Unit. For each subsequent 
Fiscal Year following the Base Year, the Maximum Special Tax shall be adjusted by the Annual 
Escalation Factor. 

D. METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT OF SPECIAL TAX 

Commencing with Fiscal Year 2006-2007, and for each subsequent Fiscal Year, the CFD 
Administrator shall calculate the Maximum Special Tax applicable for such Fiscal Year and levy 
the Maximum Special Tax on all Developed Residential Property. 

E. TERMINATION OF SPECIAL TAX 

The Special Tax shall be levied in perpetuity to fund Public Services provided to CFO No. 2006-
1. 

F. EXEMPTIONS 

The City shall classify as Exempt Property: (i) Public Property, (ii) Non-Residential Property, 
(iii) Undeveloped Property, (iv) Assessor's Parcels which are used as places of worship and are 
exempt from ad valorem property taxes because they are owned by a religious organization, (v) 
Assessor's Parcels used exclusively by a homeowners' association, or (vi) Assessor's Parcels 
with public or utility easements making impractical their utilization for other purposes than those 
set forth in the easement. 

G. APPEALS 

Any property owner claiming that the amount or application of the Special Tax is not correct 
may file a written notice of appeal with the City Council not later than twelve months after 
having paid the first installment of the Special Tax that is disputed. A representative(s) of CFD 
No. 2006-1 shall promptly review the appeal, and if necessary, meet with the property owner, 
consider written and oral evidence regarding the amount of the Special Tax, and rule on the 
appeal. If the representative's decision requires that the Special Tax for an Assessor's Parcel be 
modified or changed in favor of the prope1ty owner, a cash refund shall not be made, but an 
adjustment shall be made to the Special Tax on that Assessor's Parcel in the subsequent Fiscal 
Yeal'(s). 

H. MANNER OF COLLECTION 

The annual Special Taxes shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinai:y ad 
valorem property taxes, provided, however, that CFD No. 2006-1 may collect the Special Taxes at a 
different time or in a different 1nanner if necessary to meet its financial obligations. 

City of Mendota 
Com1mlllity Facilities District No. 2006-1 Pnge 6 



Exhibit I 



RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 
WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 

City of Mendota 
643 Quince Street 
Mendota, California 93640 
Attention: Gabe Gonzalez 

12/05/2006.20060254859 

NOTICE OF SPECIAL TAX LIEN 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 3 I 14.5 of the Streets and Highways Code and 
Section 53328.3 of the Government Code, the undersigned clerk of the legislative body of the City 
of Mendota (the .. City')), State of California, hereby gives notice that a I ien to secure payment of 
special taxes is hereby imposed by the City Council of the City. The special taxes secured by this 
lien are authorized to be levied for the purpose of financing a portion of the cost of providing police 
and fire services. 

The special taxes are authorized to be levied within the City of Mendota Community 
Facilities District No. 2006-1 (Police and Fire Services) (the "District") which has now been 
officially formed and the lien of the special taxes are a continuing lien which shall secure each 
annual levy of the special taxes and which shall continue in force and effect until the special 
taxes cease to be levied and a notice of cessation of special taxes is recorded in accordance with 
Section 53330.5 of the Government Code. 

The rate, method of apportionment) and manner of co11ection of authorized special tax for 
the District is as set forth in Exhibit "'A" attached hereto and hereby made a part hereof. The 
obligation to pay the special tax may not be prepaid and permanently satisfied and the lien of the 
special taxes may not be canceled. 

Notice is further given that upon the recording of this notice in the office of the county 
recorder, the obligation to pay the special tax levies shall become a lien upon all real property within 
the District in accordance with Section 3 I 15.5 of the Streets and Highways Code. 

The name of the owner(s) and the assessor's tax parcel number(s) of the real property 
included within the District are as set fotth in Exhibit "ff' attached hereto. 

Reference is made to the boundary map of the District recorded at Book 42 of Maps of 
Assessment and Community Facilities Districts at Page 29, in the office of the County Recorder for 
the County of Fresno, California which map is now and final boundary map of the District. 



For further information concerning the cunent and estimated futm·e tax liability of owners 
or purchasers of real property subject to this special tax lien; interested persons should contact the 
City Manager of the City of Mendota~ 643 Quince Street, Mendota, California 93640, (559) 
655-3291. 

Dated: v1 ~ .... ..3'0 / d?- (rt> \.o , b~L C~, 
Brenda L. Carter, City Clerk · 

(SEAL) 

2 



EXHIBIT A 

RA TE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT 

CITY OF MENDOTA 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2006-1 

(POLICE AND FIRE SERVICES) 

A special tax as hereinafter defined shall be . levied on and collected for City of Mendota 
Community Facilities District No. 2006-1 (Police and Fire Services) ("CFD No. 2006-1 ") each 
Fiscal Year, commencing in Fiscal Year 2006-2007, in an amount determined by the City 
Council of the City of Mendota through the application of the appropriate Special Tax for 
"Developed Residential Property" as described below. All of the real property in CFD No. 2006-
1, unless exempted by law or by the provisions hereof, shall be taxed for the purposes, to the 
extent, and in the manner herein provided. 

1. DEFINITIONS 

The terms hereinafter set forth have the following meanings: 

"Act" means the Mello-Roos Communities Facilities Act of 1982 as amended, being 
Chapter 2.5, Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California. 

"Administrative Expenses" means any actual ordinary and necessary expense of the City 
of Mendota, or designee thereof or both, to carry out the administration of CFD No. 2006-1 
related to the determination of the amount of the levy of the Special Tax, the collection of 
the Special Tax including the expenses of collecting delinquencies, the payment of a 
proportional share of salaries and benefits of any City employee whose duties are directly 
related to the administration of CFD No. 2006-1, fees and expenses for counsel, Special Tax 
consultant and other consultants hired by the City in relation to CFD No. 2006-1, costs 
associated with responding to public inquiries regarding CFD No. 2006-1, and costs 
otherwise incurred in order to carry out the authorized purposes of CFD No. 2006-1. 

"Annual Escalation Factor" means for the Special Tax, the greater of (i) two percent 
(2.00%), or (ii) the percentage change in the Consumer Price Index for the Calendar Year 
ending in December of the prior Fiscal Year. 

"Assessor's Parcel" means a lot or parcel of land designated on an Assessor's Parcel Map 
with an assigned Assessor's Parcel number within the boundaries of CFD No. 2006-1. 

"Assessor's Parcel Map" means an official map of the Assessor of the County designating 
parcels by Assessor's Parcel number. 

"Base Year" means Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2007. 

"Building Permit" means a permit for new construction for a residential dwelling Unit. For 
purposes of this definition, "Building Permit" shall not include permits for construction or 
installation of retaining walls, utility improvements, or other such improvements not 
intended for human habitation. 

A- 1 



"Calendar Year" means the period commencing January 1 of any year and ending the 
following December 31. 

"CFD Administrator" means an official of the City, or designee thereof, responsible for 
determining the Special Tax Requirements and providing for the levy and collection of the 
Special Tax. 

"CFD No. 2006-1" means Community Facilities District No. 2006-1 (Police and Fire 
Services) established by the City under the Act. 

"City" means the City of Mendota. 

"City Council" means the City Council of the City, acting as the Legislative Body of CPD 
No. 2006-1, or its designee. 

"Consumer Price Index" means the index published by the U.S. Department of Labor, 
Bureau of Labor Statistics for all urban consumers in the Fresno County area. 

"County" means the County of Fresno. 

"Developed Residential Property" means all Assessor's Parcels within CPD No. 2006-1 
for which Building Permits were issued for purposes of constructing Single-Family 
Residential or Multi-Family Residential dwelling Units on or before June 1 preceding the 
Fiscal Year for which the Special Tax is being levied, and that each such Assessor's Parcel is 
associated with a Lot within a Final Map, as determined reasonably by the City and/or CPD 
administrator. 

"Exempt Property" means all Assessor's Parcels within CFD No. 2006-1 designated as 
being exempt from the Special Tax as determined in Section F. 

"Final Map" means a subdivision of property evidenced by the recordation of a final map, 
parcel map, or lot line adjustment, pursuant to the Subdivision Map Act (California 
Government Code Section 66410 et seq.) or the recordation of a condominium plan pursuant 
to California Civil Code 1352 that creates individual lots for which Building Permits may be 
issued without further subdivision. 

"Fiscal Year" means the period commencing on July 1 of any year and ending the 
following June 30. 

"Lot" means an individual legal lot created by a Final Map for which a Building Permit 
could or has been issued. 

"Maximum Special Tax" means the Maximum Special Tax determined in accordance with 
Section C, which can be levied by CFD No. 2006-1 in any Fiscal Year on Developed 
Residential Property within CPD No. 2006-1. 

"Multi-Family Residential" means all Assessor's Parcels for which a Building Permit has 
been issued for purposes of constructing a residential structure consisting of two or more 
residential Units that share common walls, including, but not limited to, duplexes, triplexes, 
town homes, condominiums, and apartment Units. 

"Non-Residential Property" means all Assessor's Parcels for which a Building Permit was 
issued for any type of non-residential use. 

A-2 



"Public Property" means any property within the boundaries of CFD No. 2006-1 that is 
owned by or irrecoverable dedicated to the City, the federal government, the State of 
California, the County, CFD No. 2006-1, or other public agency. 

"Public Services" means new police and fire services, including but not limited to (i) the 
costs of contracting services, (ii) related facilities, equipment, vehicles, ambulances, fire 
apparatus and supplies, (iii) the salaries and benefits of City and non-City staff that directly 
provide police and fire services, and (iv) City and non-City overhead costs associated with 
providing such services within CFO No. 2006-1. The Special Tax provides only partial 
funding for police and fire services. 

"Special Tax" means any special tax authorized to be levied by CFD No. 2006-1 pursuant 
to the Act to fund Public Services and Administrative Expenses. 

"Single-Family Residential" means all Assessor's Parcels for which a Building Permit has 
been issued for purposes of constructing one single-family residential dwelling Unit. 

"Tax-Exempt Property" means an Assessor's Parcel not subject to the Special Tax as 
defined under Section F. 

"Undeveloped Property" means all Assessor's Parcels within CFD No. 2006-1 for which 
Building Permits have not been issued and are not classified as Public Property. 

"Unit" means any separate residential dwelling unit in which a person or persons may live, 
which comprises an independent facility capable of conveyance separate from adjacent 
residential dwelling units and is not considered to be for commercial or industrial use. 

2. LAND USE CLASSIFICATION 

Each Fiscal Year, beginning with Fiscal Year 2006-2007, each Assessor's Parcel within 
CFD No. 2006-1 shall be classified as Developed Residential Property or Exempt Property. 

3. MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAX RA TES 

The Maximum Special Tax for each Assessor's Parcel classified as Developed Residential 
Property in Fiscal Year 2006-2007 shall be equal to $660.00 per Unit. For each subsequent 
Fiscal Year following the Base Year, the Maximum Special Tax shall be adjusted by the 
Annual Escalation Factor. 

4. METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT 

Commencing with Fiscal Year 2006-2007, and for each subsequent Fiscal Year, the CFO 
Administrator shall calculate the Maximum Special Tax applicable for such Fiscal Year and 
levy the Maximum Special Tax on all Developed Residential Property. 

A-3 



5. TERM OF SPECIAL TAX 

The Special Tax shall be levied in perpetuity to fund Public Services provided to CFD No. 
2006-1. 

6. EXEMPTIONS 

The City shall classify as Exempt Property: (i) Public Property, (ii) Non-Residential 
Property, (iii) Undeveloped Property, (iv) Assessor's Parcels which are used as places of 
worship and are exempt from ad valorem property taxes because they are owned by a 
religious organization, (v) Assessor's Parcels used exclusively by a homeowners' 
association, or (vi) Assessor's Parcels with public or utility easements making impractical 
their utilization for other purposes than those set forth in the easement. 

7. APPEALS 

Any property owner claiming that the amount or application of the Special Tax is not 
correct may file a written notice of appeal with the City Council not later than twelve 
months after having paid the first installment of the Special Tax that is disputed. A 
representative(s) of CFD No. 2006-1 shall promptly review the appeal, and if necessary, 
meet with the property owner, consider written and oral evidence regarding the amount of 
the Special Tax, and rule on the appeal. If the representative's decision requires that the 
Special Tax for an Assessor's Parcel be modified or changed in favor of the property owner, 
a cash refund shall not be made, but an adjustment shall be made to the Special Tax on that 
Assessor's Parcel in the subsequent Fiscal Year(s). 

8. COLLECTION OF SPECIAL TAXES 

Collection of the Annual Special Tax shall be made by the County in the same manner as 
ordinary ad valorem property taxes are collected and the Annual Special Tax shall be 
subject to the same penalties and the same lien priority in the case of delinquency as ad 
valorem taxes; provided, however, that the Council may provide for other means of 
collecting the Special Tax, including direct billings thereof to the property owners. 

A-4 



EXHIBIT B 

PROPERTY OWNER NAME AND ASSESSOR'S TAX PARCEL NUMBER 

HIS Development Company LLC 0 I 2- I 90-40 
HIS Development Company LLC 012-190-41 

B - 1 



Exhibit J 



TO: CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA 

FROM: KSA HOMES, INC. 

PETITION (INCLUDING CONSENT AND WAIVER) 
REQUESTING ANNEXATION TO 

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2006-1 

The undersigned landowner does hereby certify under penalty of perjury that the 
following statements are all true and correct: 

1. The undersigned is authorized to represent the landowner identified below and is its 
designated representative to petition the City Council (the "City Council") of the City of 
Mendota (the "City") and to give the consent and waiver contained herein with respect to 
the annexation of the land identified below ("Subject Propetiy") to Community Facilities 
District ("CFD") No.2006-1, formed under the provisions of the Mello-Roos Community 
Facilities Act of 1982 (the "Act"), being Chapter 2.5 of Part 1 of Division 2 of title5 
(commencing with Section 53311) of the California Government Code. 

2. The undersigned hereby certifies that as of the date indicated, the landowner listed herein 
is the owner of all_ the property within the proposed boundaries of the Subject Property 
described in Exhibit "A" hereto. 

3. The undersigned, pursuant to Section 53339.7 of the Act, hereby requests annexation of 
the Subject Property to CFD No. 2006-1 for the purpose of financing police and fire 
services that are in addition to those provided within the area of the Subject Property 
prior to annexation. 

4. The undersigned hereby consents to the annexation of the Subject Property to CFD No. 
2006-1. The undersigned further acknowledges that, as authorized by Government Code 
Sections 53339.2 and 53339.7, because the Subject Propetiy was already subject to a 
public hearing as territory proposed for future annexation, the Subject Property's 
annexation shall not be subject to additional hearings or a formal election. 

5. The undersigned hereby consents to and expressly waives any and all claims based on 
any itTegularity, etTor, mistake or depaiiure from the provisions of the Act or other laws 
of the State and any and all laws and requirements incorporated therein, and no step or 
action in any proceeding relative to the CFD or the special tax imposed therein shall be 
invalidated or affected by any such irregularity, error, mistake or departure. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand this _l_!:day of Ja,,/q , 2019. 
J 



FILED IN THE OFFIGE OF THE CITYjCLERK OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF MEN~OTA THIS Ji_ DAY OF UJ\y , 2019. 

2 
~ 

Celeste Cabrera-Garcia 
City Clerk 



Exhibit A 



REMAINDER 

t 
~ 

i 
~ 
Ii, 

§ 

~ 
~ 
s 

-l 

BASS AVENUE 

ANNEXATION MAP NO. 01 OF 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2006-1 

CITY OF MENDOTA 

I I 

FRESNO COUNTY 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

i-= 
(/) 

... ---... ------·· 
RAMIREZ A VENUE 

< 
N 
0 
ID 
0:: 
< m 

PARCEL 3 
48-PM-52 

PARCEL 2 
51-PM-26 

-"' 
ij f 
!;;!~ 
~~ 

.c... 

# 
~ < 

$~ 

A 

/ 
/ 

/ 

/
'·,( // 

',, 
\ / 

/. ,,,,,,"'",,"\\,<.// 

,,/,.. ,/ 

SHEET 1 of 1 

FILID IN lHE OFFICE OF lHE CITY CLERK lHIS _____ ,2019 

I HEREBY CERTIFY lHAT lHE WllHIN MAP SHOWlNG BOUNDARIES OF ANNEXATION TO COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 2006-1, (POLICE ANO FIRE 

SER\llCES), CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTY OF FRESNO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, PRE\llDUSLY RECORDED ON NOVEMBER 3, 2006, IN BOOK 112 OF 

MAPS OF ASSESSMENT AND COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICTS AT PAGE 29, DOCUMENT NO. 2006-0234<;67, WAS APPROVED BY lHE CITY 

COUNCIL OF lHE CITY OF MENDOTA AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF, HELJO ON lHE ----DAY OF , 2019. 

BY ITS RESOLUTION ND. 2019-__ . 

CEUESTE CABRERA-GARCIA 
CITY CLIERK 

FILJED lHIS __ DAY OF , 2019, IN BOOK OF MAPS OF ASSESSMENT AND COMMUNITY FACILITIES 

DISTRICTS AT PAGE ___ , DOCUMENT ND. , IN lHE OFFICE OF lHE FRESNO COUNTY RECORDER. 

lHE LINES AND DIMENSIONS OF EACH PARCEL WllHIN lHE BOUNDARIES SHOWN ON lHIS DIAGRAM SHALL BE lHOSE LINES AND DIMENSIONS 
SHOWN ON lHE FIRESNO COUNTY ASSESSORS MAPS FDR lHOSE PARCELS WlTHIN lHE BOUNDARIES. THE FRESNO COUNTY ASSESSORS MAPS 
SHAUL GOVERN FOR AUL DETAILS CONCERNING lHE LINES AND DIMENSIONS OF SUCH LOTS OR PARCELS. 

LEGEND 

~ 

CFO ANNEXATION BOUNDARY 

PROVOST& 
PRITCHARD 

. b +· -
:~Ei~~~; 
)59/•49-~~~;.~!""'H715 

5 I,-,~ I""""""" 
~ 0 50 100 200 

~:=HO: g~~~~010 



Exhibit K 



E 
0 

ill 
0 

O> 

~ 

i 
~ 

, 

I I 
bf CANlU STREET 

BLACK AVENUE , 

' I I 
I I I 

... , ... , 
OXNARD SlREET 

' ' 

I 

' 

BASIN 

Ha.MES AVENUE 

I I I I I I I I I I I 
I I I I I I I I I I I 

McCABE AVENUE 

ii I I I I I I I I I I 
ii I I I I 11 I I I I~ 

FLEMING AVENUE ~ 

I I I I I I I I I I Ii 
1 111111111 11 

BLACK AVENUE 

____.i/ ii j "T! TI 
ei GREGG COURT SOUlH 

ROJAS PIERCE 
CITY PARK 

AMMENDED MAP OF BOUNDARIES OF 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2006-1 

CDF 
FIRE 

DEPT. 

(POLICE AND FIRE SERVICES) 
CITY OF MENDOTA, FRESNO COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 

McCABE AVENUE 

SCHOOL 
DISTRICT 
OFFICES 

McCABE 
SCHOOL 

SHEET 1 of 1 

FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK THIS ____ DAY OF ------- , 2019 

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE WITHIN MAP SHOWING AMENDED BOUNDARIES OF COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 2006-1, (POLICE AND FIRE 

SERVICES), CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTY OF FRESNO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, PREVIOUSLY RECORDED ON NOVEMBER 3, 2006, IN BOOK 112 OF 

MAPS OF ASSESSMENT AND COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICTS AT PAGE 29, DOCUMENT NO. 2006-0234667, WAS APPROVED BY THE CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF, HELD ON THE---- DAY OF-------, 2019, 
BY ITS RESOLUTION NO. 2019-__ _ 

CELESTE CABRERA-GARCIA 
CITY CLERK 

FILED THIS ___ DAY OF -----, 2019, IN BOOK ------OF MAPS OF ASSESSMENT AND COt.1MUNITY FACILITIES 

DISTRICTS AT PAGE , DOCUMENT NO. , IN THE OFFICE OF THE FRESNO COUNTY RECORDER. 

THE LINES AND DIMENSIONS OF EACH PARCEL WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES SHOWN ON THIS DIAGRAM SHALL BE THOSE LINES AND DIMENSIONS 
SHOWN ON THE FRESNO COUNTY ASSESSORS MAPS FOR THOSE PARCELS WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES. THE FRESNO COUNTY ASSESSORS MAPS 
SHALL GOVERN FOR ALL DETAILS CONCERNING THE LINES AND DIMENSIONS OF SUCH LOTS OR PARCELS. 

LEGEND 
CFD BOUNDARY 

SCALE IN FEET 

0 150 300 600 

PREPARED BY 
EST 1968 

PROVOST& 
PRITCHARD 
CONSUL TING GROUP 

An Employee Owned Company 
286 WEST CROMWELL A'IENUE 

FRESNO, CALIFORNIA 93711-6162 
559/449-2700 FAX 559/449-2715 

www.ppeng.com 
DATE: 07/17/19 
JOB NO.: 3336-19-010 

" ~--~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ .... 

AutoCAD SHX Text
286 WEST CROMWELL AVENUE FRESNO, CALIFORNIA  93711-6162 559/449-2700 FAX 559/449-2715 www.ppeng.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE: 07/17/19 07/17/19 JOB NO.: 3336-19-0103336-19-010

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/17/2019 12:01 PM G:\Mendota_City of-3336\3336OG01_On-Going\BASEMAPS\Planning\CFD 2006-1.dwg -Michael Osborn

AutoCAD SHX Text
AMMENDED MAP OF BOUNDARIES OF COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2006-1 (POLICE AND FIRE SERVICES) CITY OF MENDOTA, FRESNO COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 1 of 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
150

AutoCAD SHX Text
300

AutoCAD SHX Text
600

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLACK AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILVA STREEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARAJAS COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERVANTEZ STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARTINEZ CT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PETRY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
BANDONI CT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOLMES AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
McCABE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLEMING AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLACK AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROWE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CASTANEDA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEGOVIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANTU STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIAZ COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUIROGA CT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CASTRO STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERA CIR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GURROLA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
GONZALEZ STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SORENSEN AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DERRICK AVENUE (SR 33)

AutoCAD SHX Text
McCABE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREGG COURT NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERA CIR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERA CIR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILVA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCHOOL DISTRICT OFFICES

AutoCAD SHX Text
CDF FIRE DEPT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CFD BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
McCABE SCHOOL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROJAS PIERCE CITY PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREGG CT. W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREGG COURT SOUTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN PEDRO STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANTA CRUZ STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
MALDONADO STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALENZUELA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPINOZA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
OXNARD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK THIS     DAY OF      , 2019  DAY OF      , 2019  , 2019 I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE WITHIN MAP SHOWING AMENDED BOUNDARIES OF COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 2006-1, (POLICE AND FIRE SERVICES), CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTY OF FRESNO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, PREVIOUSLY RECORDED ON NOVEMBER 3, 2006, IN BOOK 112 OF MAPS OF ASSESSMENT AND COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICTS AT PAGE 29, DOCUMENT NO. 2006-0234667,  WAS APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF, HELD ON THE     DAY OF      , 2019,  DAY OF      , 2019,  , 2019, BY ITS RESOLUTION NO. 2019-   .  . CELESTE CABRERA-GARCIA CITY CLERK FILED THIS    DAY OF     , 2019, IN BOOK      OF MAPS OF ASSESSMENT AND COMMUNITY FACILITIES  DAY OF     , 2019, IN BOOK      OF MAPS OF ASSESSMENT AND COMMUNITY FACILITIES  , 2019, IN BOOK      OF MAPS OF ASSESSMENT AND COMMUNITY FACILITIES  OF MAPS OF ASSESSMENT AND COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICTS AT PAGE     , DOCUMENT NO.       , IN THE OFFICE OF THE FRESNO COUNTY RECORDER.  , DOCUMENT NO.       , IN THE OFFICE OF THE FRESNO COUNTY RECORDER.  , IN THE OFFICE OF THE FRESNO COUNTY RECORDER. THE LINES AND DIMENSIONS OF EACH PARCEL WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES SHOWN ON THIS DIAGRAM SHALL BE THOSE LINES AND DIMENSIONS SHOWN ON THE FRESNO COUNTY ASSESSORS MAPS FOR THOSE PARCELS WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES. THE FRESNO COUNTY ASSESSORS MAPS SHALL GOVERN FOR ALL DETAILS CONCERNING THE LINES AND DIMENSIONS OF SUCH LOTS OR PARCELS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASS AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAMIREZ AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LUA AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROSALES LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MENDOZA COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECOND STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMAINDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARBOZA ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 3 48-PM-52

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 1 48-PM-52

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 2 51-PM-26

AutoCAD SHX Text
OLLER STREET (SR 180)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DERRICK AVENUE (SR 33)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND							



Exhibit L 



REMAINDER 

~ 
8 

" _g 
.~ 

"' I 
O> 
~ 

"'? 
I 
"' 0 
0 
N 

It 
;i. 

O> 
c 
-~ 
a: 
/ 

"' "-< 
21 ' "' < 
;9-

O> 

·5 
"' I c o, 
5 
"' 0 

"' ,.., ,.., ,.., 
/ 

"' ,.., ,.., ,.., 
J_ 
0 

~ 
51 

-s 
"C 

~ ,. 
/ 
/; ,. 
"-
N 
0 

~ 
O> 

5 
~ 
" .:::. 
" 

BASS AVENUE 

ANNEXATION MAP NO. 01 OF 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2006-1 

CITY OF MENDOTA 
FRESNO COUNTY 

STA TE OF CALIFORNIA 

...,: 
(I) 

~ m 
~ m RAMIREZ A VENUE 

PARCEL 3 
48-PM-52 

PARCEL 2 
51-PM-26 

SHEET 1 of 1 

FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK THIS ----DAY OF -------, 2019 

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE WITHIN MAP SHOWING BOUNDARIES OF ANNEXATION TO COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 2006-1, (POLICE AND FIRE 

SERVICES), CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTY OF FRESNO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, PREVIOUSLY RECORDED ON NOVEMBER 3, 2006, IN BOOK 112 OF 

t.1APS OF ASSESSt.lENT AND COMt.lUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICTS AT PAGE 29, DOCUMENT NO. 2006-0234667, WAS APPROVED BY THE CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF, HELD ON THE ----- DAY OF ------- , 2019, 
BY ITS RESOWTION NO. 2019-__ _ 

CELESTE CABRERA-GARCIA 
CITY CLERK 

FILED THIS ___ DAY OF -----, 2019, IN BOOK ------OF MAPS OF ASSESSMENT AND COMMUNITY FACILITIES 

DISTRICTS AT PAGE , DOCUt.lENT NO. , IN THE OFFICE OF THE FRESNO COUNTY RECORDER. 

THE LINES AND Dlt.1ENSIONS OF EACH PARCEL WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES SHOWN ON THIS DIAGRAM SHALL BE THOSE LINES AND DIMENSIONS 
SHOWN ON THE FRESNO COUNTY ASSESSORS MAPS FOR THOSE PARCELS WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES. THE FRESNO COUNTY ASSESSORS t.lAPS 
SHALL GOVERN FOR ALL DETAILS CONCERNING THE LINES AND DIMENSIONS OF SUCH LOTS OR PARCELS. 

® 
SCALE IN FEET 

0 50 100 

CFD ANNEXATION BOUNDARY 

200 

PREPARED BY 
EST 1968 

PROVOST& 
PRITCHARD 
CONSUL TING GROUP 

An Employee Owned Company 
286 WEST CROMWELL A'IENUE 

FRESNO, CALIFORNIA 93711-6162 
559/449-2700 FAX 559/449-2715 

www.ppeng.com 
DATE: 07/17/19 
JOB NO.: 3336-19-010 

AutoCAD SHX Text
286 WEST CROMWELL AVENUE FRESNO, CALIFORNIA  93711-6162 559/449-2700 FAX 559/449-2715 www.ppeng.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/17/2019 12:02 PM G:\Mendota_City of-3336\3336OG01_On-Going\BASEMAPS\Planning\CFD 2006-1.dwg -Michael Osborn

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK THIS     DAY OF      , 2019  DAY OF      , 2019  , 2019 I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE WITHIN MAP SHOWING BOUNDARIES OF ANNEXATION TO COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 2006-1, (POLICE AND FIRE SERVICES), CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTY OF FRESNO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, PREVIOUSLY RECORDED ON NOVEMBER 3, 2006, IN BOOK 112 OF MAPS OF ASSESSMENT AND COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICTS AT PAGE 29, DOCUMENT NO. 2006-0234667, WAS APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF, HELD ON THE     DAY OF      , 2019,  DAY OF      , 2019,  , 2019, BY ITS RESOLUTION NO. 2019-   .  . CELESTE CABRERA-GARCIA CITY CLERK FILED THIS    DAY OF     , 2019, IN BOOK      OF MAPS OF ASSESSMENT AND COMMUNITY FACILITIES  DAY OF     , 2019, IN BOOK      OF MAPS OF ASSESSMENT AND COMMUNITY FACILITIES  , 2019, IN BOOK      OF MAPS OF ASSESSMENT AND COMMUNITY FACILITIES  OF MAPS OF ASSESSMENT AND COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICTS AT PAGE     , DOCUMENT NO.       , IN THE OFFICE OF THE FRESNO COUNTY RECORDER.  , DOCUMENT NO.       , IN THE OFFICE OF THE FRESNO COUNTY RECORDER.  , IN THE OFFICE OF THE FRESNO COUNTY RECORDER. THE LINES AND DIMENSIONS OF EACH PARCEL WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES SHOWN ON THIS DIAGRAM SHALL BE THOSE LINES AND DIMENSIONS SHOWN ON THE FRESNO COUNTY ASSESSORS MAPS FOR THOSE PARCELS WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES. THE FRESNO COUNTY ASSESSORS MAPS SHALL GOVERN FOR ALL DETAILS CONCERNING THE LINES AND DIMENSIONS OF SUCH LOTS OR PARCELS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANNEXATION MAP NO. 01 OF COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2006-1 CITY OF MENDOTA FRESNO COUNTY STATE OF CALIFORNIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 1 of 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASS AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAMIREZ AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LUA AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROSALES LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MENDOZA COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECOND STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMAINDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARBOZA ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 3 48-PM-52

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 1 48-PM-52

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE: 07/17/19 07/17/19 JOB NO.: 3336-19-0103336-19-010

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 2 51-PM-26

AutoCAD SHX Text
CFD ANNEXATION BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND							



1 
 

AGENDA ITEM 

 
 
TO:  HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS  
 
FROM: CRISTIAN GONZALEZ, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: CONSIDERATION OF AUTHORIZATION FOR THE CITY TO USE 

THE CALIFORNIA UNIFORM PUBLIC CONSTRUCTION COST 
ACCOUNTING ACT FOR MAINTENANCE AND SMALL CONSTRUCTION 

 
DATE: JULY 23, 2019 
 
 
ISSUE 
Should the City Council approve use of the California Uniform Public Construction Cost 
Accounting Act, codified in Public Contract Code 22000, and referred to as “CUCCAC,”as an 
alternative procedure to purchase maintenance and small construction services when 
advantageous to the City? 
 
BACKGROUND 
The State of California, in Public Contracts Code 22000, specifies a procedure which cities and 
special districts may opt into for the purchase of maintenance and small construction projects, up 
to a cost limit. That limit is currently set at $200,000, though it has regularly been adjusted 
upward to keep pace with rising construction costs.  
 
The concept in the code is simpler than the traditional bid process that we must otherwise follow 
for contracting maintenance and construction work. The traditional bid process is time 
consuming and can be difficult especially when dealing with very small projects or when trying 
to get work done quickly. The CUCCAC process addresses many of those concerns.  
 
CUCCAC can be implemented by the following steps, which your Council can carry out at your 
discretion at this meeting. 
 

1. Elect by resolution (attached) to become subject to the California Uniform Public 
Construction Cost Accounting Act (Act) per Public Contract Code 22019 and notify the 
State Controller in writing of the election. 

 
2. Enact an informal bidding procedures ordinance (attached) per Public Contract Code 

Section 22034.  The ordinance would authorize the City Manager or other City staff 
member to award informal contracts. 

 
3. Create and maintain a Qualified Contractors list in accordance with Public Contract Code 

Section 22034. Notices must be provided to all construction trade journals for Fresno 
County, per Section 22036.  The City may choose to exclude trade journals that charge a 



2 
 

fee for publishing the notice.  The notices must invite all licensed contractors to fill out a 
pre-qualification form which requests information including, but not limited to, company 
name, company representative contact information, California Contractor’s license 
number, and categories of work offered. If the product or service is proprietary, the notice 
can be sent only to contractors specializing in that particular work. 

 
4. For individual task orders that are under $200,000, request informal bids from all 

contractors on the Qualified Contractors list.  The request for informal bids must contain 
a general description of the work, instructions on how to obtain more detailed 
information, and the date and time of submission of bids.  Response period must be at 
least 10 days.  If all bids received are greater than $200,000, the Council, by four-fifths 
vote, can approve award of an amount up to $212,500. (Note that these dollar limits are 
regularly increased by the State to keep up with rising construction costs.) 

 
5. Select the contractor with the lowest responsive bid for each task order. If there are two 

or more equal lowest bids the Council may award to any one of the lowest-bidding 
contractors. 

 
6. Projects performed under the Act may be subject to an Accounting Procedures Review by 

the Commission if an interested party (e.g., a licensed eligible contractor) submits a 
formal complaint. 

 
7. For the individual task orders that are greater than $200,000, the Act does not apply and 

City formal bidding procedures, conforming with the State Contracts Code, must be 
followed.   

 
8. The City would be subject to the terms of the Act for as long as the City opts into this 

procedure.  If the City later chooses to opt out, they must do so by formal resolution of 
the City Council, which would then have to be filed with the State Controller. 

 
ANALYSIS 
The City Manager and City Attorney have reviewed the CUCCAC procedure and believe 
adopting it would be advantageous to the City in many circumstances each year, and do not 
foresee any drawbacks. Other Cities report very satisfactory results from adoption of the 
procedure as outlined above. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
No negative financial impact. Successfuladoption and implementation of the procedure may be 
expected to result in some savings in bidding and administrative expenses for some projects. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council take the following actions: 

1. Pass and adopt the attached Resolution 19-51, electing to make the City of Mendota 
subject to the California Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act (Act) per 
Public Contract Code 22019, and directing staff to take necessary implementation action. 



3 
 

2. Waive the first reading and pass to the second reading of Ordinance 19-07, creating an 
informal bidding procedure per Public Contract Code Section 22034. 



 1 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE 

CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTYOF FRESNO 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL   RESOLUTION NO. 19-52 
OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA ELECTING TO 
BECOME SUBJECT TO UNIFORM PUBLIC  
CONSTRUCTION COST ACCOUNTING 
PROCEDURES 
 
 WHEREAS, prior to the passage of Assembly Bill No. 1666, Chapter 1054, 
Statutes of 1983, which added Chapter 2, commencing with Section 22000, to Part 3 of 
Division 2 of the Public Contract Code, existing law did not provide a uniform cost 
accounting standard for construction work performed or contracted by local public 
agencies; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Public Contract Code, Section 22000 et seq., the Uniform Public 
Construction Cost Accounting Act (Act), establishes such a uniform cost accounting 
standard; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Commission established under the Act has developed uniform 
public construction cost accounting procedures for implementation by local public 
agencies in the performance of or in the contracting for construction of public projects; 
and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 
Mendota, State of California, as follows: 
 

1. The City hereby elects under Public Contract Code, Section 22030 to become 
subject to the uniform public construction cost accounting procedures set 
forth in the Act and to the Commission’s policies and procedures manual and 
cost accounting review procedures, as they may each from time to time be 
amended. 
 

2. The City Clerk is hereby directed to notify the State Controller forthwith of this 
election.  

 
3. This Resolution shall take effect upon its adoption.  

        
 
       ______________________________ 
       Robert Silva, Mayor 
 
 
 
 



 2 

ATTEST: 
 
 I, Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk of the City of Mendota, do hereby certify 
that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted and passed by the City Council at a 
regular meeting of said Council, held at the Mendota City Hall on the 23rd day of July, 
2019, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
 
 

______________________________ 
Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk 



1 
 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE 

CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTY OF FRESNO 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL   ORDINANCE NO. 19-07 
OF THE CITY OF MENDOTAENACTING  
INFORMAL BIDDING PROCEDURES FOR 
SPECIFIED PUBLIC WORKS PROJECTS 
 
 WHEREAS, prior to the passage of Assembly Bill No. 1666, Chapter 1054, 
Statutes of 1983, which added Chapter 2, commencing with Section 22000, to Part 3 of 
Division 2 of the Public Contract Code, existing law did not provide a uniform cost 
accounting standard for construction work performed or contracted by local public 
agencies;  
 
 WHEREAS, Public Contract Code, Section 22000 et seq., the Uniform Public 
Construction Cost Accounting Act (Act), establishes such a uniform cost accounting 
standard; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Commission established under the Act has developed uniform 
public construction cost accounting procedures for implementation by local public 
agencies in the performance of or in the contracting for construction of public projects; 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Public Contract Code, Section 22030, the governing 
board of a public agency must adopt a resolution electing to become subject to the 
uniform public construction cost accounting procedures in order for those provisions to 
apply to the public agency;  
 
 WHEREAS, in Resolution No. 19-52, the City elected under Public Contract 
Code, Section 22030 to become subject to the uniform public construction cost 
accounting procedures set forth in the Act and to the Commission’s policies and 
procedures manual and cost accounting review procedures, as they may each from 
time to time be amended; 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Public Contract Code, Section 22034, each public 
agency that elects to become subject to the uniform construction accounting procedures 
set forth in the Act must enact an informal bidding ordinance to govern the selection of 
contractors perform public projects pursuant to the Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this Ordinance is intended to and does satisfy the requirements of 
Public Contract Code, Section 22034.  

 

 



 

 NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA, 
CALIFORNIA DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1.  The City Council of the City of Mendota hereby finds and determines that 
all of the above Recitals are true and correct, are incorporated herein, and by this 
reference made an operative part hereof.  

SECTION 2. Section 3 of this ordinance adds Chapter 2.50 to Title 2 of the Mendota 
Municipal Code.  
 
SECTION 3.  Title 2, Chapter 2.50 is hereby added to the Mendota Municipal Code as 
follows: 
 
Chapter 2.50 – INFORMAL BIDDING PROCEDURES 
 
2.50.010 – Informal Bid Procedures.  
 
 Public projects, as defined by the Act and in accordance with the limits listed in 
Section 22032 of the Public Contract Code, may be let to contract by informal 
procedures as set forth in Section 22032, et seq., of the Public Contract Code. 
 
2.50.020 – Contractors List. 
 
 The agency shall comply with the requirements of Public Contract Code Section 
22034. 
 
2.50.030 – Notice Inviting Informal Bids. 
 
 Where a public project is to be performed which is subject to the provisions of 
this Chapter, a notice inviting informal bids shall be circulated using one or both of the 
following alternatives: 
 

A. Notices inviting informal bids may be mailed, faxes, or emailed to all 
contractors for the category of work to be bid, as shown on the list developed 
in accordance with Section 2.50.020. 
 

B. Notices inviting informal bids may be mailed to all construction trade journals 
as specified by the California Uniform Construction Cost Accounting 
Commission in accordance with Section 22036 of the Public Contract Code.  
Additional contractors and/or construction trade journals may be notified at 
the discretion of the department/agency soliciting bids.  However, if the 
product or service is proprietary in nature such that it can be obtained only 
from a certain contractor or contractors, the notice inviting informal bids may 
be sent exclusively to such contractor or contractors. 

  
 
 



 

2.50.040 – Award of Contracts 
 
 The City Manager, or his or her designee, is authorized to award informal 
contracts pursuant to this Chapter.  
 
SECTION 4. Severability.  If any part of this Ordinance is held to be invalid for any 
reason, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this 
Ordinance, and the City Council hereby declares that it would have passed the 
remainder of this Ordinance, as if such invalid portion thereof had been deleted. 
 
SECTION 5.This Ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after its passage.   
 
SECTION 6.The Mayor shall sign and the City Clerk shall certify to the passage of this 
Ordinance.  Within fifteen (15) days of the adoption of this Ordinance, the City Clerk 
shall publish the Ordinance, along with the names of the Council members voting for 
and against it, in a newspaper of general circulation published in the City.  The City 
Clerk is further directed to post a certified copy this Ordinance at City Hall, along with 
the names of those Council members voting for and against it.  

SECTION 7.  This Ordinance is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act 
pursuant to 14 C.C.R. § 15061(b)(3) because it can be seen with certainty that there is 
no possibility that the activity in question may have a significant effect on the 
environment. 
 

* * * * * * * * * * 
The foregoing ordinance was introduced on the 23rd day of July, 2019 and duly passed 
and adopted by the City Council of the City of Mendota at a regular meeting thereof held 
on the 13th day of August, 2019 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:      ______________________________ 

      Robert Silva, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
______________________________ 
John Kinsey, City Attorney 



CALIFORNIA RURAL LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC. 

FIGHTING FOR JUSTICE, CHANGING LIVES 

Junel7,2019 

Sent via postal and electronic mail to: vsilva@cityofmendota.com; ccabrera@cityofmendota.com; 
rcastro@cityofmendota.com;_vmartinez@cityofmendota.com; jmendoza@cityofmendota.com; 
osralases@cityofinendota.com 

Robert Silva, Mayor 
Rolando Castro, Mayor Pro Tempore 
Celeste Cabrera, City Clerk 
Oscar Rosales, Council Member 
Victor Martinez, Council Member 
Jesse Mendoza, Council Member 

Mendota City Hall 
643 Quince St 
Mendota, CA 93640 

Re: City of Mendota Utility Bill Late Fees 

Dear Mayor, Mayor Pro Tempore, and Council Members: 

California Rural Legal Assistance has been retained to represent concerned residents "Mujeres Activas por 
Mendota" (Mujeres Activas) to address the dispropo1iionately negative impact that the City of Mendota (City) 
utility bill late fee policy has on low-income residents. Mujeres Activas request two (2) changes in policy that 
will result in fewer late fees for residents and consequently prevent disadvantaged families from experiencing 
additional financial hardships. 

The City currently designates a utility bill as delinquent if it is not paid on the first day of the calendar month. A 
ten percent ( 10%) penalty (late fee) is charged the second day of the month if payment is not made by the first. 
The City does not provide any grace period for residents before charging a late fee. Mujeres Activas requests that 
the City make two changes to its policy to help residents pay their utility bills on time: (1) institute a grace period 
of thirty (30) days for residents to pay their utility bill before charging a late fee; (2) permit residents to request a 
different monthly due date for utility bill payments. 

A significant percentage of the Mendota population is comprised of low-wage agricultural workers and other low
income residents such as those that receive a fixed income and public benefits. The most current American 
Community Survey (ACS) data estimate the median household income (MHI) for Mendota as $27,479.00 . The 
actual MHI is likely considerably lower, as very-low-income individuals, disabled individuals, farmworkers, and 
Limited English Proficient (LEP) individuals are systemically undercounted and therefore inadequately 
represented in Census and ACS data. 

Households earning $27,479.00 annually receive a monthly take-home income of approximately $926.00. 
Mendota residents pay between $600 and$ l I 00 monthly for rent, due on the first of the month. Many families are 
unable to afford rent along with other bills and must share housing with other families. For example, one family 
of two working adults must live with another family in order to afford rent and bills. This type of arrangement is 
very common. 

3747 E. Shields Avenue, Fresno, CA 93726 · Phone: 559-441-8721 · Fax: 559-441 -0724 · www.crla .org 



Re: City of Mendota Utility Late Fees 
Page 2 

For families under such financial burdens it is very difficult to afford multiple bills due on the first of the month, 
and they often must make difficult choices regarding which bills to pay. This is especially true for residents that 
are paid-biweekly and must pay all monthly bills from the same check, and for residents with unconventional 
payment schedules such as agricultural workers. Paying rent timely may mean that utility bills cannot be paid. 
Paying utility and phone bills instead of rent risks eviction. Consequently, low-income residents end up paying 
late fees on utility bills as they prioritize paying rent. 

Paying late fees exacerbates an already strained financial situation for low-income households. For residents who 
struggle to pay the actual bill, late fees can make it harder to pay in full , forcing them to carry a balance and 
accrue more fees. Shut offs also become more likely, and the added fees to reconnect make it difficult for low
income residents to reinstate service. For the City, late payments increase work around billing, shut offs, 
reconnections, and compliance. 

The City of Mendota can increase compliance and reduce late payments by adopting practices and policies that 
are common in the industry. Other jurisdictions, including the cities of Sanger, San Joaquin, and Reedley offer at 
least thirty days (30) before a late fee is applied. Jurisdictions including Biola, Firebaugh, Reedley, Parlier, San 
Joaquin, and Sanger allow for special arrangements with residents that have difficulty paying their bills on the 
first of the month. 

Implementing a grace period will give residents flexibility to pay their bills in a timely fashion. A grace period of 
thirty (30) days will provide residents extra time to ensure that they have sufficient funds to pay their utility bills 
and not be subjected to penalties that will only further exacerbate any financial difficulties they are facing. 
Allowing residents to change the due date for their utility bills will allow residents to spread out the due dates of 
their bills throughout the month. If a resident is struggling to pay their bill within the allotted time period, the 
resident should be able to call and request a due date at another time in the month. Various commercial services 
such as internet, phone, and insurance providers offer this flexibility and it improves the ability of residents to pay 
timely. 

Mujeres Activas appreciates the City Council's and Mayor's consideration of these policy changes and requests 
the opportunity to meet with the City to discuss these and other potential solutions to this important issue. Please 
respond to this request within fourteen (14) business days. 

Mariah C. Thompson 
Staff Attorney, Community Equity Initiative 
California Rural Legal Assistance, Inc. 
3747 E Shields Ave 
Fresno, CA 93 721 
(559) 441-8721 
mthompson@crla.org 



 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES DEPARTMENT REPORT 

TO:  HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS 

FROM:  JENNIFER LEKUMBERRY, DIRECTOR OF ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 

VIA:  CRISTIAN GONZALEZ, CITY MANAGER 

SUBJECT: MONTHLY REPORT (JUNE 2019) 

DATE:  JULY 23, 2019 

  

HUMAN RESOURCES 

• Labor Negotiations 

• I coordinated the open enrollment meetings with BRS Financial and eligible staff 

• Completed onboarding meeting with three new regular full time employees 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

• Claims 

o There were no new claims against the city in June 

• Worker’s Compensation Claims  

o There were no new worker’s compensation claims in June   

• Vehicle Accidents 

o There was one incident that resulted in damage to another individual’s vehicle  

 

SENIOR CENTER 

• For the month of June, there was an average of 11 attendees per day at the senior center 

 

SPECIAL PROJECTS 

• Completed RMA Certificate Renewal 

• Completed RMA Alliant Crime Insurance Program (ACIP) Renewal 



MENDOTA, CITY OF
Grant Report
Jul-19

Grant Name Application Due Date Award Date

Agency: 
Federal/State/County/

Private Pass-thru Matching Award Amount Purpose of Grant  Notes 
 Comments by 
Council or Staff 

Per Capita Grant Program 6/3/2019 Late Summer '19 State N N TBD Local park rehabilitation, creation and improvement grants  One-time basis 
Tobacco Grant Program 7/12/2019 9/30/2019 State NA N 89,909.00$           Tobacco Ordinance, Retailers Compliance Checks and Community Outreach Reimbursement Grant

National Public Lands Day 7/19/2019 8/2/2019 Private N N 1,500.00$             
 Demonstrate Volunteerism, Community Engagement and Importance of giving back to 
Public Lands. $500 Stipend; $1,000 in-kind contribution

California Aid to Airports Program 7/31/2019 10/31/2019 State N N 10,000.00$            Annual credit grant to fund operational costs at the airport 

National Fitness Campaign 2020 8/1/2019 TBD Private N Y 30,000.00$            Fitness Court  Applying for grant in conjuction with Prop.68 
Proposition 68 - Parks 8/5/2019 TBD State NA N TBD New Construction of Community Center and Park Recreation Features Reimbursement Grant
SB 2 Planning Grant Program 11/30/2019 TBD State N N up to $160,000 Update planning documents and processes of housing approvals/production
Beverage Container Recycling 
City/County Payment Program 12/17/2019 2/28/2020 State N N 5,000.00$             

 Litter preventon and cleanup; Public education promoting beverage container 
recycling 

 If you don’t expend the full $5,000.00, you 
must repay CalRecycle. 

Key: Applied for Grants
        In process

Priority by 
Council Application Due Date Agency Matching Award Amount Purpose of Grant

TBD State TBD up to $150,000 Landscape Projects or Playground Projects with tire-derived products
Available Summer 
2019 State TBD up to $350,000  Rubberized pavement projects for roadways, bikeways and disability access at park 

10/3/2019 Federal Y up to $100,000 Digitize public records and make freely available online

Open State TBD TBD Planning grant for water storage: pressure booster and water quality

Open Federal TBD TBD Construction of Police Department

Open Federal TBD TBD Construction of Animal Control Facility

12/31/2019 Private N up to $5,000
 Quality of life; Community and economic development; Public Safety; Environmental 
sustainability 

TBD State N up to $8,000,00  Improvements to Mendota Pool Park Proposition 68 - Parks

Community Facilities Direct Loan & Grant Program

Community Facilities Direct Loan & Grant Program

Walmart Community Grant

Rubberized Pavement Grant Program

Access to Historical Records: Archival Projects

Clean, Safe and Reliable Drinking Water

Grant Information

Potential Grant Opportunities

Grants  Comments by Council or Staff 

Tire-Derived Product Grant Program


	7-23-19 City Council Meeting Agenda
	7-9-19 City Council Meeting Minutes
	/
	MINUTES OF MENDOTA
	REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING
	Meeting called to order by Mayor Silva at 6:01 p.m.

	Roll Call

	Warrant List 7.23.19 CC Meeting 
	Staff Report 19-49 Claim Measure C Funds
	FY2019-20 MeasC Ext Mendota LTPClaim ADA
	FY2019-20 MeasC Ext Mendota LTPClaim StreetMaint
	FY2019-20 MeasC Ext Mendota LTPClaim Flex
	19-49 Measure C Pass-Thru
	I, Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk of the City of Mendota, do hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted and passed by the City Council at a regular meeting of said Council, held at the Mendota City Hall on the 23rd of July, 2019...
	AYES:
	NOES:
	ABSENT:
	ABSTAIN:

	Staff Report TDA Claim LTF Funds 19-50
	TDA CLAIM FORM-MENDOTA-19-50
	Claim Detail

	19-50 LTF Funds
	ATTEST:
	I, Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk of the City of Mendota, do hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted and passed by the City Council at a regular meeting of said Council, held at the Mendota City Hall on the 23rd day of July, ...
	AYES:
	NOES:
	ABSENT:
	ABSTAIN:
	___________________________________
	Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk

	19-53 Neg Dec RPP
	I, Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk of the City of Mendota, do hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted and passed by the City Council at a regular meeting of said Council, held at Mendota City Hall on the 23rd day of July, 2019...

	Exhibit A
	NEg Dec
	Cover
	Preface
	Contents
	How Soil Surveys Are Made
	Soil Map
	Soil Map
	Legend
	Map Unit Legend
	Map Unit Descriptions
	Fresno County, California, Western Part
	482—Calflax clay loam, saline-sodic, wet, 0 to 1 percent slopes, MLRA 17



	References
	United States Department of the Interior
	FISH AND WILDLIFE SERVICE

	Official Species List
	Project summary
	Endangered Species Act species
	Mammals
	Birds
	Reptiles
	Amphibians
	Fishes
	Crustaceans
	Critical habitats


	Cover
	Preface
	Contents
	How Soil Surveys Are Made
	Soil Map
	Soil Map
	Legend
	Map Unit Legend
	Map Unit Descriptions
	Fresno County, California, Western Part
	482—Calflax clay loam, saline-sodic, wet, 0 to 1 percent slopes, MLRA 17



	References

	Staff Report re Translation Services (00995580-2) (Autosaved)
	Staff Report re CFD Annexation (00995485) (3)
	19-51 Annexing Territory to CFD 2006-1 and Approving an Amended Boundary Map (00995432)
	AYES:
	NOES:
	ABSENT:
	ABSTAIN:

	Exhibit A
	CFD Exhibit A
	Exhibit B
	CFD Exhibit B
	Exhibit C
	CFD Exhibit C
	Exhibit D
	CFD Exhibit D
	Exhibit E
	CFD Exhibit E
	Exhibit F
	CFD Exhibit F
	Exhibit G
	CFD Exhibit G
	Exhibit H
	CFD Exhibit  H
	Exhibit I
	CFD Exhibit I
	Exhibit J
	CFD Exhibit J
	Exhibit K
	CFD Exhibit K
	Exhibit L
	CFD Exhibit L
	190725 Agenda Item - Authorizing Use of CUCCAC (3)
	19-52 Unform Public Construction Cost Accounting Procedures (00993980) (2)
	AYES:
	NOES:
	ABSENT:
	ABSTAIN:

	19-07 Informal Bidding Procedures
	Letter
	Staff Report- June 2019
	GRANTS-GRANTS-GRANTS
	Grants


	AGENDA: 


